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CORPORATE MISSION
RE L

Backed by an established corporate track record, technological excellence and strong
mergers and acquisitions capabilities, SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. envisages itself as
a leading investor and operator in the environment industry in the People’s Republic of
China by adhering to the development model of integrating industry and finance. In the
pursuit of company growth, we remain committed to protecting the planet, conserving
the environment and preserving natural resources
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SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (“SIIC Environment”, stock code: BHK.SG, 807.HK) is
a top-tier integrated player in China’s water and environmental markets. It is engaged
in wastewater treatment, water supply, sludge treatment, solid waste incineration and
other environment related businesses. Headquartered in Singapore and listed on the
Mainboard of SGX-ST, the Company successfully launched on the Mainboard of SEHK
in 2018. The controlling shareholder of SIIC Environment, Shanghai Industrial Holdings
Limited (“SIHL”, SEHK stock code:363.HK), was established in 1996, with infrastructure,
real estate and consumer products as the core businesses. The important strategic
investor of the Company, China Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection
Group (“CECEP”), is a state-owned enterprise mainly engaged in energy conservation
and environmental protection, which was reorganized and established in 2010 with the
approval of PRC’s state council. SIIC Environment has shown tremendous growth and
continued to increase its market share in China’s environmental sector.

SIIC Environment is an active investor and operator in the environmental protection
industry, with an operating history of more than 15 years in China. Currently, it boasts
an overall portfolio of more than 200 water treatment and supply projects, 8 waste
incineration projects and 10 sludge treatment projects across 19 municipalities and
provinces in China, namely Shandong, Guangdong, Hubei, Hunan, Jiangsu, Shanghai,
Zhejiang, Jiangxi, Anhui, Fujian, Guangxi, Ningxia, Henan, Liaoning, Inner Mongolia,
Shanxi, Sichuan, Jilin and Heilongjiang.

Leveraging on the Group’s distinctive strategic positioning and business model, SIIC
Environment will continue to expand its business in water and solid waste treatment
and explore opportunities in other environmental-related markets such as industrial
wastewater treatment, seawater desalination, sludge treatment and disposal, soil
remediation, renewable energy, water treatment technology and pollution prevention. The
Group is committed to expanding its market share, increasing its scale and efficiency,
and consolidating its leading position in Chipa’s water and environmental protection
industry.
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BUSINESS STRUCTURE
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Water Treatment and Supply

KR E
)
Central (Wuhan Business Unit)
ZEr (RESH)
South (Nanfang Business Unit)
ZE (BA2H)
North (Weifang Business Unit)
Zit (B 2 %)
Northeast (Longjiang Business Unit)
Rit (FIHH)
East (Fudan Business Unit)
ZR (EESH)
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Waste Incineration
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Valued Shareholders,
BENEHHRE :

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to
inform you that SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (“SIIC
Environment” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) recorded a healthy
improvement in results while maintaining a sound

asset position and sufficient liquidity for the 12 months
ended 31 December 2019 (“FY2019”), attributable to
strict adherence and efficient implementation of correct
development strategies.
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In 2019, China’s rapid economic development and progress in urbanization had certain
positive effects on the environmental protection industry. Since the issuance of the
<Three-Year Action Plan for Winning the Battle for a Blue Sky> by the government
in 2018, the progress made in implementing environmental protection policies has
exceeded expectations. The regulatory environment on the control of “water, soil, solid
waste and air” has formed, indicating that the policies for environmental protection
industry have shifted from the stage of sowing to refining. We expect the financing
environment for the environmental infrastructure industry to moderately loosen in 2020.
The Group will continue to leverage the favorable polices and the financing environment
to resume the Group’s plan in integrating the market.

Besides, we will continue to follow the national strategic approach of China and
collaborate closely with local governments. In addition, we will expand our business
of the environmental protection industry in the Asia-Pacific region and seize the
opportunities during the critical period to provide more cutting-edge environmental
protection services.

Strive Forward Over Stiff Windheads

In 2019, the Group focused on the development of expansion and upgrading of
wastewater treatment plants, acquired several large-scale exquisite waste incineration
projects, intensified its deployment in waste incineration power generation sector and
continuously enhanced the industrial wastewater treatment and sludge disposal business
in view of the environmental policies and market cycle. The Group realized a steady
growth during nine consecutive years and saw a solid upswing in each profit indicator.
Despite twists and turns, we strapped our boots and strived forward.

During the 12 months ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue increased by
12.2% to RMB5.96 billion, primarily due to higher water treatment and water supply
sales volume and rising wastewater treatment tariff. The water business grew steadily and
remained the largest contributor to the Group’s revenue. Revenue from water supply and
wastewater treatment amounted to RMB5.53 billion, increasing by 11.1% over last year.
Besides, during the year, the Group captured the business opportunity in a timely manner
to enter into cooperation with the leading companies in the industry to solidify market
positioning in waste incineration sector, which was proved to be effective and recorded
a revenue of RMB154 million, increasing by 42.3% over last year. Gross profit also
increased by 22% to RMB1.93 billion, primarily due to the increase in operating income.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by 11.1% to RMB600 million.

In terms of finance, the Group keeps a strict control over financial risks and actively
seeks for a healthy financial structure. During the year, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents stood at RMB2.4 billion. Net cash generated from operating activities was
RMB152 million. Excluding changes in receivables (project construction and purchase)
under service concession arrangements, net cash generated from operating activities
was RMB2.0 billion in 2019. The Group thus possesses sufficient capital to support its
operating and investment activities.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FREHE

Commitment to Progress and Establishment of New Ties

As a leading comprehensive operator in the water and environmental protection industry
in China, the Group owns over 200 water treatment and supply projects with a total
capacity of nearly 12 million tonnes/day, 8 waste incineration power generation projects
with a total capacity of 8,800 tonnes/day and 10 sludge treatment projects with a total
capacity of 2,255 tonnes/day across 19 provinces and municipalities. In respect of water
business, 14 wastewater treatment projects and 11 expansion and upgrading projects
have commenced commercial operation, with a respective total capacity of 507,500
tonnes/day and 1.06 million tonnes/day in 2019. In respect of waste incineration
business, the Group optimized the development strategy of waste incineration power
generation business and introduced two new waste incineration power generation
projects to the portfolio during the year, elevating the total capacity of waste incineration
to 8,800 tonnes/day.

As a principal business of the Group, water business is strategically located in the
first-and second-tier cities with large populations throughout China where the local
government has a healthy financial position. While seeking for new exquisite water
projects, the Group continuously upgrades the existing wastewater treatment projects in
order to meet the higher emission standards set by the government in respect of urban
wastewater treatment plants. As a result of upgrade and reconstruction, the Group is
entitled to higher water tariffs. During the year, the Group’s average wastewater treatment
tariff rose from RMB1.11/tonne to RMB1.28/tonne, with a year-over-year increase of
15%. In 2019, the Group acquired 8 new concessionary and 0&M projects, together with
5 wastewater treatment plant expansion and upgrading projects, located in Shandong,
Jilin, Zhejiang, Shanghai, Guangdong, Henan, Heilongjiang, Anhui and Jiangxi provinces
and municipalities amounting to a total capacity of 720,000 tonnes/day, which played a
significant role in retaining “lucid waters and lush mountains” during the urbanization
in China and significantly contributed to the high-quality and rapid development of the
economy in China.

In respect of waste incineration business, the Group actively promotes cooperation
with many other leading enterprises in the environmental protection industry to drive
the development of waste incineration power generation business. During the year,
the Group’s capacity of waste incineration power generation increased by 232% to
8,800 tonnes/day over last year. The increase was primarily from the contribution by
the 2 new waste incineration power generation projects, which are Shanghai Baoshan
Renewable Energy Utilization Center Project and Shenxian Waste Incineration Power
Generation Project in Shandong province, with the capacity of 3,800 tonnes/day and
1,200 tonnes/day respectively. The Group, as the largest shareholder, together with
Baowu Environment and Canvest Environmental Protection (the “Parties”) entered into
a comprehensive cooperation strategic framework to form a joint venture principally
engaged in construction, maintenance and management of waste incineration power
generation projects; service on domestic waste; power supply, gas operation, and
heating services for solid waste incineration; and hazardous waste collection etc. The
Parties aimed to build up Shanghai Baoshan Renewable Energy Utilization Center Project
as a national and global benchmarking project of community environmental services.
Meanwhile, the Parties will leverage on each of their resources and advantages to play an
active role in the sustainable development of the Yangtze River Economic Belt, including
actively exploring functional transformation and escalation of steel industrial parks in
cities such as Nanjing, Wuhan, Ma’anshan, and Chongging to create more high-quality
and cutting-edge environmental projects, which aim to positively contribute to greater
ecological protection of Yangtze River and further development of Yangtze River
Economic Belt.
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Adhering to Fundamental Goals, Aspiring for Sustainable Development

From a macro perspective, the environmental protection industry is currently
characterized by “one belt and one axis” geographically, which refers to the belt along
the Yangtze River and the axis along the coast. SIIC Environment will focus on the
Yangtze River Delta, expand the business along Yangtze River Belt and identify business
opportunities in Pearl River Delta therein to improve its influence and amplify its
business scope.

With the year of 2020 as the last year addressed in the 13th Five-Year Plan, the
investments in the construction of urban wastewater treatment and water reclamation
facilities are expected to reach RMB565.4 billion and the capacity of waste incineration
power generation projects are expected to reach nearly 600,000 tonnes/day by 2020. The
Group will be committed to meeting higher emission standards of wastewater treatment
plants and to further developing waste incineration business. Meanwhile, the Group
will continue to follow the national strategy, cooperate closely with local governments,
capture the critical period of opportunities for environmental protection industry, and
seek to establish more high-quality water treatment and waste incineration projects.
The Group will actively escalate the scale and effectiveness, enhance cooperation with
strategic partners and further expand waste incineration business. Moreover, the Group
will deepen cooperation between industries and improve high-technology and innovation
capability. The Group is dedicated to not only bring satisfactory investment returns to
our valued shareholders but also shoulder the corporate social responsibility.

The Group will step up efforts in research and development of technology, expand into
the high-end environmental equipment manufacturing sector, extend the industrial value
chain and develop overseas market actively in response to the national policy “Belt and
Road Initiative”.

Appreciation

Lastly, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank our shareholders,
customers and business partners for their continuous support and trust. | also want
to express my highest respect and sincere gratitude to all our employees, particularly
those frontline employees staying on their positions for wastewater treatment and waste
incineration during the COVID-19 outbreak. Fortunately, the Group’s business was not
affected by the outbreak and generally remained under control in all aspects. Like always,
we are determined to work together to fulfill our social responsibility.

In the future, we will continue to strive forward and bring high investment returns to
shareholders in the longer term. We expect to make a greater progress in 2020!

Mr. Zhou Jun
Non-Executive Chairman
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Financial Highlights

Since FY2015, the Group has seen a CAGR of 34.8%, 13.6% and 26.4% in our revenue,
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company and EBITDA to RMB6.0 billion,
RMB600.3 million and RMB2.0 billion for FY2019 respectively. In addition, assets
base in terms of both total assets and net assets have also increased significantly over
the years to RMB32.4 billion and RMB11.9 billion respectively. Rapid growth in the
profitability and strengthening of balance sheet position were attributed mainly to the
expansion achieved through organic growth.

(A) Strong Growth EZHIER

MB=E

B20158 FH - REBMBPA - AREHEBABEER
FIE - ERTEREBHEANABEBTDANEESER
R (CAGR) 2 Bl £34.8% ~ 13.6%74126.4% : 2019871 4 7 Bl
BARERET - AR6.003ETMAREANET
MO REEFEMEEREMFEEDRREN -
ARIEAREUBTMARENIET - hiFEEN
BN NEERINEER BRI ERARABE
BIBRBRTEBHRIE -

Revenue (RMB Million) Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company (RMB Million)
WA ARERE) ARAIERANEGFE ARKEE)
5,960

600

360
2,648
1,804
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Total Assets and Net Assets (RMB Million) EBITDA® (RMB Million)
BERENIEE (ARERE) ERTERBHEATEYARKES)
32,367
29,719 2,045
25,649
23,038
1,064
12,245 Total assets
, 11 !
101244 10,914 YBBO ﬁéri@gﬁ 800
8,533 mm Net Assets
6,579 I BEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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(B) BOT, TOT, BOO and TOO Projects Provide Stable Cash Flow, increasing Visibility of the Group’s Future Earnings
BOT -~ TOT - BOOMTOOEE R TRENR LR - THRAKERREFINIER

Change in revenue composition

Operating and service income and financial income from service

2HEE concession arrangements (RMB Million)
BEBRBRARBBEFEERESBIA (ARERE)
67% 55% 52% 54% 59% 2568
Water Treatment, 19 Financial i
water supply, waste % B\ == Financial income
incineration and ’@é%% from service
sludge treatment concession
KRR - 4K 1,655 arrangements
) M% o0 EREZEENER 1 PR T 48 &
= 3% TR SRKA
= Construction 1,071 Operating and
EHRMA 869 859 945 service income from
737 water treatment,
4% 6% 49 49, 5% - %her water supply, waste
|| = B | = EAth 336 395 incineration and
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 I I sludge treatjinent
(VEBITDA = profit before tax + financial expenses + depreciation & amortisation %zﬁfé%fu L’?jﬁ
O SRTERBHANNE = RANBABERTERE 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 iw%iﬁ%guf)\/b

Key Financial Data For the Financial Year Ended 31 December

BENANBALMBRFENTERERE

2019 2018 Change %
Results (RMB’000) Rt (AR®TI) 2019 20185 20%
Revenue WA 5,959,521 5,313,344 12.2%
Gross profit eS| 1,933,449 1,584,599 22.0%
Profit for the year FRHME 754,393 684,253 10.3%
Profit for the year attributable to AREEE ABIEEANFE
owners of the Company 600,251 540,237 11.1%
Earnings per share (RMB cents) Fhar (ARED)
— Basic(a) —EK() 23.04 20.73 11.1%
— Diluted — 8% 23.04 20.73 11.1%

(@)  Computed based on weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the

@ BEEEAFEERNEEANALESVWREEHMN

respective financial year ended 31 December BYHEEHE

2019 2018 Change %
Financial Position (RMB’000) MBERR (AE®TR) 20195 20184F 285%
Total assets BERE 32,366,633 29,718,745 8.91%
Net assets (Total equity) FEE (BR) 11,859,730 10,913,670 8.67%
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AREER AELER 8,345,519 7,844,796 6.38%
Net assets per share (a) (RMB cents) BIFEREQ) (ARED) 320.6 301.0 6.51%
Number of shares (excluding treasury shares) {3 EE (TREEFRD) 2,602,817,726  2,606,588,726 -0.14%

(@) Equity attributable to owners of the Company divided by the outstanding number of ordinary

shares

() ALXEEEARGEESBRACETOEBRER
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Overall

The Group recorded an increase in revenue from RMB5.3 billion in FY2018 to RMB6.0
billion in FY2019, representing an increase of 12.2% on the back of yoy increase of
water treatment and water supply business segment, resulting from higher treatment and
sales volume and increased average wastewater treatment price from existing entities.

Other income increased 1.8% yoy to RMB274.3 million for FY2019 largely due to
the higher amount of interest income on bank balance earned by some of the Group’s
subsidiaries.

Overall, the Group recorded an increase in profit attributable to owners of the Company
from RMB540.2 million for FY2018 to RMB600.3 million for FY2019, representing a yoy
increase of 11.1%.

Equity
The Group’s total equity as at 31 December 2019 amounted to RMB11.9 billion,
strengthened significantly from RMB10.9 billion as at 31 December 2018. The increase
was due mainly to total comprehensive income of RMB791.0 million recorded for
FY2019.

Cash Flow
During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the followings were being recorded:

(1) healthy net cash generated from the Group’s operating activities amounted
to RMB2.0 billion, after adjusting the changes in receivables under service
concession agreements;

(2) net cash used in the Group’s investing activities amounted to RMB548.1 million
due mainly to (i) purchase and prepayment of property, plant and equipments and
intangibles; and (i) investment in an associate; This was partially offset by capital
reduction and dividends received from joint ventures; and

(3) net cash generated from financing activities of RMB615.2 million due mainly to
(i) net proceeds from bank borrowings; and (ii) contribution from non-controlling
interest upon additional capital injection in subsidiaries. This is partially offset
by (i) interest paid; (ii) dividend paid to equity and non-controlling interest
shareholders and (iii) increase in deposit pledged to banks.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents stood at RMB2.4 billion
(31 December 2018: RMB2.1 billion).

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Analysis of Key Items in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Revenue

Our revenue increased from RMB5,313.3 million in 2018 to RMB5,959.5 million in 2019
as revenue increased in the wastewater treatment, water supply and others business
lines. The revenue increase was primarily due to (i) higher water treatment and supply
sales volume; and (ii) increased average wastewater treatment price from existing
entities.

Water and sludge treatment

Revenue from our water and sludge treatment business line increased from RMB4,111.8
million in 2018 to RMB4,645.3 million in 2019. Operating revenue increased from
RMB1,249.7 million in 2018 to RMB1,765.6 million in 2019; and financial income
increased from RMB850.5 million in 2018 to RMB935.2 million in 2019. Revenue of this
business line increased primarily because of (i) higher water treatment sales volume; and
(ii) increased average wastewater treatment price from existing entities.

Water supply

Revenue from our water supply business line increased from RMB867.4 million in 2018
to RMB886.3 million in 2019. Operating revenue increased from RMB713.2 million in
2018 to RMB730.3 million in 2019. Revenue of this business line increased primarily
because of higher water supply sales volume in 2019.

Waste incineration

Revenue from our waste incineration business line increased from RMB108.1 million in
2018 to RMB153.8 million in 2019, with construction revenue increasing from RMB54.2
million to RMB72.0 million, operating revenue increasing from RMB45.2 million to
RMB72.1 million, and financial income increasing from RMB8.7 million to RMB9.7
million in 2019. Revenue of this business line increased primarily because of Wulian
project which had commenced operation in 2019.

Others business line

Revenue from our others business line increased from RMB226.1 million in 2018 to
RMB274.1 million in 2019. Revenue of this business line increased primarily due to
higher volume of installation works carried out, which are ad-hoc in nature in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED T

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of greater increase in revenue relative to increase in cost of sales, our gross
profit increased from RMB1,584.6 million in 2018 to RMB1,933.4 million in 2019. The
increase in gross profit was primarily due to higher water treatment and supply sales
volume as well as increased average wastewater treatment price from existing entities in
2019. In addition, the financial income from construction at existing service concession
projects also contributed to our profit growth. Qur gross profit margin increased
from 29.8% in FY2018 to 32.4% in FY2019. The increase was due mainly to higher
contribution from operation category during FY2019 as compared to FY2018 (which has
a relatively higher GPM).

Other income

Our other income increased slightly from RMB269.4 million in 2018 to RMB274.3
million in 2019. The increase was primarily due to the higher amount of interest income
on bank balance earned by some of the Group’s subsidiaries in FY2019.

Other gains and losses

Our other gains and losses decreased from a gain of RMB121.8 million in 2018 to a loss
of RMB0.9 million in 2019. The gains in FY2018 were mainly due from the disposal of
subsidiaries and bargain purchase of investment in subsidiaries. There were no such
transactions in FY2019.

Selling and distribution costs

Our selling and distribution costs decreased slightly from RMB74.2 million in 2018 to
RMB72.6 million in 2019, primarily due to the disposal of water supply subsidiaries in
2018.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased from RMB437.9 million in 2018 to RMB464.3 million
in 2019 primarily due to the expansion of business.

Finance costs

Our finance costs increased from RMB585.4 million in 2018 to RMB687.3 million in
2019, was primarily due to increases in interest expenses from the new borrowings
taken up in 2019 to finance the construction of new and existing service concession
arrangement projects.

Share of results of joint ventures

Our share of results of joint ventures increased from RMB43.3 million in 2018 to
RMB46.6 million in 2019. The increase was primarily the result of the higher contribution
from joint ventures.
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Share of results of associates

Our share of results of associates increased from a loss of RMB1.0 million in 2018 to a
loss of RMB9.7 million in 2019. This was primarily due to lower contribution from our
associates.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased from RMB236.4 million in 2018 to RMB265.2 million
in 2019. The increase was primarily a result of higher profit before taxation, from the
increase in revenue over the same periods. Our effective income tax rate remained
relatively stable at 26% in 2018 and 2019.

Profit for the year and net profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year increased from RMB684.3 million in
2018 to RMB754.4 million in 2019, and our net profit margin remained relatively stable
at 12.9% in 2018 and 12.7% in 2019.

Analysis of Key Items of Financial Position
Receivables under service concession arrangements

Our receivables under service concession arrangements were RMB15,846.5 million
and RMB17,670.2 million as of 31 December 2018 and 2019, respectively, of which
RMB15,484.9 million and RMB17,193.3 million, respectively, were classified as non-
current assets. The increase in the non-current portion of receivables under service
concession arrangements was primarily due to an increase in construction at service
concession projects with guaranteed minimum treatment volumes and our acquisitions
in 2019.

Other intangible assets

Our other intangible assets were RMB6,702.7 million and RMB6,741.6 million as of 31
December 2018 and 2019, respectively, of which RMB6,696.1 million and RMB6,734.2
million, respectively, were intangible assets related to operating concessions. The
increase in intangible assets related to operating concessions was primarily due to the
additions in 2019.

Goodwill

As of each of 31 December 2018 and 2019, the carrying value of our goodwill remained
unchanged at RMB457.2 million.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) investment

Our FVTOCI investments increased slightly from RMB44.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 to RMB45.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 due to the
addition of FVTOCI investment acquired in FY2019.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEREWEDH

Inventories

Our inventories were RMB121.2 million and RMB159.1 million as of 31 December 2018
and 31 December 2019, respectively. The increase was primarily due to our expansion
of operations in 2019. Our average inventory turnover days remained stable, at 10.6
days and 12.7 days for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019,
respectively.

Trade and other receivables

Our trade and other receivables increased from RMB2,287.0 million as of 31 December
2018 to RMB2,336.4 million as of 31 December 2019 primarily in line with the increase
in operation in 2019. Our average trade receivable turnover days remained relatively
stable at 93.9 days for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 92.4 days for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Prepayments

Our current prepayments increased from RMB45.8 million as of 31 December 2018 to
RMBG60.3 million as of 31 December 2019. Our non-current prepayments increased from
RMB67.5 million as of 31 December 2018 to RMB501.3 million as of 31 December 2019,
mainly due to the increase in prepayments made for certain infrastructure relating to BOT
service concession arrangements entered during the financial year ended 31 December
2019.

FVTPL investment

Our FVTPL investment was RMB3.1 million and RMB3.4 million as of 31 December 2018
and 2019, respectively, and was based on quoted market price for our investment in
equity securities on the last market day of the respective financial years.

Trade and other payables

Our trade and other payables increased from RMB3,253.3 million as of 31 December
2018 to RMB3,615.1 million as of 31 December 2019. The increase in trade payables
from RMB1,902.0 million as of 31 December 2018 to RMB2,191.7 million as of 31
December 2019 was primarily due to higher amount of construction activities in
progress for new and existing service concession projects in 2019. Our other payables
were RMB1,351.3 million and RMB1,423.3 million, respectively, as of those dates. Our
average trade payable turnover days increased from 162.5 days for the year ended 31
December 2018 to 185.6 days for the year ended 31 December 2019 due to better trade
payable management.

Material acquisitions and disposals

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the FY2019.
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Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2019.

Capital structure

The shares of the Company were listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. There has been no change in
the capital structure of the Company during the FY2019. The capital of the Company
consists of net debts, which includes the borrowings, net cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, treasury
shares, retained profits and other reserves.

Borrowings and interest

Details of borrowings are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
Interest and other borrowing costs are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Significant investment held

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2019, the Group did not hold
any significant investments.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report and the prospectus of the Company dated 12
March 2018, the Group did not have other plans for material investments and capital
assets as at 31 December 2019.

Treasure policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards its treasury
policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the FY2019.
The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had current assets of approximately RMB5,939
million (as at 31 December 2018: RMB5,372 million) which comprised cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB2,375 million (as at 31 December 2018: RMB2,133
million), mainly denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had non-
current liabilities of approximately RMB11,261 million (as at 31 December 2018:
RMB10,795 million), and its current liabilities amounted to approximately RMB9,246
million (as at 31 December 2018: RMB8,010 million), consisting mainly of bank and
other borrowings. Accordingly, the current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to
current liabilities, was approximately 0.64 times as at 31 December 2019 (as at 31
December 2018: 0.67 times). The Group’s working capital requirements were mainly
financed by internal resources.
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PROJECT OVERVIEW
BEE-E

Wastewater Treatment (WWT)/

Reclaimed Water Treatment (RWT) Projects

AKER
FKOARE

Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
A E#E
FHE® FEER (1) e HEER KEEX
1 Anxi County Longmen Town WWTP BOT Project WWT 12,500 100.0% In operation Class | Standard B
1st Phase
LRGBS KEEMBOTIER —H KRR RALE —HBIRAE
2 Anxi County Longmen Town WWTP BOT Project WWT 12,500 100.0% To be constructed Class | Standard B
2nd Phase
2R GEMESKEERBOTIEE —H EKEE 5= —HRBIRAE
3 Anxi County Longmen Town WWTP BOT Forward wwr 25,000 100.0%  Tobe constructed Class | Standard B
Project
TR HEPIE KRR RBOTESER VEYN: 3 frig —#RBIRE
4 Dongguan City Dalang Songshanhu Southern WWT 100,000 75.5% In operation; upgrading Class | Standard B
WWTP Project under construction by
government
REm AL A5 KEEHIER KRR BRARE: RIjIEE - —HBIRE
RETER
5 Dongguan City Shijie Shayao WWTP Project 1st WWT 60,000 75.5% In operation; upgrading Class | Standard B
Phase under construction by
government
REMABASETKEEH—HIRER  SKEE BASE : RRER - —HBRE
RETER
6  Dongguan City Fenggang Yantian WWTP Project WWT 50,000 75.5% In operation; upgrading Class | Standard B
9nd Phase under construction by
government.
R A I S KRR — A B VA BAEE: RipER - —ABRE
RETER
7 Dongguan Sanzhou WWT 1st and 2nd Phases WWT 150,000 35.5% In operation COD applied local
discharge limit
Class I; the others
applied Class |
Standard B
RETERZMBOT—  —HIER SKEIE BRAEE COD3Zt: 75 HEB
RE—RTE:
HHREE—&
BiZ A
8 Huizhou City Meihu Water Purification Center WWT 100,000 100.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard B
Project 1st Phase
EMTEHKEF RO —EIER SRR BARE —HRBIRE
9 Huizhou City Meihu Water Purification Center WWT 100,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard B
Project 2nd Phase
MDA EF AL = LN BARE —RBIEE
10 Huizhou City Meihu Water Purification Center 1st WWT 200,000 100.0% In operation; upgradingto Superior Class |
and 2nd Phases (Advanced Treatment Project) be consructed Standard A
BT EF L — =8 SKERIE BARE: RigHE  BR-RAMRE

AERETIEER
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Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
A&
FE&® FEER (1) iR REER KEEX
11 Huizhou City Meihu Water Purification Center WWT 100,000 100.0% In operation; upgrading to Superior Class |
Project 3rd Phase be constructed Standard A
ENTISPKDRRLOIHTIRER SRR BARE: BRER  ER-RARE
12 Pinghu WWTP WWT 25,000 100.0% In operation; upgrading N/A
unqﬂe’r\debuggmg*stage N
TSk EERIEE EKER BAZE  RERHAF  TER
13 Pinghu WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT 55,000 100.0% I operation; upgrading Quasi Grade V
under debugging stage ) )
FHEKEEMIEREER SRR BAZE  RERART EVEERE
14 Pudixia WWTP Project WWT 50,000 100.0%  In operation; upgrading Quasi Grade V
under debugging stage } }
5K BRI R B KRR RAZE  RERHEF  BVERE
15 Egongling WWTP Project WWT 50,000 100.0%  Inoperation; upgrading Quasi Grade V
under debugging stage } i
BASSKEEIER SkEE RAZE  RERHFT  BVERE
16 Henggang WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 100,000 100.0% In operation; upgrading Quasi Grade V
under debugglng*stage } )
EESKEER —EEE SRR RAZE : #EASP  RVERE
17 Henggang Reclaimed Water Plant Project RWT 50,000 100.0% Under construction N/A
Bk R E AR *hKE A nE TR
18 Shenzhen City Guanlan WWTP Project WwT 200,000 60.0% In operation N/A
R BB KR ERE SkEE BAEE TE
19 Guanlan Water Purify Plant Upgrading and WWT 40,000 60.0% In operation N/A
Expansion Project 2nd Phase o N
BRKD B ERA TR 8 ey A BAEE TiER
20 Wuchuan City WWTP Project WWT 40,000 100.0% In operation; upgrading Class | Standard B
unq“e’r‘oonstruotlon i
R)IT5KERRIER SRR RARE  REEE  —HBFE
21 Beihai WWT Project Hongkan WWTP WWT 200,000 55.0% In %perationt; gpgrading to Class | Standard B
e operate )
KR IE B ALK 5 KRR KRR BARE  RIEFEE  —HBEE
22 Beihai WWT Project Daguansha WWTP WWT 20,000 55.0% To be operated Class | Standard A
LSRR B AR5k IR R SRR g —RARE
23 Beiliu City Urban WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 40,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard A
SLRTRE S KR ER T2~ HIEE VYN BAEE —RARE
24 Beiliu City Urban WWTP Upgrade and Expansion WWT 40,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard A
Project
SRR SRR R SR E SKEE BABE —RAMRE
25 Xiping County 3rd WWTP 1st Phase WWT 30,000 69.1% To be constructed Class I Standard A
PGS =5 kRER—HER SRR 5 —HNZE
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PROJECT OVERVIEW

HE—
Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
AERE
FHHE®E FEER (1) e HAEER KEEX

26 Xiping County 3rd WWTP 2nd Phase WWT 20,000 69.1% To be constructed Class I Standard A
AT =5k ERE AR N ot —RARE

27 Luohe City Dong Cheng WWTP Project 1st Phase WwT 20,000 75.5% In%peratiotn; U{J%rading to Class I Standard A

€ constructe:
AT RS KRR — R Ve 5 BASE: REEFE —QARE
28 Luohe City Dong Cheng WWTP 2nd Phase WWT 30,000 75.5% In operation; upgradingto  Class | Standard A
be pﬂq\nstructed i
BT RS KR IR R — B KR BABE  RIEFE —RAEE

29 Nanyang City Baihenan WWTP Project WWT 100,000 69.1% In operation Class | Standard A
MBSk EER T EIKEIE BARE AR

30 Suiping County 1st WWTP Project WwT 30,000 69.1% In operation Class | Standard A
BTEE—SKEERER Sk BABE —RARE

31 Suiping County 2nd WWTP Project WWT 10,000 69.1% In operation Class | Standard A
BFEE KR ERER Sk BARE —RARE

32 Huangshi City Cihu WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 125,000 100.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard B
ERMHSKEEE - BTIRER BRI BRAGE AR

33 Hanxi WWTP Project WWT 340,000 80.0% In operation Class | Standard A
EFSKRERER Ver%: BAEE —HRARR

34 Hanxi WWTP Expansion Project (including Hanxi WWT 260,000 80.0% n operation Class | Standard A
Sludge Treatment Project) . )

B KEERRER TIZER BRI BAGE AR
(BIEEMSREIETEE)

35 Wuhan City Huangpi District Qianchuan WWTP WWT 30,000 100.0% n operation Class | Standard A
Project 1st Phase . .
RETEREN)SKERE IR 5KEE BALE —RRARE

36 Wuhan City Huangpi District Panlongcheng WWTP WWT 22,500 100.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
Project 1st Phase o ‘
RETER BB NS KRBT BRI BAGE —iRARR

37 Wuhan City Huangpi District Panlongcheng WWTP WWT 22,500 100.0% I operation Class | Standard A
Project (Continued Construction) o .
RETERESRNSKEERERTE KRR N+ AR

38 Wuhan Economy and Technology Development WWT 60,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard B
Zone WWTP Project Tst Phase o .
REEERNAERSKERRER 8 SkER BAEE —HBiRE

39 Wuhan City Huangpi District Wuhu WWTP 1st WWT 25,000 100.0%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
Phase Project )
REDERER S KERE —HER Bk BAEE —RRARE

40 Suizhou City Cheng Nan WWTP st Phase WWT 50,000 92.2% In operation Class | Standard A

B 7385 7k R R R (— ) Bk BAGE AR
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Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
A&

FHEHE® FEER (1) iR REER KEEX

41 Chenzhou City Linwu County WWTP BOT Project WWT 10,000 20.0% In operation Class | Standard B
M TR R 85k BRI BBOTE B kIR BAEE —RBRE

42 Chenzhou City WWTP Project 1t Phase WWT 80,000 100.0% In operation; upgrading Class | Standard B

unq”e,r\construction )

WS KR IE M — B B 5kEEE BRARE: RIREE  —ABIRE

43 Chenzhou City WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 40,000 100.0% In operation; upgrading Class | Standard B
(Expansion) under construction
NS KRR — i RIE e VEUN: 3] RARE: RiFEE  —ABRE

44 Taojiang County Taohuajiang WWTP Project WWT 20,000 755% In operation Class | Standard A
HOTEMIE TS kR RUE SSKEIE BAEE —RARE

45 Taojiang County Taohuajiang 1st WWTP Upgrade WWT 10,000 755% In operation Class | Standard A
and Expansion Project i
HOLBEMIE T E —)5KEER KR BARE —HRMRE
RIZERETIEESR

46 Yiyang City Gaoxin District East New District WWT 30,000 75.5% In operation Class | Standard A
WWTP Project .
BETEHERNHR S KRIERER EUN 5 BAGE —HRARZE

47 Yiyang City Cheng Bei WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 40,000 75.5% In operation Class | Standard A
%55k B RRBOTIE EUN 5 BAGE —IRARE

48 Yiyang City Cheng Bei WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 40,000 75.5% In operation Class | Standard A
(Expansion, Upgrade and Reconstruction) \
BBIEILSKEER - BEER Hk IR BAZE —HRARR
RIZYUEIER

49 Jingjiang City Xingang Park WWTP Project 1st WwT 20,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard A
Phase
BIH SRR KRB HIEE SSKEIE LN — AR

50 Jingjiang City Xingang Park WWTP Project 2nd WwT 20,000 100.0%  Tobe constructed Class | Standard A
Phase
BIMIEERSKEER _HEA LN B frE —RARE

51 Jingjiang City Xingang Park WWTP Project 3rd WWT 40,000 100.0%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
Phase
BITERR S KEER= 8 SRR fr —HRARRE

52 Shuyang County Cheng Nan WWTP Project st WwTt 30,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard A
Phase
RIS A5 KB — I8 g SRR BAEE —RARE

53 Shuyang County Cheng Nan WWTP Project 2nd WwT 30,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard A
Phase
SR SRSk T — B EYN: 3 BAEE —RARE

54 Taixing City Huanggiao WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 25,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard A
RENERE KRR HIEE SR BAEE —HRARRE
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BH-
Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
A E#E

FR&® FEER (1) e HAEER KEEX

55 Taixing City Huanggiao WWTP Project 2nd Phase wwT 25,000 100.0%  Tobe constructed Class | Standard A
REMEETKEER_HEE ST foi —RAMRE

56 Nantong City Guanyinshan WWTP Project 1st WWT 25,000 92.2% In operation Class | Standard A
Phase
BETEE I TKEERIER (—H) BKEE RALE —IRARE

57 Nantong City Guanyinshan WWTP Project 2nd WWT 48,000 92.2% In operation Class | Standard A
Phase
EmESILSTKEERIER(ZH) VEYN: 3 BARE — AR

58 Huanggiao Industrial Park WWTP Project 1st WWT 10,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard A
Phase
B T EERSKEE/R—8)HAR VBN #:d BARE —RANRE

59 Huanggiao Industrial Park WWTP Project 2nd WwT 10,000 1000%  To be constructed Class | Standard A
Phase
ERILERSKERM—HM)EE SKEE 7 —RAIRE

60  Huanggiao Industrial Park WWTP Project 1st RWT 3,000 1000%  Inoperation Reclaimed water quality
Phase Water Reclamation Program ’ standards \
BB ILERSKERM—M)EE Ak el BAEE BAEAOKERE
FKEI A IiE

61 Huanggiao Industrial Park WWTP Project 2nd RWT 3,000 100.0% To be constructed Reclaimed water quality
Phase Water Reclamation Program standards \
EE T EERSKERM(—H)EE oKE A frd BERKERE
KB T

62 Dalian Puwan New District Sanshilipu WWTP WWT 20,000 92.7% In operation Class | Standard A
Project 1st Phase i
AL BHE = + 2R KEEHK kAR BARE — AR
(—E)IER

63 Dalian Puwan New District Houhai WWTP Project WwT 20,000 92.7% n operation Class | Standard A
REEEHEEHTKEERER Y55 BAZE —RARE

64 Dalian Wan WWTP Project WWT 40,000 75.5% In operation Class | Standard A
a5 KRB RRIE B Bk RAZE — NS E

65  Dalian Quanshui River WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 105,000 75.5% In operation Class | Standard A
R ROKT 5K B R R (— )8 B SKEIE BAEE —RAIRE

66 Yingkou Economy and Technology Development WwT 30,000 60.0% In operation Class | Standard A
Zone North WWTP )
EOEBERTREEL DS KEER BN B BAEE —RAIRE

67 Dalian Lingshui River WWTP Project WWT 60,000 86.5% In operation Class | Standard A
REEANTSKEERE VYA BAEE —RARE

68 Dalian Lingshui River WWTP Project (Upgrade and WWT 20,000 86.5% In operation Class | Standard A
Expansion) ;
N30 SEVEYN A= e el SKEE BAEE —RAMRE
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Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
A&
FHEHE® FEER (1) iR REER KEEX
69 Dalian Laohutan WWTP Project WWT 80,000 75.5% In operation Class | Standard A
REE RS KEEREE kIR BAEE —RMRE
70 Dalian Laohutan WWTP Project (Upgrade and WWT 10,000 755% In operation Class | Standard A
Expansion) o )
REE B SRS RIE g EYN: 3 BARE —RARE
71 Yinchuan Fifth WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard A
BINTERTREER—ER VEY: 3 BAEE —RARE
72 Yinchuan Fifth WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 100.0% Inoperation Class | Standard A
(Expansion, Upgrade and Reconstruction) " i
PNHERSKEER =R kIR BABE —HRARZE
RIZMEIER
73 Yinchuan Binhe District WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 100.0% In operation Class | Standard A
B BBk IR E— AR EY: 3 BAEE —RAMRE
74 Yinchuan WWT Company Limited Fifth Water RWT 50,000 100.0% n operation N/A
Reclamation Plant 0&M Project o ~
BISKEEERATNERTAEREER  FAER BAZE TBA
75 Dezhou City WWTP Project WWT 100,000 75.5% In operation; upgrading Class | Standard B
under construction }
N Y5 KRR A B SSKERIE BAZE : RIREE  —ABIRE
76 Weifang City Cheng Xi WWTP Project WWT 40,000 75.5% In operation Class | Standard A
TR KR RUE B ELN AL RAEE —RARE
77 Weifang City High Technology Industrial WWT 50,000 75.5% In operation Class | Standard A
Development District WWTP Project 1st Phase " i
BB R ELRRE S KEER EUN 5 BAEE —HRARZE
—HIER
78 Weifang City RWT Project RWT 38,500 75.5% In operation Recltain&eddwater quality
standards
WS 55K R B R K B B B skl R BRAEE BEIOKERE
79 Weifang City WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT 200,000 75.5% In operation Class | Standard A
TSR RERER EUN 3 BAGE —IRARRE
80  Weifang City Shawo WWTP Resumption and WWT 60,000 75.5% Under construction Class | Standard A
Upgrade Project 1st Phase )
MUY SRR R IR T A SKEE i —RARE
EHH—H
81 Weifang City Shawo WWTP Resumption and WWT 40,000 75.5% To be constructed Class | Standard A
Upgrade Project 2nd Phase }
T B KRR R e EYN: 3 f5i —MARE
JHEZH
82 Zaozhuang City Shanting District WWT Center WWT 20,000 755% In operation Class | Standard A
Project
BEHILZREKERTLIER EKEE BRARE —RARE
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BEE-E

Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
AE#
=R FRER () {58 BHAER KEEX
83 Zaozhuang City Yicheng District WWT Center WWT 20,000 75.5% In operation Class | Standard A
Project 1st Phase o )
FHmIENE S kEET O —HIEE BKEE BARE —RMRE
84 Zaozhuang City Yicheng District WWT Center WWT 20,000 75.5% In operation Class | Standard A
Project 2nd Phase o )
EHmERESKEERLZHEE 5K BARE —RASE
85 Qingpu Second WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 15,000 87.8% In operation Supsifioé Céa/S_\S |
andar
EHE TKEERER SRR BAEE — AT E
86 Qingpu Second WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 45,000 87.8% In operation SUDS?”O(E C!jazs |
andar
ERESKEERER —H KR IE BRAEE —RAZ %
87 Qingpu Second WWTP Project 3rd Phase WWT 60,000 §7.8% Inoperation SUps?HOé C(Ijai\s I
andar
EREKRERER =1 SSKEIE BAGE —HRAIRE
88 Qingpu Second WWTP Project 4th Phase WWT 60,000 §7.8%  Inoperation Superior Class |
(Expansion) Standard\ A
BHE SRR E EEm EKERIE BAZE —iRAE A
89 Qingpu Second WWTP Project (Expansion) WWT 60,000 87.8% To be constructed SUpSiin(; ngﬂf\s |
andar
BREZKEERIERER 5K 53 — AT
90  Fengxian West WWTP Project WWT 100,000 73.7% In operation Class | Standard A
EBF K EERIER VEYN A BAEE —RMRE
91 Fengxian West WWTP Project 2nd Phase WwTt 50,000 73.7% In operation Class | Standard A
(Expansion) S
EEAI S KEER _BREEE TEKERIE BABE —RARE
92 Fengxian West WWTP Project 3rd Phase wwT 50,000 73.7%  Inoperation Class | Standard A
(Expansion) }
ERE K EIER = MR AR EYN: 3 BAEE —MRARE
93 Zhejiang Province Chemical Raw Material WWT 12,500 100.0% In operation CODcr and ammonia
Site Linhai Park WWTP Project 1st Phase and nitrogen applied to
Supporting Pipeline Network Project Clasg | and offers
pp ) . applied to Class Il
WIZCSRNENESRETKEER  5KkER BARE CoDer R L — &%
— R REERETIIAR = AR
Tk
94 Zhejiang Province Chemical Raw Material WWT 12,500 100.0% In operation CODcr and ammonia
Site Linhai Park WWTP Project 1st Phase and nitrogen applied o
Supporting Pipeline Network Project (Expansion) Clasg | and ofhers
pporting F1p JECTEXD applied to Class Il
NN x NN M= ] = s— A8 U= e _ vic)
IR CERNENREEAESKEER  SKkEE BRARE CODer fz 2% — AR

~HREEERIERANERTR
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Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
AERE
FHEHE® FEER (1) iR REER KEEX
95 Zhejiang Province Chemical Raw Material Site WWT 25,000 100.0% To be constructed CODcr and ammonia
Linhai Park WWTP Project and Supporting nitrogen applied to
Pipeline Network Project (Expansion) Class | and otfers
P J P applied to Class Il
IR CBRBENRERESKEER  5KER HE wg&fﬁ:gﬁ
RREE@TRARRRTE §é£@%%—
96  Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Water Purification Plant WWT 60,000 69.1% In operation Class I Standard A
Project 1st Phase Batch 1
RHONERKEF R BER —# 5KER BARE — MR
97 Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Water Purification Plant WWT 60,000 69.1% In operation Class I Standard A
Project 1st Phase Batch 2
RUT(NERPKEFCHR—HEE 8t KR RAZE —RARE
98  Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) City WWTP Project WWT 30,000 69.1% In operation Class | Standard A
(Upgrade and Expansion)
R (NE R TSR R GE KR RAZE —RAZRE
RiE@TRE
99 Yuyao City (Xiaocao'e) Municipal WWTP Project WWT 75,000 69.1% In operation Class | Standard A
3rd Phase (Upgrade and Reconstruction)
RYD(NERATIT KRR S kAR BARE —RARE
BE=H TR
100 Yuyao City (Xiaocao's) Municipal WWTP WWT 75,000 69.1% To be constructed Class | Standard A
Expansion Project 3rd Phase (Upgrade and
Reconstruction)
RET(NER)TSKERBRRESE KR i —RAZE
“HERITR
101 Yuyao City Preserved Pickle Preprocess WwT 3,000 69.1% In operation Pre-treatment
Treatment Project Standards
Rk KTERIE TR SRR BAEE HREEE
102 Ningbo Huangjiabu Binhai WWTP Project WWT 30,000 64.5% In operation Discharge standard for
(Upgrade) dyeing industry
BREFEBESTKEEMREMETRE  5KESE BARE ENFATR I IR R
103 Ningbo Hangzhouwan New District WWTP Project WWT 90,000 64.5% In operation Quasi Grade IV
1st Phase (Expansion) \ \
ERMMENESKEER—BEEIRE  5KER BARE ENVRIRE
104 Cixi City North WWTP and Artificial Wetland 0&M WWT 100,000 59.9% In operation N/A
Project .
R EEKEERRA LR 5K BARE TiEm
ZEREREE
105 Cixi City Zhouxiang WWTP (1st Phase) 0&M WWT 40,000 64.5% To be operated N/A
Project -
EEMASSKEER (—15) SRR FEE TiERA

ZtEZRER
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BEE-E

Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
A&

FR&® FEER (1) s HRAEER KEEX

106 Pinghu City Eastern WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 40,000 92.2% In operation Class | Standard A
TR S KRER— IR BRI BAEE —RARR

107 Pinghu City Eastern WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 45,000 92.2% In operation Class | Standard A
(Expansion)
TR ASKEIERIE B iR EUN-$E BARE —HRNRE

108 Pinghu City Eastern WWTP Project 3rd Phase wwr 135,000 922%  Tobe constructed Class | Standard A
(Expansion)
T RATKRERE R = B SRR g —RARE

109 Jiangxi Chongren Industrial Park WWTP Project WWT 10,000 60.0% In operation Class | Standard B
1st Phase
TESCISERSKEEH—MEE  5KkEE N —RBIRE

110 Jiangxi Province Yihuang Indusrial Park WWTP wwt 5,000 60.0%  Inoperation; upgradingto  Class | Standard B
Project 1st Phase be constructed
IREETIXERSKEER/M—B)EE  SkEE BARE 217 —#RBIRE

111 Jiangxi Province Yihuang Industrial Park WWTP WWT 10,000 60.0% Trial operation; upgrading  Class | Standard B
Project 2nd Phase to be constructed
IAEE LERESKEER—H)EE Sk R HET REGRE — Bz

112 Jiangxi Province Yihuang Industrial Park WWTP WWT 15,000 60.0% To be constructed Class | Standard A
Project 1st and 2nd Phases (Advanced Treatment
Project)
IREET¥ERSKEER— - YN 5E o —RARE
“HARERETRE

113 Yongxin County Industry Development Zone WWT 10,000 60.0% In operation Class | Standard B
Comprehensive WWTP Project 1st Phase
KIS I ERERES SKEER KRR BAEE —BIRE
(—H)IER

114 Jiangxi Province Nanchang Xiaolan Economic WWT 25,000 60.0% In operation; upgrading Class | Standard B
Development Zone WWTP Project 1st Phase under construction
IR A/ ECERER KRR SRR BARE: RER  —HBRE
(—H)IER

115 Jiangxi Province Nanchang Xiaolan Economic WWT 50,000 60.0% In operation; upgradingto~ Class | Standard B
Development Zone WWTP Project 2nd Phase be constructed
TP B/ E R EREE KRR RN B BARE  REFE —HBRE
(ZH)EE

116 Jiangxi Province Wanzai Industrial Park WWTP WWT 5,000 60.0% In operation; upgrading to Class | Standard B
Project 1st Phase be operated
IRESHIXERSKEEM—HEE KRR BARE  REHEE  —ABRE

117 Jiangxi Province Wanzai Industrial Park WWTP WwTt 7,500 60.0% In operation; upgradingto  Class | Standard B
Project (Expansion) be operated
IAEH T ERE S KEEREZEE KR RALE  RIEFEE —HBEE
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Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
A&
FHEHE® FEER (1) iR REER KEEX
118 Yongfeng County Industrial Park WWTP Project WWT 10,000 60.0% In operation Class | Standard B
1st Phase - S
KEETEERSKEERH(—H)EE kIR BAGE —BRE
119 Fengxin Industrial Park WWTP Project WWT 34,000 60.0% 25,000 tonnes s in Class | Standard A
operation and 7,000
tonnes is under
debugging stage,
upgrading of 2,000
tonnes to be constructed.
Upgrading under
gqnstruotionm \ ~ i
= TLERTKERBER BN AL 25BMRAEE 078 —RMRE
WEE A - 0,281
HE - RIEAE
120 Hefei Chemical Industrial Park WWTP Project WWT 30,000 60.0% In operation Chao Lake Basin-
Discharge Limit
ARET 2ESKEREUER kg N RmnA SR
Sy R
121 Hefel Feidong County Circular Park Constructed WWT 30,000 60.0% In operation N/A
Wetland 0&M Project o N
APEREERAATRGELELEE  SKEE BAEE TEf
122 Lingbi County WWTP Project Southern WWTP 1st WWT 25,000 46.4% In operation Class | Standard A
Phase
BRESKEEEEENTKEER S8 5KEE BAZE —RAIRE
123 Lingbi County WWTP Project Southern WWTP 2nd WWT 25,000 46.4% In operation Class | Standard A
Phase
BEGTKEEEARDTKEEHR S kRS BAGE —HRARZE
124 Lingbi County WWT Project Northern WWTP WWT 20,000 46.4% In operation Class | Standard A
B 55k ERIE A B 1L 305k BRIR R 5K BAEE —RAMRE
125 Lingbi County WWT Project Southern WWT RWT 25,000 46.4% To be constructed Reclaimed water quality
Project RWT Plant 1st Phase standards }
BESSKEEER B SRR NG fo BERKERE
BERA—H
126 Anda City WWTP and RWT Project WWT 45,000 57.7% In operation Class | Standard B
ZEMIN 5K R AN E A KERIE B KR BARE —HBRE
127 Anda City Development District WWTP TOT Project ~~ WWT 20,000 57.7% In operation Class | Standard B
ZETHERTKEEKINER SRR BRAEE —HBIRE
128 Baoging County WWTP Project WWT 20,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard B
ERTABUN R Ed YN B BALE —HBIRE
129 Fujin City Municipal Second WWTP WWT 35,000 58.0% 10,000 tonnes is in Class | Standard A
operation; 25,000 tonnes
of expansion is under
+gonstructi‘gr’1‘ n ‘
BHTATE S KERE ELN IBEEAKE 258 —RARE

WEfRRE 2
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BE-E

Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests  Project Progress Requirement
A E#E

FHHE®E FEER (1) e HAEER KEEX

130 Fujin City WWTP Project WWT 15,000 57.1% In operation Class I Standard A
EHmEKEERIRE KRR RALE —RARE

131 Harbin City Acheng WWTP Project 1st Phase WwT 50,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard B
WRETMNESKEER-BIRER KRR BAgE —#RBIRE

132 Harbin City Acheng WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard B
WRETANESKEER-_BIREE  SKEE RARE —RBIRE

133 Harbin City Hulan District WWTP 0&M Project WWT 20,000 58.0% In operation N/A
WEETIT R E Sk IR Sk BARE TER
LB EEA

134 Hulan Limin WWTP 0&M Project WWT 50,000 58.0% To be operated N/A
WEMNRSKERHEFELIER VEYN: 3 fFE= Tiaf

135 Harbin City Hulan District Old Town Second WWT 30,000 58.0% In operation Class I Standard A
WWTP Project )
WEETTHEZHESE ZTKEE VEYN: 3 BAEE —RAIRE
—HIER

136 Harbin City Pingfang WWTP WWT 150,000 57.3% In operation Class | Standard B
WERED PR KEER S5k N —BIRE

137 Harbin City Taiping WWTP Project WWT 325,000 58.0% In operation Class |
WEETALSKEEREE EYN: 3 BRAZE —&

138 Harbin City Wenchang WWTP Project WWT 325,000 58.0% In operation Class II
WERETXESKEERIER VELN %5 RAEE 3

139 Harbin City Wenchang WWTP Project (Upgrade) WWT 650,000 58.0% In operation; upgrading Class | Standard B

unqir\construcnon )

BEEM XSS KRERARSETIR EUN AL BARE  REER  —ABRE

140 Harbin City Xinyi WWTP WWT 100,000 57.3% In operation; upgrading Class | Standard B

und’e’r construction i

BB EEE S KEER KR IE RABE : REEER —fRBIZAE

141 Heihe City WWTP Project WWT 25,000 57.6% In operation; upgrading to Class | Standard B
1st Phase be constructed
BT KEER—HIRE TEKERIE BAZE BRI —RBIZE

142 Wudalianchi Scenic Area Eastern District WWTP WWT 2,200 57.6% To be operated N/A
AABNERRESKERH EYN: 3 frEs TER

143 Wudalianchi Scenic Area New District WWTP WWT 3,000 57.6% To be operated N/A
AR R BT KRIER SRR fHEE TER

144 Aihui Town WWTP WWT 200 57.6% To be operated N/A
BB TR SRR g @
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Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
AERE

FHEHE® FEER (1) iR REER KEEX

145 Handagi Town WWTP WWT 500 57.6% To be operated N/A
S KRR SR friEg TER

146 Nenjiang City Nenjiang Town WWTP WWT 30,000 57.6% To be operated N/A
BT RS KEIEH SKEE friEe Tia

147 Nenjiang City Duobaoshan Town WWTP WWT 200 57.6% To be operated N/A
BT 0% B 185K BRI R SKEE frEe Tia

148 Xigangzi Town WWTP WWT 200 57.6% To be operated N/A
AT RS KEER EY: 3 frEe Ta

149 Jixi City Jiguan District WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
ERMEBE SRR (—H) IR SRR BARE —HMRE

150 Jixi City Jiguan District WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
BATHHTE S AEER( =) A KRR BARE — AR

151 Jixi City Jiguan District WWTP Project 1st and WWT 100,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
2nd Phases (Advanced Treatment Project)
BEDBTESKERE 1 SkEE BAEE —HRARR
CHRERETRE

152 Jixi RWT RWT 5,000 58.0% Under construction Reclaimed water quality

standards

P K ok @ F g BEKOKERE

153 Jiamusi City East WWTP Project WWT 100,000 56.4% In operation; upgrading Class | Standard B

under debugging stage

EARETRE S KERMIER SRR RARE : REZAAT —HBRE

154 Jiamusi City West WWTP Project 1st Phase WwTt 50,000 56.4% In operation Class | Standard A
EARMT RS KEER— AR S5KERIE BAEE —RAIRE

155 Jiamusi City West WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 50,000 56.4% To be operated Class | Standard A
AT RR SRR B BN 3 fFEe —RARE

156 Mudanjiang City Municipal WWTP Project WWT 100,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard B
T AT SRR RE YN B BALE —HBIRE

157 Mudanjiang City WWTP Project 2nd Phase WWT 100,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard B
MRS KRR TR EYN: 3 BAEE —MBiRE

158 Ningan City WWTP Project WWT 20,000 57.5% In operation; upgrading in - Class | Standard B

trial operation

ERTSKEERIREE KRR BARE  RIZHET —HBE%E

159 Ningan City WWTP reconstruction and expansion WWT 15,000 57.5% Trial operation Class I Standard A
project
ERTSKERRSER IR ELN B SELT —RARE
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BEE-E

Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
AERE

FHHE®E FHEY (W) kg2 HEER KEEX

160 Shangzhi City WWTP Project WWT 40,000 58.0% In operation Class I Standard A
METS kRS e LR KRR BARE —RARE

161 Shuangyashan City WWTP Project 1st Phase WWT 50,000 58.0% In operation Class I Standard A
SR mRmEKEER— IR KR BANEE —RAZE

162 Shuangyashan City Municipal WWTP Project 2nd WWT 50,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
Phase
S TS KE R B S5KERIE BAEE —HRMRE

163 Youyi County WWTP Project WWT 10,000 58.0% In operation N/A
RS SKEEBAR SKEIE RAEE TEr

164 Shuangyashan City Anbang River Basin Municipal RWT 40,000 29.6% Under construction Reclaimed water quality
WWT RWT Project standards
L TR RIS 508 FIKE A Zig= BEAOKEZE
BEKFIAEE

165  Zhaodong City Municipal WWTP Project (1st and WWT 50,000 57.1% In operation Class | Standard A
2nd Phases)
BRTHTTKEERIRER S5KERIE RAEE —RARE
(—8 - =5

166 Zhaodong City Second WWTP Project WWT 50,000 57.1% In operation Class | Standard A
BERENE T TKEREER B BAEE —HRARE

167 Hegang City WWT and RWT Project (West Plant WWT 50,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard B
1st Phase)
BT KEERBEKARES S5KERIE BALE —HBIRE
(PR —H)

168 Hegang City WWT and RWT Project (East Plant 1st WWT 30,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard B
Phase)
B 5 kEE R B KFAER S5KERIE BAEE —ABiRE
(RE—H)

169 Hegang City WWT and RWT RWT 30,000 58.0% To be operated Reclaimed water quality

standards

BETSKEERBEKHRES sk @ A FEZ BERKERE

170 Hegang City WWT and RWT Project (East Plant WWT 30,000 58.0% To be constructed Class | Standard B
2nd Phase)
BETTKERRBEKFAEE BN AL 53 —HBIRE
(R —H)

171 Hegang City WWT and RWT Project (West Plant WWT 50,000 58.0% To be constructed Class | Standard B
2nd Phase)
B 5k EIE R B KFAER S5k ERIE fi —HBIRE

(TR —5)
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Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
A&

FE&® FEER (1) iR REER KEEX

172 Fuyuan City WWTP Project (Fuyuan County WWTP WWT 10,000 58.0% In operation; upgrading Class | Standard B
and Sludge Disposal Project) under construction by

government

TS KRERER (ERTSKEER kAR BARE : RRER>  —HbRE
EREEREETE) SR

173 Bayan County Xinglong Town WWTP Project WWT 10,000 58.0% Under construction Class | Standard A
EEEEEESKEERIIZER KRR e —RAMRE

174 Bayan County Xinglong Town WWTP Project WWT 30,000 58.0% To be constructed Class | Standard A
(Expansion)
EEEEREESKEERER TIEE SKEE o —RMRE

175 Changchun City Jiutai District Yingcheng WWTP WwT 15,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
RETMNAEEMTKEERIE SSKEIE BAEE —RMRE

176 Changehun Jiutai Development District Kalun WWT 25,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
WWTP Project
RENABEEFRTKEERER VEYN: 3 BALE —RAIRE

177 Panshi City Industrial Development Zone WWTP WWT 10,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
BRTILHAERSKEERLRE EYN: 3 BAEE — AR

178 Jilin Mingchen Economic Development Zone WWT 2,500 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
WWTP
BRI R BT RE R SKEIE BAGE —RARE

179 Jiaohe City WWTP Project WWT 25,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
1st & 2nd Phases
BAMSKERE— - —HIEA EUSAL BARE —MRE

180 Jiaohe City Municipal WWTP 0&M Project 3rd WWT 15,000 58.0% In operation N/A
Phase Expansion
BONT SRR R = i KRR BARE TiEm
ZitiEZER

181 Fuyu City WWTP WWT 30,000 58.0% In operation Class | Standard A
BREAT VTR BRI R SKEIE BAEE —RAIRE

182 Xilinhaote Dazhuangyuan Meat Processing Plant WWT 3,500 58.0% Under construction Class | Standard A
WWT BOT
PR A D P 5 2K B FEBOT ey A i —RAMRE

183 Xilinhaote WWT BOT Project WWT 40,000 58.0% Under construction Class | Standard A
SRS K BRBOTE B ey T —RARE

Subtotal 9,619,300

et
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PROJECT OVERVIEW
BEE-E

Water Supply (WS) Projects

#kEE

Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
A &E#E

FR&® FEER (1) e HRER KEEX

184 Qianchuan Water Plant Project (Expansion) WS 40,000 100.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
Ik B iR IE B oK BAEE

185 Qianchuan Water Plant 0&M Project WS 80,000 100.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
Ak BB R B U BAGE

186 Qianchuan Water Plant 5th Phase Reconstruction WS 60,000 100.0% Under construction (GB5749-2006)"
and Expansion Project
A KB R SRR TAe K i

187 Wuhan City Huangpi District Xinwuhu Water Plant WS 100,000 100.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
1st Phase
BT E R [ 2 2 KR — oK RALE

188 Wuhan City Huangpi District Xinwuhu Water Plant WS 150,000 100.0%  To be constructed (GB5749-2006)"
2nd Phase
BRI B HT K = ok fr2

189 Yiyang City Municipal WS Project (Kuailongshan WS 120,000 90.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
Water Plant)
05T kI8 B SRR 2k BAEE

190 Yiyang City Municipal WS Project Third Water WS 100,000 90.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
Plant 1st Phase
SIS Tk IE B % =K B— K BARE

191 Yiyang City Municipal WS Project Third Water WS 100,000 90.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
Plant 2nd Phase (Expansion)
wEMEMHKER £ = KR H(ER) itk BARE

192 Yiyang City Municipal WS Project WS 200,000 90.0% Under construction (GB5749-2006)"
Fourth Water Plant
SIS KR B S 00K U i3

193 Weifang City Hanting Water Purification Plant WS 60,000 26.2% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
Project
HHmE=EMKIER itk BRARE

194 Weifang City Municipal WS Project (Bailanghe WS 120,000 51.3% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
Water Plant Project)
T KA R (BRKERE ) ik gARE

195 Weifang City Municipal WS Project (Gaoxin Water WS 200,000 51.3% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
Distribution Plant Project)
TR EKE R (BHEKEER) ok BAGE

196 Weifang City Fangzi District WS Project WS 40,000 26.2% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
BT TR ERKEATER ok RARE
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Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
AEsE

FE&® FEER (1) iR REER KEEXR

197 Water Diversion Project from Wenshui to WS 55,000 100.0% In operation N/A
Pingchuan (Southern line)
SIXA(ER) AT K BALE TR

198 Mudanjiang First Water Plant WS 80,000 58.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
T — KR ok "AEE

199 Mudanjiang Second Water Plant RWT 50,000 58.0% To be operated Reclaimed water quality

standards

T =K w7k [El A B BAKKERZE

200 Mudanjiang Fourth Water Plant WS 170,000 58.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
H P 79K B ok BAEE

201 Jiamusi City Municipal WS TOT Project (Xijiao WS 160,000 58.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
Water Resource WS Project)
AR KTOTIE B itk BAEE
(BRI K TIR)

202 Jiamusi City Municipal WS TOT Project (Jiangbei WS 200,000 58.0% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
Water Plant)
AR HF AT AT ALK TOTIR B (T 37K ) ik BRARE

203 Suiping County First WS Plant Project WS 30,000 69.1% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
BTG E— KBRS itk BARE

204 Suiping County Second WS Plant Project WS 10,000 69.1% In operation (GB5749-2006)"
BTHE - fOKBIER itk BARE

Subtotal 2,125,000

et

Water Projects Total 11,744,300

KBEB e

Notes: Bz -

(1) Standards for Drinking Water Quality

Abbreviation 7 :
WWTP:  Wastewater Treatment Plant

(1) (EERERKEERE)
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PROJECT OVERVIEW
BEE-E

Waste Incineration Projects

EERERE

Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
AERE
FHHE® FEER (1) e HRER KEEX
1 Pucheng Waste Incineration Thermal Power WTE 1,050 50.0% In operation N/A
Generation
LETRREEREEE EE%E BAgE Tam
2 Shanghai Baoshan Renewable Energy Utilization WTE 3,800 42.0% Under construction N/A
Center Project
EEMEILBERENRTLER ERHE i TEH
3 Dazhou City Municipal Household Waste WTE 700 100.0% In operation N/A
Incineration Power Generation Project 1st Phase
ENTHTAEREREEE - RE  EERE BARE TER
4 Dazhou City Municipal Household Waste WTE 350 100.0% To be constructed N/A
Incineration Power Generation Project 2nd Phase
ENTETEBLRAREAR KR EERE fr Ol
5 Wenling Waste Incineration Power Generation WTE 1,100 50.0% In operation N/A
BETEEHTER EREE BRAEE TEr
6 Shandong Province Wulian County Household WTE 300 82.9% Trial operation N/A
Waste Incineration Power Generation Project 1st
Phase
IR AEGREEN R ERE TR i HIETT Tar
HE—H
7 Shandong Province Wulian County Housghold WTE 300 82.9% To be constructed N/A
Waste Incineration Power Generation Project
2nd Phase
LR RS R R ERE TR EREE 51 TER
JHE 8
8 Shenxian Waste Incineration Power Generation WTE 1,200 47.5% To be constructed N/A
EHRNEREIER g fr A
Waste Incineration Projects Total 8,800

EERERE &t

Abbreviation 57 :
WTE: Waste-to-energy
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Sludge Treatment (ST) Projects

AEEREEE

Daily Capacity  Effective Water Quality
Project Name Type (tonnes) Interests Project Progress Requirement
A E#E

FHE® FEER (1) s HAEER KEEX
1 Xinxiang City ST and Disposal Project ST 300 69.1% In operation N/A

FRTSREEREER SRR BRALE TiEfs
2 Nanyang City WWTP ST and Disposal Project 1st ST 200 69.1% In operation N/A

Phase

ESTKRERSERERE-HIR  TREE BAEE Tiaf
3 Nanyang City WWTP ST and Disposal Project 2nd ST 100 69.1% To be constructed N/A

Phase

EGTSKRERSERERE-_SIR  SREE o TER
4 Harbin City WWTP and Sludge Disposal Project ST 650 58.0% In operation N/A

1st Phase

KRBT SKERRSREE TR SREE RALE TiE

JHE 8
5 Harbin City WWTP and Sludge Disposal Project ST 350 58.0% In operation N/A

2nd Phase

KRBT KEERSREE TR SRR BAEE Tiaf

JHE 8
6 Heihe Sludge Disposal Project ST 40 57.6% In operation N/A

EASERELR SRR BALE TiEf
7 Jiamusi City WWTP Sludge Disposal Project ST 100 56.4% n operation N/A

AT S KERRS EREEE SRR BAEE TEn
8  Mudanjiang City WWTP Sludge Disposal Project ST 150 58.0% In operation N/A

TS KBRS R B E R SRR BAEE Tiaf
9 Ningan City ST Plant Project ST 40 575% In operation N/A

BY5 R AR 5REIE BALE TiEf
10 Hanxi ST Project ST 325 80.0% Under renovation N/A

B REREE SRR i Tiaf
Sludge Treatment Projects Total 2,255

HiEEEEE M

Abbreviation f57% :
WWTP:  Wastewater treatment plant
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERSREEAEEHN

Directors’ Profile

Our Board consists of nine members, including five Executive Directors, one non-
Executive Director and three independent non-Executive Directors.

Our Board oversees our overall policies, strategies and objectives, key operational
initiatives, performance and measurement, internal controls and risk management,
major funding and investment proposals, financial performance reviews and corporate
governance practices. Approval of our Board is required for such matters including but
not limited to corporate restructuring, mergers and acquisitions, major investments and
divestments, material acquisitions and disposals of assets, major corporate policies on
key areas of operations, share issuance, dividend and other returns to shareholders,
acceptances of bank facilities, annual budget and release of our Group’s financial results.

There has been no other change in Directors’ biographical details which is required to be
disclosed to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules during the FY2019 and up

to the date of this report.

The following table sets out certain information regarding our Directors:

RN
EFem/BREAR  BRAANITES  —HF
HITEEN=RBUFNTES -

EFRREAMORRIH BELER  WHREL
AE RERER RPN RERER  TRRE
ERETR WHRRERLEEEEER - RS
EZSNENFERREMNRROEEE B
ERENHE BERAEUNBRRE BHEBEM
MEROERR  ROBT  HTRRABRSLEL
B RITEFEN - FEBERAREBEREN
i -

RO EREERRERY  HEBEAMESEER
BOEHAREEE (EMHRI) F1351B(1)KE
IAHEE -

TREFIEAESOETEHN

Date of Appointment

Date of joining

Name Age  Position as Director our Group Principal duties Relationship™
3] FR OB ZEHEEAY MAZKERY FERE mE"
Mr. Zhou Jun 51 Non-Executive Director, April 7, 2010 (designated as April 7, 2010 Managing the overall corporate None
Chairman of our a non-Executive Director strategic, strategic planning and
Board on March 12, 2018) development of our Group
BELE 51 FERITESER 01054878 (FA2018F 201044878 ERAEENBRLEE B
EER SA12ARAERIFENT B BREHREIRER
%)
Mr. Xu Xiaobing 54 CEO and Executive November 16, 2018 and October 26, 2010 QOverall management of the Group’s None
Director November 5, 2014 strateqy, business, operation,
administration and financial
matters.
fREEKEE 54 BRIITER 018F11A16A K& 201010 A 268 ERASENRE £ £
WTES 2014F 11 A5H 2iE TR EMBAES
B
Mr. Feng Jun 57 Executive Director December 15, 2009 December 15, 2009 QOverseeing the human resources ~ None
related matters of our Group
Vit it 5w BTES 2009124158 2009F12A15H EBEXEEMANERERE &

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

5



Date of Appointment

Date of joining

Name Age  Position as Director our Group Principal duties Relationship™
3] TR R ZELESEEN MAFEEAY FERE &
Mr. Xu Zhan 50 Executive Director November 5, 2014 November 5, 2014 QOverseeing the financial related ~ None
matters and capital market
affairs of our Group
FELAE 507 HITEE 2014F11 A58 2014511 A5H EEASENTBIERER &
REATRER
Mr. Huang Hanguang 57 Executive Director May 15, 2019 July 2010 Responsible for the Group’s None
projects operation.
BEAKE SRR HUTES 2019%5A15H 20104 7R BEAEEMERES &
Mr. Zhao Youmin 48 Executive Director August 5, 2019 August 5,2019 Coordinating the relationships of ~ None
our Group with government
authorities
ERELE B WTEF 201948 A5H 2019468 A58 BRTEERGGHMINE &
1%
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang 59 Independent non- September 23, 2009 September 23,2009 Providing independent advice on  None
Executive Director the operation and management
of our Group
BARKIEAE 5p%  BIMIEBTEFE 2009F9H23H 200959 A 23H PAREMESREERE &/
BAUER
Mr. An Hongjun 51 Independent non- March 1, 2018 March 1, 2018 Providing independent advice on ~ None
Executive Director the operation and management
of our Group
RITELRE S BUFHITES  201853AR1AH 20184E3 A1H HEAKENEERERRE &
BAUER
Mr. Zhong Ming 33 Independent non- March 1, 2018 March 1, 2018 Providing independent advice on ~ None
Executive Director the operation and management
of our Group
Bt BV BUFNTES  018F3R1H 201853 A1H PARENESREERER &/
BIUER
Note: Bz -
(1) Relationship with other Directors’ and senior management member. (1) BHEAZEZEREREEASHER-
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERSREEAEEHN

Chairman of the Board and non-Executive Director

Mr. Zhou Jun is our non-Executive Director and the chairman of our Board. He
is mainly responsible for the overall corporate strategies, strategic planning and
development of our Group. Mr. Zhou was first appointed as our non-Executive Director
on April 7, 2010, was re-designated as our Executive Director on March 5, 2012 and
was last re-elected on April 27, 2015. Mr. Zhou was re-designated as a non- Executive
Director on March 12, 2018. He has been the chairman of our Company since May 2012.

Mr. Zhou has over 20 years of professional experience in securities, merger and
acquisition, finance, real estate, project planning and corporate management. He is
currently the chairman of the board and a non-Executive Director of the Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd., a company listed on the SEHK (stock code: 2607)
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601607). He has been a president and an
Executive Director of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (“SIIC”) since
November 2007. He has also been the vice chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
since August 2016, and the Executive Director of SIHL Holdings, a company listed on the
SEHK (stock code: 363), since April 2009, respectively. He is the chairman of Shanghai
Shen-Yu Development Co., Ltd., the chairman of Shanghai Galaxy Investments Co.,
Ltd., the chairman of Shanghai Hu-Ning Expressway (Shanghai Section) Co., Ltd. and
Shanghai Lugiao Development Co., Ltd., respectively, etc.

Mr. Zhou is a member of the Executive committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in Shanghai, the chairman of Shanghai Shengtai Investment
Management Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Shanghai Charity Foundation, the president of
Shanghai Youth Entrepreneurs Association and the president of Shanghai Association of
Environmental Protection Industry.

Mr. Zhou obtained a Bachelor of Arts from Nanjing University in the PRC in July 1991.

He also obtained a Master of Economics in International Finance from Fudan University
in July 1994.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr.Xu Xiaobing is our Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Executive Director. He is
mainly responsible for overall management of the Group’s strategy, business, operation,
administration and financial matters. Mr. Xu was first appointed to our Board on
November 5, 2014 and was last re-elected on April 25, 2017. Mr. Xu has been appointed
as the CEO of the Company since November 16, 2018.

Mr. Xu joined our Group in October 2010 as a director of SIIC Environment Holdings
(Weifang). Mr. Xu started his career as a manager of the business development
department in Shenzhen Hong Hua Co., Beijing Subsidiary in January 1992 before he
joined Beijing New Horizon Computer Image Ltd as a manager in December 1992. He
had been an investment and financial analyst in Beijing Jingfang Investment Management
& Consultant Co. Ltd. from October 1996 to June 1999. From February 2000 to
December 2016, he had held various senior positions in SIIC Management (Shanghai)
Limited such as deputy head of investment planning department from February 2000 to
January 2002, the head of integrated management department from January 2002 to June
2004, the assistant general manager and head of integrated management department
from June 2004 to March 2006, deputy general manager from March 2006 to December
2008 and the general manager from December 2008 to December 2016. He is currently
the deputy Chief Executive officer of SIHL Holdings, a company listed on the SEHK (stock
code: 363) and from March 2019, he is also the Chairman of SIIC Environment Holdings
(Weifang) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Xu graduated from Peking University in the PRC in July 1989 with a bachelor’s
degree in economics and a master’s degree in business administration in July 1998
respectively.

ERBITERDTES
RBKEELERATERDTES  F2REEE
REBARE - ¥75 - €8 THRUBHEESE -
HEERNUFNASHERNREGAES - WH2017
FARBAERET R DBE18F11 S16B B
ZEBAARMERIITE

HEERNVFIOAMARER - EEEERFKE
EE - RAENBRELERMINFIAEERIS
ERAERARAEBRERLE - RN19025127
AL RH R R ERT GRRRARELE - AR
19965F10 A 19996 A AR B Tl R RAUR E B IR
MAEREEARKRERMBAME - BA05F27 =
165127 HEELEEE (LF) ERAFEE
ZES RO - BI20E200052 3 E200251 A EH
BREHMEFR - 002515 E00456 S EELZE
ERBHE - B200456 A Z2065F3 A EEBNIRAL
BREaEEMIIR - B2006F3AZE2008F12 A £E
B #4838 [ 520085 12 4 2016 F 12 A B E 4848 38 -
HAMZETLEER (—RKREBERZMLTHOLF
(B R5E - 363)) BITTIRAE K B2019F3A 4 £
ELERGKBROEBARNESR -

BEEMBIFTAZERPEI AR - BIEHS
BB WIMIBFTAETHERELEN -
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Executive Directors

Mr. Feng Jun is our Executive Director. He is mainly responsible for overseeing the
human resources related matters of our Group. Mr. Feng was first appointed to our Board
on December 15, 2009 and was last re-elected on April 27, 2016.

Mr. Feng joined our Group in December 2009 as a non-Executive Director and was
subsequently appointed as an Executive Director in April 2010. Mr. Feng is the president
of Shanghai Overseas Enterprises Corporation and the director and general manager
of SIIC Management (Shanghai) Limited. He has taken on senior positions with major
investment companies such as being a director and deputy general manager in SIIC
Investment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd from July 2002 to August 2004. Mr. Feng had previously
served as a board member of SIIC Investment Co., Ltd. from August 2004 to December
2008, Tien Chu (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. from August 2004 to December 2008, SIIC
Management (Shanghai) Limited from December 2008 to June 2013. Mr. Feng had been
the assistant Chief Executive officer and Chief investment officer of SIHL Holdings, a
company listed on the SEHK (stock code: 363), from June 2013 to December 2016. Mr.
Feng has been a non-Executive director of Canvest, a company listed on the SEHK (stock
code: 1381) since March 31, 2017.

Mr. Feng obtained a master’s degree in economics from Wuhan University in the PRC in
August 1987.

Mr. Xu Zhan is our Executive Director. He is mainly responsible for the financial related
matters and capital market affairs of our Group. Mr. Xu was first appointed to our Board
on November 5, 2014 and was last re-elected on April 25, 2017.

Mr. Xu joined our Group in November 2014 as an Executive Director. Mr. Xu is the
assistant president of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (“SIIC") and
has worked in SIIC for over 20 years. Mr. Xu served as the assistant manager for the
Investment Department of SIIC Real Estate Holdings (Shanghai) Co., Ltd from March
1997 to April 2000. He had served as the manager for Finance Department and the
assistant general manager from April 2000 to April 2006 for Shanghai Cyber Galaxy
Investment Co., Ltd. From April 2006 to November 2009, he had served as the assistant
general manager of the finance planning department of SIIC. He has been an Executive
director of SIHL Holdings, a company listed on the SEHK (stock code: 363), since
November 17, 2016. He had been the director and general manager of Shanghai Cyber
Galaxy Investment Co., Ltd from December 2006 to February 2017.

Mr. Xu graduated from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University in the PRC in July 1992 with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering and the Norwegian School of Management in Norway in
January 2000 with a master’s degree in management, respectively. He is also a fellow of
the Association of the Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom.
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Mr. Huang Hanguang is our Executive Director. He is mainly responsible for project
operations of our Group. Mr. Huang was first appointed to our Board on May 15, 2019.

From April 2003, he has been the chairman of SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co.
Ltd. He was also the managing director of SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.
from July 2010 to March 2018. He was the Chief Executive officer and Executive director
of the Company when it was previously known as Asia Water Technology Limited and
listed on the Catalist of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited in 2005. From
May 2011, he has been the chairman of board of directors of Wuhan Huangpi Kaidi
Water Co. Ltd., Wuhan Xin Cheng Waste Water Treatment Co., Ltd. and Huang Shi Kaidi
Water Co., Ltd. He has also been the director and chairman of the board of directors of
Yinchuan SIIC Binhe Sewage Treatment Co. Ltd. and SIIC (Yinchuan) Sewage Treatment
Co. Ltd. since November 2014. He has been a chairman of the board of directors of
Ranhill Water (Hong Kong) Ltd. and Ranhill Water (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. since November
2016. He was the general manager between February 2018 and January 2019 and has
been the chairman of the board of directors of Nanfang Water Services Co., Ltd since
February 2018.

Mr. Huang has more than 20 years of experience in the water industry. From August
1984 to December 1988, Mr. Huang was employed by the Ministry of Water Resources
and Electric Power of the PRC as a specialist engineer in chemistry and environmental
protection. From January 1989 to December 1992, he joined the China Electricity
Council as a specialist engineer in chemistry and environmental protection. He served
as the vice chairman of Wuhan Kaidi Electric Power Co., Ltd. since October 1998 and
he stepped down from this position in November 2004. For the period between January
1993 and September 2002, Mr. Huang had also worked as a director and general
manager of several other companies in the power generation industry. From February
2003 to September 2009, he had been the Executive Director and the Chief Executive
officer of the Company.

Mr. Huang obtained his bachelor degree in power plant chemistry engineering from
Wuhan University in the PRC in July 1984.
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Mr. Zhao Youmin is our Executive Director. He is mainly responsible for coordinating
the relationships of our Group with government authorities. Mr. Zhao was first appointed
to our Board on August 5, 2019.

Mr. Zhao has been a supervisor in Changjiang Protection Department of CECEPG since
June 2018, the general manager and an Executive director of China Energy Conservation
and Environmental Protection (Hong Kong) Investment Co., Ltd since July 2013 and
the director of Cooperation and Development Department of China Energy Conservation
and Environmental Protection Group since November 2019. Mr. Zhao was the chairman
of CECEP (Shenzhen) Investment Group Co., Ltd. between January 2014 and April
2015, a non-Executive director of China Geothermal Industry Development Group
Limited (a company listed on GEM of the SEHK, stock code: 8128) between August
2013 and August 2018, a director of Cooperation and Development Department of
CECEPG between May 2010 and July 2013, a deputy general manager of CECEP Solar
Energy Technology Co., Ltd. between September 2009 and May 2010, a secretary to the
general manager of CECEPG between June 2007 and September 2009, a secretary in
the president’s office secretariat of State Development & Investment Corp., Ltd. between
December 2002 and June 2007, a senior operations supervisor of Human Resources
Department of State Development & Investment Corp., Ltd. between July 1997 and
December 2002 and working in Labour and Human Resources Division of Tianjin Electric
Power Construction Co., Ltd. between September 1991 and August 1994.

Mr. Zhao obtained master degree in Marxism history of economic thoughts from Capital
University of Economics and Business in the PRC in July 1997, and obtained the
qualification of Senior Economist from China Energy Conservation and Environmental
Protection Group in September 2011.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

BREXERHTESR  IZREHBLEEERG
EPIRB R o B ER019F8ASABE AR AE
E

LN FOARRATEGERRRIRESE
HEM - RABFTAEATEGSERR (F8) BE
BRARMNBLEERNTESE - RI2019F11 AReiE
THEMERREBERAAAEERDET - B
KER2014F1 A E2015F4 5 BRI TP &R ORI
RESBERLRANESE 12013588 E201848
AREREFEMAGEZEREBERAF (—/
REBRFHGEMET 2 AR - BRIAEH : 8128) W)
FRTEE  N010E5A8 2201357 AER AP EE
ERRAEREDEM - 12009FIA 22010558 5
B AR EEABRERR AR R RN ALIE - 72007
FOAE009F9A BE AT B AERRAOBLIBI
£ R002F12 A E200746 A i AR REERERD
AR ERE - PM9974ET A £2002412 F #ARS
BRERHEREARANERSRRELTE R
199159 Z1994F8 A MR K ZE HER QA%
ANERI(E-

HEEMETARTEEBLERZAENES
REEFELBEDELLEESEL - WRANFIAR
PR ERREEAR ARG S REEMETR o



Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang is our independent non-Executive Director. He is mainly
responsible for providing independent advice on the operation and management of our
Group. Mr. Yeo was first appointed to our Board on September 23, 2009 and was last
re-elected on April 30, 2019.

Mr. Yeo was appointed the non-Executive chairman of our Company in September 2009
and has been our independent non-Executive Director since April 2010. He has been
an independent non-Executive director of Koyo International Ltd., a company listed on
the SGX-ST (stock code: 50C), since July 2009. He was an independent non-Executive
director of HLH Group Limited, a company listed on the SGX-ST (stock code: H27),
since September 2010 to April 2012. Mr. Yeo had also served as an independent director
of several companies listed on SGX-ST, namely United Envirotech Ltd. (stock code: CEE)
from August 2009 to November 2011, Neo Group Limited (stock code: 5UJ) from June
2012 to May 2014, and China Gaoxian Fibre Fabric Holdings Ltd. (stock code: AZZ) from
September 2013 to April 2014, respectively.

Mr. Yeo is the Assistant Director-General of the National Trade Unions Congress (NTUC)
of Singapore. He had been a Member of the Parliament of Singapore from January 1997
to August 2015. He was also the President of the Consumers Association of Singapore
from June 2003 to June 2012.

Mr. Yeo obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts from the National University of Singapore in
June 1986 and a Master degree in Public Administration and Management in Lee Kuan
Yew School of Public Policy of NUS in Feb 2013.

Mr. An Hongjun is our independent non-Executive Director. He is mainly responsible
for providing independent advice on the operation and management of our Group. Mr. An
was first appointed to our Board on March 1, 2018 and was last re-elected on 28 June
2018.

Mr. An has around 10 years of working experience in the environmental industry, where
he served different roles at Shanghai Chengtou Holding Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Chengtou”),
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600649) and a member
of the SSE Corporate Governance Index, from April 2007 to September 2016. Mr. An was
a general manager of Shanghai Chengtou from April 2007 to June 2008 and a president
from June 2008 to September 2016. He was a director from June 2007 to September
2016 and was the chairman of the company, the chairman of the strategy committee as
well as a member of the remuneration committee from June 2014 to September 2016.
Shanghai Chengtou is principally engaged in the businesses of real estate, environmental
and venture capital services. Environmental services which Shanghai Chengtou provides
include municipal waste transfer, landfill and waste-to-energy services.
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As the president/general manager of Shanghai Chengtou for nearly 10 years, Mr. An
was responsible for, among others, overseeing and managing the financial affairs of
Shanghai Chengtou. He was also the person-in-charge for the accounting related matters
of Shanghai Chengtou between 2007 and 2013, during which he was responsible for
reviewing and approving the financial statements of Shanghai Chengtou.

Mr. An obtained a bachelor's degree in Finance from Nankai University in the PRC in July
1992. He graduated from Fudan University with a master's degree in World Economics
in July 2001 and a doctor’s degree in World Economics in January 2005. He received
a doctor's degree in Global Finance Business Administration from Shanghai Advanced
Institute of Finance of Shanghai Jiaotong University in 2016. He was ranked 30th
among the Best CEOs of China’s Listed Companies by Jiemian News and Jinri Toutiao
in 2017. Mr. An is a member of the private equity professional committee of the Asset
Management Association of China.

Mr. Zhong Ming is our independent non-Executive Director. He is mainly responsible
for providing independent advice on the operation and management of our Group. Mr.
Zhong was first appointed to our Board on March 1, 2018 and was last re-elected on 28
June 2018.

Mr. Zhong has been an Executive director of Yanlord Land Group Limited, a real estate
development company listed on the SGX-ST (stock code: Z25) since October 2016 and is
responsible for the investment and project operation of the company. Mr. Zhong serves
as a director of Singapore Ren Ci Hospital since December 2019.

In addition, Mr. Zhong Ming has held directorships in various subsidiaries of Yanlord
Land Group Limited, including Shanghai Renan Property Development Co., Ltd. since
July 2016, Tianjin Yanlord Beiyang Real Estate Co., Ltd. since July 2016, Tianjin Yanlord
Hehai Real Estate Co., Ltd. since April 2016 and Tianjin Shenglin Property Development
Co., Ltd. since July 2016. He served as an assistant manager of Shanghai Yanlord
Property Management Co., Ltd. from August 2013 to December 2013 and an assistant to
general manager of Shanghai Renpin Property Development Co., Ltd. from January 2014
to September 2016.

Mr. Zhong graduated from The University of Melbourne with a bachelor’s degree in
Commerce in December 2012.
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Senior Management’s Profile

The following table sets out certain information regarding the senior management

members of our Company:

ERERARMS
TR BEBAARRRERABNETER

Date of Appointment
as Senior Management

Date of

Name Age  Position member joining Group Principal duties Relationship™
BZERER

24 Fie R EEARERH MAFEEEY FERH RE"

Mr. Tang Congliang 48 Chief Financial Officer  March 23, 2020 March 23, 2020 Responsible for overseeing None
Group's financial, accounting,
treasury and tax matters

Bt it 8 ERMBE 202043 A23H 2020%63A23R BEEEASENIB &8 &
i MBNBBEE

Mr. Wang Peigang 58 Deputy General July 2010 July 2010 Responsible for liaisons with None

Manager government bodies on the

requlatory matters of our Group

FHEMEE 58p  BIABACIE 201057 A 201047 A BENAKENEESZHE &
TR 14 R B 4%

Mr. Yang Anyuan 45 Deputy General October 2017 December 2010 Responsible for the legal and None

Manager compliance management of our

Group

BRREE 4 BRI 2017F10A 2010124 BEASEMERRARE B
i

Ms. Cai Huijing 36 Deputy General November 2018 May 2013 Responsible for the Group’s None

Manager administration, investor

relations and international
investment and assisting the
CEO

EERLT B BlELE 20185117 201355 3 BERKETR REEH &
FERRERRE UK
BEERMTE

Notes: BisE

(1) Relationship with other Directors’ and senior management member.
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Senior Management’s Profile

Mr. Tang Congliang has been the Chief Financial Officer (CFQ) of the Company on
23 March 2020. He is mainly responsible for overseeing Group’s financial, accounting,
treasury and tax matters.

Mr. Tang has over 20 years of finance and accounting experience. He worked as vice
president of finance in Rising Stella Investment Holdings Corporation from March 2018
to December 2019, senior manager of Halcyon Agri Corporation Ltd from March 2017 to
March 2018, joined GMG Global Ltd in April 2012 as the financial controller, Indonesia
project and was promoted as its group financial controller from May 2015 to March
2017. He also served as senior finance manager of Sinochem International Ltd from April
2011 to April 2012 and senior finance manager of Valmont Industries China Ltd. from
November 2006 to April 2011.

Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor degree in accounting in July 1996 from Northeastern
University in the PRC, a master degree in professional accounting in June 2011 from
Fudan University and a master degree of business administration in finance in November
2018 from China Europe International Business School. Mr. Tang is a Chartered
Accountant of Singapore, a Certified Public Accountant of China and a fellow member of
CPA Australia.

Mr. Wang Peigang has been the deputy general manager of the Company since July
2010. He is mainly responsible for liaising with government bodies on regulatory matters
of our Group. He has sat on the boards of the various subsidiaries of our Company. He
has been the director of SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. since July 2010
and the director of the board of Wuhan Hanxi Sewage Treatment Co. Ltd. since October
2011.

Mr. Wang started his career in the Ministry of Water Resources and Electric Power of
the PRC in August 1984. From January 1993 to May 2007, he had taken on managerial
roles at several energy resource companies such as Beijing Geely Energy Co., Ltd.,
Ertan Hydropower Development Co., Ltd., Huaibei Guoan Power Co., Ltd., Tianjin SDIC
Jinneng Electric Power Co., Ltd and SDIC Xuancheng Electric Power Co., Ltd. He was the
director for the reorganization of our Company from May 2007 to February 2010 when
it was previously known as Asia Water Technology Limited and listed on the SGXST
Catalist in 2005.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in technology from Wuhan University in the PRC
in July 1984 and a master’s degree in management science from Renmin University of
China in January 2001. He also obtained a senior engineer certification issued by China
Development Bank in December 1997.
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Mr. Yang Anyuan has been the deputy general manager of our Company since October
2017. He is responsible for the legal and compliance management of our Group.

He joined our Group as a director of SIC Environment Holdings (Weifang) Co., Ltd. in
December 2010 and has held the position since then. In addition, he has served as a
board member of Nanfang Water since July 2012, SIIC Environment Holding (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd., and Yiyang City Tap Water Co., Ltd. since December 2015. He has also been
a general manager of SIIC Environment Holding (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. since September
2016.

Mr. Yang joined the SIIC Group in July 2004, since when he had held several
management positions in SIIC Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from July 2004 to
May 2016. He has held the positions of administrative director and supervisor of SIIC
Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. since May 2016.

Mr. Yang obtained a master's degree in laws (economic law) from Hunan University in
the PRC in June 2003, and a master's degree in professional accountancy from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2014. Mr. Yang obtained a lawyer’s
practicing certificate issued by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC in August 1996 and a
legal professional certificate issued by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC in September
2002.

Ms. Cai Huijing has been the deputy general manager of the Company since 16
November 2018. She is mainly responsible for the Group’s administration, investor
relations and international investment and assisting the Chief Executive Officer.

Ms. Cai has joined the Company since May 2013 as a director of administration
department and investor relations department. Ms. Cai started her career as the head of
the business development department of Shanghai Galaxy Investment Co., Ltd in 2009.
Ms. Cai is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, namely Shanghai
Pucheng Thermal Power Energy Co., Ltd., Nanfang Water Co., Ltd., SIIC Environment
Holdings (Weifang) Co., Ltd. and Shanghai SIIC Baojin'gang Environmental Resources
Technology Co., Ltd.

Ms. Cai graduated from Tongji University in the PRC in 2006 with a bachelor’s degree
in management science and engineering, graduated from Bocconi University in ltaly in
2008 with a master’s degree in finance and graduated from Fudan University in the PRC
in 2009 with a master's degree in business management.
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Business Units Senior Management’s Profile

Mr. Piao Yongjian — Vice Chairman and President of Longjiang Environment
Protection Group Co.,Ltd.

Mr. Piao, aged 57, has more than 30 years of operation and management experience in
water and environmental protection sectors. He started his career with the third Harbin
Tap Water Plant in 1985 and was promoted to the General Production Scheduling
Controller and the Director of the Production Department in Harbin Tap Water Group Co.,
Ltd.

Mr. Piao is a deputy to Heilongjiang People’s Congress in the PRC, a Visiting Professor
of Harbin Institute of Technology, a deputy president of the China Urban Water
Association, the president of Heilongjiang Urban Water Association, a member of Urban-
Rural Development and Environment Protection Committee of Heilongjiang People’s
Congress and the deputy president of China Association of Circular Economy. In 1997,
he was transferred to Harbin Drainage Co., Ltd. as the Chief Engineer and the Vice
General Manager. From 2004 to 2010, Mr. Piao successively held the posts of Director,
Vice General Manager, and General Manager of Tongfang (Harbin) Water Engineering
Co., Ltd. Mr. Piao served as Director and Vice President of Long Jiang Environment
Protection Group Co., Ltd. from April 2010. He was appointed as the Vice Chairman and
President in August 2014.

Mr. Piao holds a master’s degree in Water Supply and Drainage from the Harbin Institute
of Technology and is a qualified engineer (with a rank of researcher).

Mr.Wu Qiang - Chairman of Fudan Water Engineering and Technology Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wu Qiang, aged 50, joined Fudan Water Engineering and Technology Co., Ltd. in
August 2017.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu served as an assistant of general manager in
Investment Banking Division of Shanghai International Trust Corp.,Ltd. Mr. Wu also
held position as General Manager of Asset Management in Shanghai City Construction
Investment and Development Corporation, Vice President of Shanghai Chengtou Holding
Co., Ltd. and Executive Director of Shanghai Environment Investment Co., Ltd. He also
appointed as the General Manager of Jiangsu WELLE Environmental Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Economics from Shanghai University of
International Business and Economics in 1993. In 2000, Mr. Wu obtained a master's
degree from IMBA Programme of Fudan University — Hong Kong University. He received
a Master's Degree in Economics from University of Nottingham in 2004.

Mr. Nie Zuohua — General Manager of SIIC Environment Holdings (Weifang) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Nie Zuohua, aged 56, has been General Manager of SIIC Environment Holdings
(Weifang) Co., Ltd. since April 2017, responsible for the overall work of the Company.

Mr. Nie held various positions such as Director of Talent Development Service Center of
Bureau of Personnel of Hanting District in Weifang City, Director of Project Management
Center of Supply of Water from Xiashan Reservoir to Hanting District of Hanting District,
General Manager of Ruiyuan Urban and Rural Center of Supply of Water of Hanting
District in Weifang City, General Manager of SIIC Environment Water Co., Ltd. in Hanting
District, Weifang City, and General Manager of Weifang City Tap Water Co., Ltd. He has
been Chairman of many subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. Nie is a member of the Weifang committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in Shandong Province, he obtained Senior Political Analyst
certification in September 2009.

Mr. Yang Bin — General Manager of SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yang, aged 49, has been General Manager of SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan)
Co., Ltd. since March 2018.

Mr. Yang joined SIIC Environment Investment Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. in April 2006
as Head of the Department of Plan and Operation. He was the deputy general manager of
SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. from January 2008 to February 2018. Mr.
Yang has been a director and Chairman of Wuhan SIIC Xinchuan Sewage Treatment Co.,
Ltd., Wuhan SIIC Xinwu Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. and Wuhan Kaidi Xinlong Sewage
Treatment Co., Ltd. since September 2018. He has also been a director and Chairman of
Wuhan Xin Cheng Waste Water Treatment Co., Ltd. since August 2019.

Mr. Yang was Chief Accountant of Wuhan Handicraft Import and Export Company, Chief
Accountant of Wuhan Branch of CSG Holding Co., Ltd., Financial Manager of Wuhan
Bolin Clothing Co., Ltd., a director and Chief Accountant of Shanghai Tuanjie Baichao
Laser Equipment Co., Ltd., an investment manager of Wuhan Guoxing Investment
Company, and Chief Financial Official of Wuhan Baotelong Information Technology Co.,
Ltd.

Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’s degree in management from Zhejiang Sci-Tech University
in 1993 and he is a registered accountant in China.

Mr. Chen Jieging — Director and General Manager of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chen Jieging, aged 54, graduated from a university and was a MBA and a senior
human resource professional. He is a director and general manager of Nanfang Water
Co., Ltd., responsible for the overall work of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experiences in the water treatment industry. He was a clerk
in original Hunan Chenzhou Municipal Committee Office (now Beihu District Committee)
from July 1985 to December 1988, Chief of the Division of Enterprise, Director of
the Office of Joint-stock System Reform under Chenzhou Economic System Reform
Committee from December 1988 to July 1999, a director and deputy general manager of
Chenzhou Shanhe Industrial Group Co., Ltd (predecessor of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd.)
from July 1999 to January 2005, a director and standing deputy general manager of
Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. from January 2005 to July 2008, a director and general manager
of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. from December 2008 to July 2012, a director and standing
deputy general manager of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. from July 2012 to October 2018, and
a director and general manager of Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. from December 2018 to date.
He is a legal representative and Chairman of tens of project companies under Nanfang
Water Co., Ltd. and SIIC Environment Holdings (Beihai) Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Ng Kuan Seong — Chief Executive Officer and General Manager of Ranhill Water

Mr. Ng, aged 41, has more 15 years of investment, operation and management, project
construction and administration experience in water and environmental protection
sectors.

Mr. Ng attended Malaysia Ranhill Water Treatment Co., Ltd. in 2008. From 2008 to 2016,
he worked as a process engineer, a project manager and senior manager of Malaysia
Ranhill Water Treatment Co., Ltd.. From 2016 to 2017, Mr. Ng served as the head of
programme planning and engineering department of the newly established Ranhill Water
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd., and the general manager of Ranhill (Hefei) Treatment Co. Ltd. From
2017 to 2019, he worked as the general manager of Malaysia Ranhill Water Treatment
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ng was appointed as the chief executive officer of Ranhill Water (Hong
Kong) Ltd. and the general manager of Ranhill Water (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. since September
2019 up to date.

Mr. Ng has obtained the bachelor degree from Universiti Teknologi MARA and is a
registered engineer in Malaysia.
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Mr. Xu Xiaobing

Mr. Xu Zhan

Mr. Huang Hanguang

Audit Committee

Mr. An Hongjun
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang
Mr. Zhong Ming

(Chairman)
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Nominating Committee

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang  (Chairman)
Mr. Zhong Ming
Mr. An Hongjun

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Zhong Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Jun

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Mr. An Hongjun

Risk and Investment Management Committee

Mr. Feng Jun (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Zhan

Mr. Xu Xiaobing

Mr. Wu Qiang

Mr. Huang Hanguang

Mr. Yang Anyuan

Singapore principal share registrar and transfer office

RHT Corporate Advisory Pte. Ltd.
30 Cecil Street, #19-08
Prudential Tower

Singapore 049712

Hong Kong Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Authorized Representative

Mr. Xu Xiaobing
Mr. Man Yun Wah

Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP

6 Shenton Way, #33-00

OUE Downtown 2

Singapore 068809

Partner-in-charge: Mr. Toh Yew Kuan Jeremy

(appointed since the financial year ended 31 December 2019)
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Principal bankers

Standard Chartered Bank (Singapore) Limited
Level 23, Marina Bay Financial Centre (Tower 1)
8 Marina Boulevard

Singapore 018981

United Overseas Bank Limited (Singapore)
80 Raffles Place # 05-00 UOB Plaza 1
Singapore 048624

DBS Bank Limited

12 Marina Boulevard #45-00 DBS Asia Central
Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3
Singapore 018982

SPD Bank Hong Kong Branch
24/F, Bank of America Tower
12 Harcourt Road Central
Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
9/F Bank of China Tower

1 Garden Road

Hong Kong

Agricultural Bank of China (Huizhou Branch)
No. 15 Jiangbei Section

Huizhou Road

Huicheng District

Huizhou

Guangdong Province

China

Bank of Communications (Wuchang Sub-branch)
No. 80 Zhongnan Road

Wuchang District

Wuhan

Hubei Province

China

Bank of Weifang (Xincheng Sub-branch)
No. 336 Dongming Road

Developmental Zone

Weifang

Shandong Province

China
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China Citic Bank (Harbin Branch)
No. 260 Zhongshan Road
Nangang District

Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

China

China Merchants Bank (Shanghai Nanxi Sub-branch)
F1 Yongxin Plaza

No. 128 Nanjingxi Road

Huangpu District

Shanghai

China

Huaxia Bank (Donghu Sub-branch)
No. 1 Youkeyuan

Wujiawan, Luoyu Road

Wuhan

Hubei Province

China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Shenzhen Longgang Sub-branch)
Business Street, Block 10

Xinyayazhou Garden

Zhongxincheng

Longgang District

Shenzhen

Guangdong Province

China

Nanyang Commercial Bank (Dalian Branch)
F1, Liyuan Building

No. 16-18 Mingze Street

Dalian

Liaoning Province

China

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. (Haerbin Nangang Sub-branch)
No. 169, Gexin Street

Nangang District

Haerbin City

Heilongjiang Province

China

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank (Shanghai Branch)
F6, Pu Fa Building

No. 588 Pudongnan Road

Shanghai

China
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Good corporate governance ensures that the interests of shareholders are protected and
enhances corporate performance and accountability.

SIC Environment Holdings Ltd. ("Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Group”) are committed to set corporate governance practices in place which are in
line with the principles, provisions and recommendations of the Code of Corporate
Governance 2018 (“Code”) and the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (‘HK CG Code’) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (“Hong
Kong Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”) to provide the structure through which the objectives of
protection of shareholders’ interest and enhancement of long term shareholders’ value
are met.

In the event of any conflict between the Code and the HK CG Code, the Group will
comply with the more onerous provisions. This report sets out the Group's main
corporate governance practices that were in place throughout and/or during the financial
year or which will be implemented and where appropriate, we have provided explanations
for deviation from the Code and the HK CG Code.

The Group has set out the corporate practices in place to comply with the Code and the
HK CG Code in the Annual Report. Throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2019, the Group had complied with the Code and the HK CG Code, except those
explained and disclosed in this Annual Report.

(A) BOARD MATTERS
Board’s Conduct of Affairs

Principle 1: The company is headed by an effective Board which is
collectively responsible and works with Management for the long-term
success of the company.

The Board (“Board”) of Directors (“Directors”) of the Company oversees the
business and corporate affairs of the Group. The principal duties of the Board
include the following:

e Protecting and enhancing long-term value and return to its shareholders;
e  Providing leadership and guidance on corporate strategy, business
directions, risk management policy and implementation of corporate

objectives;

e Establishing, reviewing and approving the annual budget, corporate policies,
strategies and objectives for the Group;

e Responsible for preparing the accounts of the Group;
e  Establishing a framework of prudent and effective controls which enables
risks to be assessed and managed, including safeguarding of shareholders’

interests and the Company’s assets;

e |dentifying the key stakeholder groups and recognise that their perceptions
affect the Company’s reputation;
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e Ensuring the effectiveness and integrity of Management;
e Monitoring the Management’s achievement of these goals;

e (onducting periodic reviews of the Group’s financial performance, internal
controls and reporting compliance, including matters on adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training, programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

e Approving nominations to the Board and appointment of key executives;

e Ensuring the Group’s compliance with all relevant and applicable laws and
regulations;

e (onsidering sustainability issues;
e Assuming responsibility for the corporate governance of the Group;

e Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and directors; and

e Reviewing the Company’s Compliance with the Code and the HK CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

All Directors exercise due diligence and independent judgment in dealing with
the business affairs of the Group and are fiduciaries obliged to act in good faith
and to take objective decisions in the interest of the Group. The Board holds the
Management of the Company (“Management”) accountable for performance. The
Directors have all confirmed their responsibility for preparing the accounts, and
that there were no events or conditions which would have a material impact on the
Company’s ability to continue to operate as a going concern basis during the year
of 2019.

To assist the Board in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board is supported
by five committees, namely the Audit Committee (“AC”), the Nominating Committee
(“NC”), the Remuneration Committee (“RC”), the Risk and Investment Management
Committee (“RIMGC”) and the Executive Committee (“ECG”) (collectively, “Board
Committees”). The Board Committees operate within clearly defined terms of
reference or scope and they play an important role in ensuring good corporate
governance in the Company and within the Group. The terms of reference of
the Board Committees (the “Terms of Reference”) are reviewed on a regular
basis to ensure their continued relevance. The roles and responsibilities for each
committee are specified in its Terms of Reference, details of which can be found on
SGX-ST and SEHK website.
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Formal Board meetings are held at least four times a year to approve the quarterly,
interim and full year results announcements and to oversee the business affairs of
the Group. The schedule of all the Board and Board Committees meetings for the
calendar year is usually given to all the Directors well in advance in accordance
with the Terms of Reference, the Code and the Hong Kong Listing Rules. Notice
of reqular Board meetings is served on all the Directors at least 14 days before
the meeting while reasonable notice is generally given for other Board and Board
committee meetings. The Board is free to seek clarification and information from
Management on all matters within their purview.

Ad hoc meetings are convened at such other times as may be necessary to address
any specific significant matters that may arise. Important matters concerning the
Group are also put to the Board for its decision by way of written resolutions.
Meetings via telephone or video conference are permitted by the Company’s
Constitution.

The following table sets out the attendance of each Director at the Board, Board
Committees and the general meetings held during the financial year ended 31
December 2019 (“FY2019”):

AREEBFEAREIMAERSEASE N
WEZE  FHREFEEQS  YEEAE
BEBEH - SEFHNMEEFEREEZEE
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e
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REABERTAFEREZIRAEH

TRIENEESHEHZ2019F128318 (-84
BEE ([2019RE]) BT 2258  EFZ
BERBERSEEMER

Board Committee Meetings

EFZREER

General Board RIMC*
Meetings  Meetings AC NC RC ECY RIERESE
Name of Director EEne BRAE EFSSHE BHZACe REZAE FMZERA® HTZRAEY TERZAEY
Zhou Jun AE 1 4 1* 1* 1 - -
Feng Jun % 1 4 3 - - - -
Li Zengful" TR - 2 - - - - -
Xu Xiaobing BEEK 1 4 4 - - - -
Xu Zhan i 1 4 4* - - - -
Huang Hanguang® EER - 2 1* - - - -
Zhao Youmin® HREE - 2 - - - - -
Yeo Guat Kwang BARK 1 3 3 1 1 - -
An Hongjun THE - 4 4 1 1 - -
Zhong Ming B4 1 4 4 1 1 - -
No. of Meetings Held ~ ETESEHRH 1 4 4 1 1 - -

* By invitation o EE

(1) Mr. Li Zengfu resigned as an Executive Director of the Company with effect from 5
August 2019.

(2)  Mr. Huang Hanguang was appointed as an Executive Director and a member of the EC
of the Company on 15 May 2019.

(3)  Mr. Zhao Youmin was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 5 August
2019.

(4)  There is no EC or RIMC meetings held during FY2019. The members of the EC
and RIMC contacted each other as well as other members of the Board and the
Management on an informal basis to discuss the matters related to the EC and RIMC,
respectively. The EC and RIMC may pass resolutions in writing to approve EC and
RIMC matters during FY2019, if any.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the Code
Provision D.3.1 of the HK CG Code. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management, the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company’s compliance
with the HK CG Code and disclosure in this corporate governance report.

The Group had adopted a set of internal guidelines setting forth financial
authorisation and approval limits for investments, acquisitions and disposals.
Transactions falling outside the ordinary course of business and where the value
of a transaction exceeds these limits have to be approved by the Board. Directors
facing conflicts of interest would recuse themselves from discussions and
decisions involving the issues of conflict. The Directors would abstain from voting
and decision involving the issues of conflict.

Matters requiring the Board’s decision and approval include the following:

e Material acquisitions and disposal of assets;

e Group’s major investments/divestments and funding decisions;

e Group’s announcements or press releases released via SGXNet and
HKEXnews, including financial results announcements;

e Agreements which are not in the ordinary course of business;

e Major borrowings or corporate guarantees in relation to borrowings;
e Entry into any profit-sharing arrangement;

e [ssuance of shares or declaration of dividends;

e Qperating budgets, annual report, Directors’ statement and audited financial
statements;

e Convening of general meetings; and

e (hange in corporate business strategy and direction.
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The Directors are also updated regularly with changes to the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) Listing Manual and the Hong Kong
Listing Rules, risk management, corporate governance, insider trading and the key
changes in the relevant regulatory requirements and financial reporting standards
and the relevant laws and regulations to facilitate effective discharge of their
fiduciary duties as Board or Board Committees members.

New releases issued by the SGX-ST, Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority ("ACRA”) and the SEHK which are relevant to the Directors are
circulated to the Board. The Company Secretaries of the Company keep the
Directors informed of upcoming conferences and seminars relevant to their roles
as Directors of the Company. Annually, the external auditors update the AC and the
Board on the new and revised financial reporting standards that are applicable to
the Company or the Group.

Appropriate briefing and orientation will be arranged for newly appointed Directors
to familiarise them with the Group’s business operations, strategic directions,
Directors’ duties and responsibilities and corporate governance practices. They will
also be given opportunities to visit the Group’s operational facilities and meet the
Management so as to gain a better understanding of the Group’s business.

The Directors are encouraged to attend seminars and receive training to improve
themselves in the discharge of Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Changes to
regulations and accounting standards are monitored closely by the Management.
To keep pace with such regulatory changes, the Company provides opportunities
for ongoing education and training on Board processes and best practices as well
as updates on changes in legislation and financial reporting standards, regulations
and guidelines from the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules
that affect the Company and/or the Directors in discharging their duties.

During FY2019, the Directors were provided updates and news of, among other
things, the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Code, the HK CG Code and the HK Listing
Rules. The shares of the Company have been dual listed on the SEHK for trading
on 23 March 2018, and the Company is required to fully comply with the Hong
Kong Listing Rules. In order to comply with Rule A6.5 of Appendix 14 to the
Hong Kong Listing Rules after the dual listing of the Company on the SEHK, the
Company has provided information related to the changes in the SGX-ST Listing
Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules to the Directors to update and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge on the latest developments to the SGX-ST Listing Manual and
the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

EXTEREEMARTNEES IS MAR
2A ((WEMDCETFM) RBE(ETR
B 228 ERER - bEEL AERS
REBRTE  BHRELNREBERERN
TREY RERFENETELEEELE
SREEMENTERE -

R Gt ECEEHR ((FLENR])
REERBAFLNEBESOHERBRR
EF2EM  ARPLARERNESBNNS
ARNEREECARAESERNGH LN
HE e BF NNRBMENETZEERE
EREARE DRI AEBNHREETH S
WRELER

ARRAEANAESABEENHN G AR
B BREFATAEENERES  BER
R EERBERACURLEEAER - ®KF
TRERE2BASENEERBREAEEE
SH - WRATBRASEES -

ARRARBES2EMH G LEZE - =7
RERTEZRANEENES) - EEERY
BIIRERGHAENNED - DERREEE
B ARERBEBEEE TERERRE
FROBEEREIRE  URFEARE
R/ BEERTRENBALDERMBREE
RImE( - A (EMFM) REE(LETR
RI) WO E RIESIMEFER o

201981 4 - EFREMHAR (AHRHE) HiR
B EmFAD) - (FRD (BBEERERTA)
REECLTHRA) OEHRHE - 1201853
ABA - ARBEBHREERX ZHEE LM
ETEE BARAAZEETER(LMR
B ARAIRBERRZMEE LR Bl
STEE (LR M8+ T EABS 2 RTE -
AREERAESREARIMA (LT M)
REE(LTRA) BYNER UEHES
HHRA(LETFM) REECETRAD &3
BROTHE -

Annual Report 2019F £

59



60

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN\ AL SR
ERERERE

The Company will continuously update the Directors on the latest developments to
the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance the Directors’
awareness of good corporate governance practices. The Company may from time to
time arrange the training for the Directors at the Company’s costs.

Newly appointed Directors receive appropriate training, if required. The Group
provides background information about its history, mission and values to its
Directors. In addition, the Management regularly updates and familiarises the
Directors on the business activities of the Company during Board meetings.

During the FY2019 and as at the date of this report, the Company has arranged
for appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors and senior management arising out of the
discharge of their duties and responsibilities.

To enable the Board to fulfil its responsibilities, the Management strives to
provide Board members with adequate and timely information for Board and Board
Committee meetings on an on-going basis. The Board and Board Committee
papers are prepared for each meeting and are disseminated to the members
at least 3 days before the meetings. The Board and Board Committee papers
include financial, business and corporate matters of the Group so as to enable the
Directors to be properly briefed on matters to be considered at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and to make informed decisions. Directors are given separate
and independent access to the Group’s Management and Company Secretaries to
address any enquiries.

The Directors have separate and independent access to the Management and
Company Secretary. Directors may seek professional advice in furtherance of their
duties and the costs will be borne by the Company. The appointment and removal
of the Company Secretaries are subject to the approval of the Board as a whole.
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Board Composition and Guidance

Principle 2: The Board has an appropriate level of independence and
diversity of thought and background in its composition to enable it to

make decisions in the bhest interests of the company.

Presently, the Board comprises one Non-Executive Director, five Executive
Directors and three independent Directors, as follows:—

EFgEmRES

FR2 - EREMBRABHRRFEENS
UMRETHBERER  UERERLFMN
BREFSELHRE -

B AT

EXQRE-AFNTES  DEUO

EEN=RBYEENT

Name of Director  Designation AC NC RC EC RIMC
RERRE

EEpR L {0} FHZRE REZRAE FHMZRE HTZRE EEZRY

Zhou Jun Non-Executive Chairman - - Member Chairman -

ZE FHITER & B

Feng Jun Executive Director - - - Member Chairman

Vit WIES & ESE

Xu Xiaobing Executive Director and - - - Member Member

Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”)

REEIK HTEFHRERATE ((ERRTED = %8

Xu Zhan Executive Director - - - Member Member

e WITES & &

Huang Hanguang Executive Director - - - Member Member

BERO WTES %8 B &

Zhao Youmin®@ Executive Director - - - - -

HRRY HITEE

Yeo Guat Kwang Lead Independent Non-Executive Director Member Chairman Member - -

Bk BREBUFNTES Bd=! TE &

An Hongjun Independent Non-Executive Director Chairman Member Member - -

LHE BUFMTES I & &

Zhong Ming Independent Non-Executive Director Member Member Chairman - -

ok BUENTES Bd=! % & e

Notes: fitzr

(1) Mr. Huang Hanguang was appointed as an Executive Director and a member of the EC of the Company on (1) EEHEERNIIFABEESTALAT

15 May 2019. HTESRMTEEEME -
(2)  Mr. Zhao Youmin was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 5 August 2019. 0 BRREER0ESASARELARATY

(3)  RIMC comprises the Directors and the Senior Management. The composition of the RIMC are disclosed in
Principle 9 of the Corporate Governance Report.
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Executive Committee

The EC comprises the following members:

Mr. Zhou Jun (Chairman)

Mr. Feng Jun

Mr. Xu Xiaobing

Mr. Xu Zhan

Mr. Huang Hanguang (appointed on 15 May 2019)

The EC is primarily responsible for assisting the Board to manage and oversee
the Group’s operational and business expansion matters. To discharge its role and
responsibility, the EC is supported by the head office, functional departments of
the various business units and Senior Management of the Group.

The EC had adopted a set of delegation of authority (“DOA”) setting forth financial
authorisation and approval limits for investments, acquisitions and disposals.
Transactions falling outside the scope of DOA and where the value of a transaction
exceeds these limits have to be approved by the Board. All material and significant
matters are reported to the Board by the EC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The criteria for independence are determined based on the definitions as provided
in the Code and the Hong Kong Listing Rules and the independence of each
Independent Non-Executive Director is reviewed annually by the NC.

The NC considers an Independent Non-Executive Director as one who has no
relationship with the Company, its related corporations, its substantial shareholders
or its Officers that could interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the
exercise of the Directors’ independent business judgment in the best interests of
the Company pursuant to the Provision 2.1 of the Code. The NC also takes into
consideration the circumstances provided in Rule 210(5)(d) of the SGX-ST Listing
Manual for determining the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Director.

The NC has reviewed the independence of each Independent Non-Executive
Director and received annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, and is of the view that these Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors actively participate in Board meetings.
The Company has benefited from Management's access to its Directors for
guidance and exchange of views both within and outside of the meetings of
the Board and Board Committees. The Independent Non-Executive Directors
communicate amongst themselves and with the Company’s auditors and Senior
Management. The chairman of the Board should and does hold, at least annually,
meetings with the Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive
Directors) without the presence of the Executive Directors pursuant to code
provision A.2.7 of Appendix 14 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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In line with Guideline 2.4 of the Singapore Code of Corporate Governance 2012,
the NC had conducted a rigorous review on the independence of the Independent
Director, Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang (“Mr. Yeo”), who has served the Board beyond 9
years from the date of his first appointment. The relevant factors that were taken
into consideration in determining the independence of Mr. Yeo are set out under
Principle 4 of the Corporate Governance Report.

No service contract or letter of appointment has been entered into between the
Non-Executive Director and the Independent Non-Executive Directors with the
Company, but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at general
meeting in accordance with the Constitution of the Company.

Presently, the Company has three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors on the
Board, which make up at least one-third of the Board. The NC has reviewed the
size and composition of the Board. The Non-Executive Chairman, Mr. Zhou Jun
is not considered as an Independent Non-Executive Director. The NC is satisfied
that after taking into account the scope and nature of operations of the Group in
the year under review, the current Board size is appropriate and effective. It is not
necessary to have Independent Non-Executive Directors make up a majority of
the Board at present. Nonetheless, the Company is constantly on the lookout for
suitable candidates to join the Board as Independent Non-Executive Directors as
part of its review process.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual confirmation
of independence in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
and the Board is satisfied that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors have
been independent and met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules during the FY2019 and up to the date of this report.

The Board comprises Directors who as a whole, have core competencies and
diversity of experience to enable them to lead and control the Group effectively.
Such competencies and experiences include industry knowledge, strategic
planning, business and general management, legal and finance, and at least
one Independent Non-Executive Director possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 3.10(2) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules

Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors exercise no
management functions in the Group. Although all the Directors have equal
responsibility for the performance of the Group, the roles of the Non-Executive
Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors are particularly important
in ensuring that the strategies proposed by Management are fully discussed
and rigorously examined and take into account the long-term interests of not
only the shareholders, but also of the employees, customers, suppliers and the
communities in which the Group conducts its business. In addition, the roles of the
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors are particularly
important in reviewing the performance of Management in achieving agreed goals
and objectives and monitoring the reporting of performance. The NC considers
its Independent Non-Executive Directors to be of sufficient calibre and size and
their views to be of sufficient weight such that no individual or small group of
individuals dominates the Board’s decision-making process.
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The Company co-ordinates informal meeting sessions for the Non-Executive
Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors to meet on a need-basis without
the presence of the Management to discuss matters such as the Group’s financial
performance, corporate governance initiatives, Board processes, succession
planning as well as leadership development and the remuneration of the Executive
Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principle 3: There is a clear division of responsibilities between the
leadership of the Board and the Management, and no one individual
has unfettered powers of decision-making.

The Company practices a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and the CEO. This ensures an appropriate balance of power between the Chairman
and CEO and thereby allows for increased accountability and greater capacity of
the Board for independent decision making.

Mr. Zhou Jun is the Non-Executive Chairman of the Company. He leads and
ensures effective and comprehensive Board’s communication on matters brought to
the Board including strategic issues as well as business planning.

Mr. Xu Xiaobing is the CEQ of the Company. As the CEQ, Mr. Xu Xiaobing oversees
the merger and acquisition related matters of the Group and overall management of
the Group’s strategy, business, operation, administration and financial matters.

The responsibilities of the Non-Executive Chairman include:

e Scheduling of meetings to enable the Board to perform its duties responsibly
while not interfering with the flow of the Group’s operations;

e Ensuring that Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information, and
ensuring effective communication with shareholders;

e Ensuring the Group’s compliance with the Code and the HK CG Code;

e Acting in the best interest of the Group and of the shareholders;

e Ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board
meetings;

e Providing leadership for the Board. The chairman should ensure that the
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner. The chairman
should be primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda
for each Board meeting. He should take into account, where appropriate,
any matters proposed by the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda. The
chairman may delegate this responsibility to a designated Director or the
Company Secretary;
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e Taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established;

e Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution to the
Board’s affairs and taking the lead to ensure that it acts in the best interests
of the Company. The Chairman should encourage Directors with different
views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for discussion of issues
and ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus;

e Holding meetings annually with the Non-Executive Directors (including
Independent Non-Executive Directors) without the presence of the Executive
Directors;

e Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective communication
with shareholders and that their views are communicated to the Board as a
whole; and

e Promoting a culture of openness and debating by facilitating the effective
contribution of Non-Executive Directors in particular and ensuring
constructive relations between Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

The Company Secretaries may be called to assist the Non-Executive Chairman in
any of the above.

In view that the Non-Executive Chairman is not independent, the Board had
appointed Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang as the Lead Independent Non-Executive Director
to co-ordinate and to lead the Independent Non-Executive Directors to provide a
nonexecutive perspective and contribute to a balance of viewpoints on the Board.
He is the main liaison on Board issues between the Independent Non-Executive
Directors and the Non-Executive Chairman. He is available to shareholders
where they have concerns which contact through the normal channels of the
Non-Executive Chairman or Chief Financial Officer/Financial Controller or the
Management are inappropriate or inadequate.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors, led by the Lead Independent Non-
Executive Director, meet amongst themselves without the presence of the other
Directors, where necessary, and the Lead Independent Non-Executive Director will
provide feedback to the Non-Executive Chairman after such meetings.
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Board Membership

Principle 4: The Board has a formal and transparent process for the
appointment and re-appointment of directors, taking into account the
need for progressive renewal of the Board.

The NC comprises the following members:

Nominating Committee

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang (Chairman)
Mr. Zhong Ming
Mr. An Hongjun

The NC’s role is to establish a formal and transparent process for:

e Reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on all candidates
nominated for appointment to the Board of the Company and of its
subsidiaries;

e Reviewing and recommending to the Board on an annual basis, the Board
structure, size and composition, taking into account, the balance between
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors to ensure that the Board as a whole possesses the right blend
of relevant experiences and core competencies to effectively manage the
Company;

e Procuring that at least one-third of the Board shall comprise of Independent
Non-Executive Directors;

e |dentifying and making recommendations to the Board as to which Directors
are to retire by rotation and to be put forward for re-election at each Annual
General Meeting (“AGM") of the Company, having regard to the Directors’
contribution and performance, including the Independent Non-Executive
Directors;

e Reviewing the Board succession plans for Directors, in particular the
appointment and/or replacement of the Chairman, the CEO and key
management personnel and the progressive renewal of the Board;

e Assessing the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors; and

e Proposing a set of objective performance criteria to the Board for approval
and implementation, to evaluate the effectiveness of the Board as a whole
and the contribution of each Director to the effectiveness of the Board.

The NC is responsible for identifying and recommending new Directors to the
Board, after considering the necessary and desirable competencies. In selecting
potential new Directors, the NC will seek to identify the competencies required to
enable the Board to fulfil its responsibilities.
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The NC may engage consultants to undertake research on, or assess, candidates
applying for new positions on the Board, or to engage such other independent
experts, as it considers necessary to carry out its duties and responsibilities.

Recommendations for new Directors are put to the Board for its consideration.
New Directors are appointed by way of a Board resolution following which they are
subject to re-election at the next AGM.

The Company’s Constitution requires one-third of the Board (except for the
Managing Director) to retire by rotation at every AGM. Directors who retire are
eligible to offer themselves for re-election. Pursuant to Regulation 97 of the
Company’s Constitution, Directors of the Company who were newly appointed by
the Board since the last AGM will have to retire at the forthcoming AGM. Each
member of the NC shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in respect to his
re-nomination as a Director.

For the financial year under review, the NC is of the view that the Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company are independent (as defined in the Code and
the Hong Kong Listing Rules) and are able to exercise judgment on the corporate
affairs of the Group independent of the Management. The NC has received annual
confirmation of independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company, each confirming that he does not have any relationship which may affect
his independence as provided under Provision 4.4 of the Code and the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.

The NC has recommended to the Board that Mr. Zhou Jun, Mr. Feng Jun, Mr. Xu
Zhan, Mr. Huang Hanguang and Mr. Zhao Youmin, be nominated for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM. The Board had accepted the NC's recommendations.

Please refer to pages 99 to 113 of this report for the detailed information required
pursuant to Rule 720(6) of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.

Despite some of the Directors having other board representations, the NC is
satisfied that these Directors are able to and have adequately carried out their
duties as Directors of the Company. Currently, the Board has not determined the
maximum number of listed board representations which any Director may hold. The
NC and the Board will review the requirement to determine the maximum number
of listed board representations as and when it deems fit.

In considering whether an Independent Director who has served on the Board for
or longer than 9 years is still independent, the Board has taken into consideration
the following factors:

e the considerable amount of experience and wealth of knowledge that the
Independent Director brings to the Company;
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e the attendance and active participation of the Independent Director in the
proceedings and decision-making process of the Board and Committee
meetings;

e the provision of continuity and stability to the Management at the Board
level as the Independent Director may have developed deep insight into the
business of the Company and may possess experience and knowledge of the
business;

e whether the qualification and expertise of the Independent Director provides
reasonable checks and balances for the Management;

e whether the Independent Director has provided adequate attention and
sufficient time to the proceedings and business of the Company. In addition,
whether he is adequately prepared and responsive and heavily involved in
the discussions at the meeting; and

e whether the Independent Director provides overall guidance to Management
and acts as safeguard for the protection of Company’s assets and
shareholders’ interests.

Mr. Yeo was appointed as the independent director on the boards of various
listed companies and participates actively in discussions and provides his views
especially in areas of compliance and financial management during the Board
and Board Committees meetings. He actively attended and participated the Board
and Board Committees meetings held during FY2019. In addition, Mr. Yeo has
confirmed that he does not have any relationship with the Company, either by
way of contractual or commercial connections or any relatives or family members
employed by the Company.

Based on the above factors and the rigorous review performed, the NC with the
concurrence of the Board, is satisfied that Mr. Yeo being an Independent Director
who has served on the Board for more than 9 years remains independent.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of
this report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

There is no alternate director being appointed to the Board.

The key information regarding the Directors such as academic and professional
qualifications, Board Committees served, directorships or chairmanships both
present and past held over the preceding three years in other listed companies and
other major appointments, whether the appointment is executive or non-executive
are set out on pages 94 to 98 of this Annual Report.
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Board Performance

Principle 5: The Board undertakes a formal annual assessment of its
effectiveness as a whole, and that of each of its board committees and
individual directors.

While the Code recommends that the NC be responsible for recommending for
the Board's approval the objective performance criteria and process for assessing
the Board as a whole and each of its Board Committees and also assessing the
individual evaluation of each Directors’ contribution, the NC is of the view that
it is more appropriate and effective to assess the Board as a whole and its Board
Committees, bearing in mind that each member of the Board and the Board
Committees contributes in different ways to the success of the Company and Board
and Board Committees decisions are made collectively.

The NC has implemented a process for assessing the effectiveness of the Board
as a whole and each Board Committee respectively. Each Director is required
to complete the Board Evaluation Forms adopted by the NC and the Board
Committees’ Evaluation Forms adopted by the AC, NC and RC, which would then
be collated by the NC Chairman for review or discussion. The NC focuses on a set
of performance criteria which includes the evaluation of the size and composition
of the Board and its Board Committees, the access to information, processes and
accountability, performance in relation to discharging its principle responsibilities
and the Directors’ standards of conduct, in assessing the Board's performance
as a whole and the performance of the Board Committees. Following the review,
the Board is of the view that the Board and Board Committees operate effectively
and each Director is contributing to the effectiveness of the Board and the Board
Committees due to the active participation of each member during each meeting.
No external facilitator was used during the evaluation process in FY2019.

The Board and the NC have endeavoured to ensure that the Directors appointed
to the Board possess the relevant experience, knowledge and expertise critical to
the Group’s business. Although the Directors are not evaluated individually, the
performance of the Directors is evaluated using agreed criteria, aligned as far as
possible with appropriate corporate objectives. The criteria include short-term and
long-term measures and cover financial and non-financial performance indicators
such as the strength of his experience and stature, and his contribution to the
proper guidance of the Group and its businesses.
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(B) REMUNERATION MATTERS

Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

Principle 6: The Board has a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on director and executive remuneration, and
for fixing the remuneration packages of individual directors and key
management personnel. No director is involved in deciding his or her
own remuneration.

The RC comprises the following members:

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Zhong Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Jun

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang

Mr. An Hongjun

All members of the RC are Non-Executive Directors and the majority of whom,
including the Chairman of the RC is independent.

The RC recommends to the Board a framework for the remuneration for the Board
and key management personnel and to determine specific remuneration packages
for each Executive Director, which is based on transparency and accountability.

The key duties of the RC, inter alia, are:

e To review and submit its recommendations for endorsement by the Board, a
framework of remuneration and the specific remuneration packages and terms
of employment (where applicable) for each Director (including CEO) and key
management personnel in consultation with the Chairman of the Board;

e To review and approve annually the total remuneration of the Directors and
key management personnel with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and

e To review and submit its recommendations for endorsement by the Board,
any long-term incentive schemes which may be set up from time to time and
to do all acts necessary in connection therewith.

No Director or any of his associates is involved in determining his own
remuneration.

The RC has full authority to engage any external professional advice on matters
relating to remuneration as and when the need arises. The expense of such services
shall be borne by the Company. The Company did not engage any remuneration
consultants during FY2019.
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In reviewing the service agreements of the Executive Directors and key management
personnel of the Company, the RC will review the Company’s obligations arising in
the event of termination of these service agreements, to ensure that such service
agreements contain fair and reasonable termination clauses which are not overly
generous. The RC aims to be fair and avoids rewarding poor performance.

Level and Mix of Remuneration

Principle 7: The level and structure of remuneration of the Board and
key management personnel are appropriate and proportionate to the
sustained performance and value creation of the company, taking into
account the strategic objectives of the company.

The RC will take into account the industry norms, the Group’s performance as
well as the contribution and performance of each Director when determining
remuneration packages.

The remuneration for the Executive Directors and certain key management
personnel comprises fixed and variable components. The variable component
(cash-based bonus) is performance related and is linked to the Group’s
performance as well as the performance of each individual Executive Director and
key management personnel.

The Company has adopted the SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012
(“ESOS 2012") and SIIC Environment Share Award Scheme (“ESAS”). The
Executive Directors, Independent Non-Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and key management personnel are eligible to participate in the ESOS 2012 and
ESAS in accordance with the rules for ESOS 2012 and ESAS.

During the FY2019, one RC meeting was held whereat the RC reviewed and
recommended to the Board for consideration of the remuneration packages of each
of the Executive Directors and the Senior Management.

Directors’ fees will be paid or payable to the Independent Non-Executive Directors
and certain Executive Directors in accordance with their contributions, taking into
account factors such as effort and time spent, responsibilities of the Directors and
the need to pay competitive fees to attract, retain and motivate the Directors. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors shall not be over-compensated to the extent
that their independence may be compromised. The Directors’ fees are endorsed by
the RC and recommended by the Board for shareholders’ approval at the AGM of
the Company.

The Company does not use contractual provisions to allow the Company to
reclaim incentive components of remuneration from Executive Directors and key
management personnel in exceptional circumstances of misstatement of financial
results, or of misconduct resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Executive
Directors owe a fiduciary duty to the Company. The Company should be able to
avail itself to remedies against the Executive Directors in the event of such breach
of fiduciary duties.
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Disclosure on Remuneration

Principle 8: The company is transparent on its remuneration policies,
level and mix of remuneration, the procedure for setting remuneration,
and the relationships between remuneration, performance and value
creation.

The Company’s remuneration policy is to reward the performance of, attract, and
retain and motivate the Directors and key management personnel. The RC will
take into consideration the industry norms, the Group’s performance as well as the
performance of each Director and key management personnel when determining
the remuneration packages. The RC will review the remuneration packages for
the Directors and key management personnel from time to time, where it deems
appropriate.

(@) The details of the remuneration of Directors of the Company disclosed in
bands for services rendered during FY2019 are as follows:

MR

FRS: FLFEFHHE  ZHKERM
B FMREEFURGH SXRAENE
BREAERSEY -

ARBFHMEKEERE  RENABEER
TREEAR  UMEARRETRE - RHEE
FEGEE  FMZESRERENGRE K
SERARZEERFTEEEAGNRR - #
HZEeRNERRBEENER  THENE
ERIZERABNHHEE -

(@ 019 E - RRRESHE MR MR
TEUER A % B A € RE 40 B B BR O S B 20
T

Remuneration band

Number of Directors of the Company

FHER FOEEEHE
Below $$250,000 10
{E72250,00057 7
Fees Salary Bonus Benefits Total
ase Fid TEHL =¥ &
Directors EE % % % % %
Below $$250,000 {E712250,000%7 7T
Zhou Jun A% 100 - - - 100
Feng Jun bt 100 - - - 100
Li Zengfu® () 100 - - - 100
Xu Xiaobing TR K 100 - - - 100
Xu Zhan A 100 - - - 100
Huang Hanguang® HE O 89 - - 11 100
Zhao Youmin® HRER 100 - - - 100
Yeo Guat Kwang AR 100 - - - 100
An Hongjun LTHE 100 - - - 100
Zhong Ming B8 100 - - - 100
Notes: o

(1) Mr. Li Zengfu resigned as an Executive Director of the Company on 5 August
2019.

(2)  Mr. Huang Hanguang was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 15 May 2019.

(3)  Mr. Zhao Youmin was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 5
August 2019.
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The details of the remuneration of 4 key management personnel (who are not
the Directors or the CEQ) identified by the Company disclosed in bands for
services rendered during FY2019 are as follows:

(b) TN EF  ARREEETEEEER
B (YHESHERNTE) BEMRHE
FRB AT H A & B E B R T

NN

Fees Salary Bonus Benefits Total
Relevant Key Management Z2AFHER Hme e TE4L TaF gt
Personnel of the Company FEEHEEB/RE % % % % %
Below $$250,000 {E174250,000%7 7T
Wang Peigang TR - 80 20 - 100
Wu Bin SR, - 85 15 - 100
Yang Anyuan 15ZIR - 68 32 - 100
Cai Huijing E1% 3 - 69 31 - 100

For FY2019 the aggregate total remuneration paid/payable to the relevant
key management personnel (who are not Directors or the CEQ) amounted to
S$704,000.

In view of confidentiality of remuneration matters, the Board is of the
opinion that it is in the best interests of the Group not to disclose the exact
remuneration of Directors and key management personnel in the Annual
Report and that the disclosure based on the above remuneration bands is
appropriate.

For FY2019, there were no terminations, retirement or post-employment
benefits granted to Directors and relevant key management personnel other
than the standard contractual notice period and termination payment in lieu
of service.

There were no employees who were substantial shareholders of the Company,
immediate family members of a Director, CEO or substantial shareholders
of the Company, whose remuneration exceeds S$100,000 in the Group’s
employment during the financial year under review.

RO - BN/ ENEBIREREKE (L
EXHERNTE) OFIEERT04,00057 7T °

ERFHFENREL  EFERAREFRPITHR
REENI2ERERENEDFMIINATEEN
RENZERZ EAHFNBEREDBRE -

P19 - RIRER DB R UL TIRI - BF
FEBIEEEEKEYBERRIL  REFHBR
MR IR -

REBMBEE  HEFAARATIERR &%
BERATRIARAIZERRNELARBNTSER
B R H B35 100,000%7 7T ©
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(C) ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Risk Management and Internal Controls

Principle 9: The Board is responsible for the governance of risk
and ensures that Management maintains a sound system of risk
management and internal controls, to safeguard the interests of the
company and its shareholders.

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and the overall internal control
framework, but acknowledges that no cost-effective internal control system will
preclude all errors and irregularities. The system is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
internal controls in place will address the financial, operational, compliance and
information technology risks and the objectives of these controls are to provide
reasonable assurance that there are no material financial misstatements or material
loss, there are maintenance of proper accounting records, financial information are
reliable, and assets are safeguarded.

The Company has established a RIMC to oversee the Group’s overall risk
management framework and to advise the Board on the Group’s risk related matters
as well as investment management. The RIMC reports directly to the Board.

Risk and Investment Management Committee

The RIMC comprises the following members:

Mr. Feng Jun (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Zhan

Mr. Xu Xiaobing

Mr. Wu Qiang

Mr. Huang Hanguang
Mr. Yang Anyuan

The RIMC and Management are responsible for designing, implementing and
monitoring the risk management and internal control systems within the Group
on an ongoing basis ensuing that a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted at least annually.
Management regularly reviews the Group’s business and operational activities to
identify areas of significant risks as well as appropriate measures to control and
mitigate these risks. Any significant matters are highlighted to the Board and the
AC for their deliberation.
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During the year under review, in addition to the work carried out by external
auditors and internal auditors, the Group has processes in place supporting
the framework that enables Management to address the financial, operational,
compliance and information technology controls of the key business units.
The processes involve the identification of major risks through risk discussion
sessions and control self-assessments by the Group’s major business units,
where the business units’ key financial, operational, compliance and information
technology control risks, as well as mitigation measures, were summarised for
review by the Management, the internal auditors and the Board. The conduct of
risk discussion sessions also serves to heighten the risk awareness for staff at the
middle management level. The documentation provided also gives an overview of
the Group’s key risks, how they are managed, and the key personnel responsible
for each identified risk type and the various assurance mechanisms in place. In
relation to the key risks being identified, the Company has taken steps to address
and implement the relevant controls and mitigating measures where applicable and
necessary to ensure that the Group’s key risks are being managed adequately and
effectively.

Key initiatives will be progressively implemented.

To ensure that internal controls are adequate and effective, the AC is assisted
by various independent professional service providers. The assistance of the
internal auditors enabled the AC to carry out assessments of the effectiveness
of key internal controls during the year. Any material non-compliance or
weaknesses in internal controls or recommendations from the internal auditors
and external auditors to further improve the internal controls were reported to the
AC. The AC will also follow up on the actions taken by the Management on the
recommendations made by the internal auditors and external auditors. Based on
the reports submitted by the internal and external auditors received by the AC and
the Board, nothing material has come to the attention of the AC and the Board to
cause the AC and the Board to believe that the internal controls are not satisfactory
for the type and size of business conducted.

The Directors have received the representation letters from the EC, Chief Financial
Officer/Financial Controller and Management of the key business units in relation
to the financial information for the year. Associates and joint ventures which the
Company does not control are not dealt with for the purposes of this statement.
The EC and the Chief Financial Officer/Financial Controller have assured the Board
that:

a.  The financial records have been properly maintained and the financial
statements for the FY2019 give a true and fair view in all material respects,
of the Company’s operations and finances; and

b.  The Group’s internal control and risk management systems are adequate
and operating effectively in all material respects given its current business
environment.
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Based on the internal controls established and maintained by the Group, work
performed by the internal auditors and external auditors, reviews performed and
representations made by Management, and the documentation on the Group’s key
risks referred to above, the Board with the concurrence of the AC, is of the opinion
that the Group’s internal controls and risk and investment management systems
are adequate and effective in addressing the financial, operational, compliance and
information technology control risks of the Group as at 31 December 2019.

The Directors are aware of the requirements under the applicable regulations, Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Hong Kong Listing Rules for
the handling and dissemination of inside information. All the inside information
identified by the Directors shall be published and disclosed to the public in a
timely manner through the Company’s publications and communications, unless
the information falls within safe harbours as prescribed in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Audit Committee

Principle 10: The Board has an Audit Committee which discharges its
duties objectively.

The AC comprises the following members:

Audit Committee

Mr. An Hongjun (Chairman)
Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang
Mr. Zhong Ming

All the members of the AC are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Company
has adopted and has complied with the principles of corporate governance under
the Code and the HK CG Code in relation to the roles and responsibilities of the
AC.

In line with the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the
Board provides a negative assurance statement to the shareholders in respect of
the interim financial statements. For the financial year under review, the EC and the
Chief Financial Officer have provided assurance to the Board on the integrity of the
Group’s financial statements.

The Management provides the Board with a continual flow of relevant information
on a timely basis in order that it may effectively discharge its duties. The
Management understands its role to provide all members of the Board with a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects.

The Board is of the view that the members of the AC are appropriately qualified,
having the necessary accounting or related financial management expertise to
discharge their responsibilities.
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The AC, which has written terms of reference, performs the following delegated
functions:

(1)

To review with the external auditors:—

e the audit plan, including the nature and scope of the audit before the
audit commences;

e their audit report; and

e their management letters and the Management’s response.

To discuss with the external auditors any problems or concerns arising from
their agreed-upon procedures, interim and final audits, and any other matters
which the external auditors may wish to discuss;

To ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

To assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control (including
financial, operational, compliance, information technology controls and
risk management) systems established by Management to identify, assess,
manage, and disclose financial and non-financial risks;

To monitor the scope and results of the external audit, its cost effectiveness
and the independence and objectivity of the external auditors annually and
give recommendations to the Board and the Company in a general meeting
regarding the appointment, re-appointment or removal of the external
auditors;

To review and ensure that the assurance has been received from the EC (or
equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) in relation to the
interim/full year unaudited financial statement;

To review the internal audit programme and ensure co-ordination between the
internal auditors and external auditors and the Management;

To review the quarterly, half-yearly and full year financial statements of the
Company and of the Group, including announcements relating thereto, to
shareholders, the SGX-ST and HKEXnews, and thereafter to submit them to
the Board for approval;

To review interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the
Listing Manual of the SGX-ST) and the connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions (as defined in Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules) and report its findings to the Board;
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(10) To undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the
Board or as the Committees may consider appropriate;

(11) To undertake such other functions and duties as may be required by law or
by the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST or by the Hong Kong Listing Rules, as
amended from time to time; and

(12) To evaluate the external auditor’s independence.

Apart from the duties listed above, the AC is given the task of commissioning
investigations into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity, or failure
of internal controls or infringement of any law, rule or regulation which has or is
likely to have a material impact on the Company’s operating results or financial
position, and to review its findings.

In October 2015, the ACRA introduced the Audit Quality Indicators (“AQls”)
Disclosure Framework (“Framework”), which aims, to equip AC with information
that allows AC to exercise their professional judgements on elements that
contribute to or are indicative of audit quality. Accordingly, the AC had evaluated
the performance of the external auditors as well as the resolution for reappointment
of the external auditors based on the AQls set out in the Framework.

The AC has full access to and has the co-operation of the Management, and has
been given the resources required for it to discharge its function properly. It has
full discretion to invite any Director or Executive Officer to attend its meetings.
The AC recommends to the Board on the proposals to the shareholders on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditors and approves the
remuneration of the external auditors. The AC has recommended to the Board that
Deloitte & Touche LLP be nominated for the re-appointment as external auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming AGM.

The AC will meet with the external auditors and internal auditors without the
presence of the Management to discuss audit fees, review the adequacy of
audit arrangement, with emphasis on the scope and quality of their audit, the
independence, objectivity and observations of the external auditors and internal
auditors, and any other matters the auditors may wish to raise.

In the review of the financial statements for FY2019, the AC had discussed with
the Management and the external auditors on changes to accounting standards and
significant issues and assumptions that impact the financial statements. The most
significant matters had also been included in the Independent Auditor’s Report to
the members of the Company under “Key Audit Matters”. Following the review, the
AC is satisfied that those matters, including service concession arrangements and
revenue recognition and impairment review of goodwill, had been properly dealt
with. The Board had approved the financial statements.
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Annually, the AC meets with the external auditors without the presence of the
Management and conducts a review of all non-audit services provided by the
auditors and is satisfied that the nature and extent of such services will not
prejudice the independence and objectivity of the external auditors. Fees paid or
payable by the Group to the external auditors (and member firms) of the Company
for non-audit services and audit services for FY2019 amounted to S$113,000 and
581,243,000 respectively. The Company has complied with Rules 712 and 715
of the SGX-ST Listing Manual and Rule 13.88 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules in
relation to the engagement of its auditors.

The Group has implemented a fraud and whistle blowing policy whereby
accessible channels are provided for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters which they become
aware of and to ensure that:

(i)  independent investigations are carried out in an appropriate and timely
manner;

(i) appropriate action is taken to correct the weakness in internal controls and
policies which allowed the perpetration of fraud and/or misconduct and to
prevent a recurrence; and

(iii) administrative, disciplinary, civil and/or criminal actions that are initiated
following the completion of investigations are appropriate, balanced and fair,
while providing reassurance that employees will be protected from reprisals
or victimisation for whistle blowing in good faith and without malice.

As of the date of this Annual Report, there were no reports received through the
whistle blowing mechanism.

The AC is kept updated annually or from time to time on any changes to the
accounting and financial reporting standards by the external auditors.

The AC does not comprise former partners or directors of the Company’s existing
auditing firm or auditing corporation: (a) within a period of two years commencing
on the date of their ceasing to be a partner of the auditing firm or director of the
auditing corporation; and in any case, (b) for as long as they have any financial
interest in the auditing firm or auditing corporation.

Internal Audit Function

The Group outsources its internal audit functions to Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers
Risk Services Pte Ltd (“Internal Auditor”), who has the primary reporting line to
the AC. In accordance with the annual internal audit plan approved by the AC, the
Internal Auditor conducts internal audit reviews of the Group to assist the Board
and the AC to assess the effectiveness of key internal controls, covering financial,
operational and compliance risks on an ongoing basis. Procedures are in place for
the Internal Auditor to report independently their findings and recommendations
to the AC for review. The Management will update the AC on the implementation
status of the remedial action plans.
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The Board recognises that it is responsible for maintaining a system of internal
control to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s businesses and
assets, while the Management is responsible for establishing and implementing
the internal controls procedures in a timely and appropriate manner.

The role of the Internal Auditor is to assist the AC in assessing if the internal
controls of the Group are adequate, effective and functioning as intended, to
undertake investigations as directed by the AC and to conduct regular risk-based
audits covering higher risk areas. The AC approves the appointment, removal,
termination, evaluation and compensation of the internal audit function. The
Internal Auditor has unfettered access to all the Company’s documents, records,
properties and personnel, including access to the AC and has appropriate standing
within the Company.

The AC is satisfied that the internal audit function (i) is independent, (i) has
adequate resources to perform its function effectively, and (iii) is staffed by suitably
qualified and experienced professionals with the relevant experience.

The Internal Auditor is a member of the Institute of Internal Auditors Singapore
(“lIA”), an internal professional association for internal auditors which has its
headquarters in the United States. The internal audit work carried out is guided by
the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (‘1A
Standards”) laid down in the International Professional Practices Framework
issued by the IIA.

The AC would annually review the independence, adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal audit function of the Group.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND ENGAGEMENT
Shareholder Rights and Conduct of General Meeting

Principle 11: The company treats all shareholders fairly and
equitably in order to enabhle them to exercise shareholders’ rights
and have the opportunity to communicate their views on matters
affecting the company. The company gives shareholders a balanced
and understandable assessment of its performance, position and
prospects.

The shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s general meetings to
ensure a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group’s strategies
and growth plans. Notice of the general meeting is dispatched to shareholders,
together with explanatory notes or a circular on items of special business (if
necessary), at least 20 clear business days prior to any AGM and any EGM at
which it is proposed to pass a special resolution or a resolution of which special
notice has been given to the Company; and 14 clear business days’ notice for all
other EGMs before the meeting. The Board welcomes questions from shareholders
who wish to raise issues, either informally or formally before or during the general
meetings. The Company will make available minutes of general meetings to
shareholders upon their request.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

(D)

EXERRHARERANEH ZRURER
RORERARENERBREE  MERER
BELE EEHRI R ERAEERES o

ABEMNBER BB ZE T ELE
EAHZHRERR  BRRERERTR
B WENRBENRETETHEREET
BERERBIOURRDERNE - ot
ZESHAENDEABELNER B2 K
b FHERAEE - ABEAMTIRORBE
BB ARRZXM i MERAE (B
RETZEY)  URALRAHEBBE -

EFZBSEMNEMEAM)ABLAL (i)
BERRERABRETERE - R(i) DA%
BHRBRBR ABRARREEZERAR -

AR AR MEAETE HE (AR
®)KE ZHER—EERAME K
& BEMNEE - MEEE TEDXRZH
B ERARBAEBERNERERA
HESEHRE ((ARBERE]) 253 -

B LZEEBFREARANENBRZE
U wmAERENM -

BRREHNRSH

BREFREAREXE

RN FARLFELEMBFAFERT B
BRETERREARFREHTESLTMN
EERRER - FOFMRRRAHELAR
B RiARARBDIER HR BRI -

ARAHBERR2ERRBFAE - BRI
FHREEN  YRERSHRRTSRE® L E
Rt E - BRAGAEGERBRENETRE
BEREEFEIAL (BLE) BOREAR
ARERZBBFIRERIBLFRBIN
REROEFBRBF R HEFMBRERA
SHINETELER  RAAEMBRREIA
SHMETRLEXAFTETRR - E28H0
BRBRRERAG A BT RAZBMREAR
FENREEER - AREHERRERAE
RERRAE 2 &HE -



Each item of special business included in the notice of the general meetings will
be accompanied by an explanation of the effects of a proposed resolution. Separate
resolutions are proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings.

All Directors including the chairman of the AC, NC, RC, EC and RIMC are normally
present and available to address questions relating to the work of their respective
Board Committees at general meetings. In the absence of the chairman of the AC,
NC, RC, EC and RIMC, the Chairman of the Board would usually invite another
member of the committees or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
Furthermore, the external auditors are present to assist the Board in addressing
any relevant queries raised by the shareholders about the conduct of audit and the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report. The attendance of the Directors at
general meetings held during the financial year is disclosed in the Annual Report
on page 57.

Shareholders are informed of general meetings through the announcement released
to the SGXNet, HKEXnews and notices contained in the Annual Report or circulars
sent to all shareholders. These notices are also advertised in a national newspaper
in Singapore. All shareholders are entitled to attend the general meetings and are
provided the opportunity to participate in the general meetings. The shareholders
are also informed on the poll voting procedures at the general meetings. If any
shareholder is unable to attend, he/she/it is allowed to appoint up to two proxies
to vote on his/her/its behalf at the general meeting through proxy forms sent
in advance. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. The instrument
appointing a proxy must be deposited at the place specified in the notice of the
general meetings not less than seventy-two (72) hours before the time appointed
for holding the general meetings.

The Company’s Constitution does not permit the nominee or custodial services to
appoint more than two proxies.

On 3 January 2016, the Companies Act (Chapter 50 of Singapore) was amended,
among other things to allow certain members, defined as a “relevant intermediary”
to attend and participate in general meetings without being constrained by the
two-proxy requirement. Relevant intermediary includes, amongst others, certain
corporations holding licenses in providing nominee and custodial services and the
CPF Board which purchases shares on behalf of CPF investors.

Voting by absentia by mail, facsimile or email is currently not provided in the
Company’s Constitution as such voting methods would need to be cautiously
studied for its feasibility to ensure that the integrity of the information and the
authenticity of the shareholder’s identity is not compromised.

HRBERAGBE 2 S BHREEMBEN EH)
BRRVEIRE - RRAELBREREAE
BEHZBIURER -

BEIR) BRELREBRRAS YINe L
REMREEESZEGTIECHE - MBHE
g REAZEE HHZEE H11ZEE
URERREEERZEGIRRE  AESR
SIRARERRREONA MBI RER
FURTAZENRRLE  toh - SMNEZH
MEHERRAR  HEPEESRARRRL
ZEBREMITRARGEMBENRELAR
WEH - EENAMBERLERRAGNE
RRFRESTERE

BRERTE BESGXNet R R S WU TR RS
RAZEERFENFRIBLTAENES
BEERBRAGEN - ZFBETRIINKE
FHRTLEH - 2BRREBLEREAE
PERESEARNFRRAG ZHE - RER
AEL RENMEENRERREF - HER
BRERBEBEHE  REFEREATERRER
BT AZARSMERRAERRRAE
IRE - XERRBABARFARE - 2R
RRROXBETERNECRTRRAEHE
AL+ () BFRERRAEBERETI
i

AREARERYBEREFZEMAULAR
RUERBIFTERS -

201651 A3 » (A EE) (BT $850%) &
BT (B e araTRE ((AE+E
BiE)) EAREERBERBHT - HERS
HBERAG - HBETHEBEEE (E+aE)
EFRERERAERENAGUENRAE
SREEBERHMAELR -

ARAABERRB L ETRARE (WAB
- BEFEHHA) KR ARAFRES
ARBERREATIE - BRENTEERR
REMEBMEER -

Annual Report 2019F £

81



82

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN\ AL SR
ERERERE

The Company acknowledges that voting by poll in all its general meetings is
integral in the enhancement of corporate governance. The Company adheres to
the requirements of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST, the Code and the Hong
Kong Listing Rules, such that all resolutions at the Company’s general meetings
held on or after 1 August 2015 are put to vote by poll. The detailed results of
gach resolution are announced via SGXNet and the HKEXnews after the general
meetings. The Company had adopted electronic poll for all the resolutions voted at
the AGM held in FY2019.

The Constitution of the Company adopted by special resolution passed at the
general meeting of the Company on 29 January 2018 is available on the websites
of the Company (www.siicenv.com), the SGX-ST and the SEHK.

The Company will publish the minutes of general meetings of shareholders on both
the SGX website via SGXNet and the Company’s website as soon as practicable.

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an extraordinary general
meeting (‘EGM”) and EGMs shall also be convened on such requisition or,
in default, may be convened by such requisitionists, including two or more
shareholders holding a minority stake in the Company which have shareholdings
not less than 10.0% of the total number of issued and paid-up shares (excluding
treasury shares) as at the date of the requisition carrying the right of voting at
general meetings. Such shareholders may also add resolutions to the meeting
agenda of a general meeting. If at any time there are not sufficient Directors
capable of acting to form a quorum at a meeting of Directors, any Director may
convene an EGM in the same manner as nearly as possible as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Directors.

The form, frequency and amount of dividends declared each year will take into
consideration the Group’s profit growth, cash position, positive cash flow generated
from operations, projected capital requirements for business growth and other
factors as the Board may deem appropriate.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of S$0.01 per ordinary share for
FY2019 which is subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM of
the Company.

Engagement with Shareholders

Principle 12: The company communicates regularly with its
shareholders and facilitates the participation of shareholders during
general meetings and other dialogues to allow shareholders to
communicate their views on various matters affecting the company.

Accountability to our shareholders is demonstrated through the presentation
of our annual financial statements, quarterly results announcements and all
announcements on the Group’s business and operations.
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The Company believes in high standards of transparent corporate disclosure and is
committed to make disclosures to its shareholders, the information in a timely and
fair manner via SGXNet and the HKEXnews. Where there is inadvertent disclosure
made to a selected group, the Company will make the same disclosure publicly to
all others as soon as practicable. Communication is mainly made through:—

e Annual Reports that are prepared and sent to all shareholders. The Board
ensures that the Annual Report includes all relevant material information
about the Company and the Group, including future developments and other
disclosures required by the Companies Act (Chapter 50 of Singapore),
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, Companies Ordinance of the Laws
of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Listing Rules;

e Quarterly announcements containing a summary of the financial information
and affairs of the Group for that period; and

e Notices of explanatory memoranda for AGMs and EGMs. The notice of AGM
and EGM are also advertised in a national newspaper in Singapore.

The Company’s website at www.siicenv.com is where our shareholders can access
financial information, corporate announcements, press releases, Annual Reports
and profile of the Group.

Other than the communication provided above, when necessary and appropriate,
the Company would arrange for the Management to meet with analysts and
investors who wish to seek a better understanding on the Group’s business
operations. Through the engagement in the meeting with analysts and investors,
the Management is able to solicit and understand the views and feedback from the
investment community which should provide valuable information to the Board on
investors’ views.

By supplying shareholders with reliable and timely information, the Company
is able to strengthen the relationship with its shareholders based on trust and
accessibility. The Company has a team of investor relations (“IR”) personnel who
focus on facilitating the communications with all stakeholders — shareholders,
analysts and media — on a regular basis, to attend to their queries or concerns as
well as to keep the investors public apprised of the Group’s corporate developments
and financial performance.
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The Company does not practice selective disclosure. In line with the continuous
obligations of the Company under the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Hong Kong
Listing Rules, the Board’s policy is that all shareholders should equally and on a
timely basis be informed of all major developments that impact the Group. Price
sensitive information is first publicly released through SGXNet and the HKEXnews,
before the Company meets with any investors or analysts. All shareholders of the
Company will receive the Annual Report with an accompanying notice of AGM by
post. The notice of AGM is also published in the newspaper in Singapore within
the mandatory period (i.e. save where a waiver is obtained, the AGM is to be held
within four months after the close of the financial year).

For enquiries about the Company’s information, the shareholders may contact Ms.
Shirley Tan Sey Liy or Mr. Man Yun Wah, the Company Secretaries, whose contacts
are as follows:

Ms. Shirley Tan Sey Liy
Email address: shirley.tan@rhtcorporate.com

Mr. Man Yun Wah
Email address: guy.man@rhtcorporate.com

or send enquiries in writing to the Company’s registered office in Singapore at One
Temasek Avenue, #37-02 Millenia Tower, Singapore 039192 or the principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Unit 912, 9/F., Two Harbourfront, 22 Tak Fung Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

MANAGING STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIPS
Engagement with Stakeholders

Principle 13: The Board adopts an inclusive approach by considering
and balancing the needs and interests of material stakeholders, as
part of its overall responsibility to ensure that the best interests of the
company are served.

The Company acknowledges the importance of establishing effective
communication among its stakeholders through regular engagement and
various communication platforms to achieve mutually beneficial goals. Ongoing
communication with stakeholders is an integral part of the Company’s day-to-
day operations. Communication channels such as meetings, interviews and
surveys allow stakeholders to express their ideas, opinions and suggestions to the
Company.
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(E)

(F)

The Company has identified six stakeholders’ groups, namely, shareholders and
investors, government and regulators, business partners and suppliers, media,
customers and employees, who are able to impact the Group’s business and
operations. The Company had also undertaken a process to review its material
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") issues in line with a review of the
Group’s business strategy, regulatory changes and industry trends. In addition, the
Company also initiated the process of setting targets in relation to each of the ESG
iSSues.

The Company does not practice selective disclosure. Price sensitive information
is first publicly released through SGXNet and the HKEXnews. The Company’s
financial information, corporate announcements, press releases, Annual Reports
and profile of the Group can be accessed through the Company’s website at www.
siicenv.com

DEALINGS IN COMPANY’S SECURITIES

In compliance with Rule 1207(19) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual and the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the Company had
adopted a Code of Best Practices to provide guidance to its officers on securities
transactions by the Company and its officers.

The Company and its Officers are not allowed to deal in the Company’s securities
(i) during the period commencing two weeks before the announcement of the
Company’s financial statements for each of the first three quarters of its financial
year and one month before the announcement of the Company’s full year financial
statements (if the Company announces its quarterly financial statements), or
one month before the announcement of the Company’s half year and full year
financial statements (if the Company does not announce its quarterly financial
statements) pursuant to Rule 1207(19) of the SGX-ST Listing Manual; and (ii)
during the period commencing 30 days immediately before the announcement of
the Company’s interim results and 60 days immediately before the announcement
of the Company’s full year results, and ending on the date of the announcement of
the relevant results pursuant to the Model Code.

The Directors, Management and executives of the Group are also expected to
observe relevant insider trading laws at all times, even when dealing in securities
within permitted trading periods, especially if they are in possession of material
unpublished price sensitive information of the Company. They are not allowed to
deal in the Company’s securities on short-term considerations.

Specific enquiry was made of all the Directors and the Directors confirmed that
they had complied with the Listing Manual and Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Company has established a procedure for recording and reporting interested
person transactions (“IPTs”). All IPTs are subjected to review by the AC to ensure
that they were conducted on normal commercial terms and are not prejudicial to
the interests of the Company and its minority shareholders.
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There were no IPTs between the Group and any of its interested persons (namely,
Directors, Executive Officers or controlling shareholders (as defined in the SGX-ST
Listing Manual) of the Group or the associates of such Directors, Executive Officers
or controlling shareholders) or any other connected person(s) of the Company as
defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules subsisting for FY2019, save for the
following:

Aggregate value of all

IPTs during the

financial year under

review (excluding
transactions less

than $$100,000 and
transactions conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of

Aggregate value of all
IPTs conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of
the SGX-ST Listing Manual
(excluding transactions

Name of interested Name of entity the SGX-ST Listing Manual) less than $$100,000)
person at risk® Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
ROBMBEENZEE
HRRBEALRS BRSEEETREHRZHR
(FEEXSHEEER (LHFH) F9201%
1000008 TR B R AR ETH2BEHRME
BEETRENZHR AXX5% (FEEXSEE
(EHFM) 201 {E74100,0008 THIZ B )
ETHRS) HREE H#RE
FHEAREALTER ERERERY RHME UN: & e AR®TR
SIHL Finance Limited Rise Thrive Limited Extension of repayment 15,2120 -6
(“SIHLFL")® (“RTL") period of existing loan
to RTL
SIHL Finance Limited SRR A EREERERA
([SIHLFL]) @ 1) BERHHR
Shanghai Shen-Yu Expressway SIIC Environment Loan to SIIC Shenzhen 45230 -6

(Shanghai Section) Co.,
Ltd. (“Shanghai Shen-
Yu')®

EERRQK
(LBE) &%
BEREBERAA
(1D

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“SIIC Shenzhen”)

TERBER
(R BRAT
(TEERM])
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Aggregate value of all
IPTs conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of
the SGX-ST Listing Manual
(excluding transactions

Name of interested Name of entity the SGX-ST Listing Manual) less than $$100,000)
person at risk™ Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
REEMBFEENZHSE
FEREALES BRBEATRERZM
(FEEXHEEER (LHEM) H9201F
100,000 TEY X 5 R B ETH2BEI2ME
BERTREHNRE ALX5 (FEEXSHEE
(LHFM) $9201F {E74100,0008F THOR Z)
ETHRS) HEREE HERE
BHEREALEE ERERERO XAME ARBFR ARBTR
SIHL Finance Limited Rise Thrive Limited Extension of repayment 5,2536) -6
(“SIHLFL")® (“RTL") period of existing loan
to RTL
SIHL Finance Limited HEBRAF EREZHERA
([SIHLFL]) @ ([RE]) ERHHR
Shanghai Lugiao Development  Longjiang Environment  Loan to Longjiang 12,1670 -6
Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai Protection Group Co.,
Lugiao”)® Ltd. (“Longjiang”)
LBREEE EIRREE BERTEI
BRAT BB ERA A
(TLigeiE))© ([REL D)
Shanghai Lugiao Development  Longjiang Environment  Loan to Longjiang 9,7330) -6

Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai

Lugiao")®
LEERER

BRAT

([ LigiE))

Protection Group Co.,

Ltd. (“Longjiang”)
BEIRREERD

ARAT

([REL))

ERTEL
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Aggregate value of all

IPTs during the

financial year under

review (excluding
transactions less

than $$100,000 and
transactions conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of

Aggregate value of all
IPTs conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of
the SGX-ST Listing Manual
(excluding transactions

Name of interested Name of entity the SGX-ST Listing Manual) less than $$100,000)
person at risk™ Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
REEMBEENZHE
FIEREALZS BRBEATRERZM
(FEEXSHEEER (EHFEM) 201§
100,000 TEY X 5 R B R ETH2BEIRME
BREERTREHXR ALX5 (FREXHEE
(LHFM) $9201F {E72100,0008f THOR Z)
ETHRS) HRRE HHERE
FHEREALTER ERERERO ZHLE ARBTR ARETR
Shanghai Lugiao Development  SIIC Environment Extension of repayment 5240 -6
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. period of existing loan
Lugiao")® (“SIIC Shenzhen’) to SIIC Shenzhen
LERBERBRAT  LERRER EREELERE
([LisHaE])) ORI BRAE B EHEER
(TEEZN))
Shanghai Lugiao Development  Nanfang Water Co., Ltd.  Extension of repayment 11,1870 -6
Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai (“Nanfang Water") period of existing loan
Lugiao”)® to Nanfang Water
PERBERARRR  BEAKBERAR TREERAHKBR
([LiHaE])) ([EAKE]) BERHHRE
Shanghai Lugiao Development  SIIC Environment Loan to SIIC Weifang 6,692¢) -6
Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai Holdings (Weifang)
Lugiao”)® Co., Ltd. (“SIIC
Weifang")
PERBERARRR  CEREKBRG  EXTLEREKE
([LigeiE)) BRAR (LR
BEKE)
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Aggregate value of all

IPTs during the

financial year under

review (excluding
transactions less

than $$100,000 and
transactions conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of

Aggregate value of all
IPTs conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of
the SGX-ST Listing Manual
(excluding transactions

Name of interested Name of entity the SGX-ST Listing Manual) less than $$100,000)
person at risk™ Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
REEMBFEENZHSE
FEREALES BRBEATRERZM
(FEEXHEEER (LHEM) H9201F
100,000 TEY X 5 R B ETH2BEI2ME
BERTREHNRE ALX5 (FEEXSHEE
(LHFM) $9201F {E74100,0008F THOR Z)
ETHRS) HEREE HERE
BHEREALTEE ERERERO XAME ARBFR ARBTR
SIHL Finance Limited Rise Thrive Limited Extension of repayment 14,2680 -6
(“SIHLFL")® (“RTL") period of existing loan
to RTL
SIHL Finance Limited HEBRLR (B LEREZEDERE
([SIHLFL]) @ &) ERHHR
Shanghai Lugiao Development  SIIC Environment Extension of repayment 19,5176 -6
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. period of existing loan
Lugiao")® (“SIIC Shenzhen’) to SIIC Shenzhen
LERBEERBRAT  LERRER TREEEERIR
([LiBHE]) CRII) BRAE] BEFRHR
(TLER )
Shanghai Shen-Yu Expressway Fudan Water Engineering Loan to Fudan Water 8,550©) -0

(Shanghai Section) Co.,
Ltd. (“Shanghai Shen-
Yu')#

EERARE
(LBE) &%
BRAERRAA
([Eigeim]) ©

and Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Fudan
Water’)
HBERKBEIR
R AR AR
([®BXH%))

ERTFEEKE
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Aggregate value of all

IPTs during the

financial year under

review (excluding
transactions less

than $$100,000 and
transactions conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of

Aggregate value of all
IPTs conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of
the SGX-ST Listing Manual
(excluding transactions

Name of interested Name of entity the SGX-ST Listing Manual) less than $$100,000)
person at risk™ Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
REEMBEENZHE
FIEREALZS BRBEATRERZM
(FEEXSHEEER (EHFEM) 201§
100,000 TEY X 5 R B R ETH2BEIRME
BREERTREHXR ALX5 (FREXHEE
(LHFM) $9201F {E72100,0008f THOR Z)
ETHRS) HRRE HHERE
FHEREALTER ERERERO ZHLE ARBTR ARETR
Shanghai Lugiao Development  Fudan Water Engineering Loan to Fudan Water 2,3476) -6
Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai and Technology
Lugiao")® Co., Ltd. (“Fudan
Water’)
FERBERARAR LEEBRKBIR EXRTEEKE
([LiHaE])) RiMTER AR
([®B%%)
SIIC Management Dazhou Jiajing Loan to Dazhou Jiajing 1,8430 -6
(Shanghai) Limited (“SIIC Environment
Management")?” Renewable Resources
Co., Ltd. ("Dazhou
Jiajing")
LEER (LF) ENERBREE  SXRTENEER
BRAA BRBRRA
(TEEE®R])O ([BMEE])
Shanghai Lugiao Development  Dazhou Jiajing Extension of repayment 5,9496) -6

Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Lugiao")®

LERBERARAR
([ L&) ©

Environment
Renewable Resource
Co., Ltd. ("Dazhou
Jiajing’)
EMNERRREER
FERAR ([&
HER])

period of existing loan

to Dazhou Jiajing

EREERMNERR
Gl
ERHHR
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Aggregate value of all

IPTs during the

financial year under

review (excluding
transactions less

than $$100,000 and
transactions conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of

Aggregate value of all
IPTs conducted under
shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920 of
the SGX-ST Listing Manual
(excluding transactions

Name of interested Name of entity the SGX-ST Listing Manual) less than $$100,000)
person at risk™ Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
ROBEMBEENZER
FRREALRS BRBEATRERZM
(FEEXHEEER (LHEM) H9201F
100,000 TEY X 5 R B ETH2BEI2ME
BERTREHNRE ALX5 (FEEXSHEE
(LHFM) $9201F {E74100,0008F THOR Z)
ETHRS) HREE HEERE
FHEmEALTEE ERERER" XHHE AR¥TR AR¥TE
Shanghai Lugiao Development  SIIC Environment Loan to SIIC Shenzhen 2,8300) -6
Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
Lugiao")® (“SIIC Shenzhen’)
FERBERBRAR  LEREER ERTLER
(TLigeig)) (&) BRAE
(TLER )
SIHL Finance Limited Rise Thrive Limited Extension of repayment 34,9020 -6
(“SIHLFL")® (“RTL") period of existing loan
to RTL
SIHL Finance Limited AHEAMR EREERERA
([SIHLFL]) @ (fﬁm) Gkl
Total IPTs BHEREAL 155,497
RH@HE
(1) The entities listed are subsidiaries of the Group. (1) FIRPEBAFNEEMBARF -
(2)  SIHLFL and SII are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company’s intermediate holding ) SHFLE EEERARLDEHRNMERAE L ’i

company, Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited. (“SIHL”").

Shanghai Lugiao is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SIHL. The loans were entered into (3)

through an intermediary bank, Bank of Ningbo.

Shanghai Shen-Yu is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SIHL. The loan was entered into 4)

through an intermediary bank, China Merchants Bank.

ExERARAR ((LEER]) n2EHE

£l

LERBALERRN2EANER

A BRT

BBPNRITERRITAIL

HEman tERRO2EMEAR - BRTY

FEBRNRTPEABRITAIL
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(5)  Refer to the interest payable in relation to the loans.

(6)  There is no IPT mandate obtained from shareholders.

(7)  SNC Management is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SIHL. The loan was entered into
through an intermediary bank, Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

During the FY2019, the Group entered into the following connected transactions
with connected persons as defined in the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

1. On 13 December 2019, the Company through Gold Orient Investments
Limited, Grand Sinochn International Limited and SIIC Environment
Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. subscribed for 20,288,865 shares of
Longjiang Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. at the consideration
of S$31,347,000 and Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited through
its wholly-owned subsidiaries subscribed for 14,273,625 shares of
Longjiang Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. at the consideration of
S$21,567,000.

Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited was a connected person of the
Company, Longjiang Environmental Protection Group Co., Ltd. was a non-
wholly subsidiary of the Company and was indirectly owned by Shanghai
Industrial Holdings Limited, therefore Longjiang Environmental Protection
Group Co., Ltd. was a connected subsidiary and connected person of
the Company. Accordingly, the transaction with Longjiang Environmental
Protection Group Co., Ltd. constituted a connected transaction of the
Company. Details of the above connected transaction were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2019.

2. 0On 16 December 2019, SIIC Environment Tech (Hong Kong) Limited, Eternal
Way Wealth Creation Limited and Shanghai Overseas Enterprises (BVI)
Co. Ltd. entered into the JV Agreement for establishing the JV Company in
Hong Kong for the purpose of equity investment in environmental industry
companies in the PRC, especially in Yangtze River Delta. The JV Company
was incorporated with initial registered capital of HK$100, of which HK$40
was contributed by SIC Environment Tech (Hong Kong) Limited, HK$30
was contributed by Eternal Way Wealth Creation Limited and HK$30 was
contributed by Shanghai Overseas Enterprises (BVI) Co. Ltd. Pursuant to
the JV Agreement and the potential funding needs of the JV Company, the
Parties have agreed that the total capital commitment of the JV Company
shall be HK$100,000,000.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

(B) EEEFEHOEIME -

6) HECAERERERENENGERALR
5

(n LEERALEZRN2EMELR - B
EBEERITERPNRITEIL

19815 - REEEEE (ETHRR) FRE
HBEATIIVATHERS

1. R019F128138  ARRIEBEHEKRE
BRAR REEBRERARARLER
Bk ORI BIRA AL ES1,347,000
FTRBEIRREARNERAA
#)20,288,8650% B 1 + & BB B XK
ERARBBE2EMBLARNYE
21567,00057T L REBETRREER K
PR AT #914,273 635 AR 7

FEERERERAFAKRAR N HEE
AT BIRREERONDERARAR
ARIMFEEEMBARL M EBERE
BAERDRRERE  Fit - BIRRF
EEBRNARLAATRENHEENE
ARAIREEALT - Hit - BEITRFRE
Bkt R AR ZENRZHBRART
MEERS - BB LRBEER BN
HRALDR B HRN9F12ABEHA

4o

2. M2019%F128168  EBEERBRR
(B%) BRAR - BEAZERAAR
FEENBIERART VAL RS
WREBKIAEDNR EERATER
BITEMCE  AEHRUARIZAM
BEME  EHRAEE - ABEAAT)
AEMARBI0ET  Eh HBEER
BR (B8) BRAFNE4W0ET - B
ZAEARARHENE TR EEEN
BV)ERARHENETL - REAEH
FRABRARIZELEESEE  &HE
REAE AR ZBEAHEIER100,000,000
BT



(G)

(H)

U

Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited is the controlling
shareholder of the Company and is therefore a connected person of the Company.
Eternal Way Wealth Creation Limited is an indirect subsidiary of Shanghai
Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited and is therefore an associate
of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited and a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the transaction with Eternal Way Wealth
Creation Limited constituted a connected transaction of the Company. Details of the
above connected transaction were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 16 December 2019.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no controlling shareholder had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for the
provision of services to the Company or not) to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the FY2019.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors or senior
management had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
FY2019.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company regularly reviews and improves its business and operational
activities to identify areas of significant business risks as well as to take
appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks supported by the AC
and RIMC. The Company reviews all significant control policies and procedures
and highlights significant matters to the AC and the Board. The significant risk
management policies are disclosed in the audited financial statements of this
Annual Report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in Note 46 of the accompanying financial statements and
Section (F) above, there were no material contracts entered into by the Company or
its subsidiaries during FY2019, or still subsisting as at 31 December 2019, which
involved the interests of the Chief Executive Officer, any Director or controlling
shareholders (as defined in the SGX-ST Listing Manual) of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Shirley Tan Sey Liy and Mr. Man Yun Wah have been nominated by RHT
Corporate Advisory Pte. Ltd. and RHT Corporate Advisory (HK) Limited,
respectively, to act as the Company Secretaries, and they have complied with the
requirements of the Listing Manual and the Hong Kong Listing Rules respectively.
They have been in contact with the Board and Ms. Cai Huijing, Deputy General
Manager of the Company directly in respect of company secretarial matters.

Constitutional Documents

During the FY2019 and up to the date of this report, there has not been any change
in the Constitution of the Company. The Constitution of the Company is available
on the websites of the Company, the SGX-ST and the SEHK.

(G)

(H)

U

LBEE (58 ARARAABADAIMERR
R ARAARANEEAL - BEAFEAR
RARLBER (RE) BROFAMNEZME
RE AR LEER (RE) ARAFMNE
BARARRFNEEAL - At - BEFEEE
BRRAZFANZ HERARRNEERS
BHELABERGNFEIERALABHA
019F 12 A16A /A

BRAFHAEEEN - R0 EF - HEZR
BRARRBSAEFMBBRAR AT O EH
AEEEBMEBEANENAYN (BEREE
RAARNFRERY) PERIAREFEX

i o

BRAFRAMBEEN - R019HF - HEES
ARRERENARE - HERAF - REF
HMBARRRARMBRRARTNT AHAL
BEBmEBEANEAA NP ERLEER
BEAME -

RRER

ARRAEHRF RAEEEHEREERY - A
BAIEAE R BE L RIEE B R &
REZZHEFZEERARIREEEZ
B3I BNER - AREREAEERZHEK
REEBFYINEGREEREZERHENS
B EXRREEBRNAFRNEELYH
BERAKE

EXED

BRBER 2 81 75 SRk Y E46 Jo S (F) B PR AR EE &
Oh - AR ESHEM BN AT L R20198 F
FR019F12ANB MAB RS RARFE
FHITE  AMNESHERER (EERHR
Fr{EmF)) MEXRGH -

LERE

REFMZ LR XBEELECONBRERLE
BARANBRRARREECELH (BR)
BRARREARANE  YEARET(L
mFf) REE(LTRRD - HE-ERAA
WESHEREANAESE NABKELES
BRTHE -

HREEXH

ROHFERBEAREBE  ARAARKE
BRECAZ2Y  ARAABERANAR
Al MR ERR MBS -
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Particulars of Directors Pursuant to the Code of Corporate Governance

R (ERERTA) RENFEHEN

Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Companies and
Board Board Directorships in Other  Other Major
Appointment Committees Directorship Listed Companies Appointments Over
Name of Academic/Professional  Executive/ as Chairman Date First Date of Last and Other Major the Preceding 3
Director Qualifications Non-Executive ~ or Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Years
RBRIFEE
Exe FRES EREEE REMETAT Rt LHAH
REHT/ ZREIR EENE I-R%E REEEMER REEEMER
B BE/BRRN RUAEF  wAR pd:L E3ZAN  KBEERENR  XMTEREWR
Mr. Zhou Jun Master's Degreg in Non-Executive Chairman of Board, 7 April 2010 28 June 2018 o Shanghai Industrial -~ Nil
Economics (International ~ Chairman Member of Investment (Holdings)
Finance) from the Fudan Remuneration Co., Lid.
University Committee and o Shanghai Industrial
Chairman of the Holdings Limited
Executive Commitee o Shanghai Industrial
Urban Development
Group Limited
o Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals
Holding Co., Ltd
BExE EEXZERERER FHOER BEeTR HMZ  00F4A7TH  ABF6ABE o+ DEEX(RE)E E
EEEELEN BeRERITE RAH
B8R ¢ FEEEERER
NG
o FEERETRE
EEERAT
o EBESERR
BRAR
Mr. Feng Jun Master's Degreg in Executive Director  Board Member and 15 December 2009 28 June 2018 Canvest Environmental Nil
Economics from the Member of the Protection Group
Wuhan University Executive Committee Company Limited
School of Management,
Enterprise Management
it vk NEABLERERE H7E% BEeMERNTE  N9FE12815  018F6ANE ELRRENERL E
RAEERETEN ] ET
Mr. Xu Xiaobing ~ Bachelor's Degreg in Executive Director  Board Member and 5 November 2014 30 April 2019 Nil Nil
Economics and Master Member of the
Degree in Business Executive Committee
Administration from
Peking University
REKEE ITRRBLELELE H7ES BEEMELNTE  NUENASHE  019F4ANE  E &
iR IHEERTE B8N E
fir

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH



Past Directorships

« BEAH (BR) B

YN

in Other Listed
Companies and
Board Board Directorships in Other  Other Major
Appointment Committees Directorship Listed Companies Appointments Over
Name of Academic/Professional  Executive/ as Chairman Date First Date of Last and Other Major the Preceding 3
Director Qualifications Non-Executive ~ or Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Years
RMBRIFEE
Bz RESE EREER REMEHLF Rt EHaE
BEHT/ ZREIR EERE I-%E RESERER REESRER
BEEiE P/ SRER FHTER BER <BH ERZAY HtEEREHR  RUEEREHER
Mr. Xu Zhan Bachelor's Degree in Executive Director ~ Board Member and 5 November 2014 27 April 2015 o Shanghai Industrial -~ Nil
Engineering from Member of the Investment (Holdings)
Shanghai Jiao Tong Executive Committe Co., Ltd.
University and Master o Shanghai Industrial
Degree in Busingss Holdings Limited
Administration from
Norwegian School of
Management. Fellow
of the Association of
the Chartered Certified
Accountants
SHERAE LERBASIREZ #1EZ BEXEHELNNZ  NUENASE  NF4BUE o« HEEE(RE) E
TEMRBHERE EEE| BRAA
RIFEERLE o PEERERER
fi o FIRARTFAR R
eHAAEEREE
Huang Hanguang ~ Bachelor degree in power ~ Executive Director ~ Board Member and 15 May 2019 N/A o Asia Water Investments  Nil
plant chemistry Member of the Pte. Lid.
engineering from Wuhan Executive Committee o SIIC Environment
University PRC Holdings (Wuhan) Co.,
Ltd.
o Wuhan Kaidi Water
Engineering Co., Lid.
o Huangshi Kaidi Water
Services Co., Lid.
o Ranhill Water
(Hongkong) Limited
BER REAZEMCEIR #H1ES BEEEHERNAE  NWVEAE TER o Asia Water Investments £
BXETE( gems Pie. Lid.
o PERGER (R
%) BIRAA)
o RESBKETR
BRAF
. %E%ﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&
N
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Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Companies and
Board Board Directorships in Other  Other Major
Appointment Committees Directorship Listed Companies Appointments Over
Name of Academic/Professional  Executive/ as Chairman Date First Date of Last and Other Major the Preceding 3
Director Qualifications Non-Executive ~ or Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Years
RBRIFEE
E5g fFRES EREER REMEHLF Rt LHaE
ZRBRT/ ZREIR EERE L-R%E REEERER REESRER
BERE P/ SRER FRTES BAR ZBH ERZAN HEEREHR  RUEEREHER
Zhao Youmin o Master degree in Executive Director ~ Board Member 5 August 2019 N/A China Energy China Geothermal
Marxism history of Conservation and Industry
economic thoughts from Environmental Development
Capital University of Protection (Hong Kong) ~ Group Limited
Economics and Business Investment Co., Ltd
o Senior Economist
from China Energy
Conservation and
Environmental Protection
Group
BRE ¢ BRREEHAEE HOES EEeNE N1958R58 @R REERRR (BE) TEMRLERE
REIRMERR REBRLA EEEERAT
LEZET
o REEREREER
BARSRLED

Mr. Yeo Guat Kwang e Bachelor of Arts (2nd ~ Lead Independent ~ Board Member, Chairman 23 September 2009 30 April 2019

Upper Honours) from the ~ Non-Executive of Nominating
National University of Director Comittee, Member
Singapore Post graduate of Audit Committeg
Diploma in Education and Member of
(with Merit) from the Remuneration
National Institute of Commitiee
Education

o Master in Public
Administration and

Management, NUS
Business School and
LKY School of Public
Policy

Doctor of Business
Administration, United
Business Institutes,
Brussels

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Companies and
Board Board Directorships in Other  Other Major
Appointment Committees Directorship Listed Companies Appointments Over
Name of Academic/Professional  Executive/ as Chairman Date First Date of Last and Other Major the Preceding 3
Director Qualifications Non-Executive ~ or Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Years
RMBRIFEE
Bz RESE EREER REMEHLF Rt EHaE
EERT/ ZREIR EERE I-%E RESERER REESRER
BEEiE P/ SRER FHTER BER <BH ERZAY HtEEREHR  RUEEREHER
BREEE BT ABNE BREEUERG ETEME RBZ N9FIANH  019F4A0E  Koyo lnternational Limited
T (ZRFERE) g% BeTR  BitZ
26 - BFHEEh BeREMZEe
HEEZ (WEER) K&
RELE
o TIRETAE SR
RALHBK SR 5
AETBABERT
i
s WEERBSHER
THEERET
Mr. An Hongjun o Bachelor Degree in Independent Non-  Board member, Chairman 1 March 2018 28 Jung 2018 Nil Shanghai Chengtou
Finance from Nankai Executive of the Audit Committee Holdings Co., Ltd.
University Director and Member of the
o Master Degree and Nominating Commitieg
Doctorate in World and Remuneration
Economics from Fudan Commitiee
University

o Doctorate Degree in
Global Finance Business
Administration from
Shanghai Advanced
Institute of Finance
of Shanghai Jiaotong
University

o Member of the Private
Equity Professional
Commitiee of the Asset
Management Association
of China
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Past Directorships

in Other Listed
Companies and
Board Board Directorships in Other  Other Major
Appointment Committees Directorship Listed Companies Appointments Over
Name of Academic/Professional  Executive/ as Chairman Date First Date of Last and Other Major the Preceding 3
Director Qualifications Non-Executive ~ or Member Appointed Re-election Appointments Years
RBRIFEE
E5g fFRES EREER REMEHLF Rt LHaE
ERBT/ ZREIR EENE L-R%E REEERER REESRER
£33 29/ BERR FUTEE BHER ZBH EZ¢HH Rt EEZEHER EtEEZEHER
ZHERE ¢ BFEAZEREET BUFNTEE EZeKE FHZE NBFEIAIE NBFCANE B TR RBRR
i EgIRIUARES BRAR
o BEREHRLEE ZEERFMZS
BrEMRETEN 2[5
o FERBRELER
Repeh R
IHERRTEM
¢ MEESREERE
helEREEEZ
B8KE
Mr. Zhong Ming ~ Degree in Commerce Independent Non-  Board member, Chairman 1 March 2018 28 Jung 2018 Yanlord Land Group Nil
from The University of Executive of the Remuneration Limited
Melbourne Director Committee and Singapore Ren Gi Hospital
Member of the Audit
Commitiee and
Nominating Commitiee
EHrE ERAAEHEET  BUSEHNEE ETeME FHMZE  WEAIE 018F6ANAE  CESHEEERL E
By EEEPYE a
ZEERREZE MRCERR
2R 8
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Information for the Directors who are retiring and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM pursuant to Rule
720(6) of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST:

RIBHZFR (LT FM) F720(6)FRERERR
AFXELEE AFARBEIEEHES
BH:

Name of Director

Exta

Details Zhou Jun Feng Jun Xu Zhan Huang Hanguang Zhao Youmin

B RE 1] i wiEX BRE

Date of Appointment 7 April 2010 15 December 2009 5 November 2014 15 May 2019 5 August 2019

ZERHE 010F4AT7H 2009F12 4158 2014F11 A58 019F5/15H 019F8A5H

Date of last re-appointment 28 June 2018 28 June 2018 27 April 2015 N/A N/A

(if applicable)

LRENZEAS (PER)  01856A2A 201856 A28H 015F4A27H TER TER

Age 5 57 50 57 8

FR 51 5T 507 5T 187

Gountry of principal residence China China China China China

TERRER e e e e e

The Board's comments on this The Board of the Company ~ The Board of the Company ~ The Board of the Company  The Board of the Company ~ The Board of the Company

appointment (including rationale,  has accepted the NC's has accepted the NC's has accepted the NC's has accepted the NC's has accepted the NC's

selection criteria, and the search and  recommendation, who has ~ recommendation, who has  recommendation, who has ~ recommendation, who has ~ recommendation, who has

nomination process) reviewed and considered reviewed and considered Mr. — reviewed and considered reviewed and considered reviewed and considered M.
Mr. Zhou JunasanNon-  FengJunas an Executive M. Xu Zhan as an Executive  Mr. Huang Hanguang asan ~ Zhao Youmin as an Executive
Executive Chairman of the  Director of the Company. Director of the Company. Executive Director of the Director of the Company.
Company. Company.

ESEHNZANER (BF ZALRFEFQEENR FALREFLEEMR ARAEFECHEMR TRUEFLEEMR FALRERECEMR

B BEEE LRAEE RZEeNHERE LREeMAERE. 4AZEeNEERE. fZEeniERE. LREenEERE

REER) EARERAE AR SHREZERRELAS BHRTEFELLTR BEUREEEERTE BHREZERRREE
FRAMFRTER - ARANPTEZ:  TRANRITEZ.  ARRAMHTES  RALAMIHNEES

Whether appointment is executive,
and if so, the area of responsibility

ARERTBHT M2 A
SItEEEE

Non-Executive. Managing the
overall corporate strategic,
strategic planning and
development of our Group.
FH1T o BEALEE
BLRARE  $EiRE
RERE -

Executive. Overseeing the
fuman resources related
matters of our Group.

HiT- HEAKHEE
BROANER -

Executive. Overseeing the
financial related matters and
capital market affairs of our
Group.

BT BEAEEHEK
EBFEREATSE
e

Executive. Responsible for
management and supervision
of the Group’s projects
operation.

Bi7- BEAEEER
BENERREE

Executive. Coordinating the
relationship of the Group with
government authorities.

1T - HRTEEER
FEFIMELE -
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Name of Director

EEftg

Details Zhou Jun Feng Jun Xu Zhan Huang Hanguang Zhao Youmin
1 RE 1] Bl HEX BRE
Job Title (e.g. Lead ID, AC Non-Executive Chairman, ~ Executive Director and Executive Director and Executive Director and Executive Director
Chairman, AC Member efc.) member of Remuneration member of Executive member of Executive member of the Executive

Committee and Chairman of ~ Committee Committee Commitiee

Executive Committee
BE (WEREVES &t FROER HMEE WTEERNAZEE WNEERINZEE HTERRBNZEE  HOES
ZESTR FINZEEME emERifZEgr ME K& K&
Z) &

Professional qualifications

SXEHR

o Bachelor of Arts from
Nanjing University

o Master's Degree in
Economics (International
Finance) from the Fudan
University

¢ HRAENEELE
fir

¢ EEXZERSHE
FOESE LA

Master’ s Degree in
Economics from the Wuhan
University School of
Management, Enterprise
Management

HEAREERERES
FREREREL S

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

Bachelor' s Degree in
Engineering from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University

and Master Degreg in
Business Administration
from Norwegian School of
Management. Fellow of the
Association of the Chartered
Certified Accountants

HERBREIRESR
TR BEEE SR
IHERRLEM -
MARBFAREHMA
aﬁmaﬂ

Bachelor degree in power
plant chemistry engineering
from Wuhan University PRC

HEABEMICETR
EE S i

o Master degree in Marxism
history of economic
thoughts from Capital
University of Economics
and Business

o Senior Economist
from China Energy
Conservation and
Environmental Protection
Group

¢ BRREZHRES
AEIELERER
GEEEL

o REfERRERE
RARSREEN



Name of Director

RS
Details Zhou Jun Feng Jun Xu Zhan Huang Hanguang Zhao Youmin
i RE A% i HiER BER
Working experience and November 2007 to December 2008 to June  December 2006 to April 2003 to present June 2018 to present
occupation(s) during the past 10 present 2013 February 2017 ~ Chairman of SIIC — Supervisor in Changjiang
years — President and executive - Board member of SIIC - Director and General Environment Holdings Protection Department of
director of Shanghai Management (Shanghai) Manager, Shanghai Cyber ~ (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. China Energy Conservation
Industrial Investment Limited Galaxy Investment Co., Ltd ~ July 2010 to March 2018 and Environmental Protection
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. June 2013 to December ~ November 2016 to — Managing Director of Group ("CECEPG”)
April 2009 to present 2016 present SIC Environment Holdings ~ April 2015 to present
- Executive director of - Assistant chief executive - Executive Director of (Wuhan) Co., Ltd. — Executive Director of China

BRVFNIFERRER

Shanghai Industrial Holdings
Limited
June 2012 to present
- Independent Non-Executive
Director of Zhejiang
Expressway Co., Lid.
August 2016 to present
— Vice Chairman and chief
executive officer of Shanghai
Industrial Holdings Limited
October 2016 to present
~ Chairman of the Board and
a Non-Executive Director of
Shanghai Pharmaceuticals
Holding Co., Lid.
WIENRES
- HEEX (£H) AR
RABHRIWTES
2009E4RES
- DEEEERERA
AHITES
2012%6AE4
%lET%HL NS
RAEB AR BN
ﬁ%?
W165E8AES
- FREXERERA
ARIEERFITHEH
2016£10RE4
- HERESERR
BAREZEEER:
91782

officer and chief investment
officer of Shanghai Industrial
Holdings Limited

March 2017 to present

— Non-gxecutive director

of Canvest Environmental
Protection Group Company
Limited

2008%‘-125 E2013%68
LEER (H8) BR
REESERE
2013%6A E2016512R
- HEEREIRERD
APETRAeHERE
BE
MTEIRES
-BERRENERD
NTES

Shanghai Industrial Holdings
Limited

20065128 E2017%2R
*kﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ? E]
RARESREERE

2016$11F] ES
- LEEFERARD
ARITES

May 2011 to present

— Chairman of Board of
Directors of Wuhan Huangpi
Kaidi Water Co., Ltd., Wuhan
Xin Cheng Waste Water
Treatment Co., Ltd. and
Huang Shi Kaidi Water Co.,
Ltd.

2003F4R ES
- FEREER (RE)
BRATMERZR
20107A E2018%3A
- PERBER (RE)
BRAANESHILE
011E5PES
- REERIAKEE
BAR - BERHEK
REERAGREART
WKBERARESR

Energy Conservation and
Environmental Protection
(Hong Kong) Investment Co.,
Ltd ("CECEP (HK)")

1856 ES

- PESEEREER
R ([hEEmERE
Sl ) RIRESED
Ift

WHELAES

- PESERR (BE)
REBRAT ([HhEEH
Rk (FR))) 0nE
S
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Name of Director

EERE

Details Zhou Jun Feng Jun Xu Zhan Huang Hanguang Zhao Youmin
i BE B i HiEX BER
Working experience and July 2010 to June 2017 November 2014 to July 2013 to present
occupation(s) during the past 10— Executive director of present — General Manager of CECEP
years (cont'd) Shanghai Industrial Urban — Director and Chairman HK

Development Group Limited of the Board of Directors of  January 2014 to April

formerly known as Neo-China Yinchuan SIIC Binhe Sewage 2015

BREVFOTESRRER
(8)

Land Group (Holdings) Ltd.

2010F7A E217%F6A
- RERHTRER
BBRAR (A AT
WESE (BR) ARA
A) MHTES

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

Treatment Co., Ltd. and SIIC
(Yinchuan) Sewage Treatment
Co., Ltd

November 2016 to
present

— Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Ranhill Water
(Hong Kong) Ltd. and Ranhill
Water (Wuhan) Co., Lid.
February 2018 to present
— Chairman and Director of
Nanfang Water Service

Co., Ltd

15 January 2019

— Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Nanfang Water
Services Co., Lid.

WHENRES

-RJI LERRETS
KERBRAFARLE
B (B) 9kERE
RAANEERESR
W16E11AES
-BEKE (B%) BR
NEREBKE (ﬁ;&)
BRAREER
WIBE2RES
~AAKBERATN
EIRRES
2019%£1R15A
-HHKBERARE
£k

— Chairman and the secretary
of party committee of CECEP
(Shenzhen) Investment Group
Co., Lid.

July 2013 to January
2014

— General manager of CECEP
(HK)

May 2010 to July 2013

= Supervisor in Technical
Cooperation and Marketing
Department of CECEPG
September 2009 to May
2010

— Secretary of party
committee and a deputy
general manager of CECEP
Solar Energy Technology Co.,
Ld.

June 2007 to September
2009

- Secretary to the general
manager of CECEPG
W13FTRES
—REHER ()
R

2014F1 A E2015F48
— g (R) #E%
BERAFNEZRRE

£E;

013%7A E2014%1A
- REMERR (BE)
e

2010458 E2013%7A
- PEHERREER
alFEmSHEE
2009F9R E2010%F5R
- hEREAGRRRA
RAREZELRER
e

2007464 200994
- PEAERREEL
BEuE



Details
i1

Zhou Jun
RE

Feng Jun
1]

Name of Director
EEfta
Xu Zhan
i

Huang Hanguang
WX

Zhao Youmin
BRE

Shareholding interest in the listed
issuer and its subsidiaries
BELTRETARENEAR
ke

Any relationship (including
immediate family relationships)
with any existing director, existing
executive officer, the issuer and/

0r substantial shareholder of the
listed issuer or of any of its principal
subsidiaries

MR TAZAETEEM
BLRANEMREES BRI
ERIHAR  BOAR/ 9
TERR ENEEER (2
REZHERER)

Gonflict of interest (including any
competing busingss)
MaEz (REEARERR)

Undertaking (in the format set out in
Appendix 7.7) under Rule 720(1) has
been submitted to the listed issuer
RERAT(E T oS (&
WiskT TRREE) BRR LT
BITA

Ni

=
i3

Ni

il

)

Yes

ralil

il

=
i3

Nil

Nil

)

Yes

Falil

il

=
i3

Nil

Nil

)

Yes

ralil

2,500,376 shares

2,500,376

Nil

Nil

)

Yes

ralil
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Details
i1

Zhou Jun Feng Jun
RE 1]

Name of Director

EERE
Xu Zhan Huang Hanguang

i "X

Zhao Youmin
BRE

Other Principal Commitments
Including Directorships

R ERAR  BRESRNL

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

Past (for the last 5 years) Past (for the last 5 years)

Nil Nil

Present Present

Director of: Director of;

o Shanghai Industrial
Investment (Holdings)
Co, Lid. Limited

o Shanghai Industrial
Holdings Limited

B (RESE) @ (RE5E)

& s

RE RE

EER %

o HEEX (5B) A
RAA

o EBEIR
BRAR

Present

Director of:

o Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group
Limited

o Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding
Co., Ltd

o Shanghai Industrial
Holdings Limited

o Shanghai Industrial
Investment (Holdings)
Co, Lid.

R&

g%

o PEERHMAEE
EBRAF

o DERESERNE
RAA

o DEERERERA
al

¢ IEEX(RE) A
VNG

Canvest Environmental
Protection Group Company

BORRENBRAT

Past (for the last 5 years) Past (for the last 5 years)

Nil Nil

Present

Director of:

o Shanghai Industrial
Investment (Holdings)
Co., Ltd,

o Shanghai Industrial
Holdings Limited

@ (RE5F) @ (RE5E)

i i

RE

%

o FEEX (£E)
BRAR

o DEERER
BRAR

Past (for the last 5 years)
Director of:

China Geothermal Industry
Development Group Limited

B (RiESE)
K
PENRRERER
KEARAA

Present

Director of:

o China Energy
Conservation and
Environmental Protection
(Hong Kong) Investment
Co, Ltd.

R

%

o (China Energy
Conservation and
Environmental Protection
(Hong Kong) Investment
Co, Lid.



Details
i1

Zhou Jun
RE

Feng Jun
1]

Name of Director

Xu Zhan
i

£33

Huang Hanguang
WX

(ther Principal Commitments
Including Directorships (contd)

R rRA% - BRESRML
(&)

Present

Director of:

o Asia Water Investments
Pte. Ltd.

o SIIC Environment
Holdings (Wuhan) Co.,
Lid.

o Wuhan Kaidi Water
Engineering Co., Lid.

o Huangshi Kaidi Water
Services Co., Ltd.

o Ranhill Water (Hongkong)
Limited

RE

g%

o Asia Water Investments
Pte. Lid.

o FERGER (RE)

BB LA

REakEIiRE

NG

ERIEKBERA

7]

o BEKH (BR) B
VNG
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Name of Director

Eta
Details Zhou Jun Feng Jun Xu Zhan Huang Hanguang Zhao Youmin
B A L] i ikt #KE
Other Principal Commitments Present
Including Directorships (contd) Director of:
o Ranhill Water (Wuhan)
Co, Lid.
o Nanfang Water Services
Co, Lid.
o SIIC (Yinchuan) Sewage
Treatment Co., Ltd
o Yinchuan SIIC Binhe
Sewage Treaiment Co.,
Ltd.
EMFERE  OEESEA nE
(%) EE R
o BEKE (RE) A
VNG
» BHKBBERLA
o FERE (B3
KEBEBRAF
o BN LERRETS
KEBEAR AR
The general statutory disclosures of the Directors are as follows:
EEH-RETRENT
a. Whether at any time during the ~ No No No No No
[ast 10 years, an application or
a petition under any bankruptcy
[aw of any jurisdiction was
filed against him or against a
partnership of which he was a
partner at the time when he was
a partner or at any time within 2
years from the date he ceased to
be a partner?
L ERERENENERE B & & & &

A REEF A EERAE
ARELZAARLEFRE
#REREREEABLR
MaBAHH REETE
EEARAZHELFRN
{EFER - AZABLER
HEFRER?
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Details
i1

Zhou Jun Feng Jun
RE 1]

Name of Director
EEfta
Xu Zhan
i

Huang Hanguang Zhao Youmin

REx

#xR

b. Whether at any time during the
last 10 years, an application or
a petition under any law of any
jurisdiction was filed against an
entity (not being a partnership)
of which he was a director or
an equivalent person or a key
executive, at the time when he
was a director or an equivalent
person or a key executive of that
entity or at any time within 2
years from the date he ceased
o be a director or an equivalent
person or a key executive of
that entity, for the winding up
or dissolution of that entity
or, where that entity is the
trustee of a business trust, that
business trust, on the ground of
insolvency?

b, REHBXFHIEE
B BEEAREEENT
[mEE  AENERRS
REZA-FER (k6%
%) HESIRERIA
THEETHAEHE &
BANARAAERNES
KAERAALREETH]
NBZ BRIE RS
- REEENERIR
HIEBRERELZS
ENAERA-BHER
TRZTA - MEHERET
RINEFIER"?

No No

gl
il

¢. Whether there is any unsatisfied  No No

judgment against him?
¢ EEHABEATRTER
A2

Vi
=]

]

No

|

No

]

No

|

No

]

No

|

No

]
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Name of Director

EERA
Details Zhou Jun Feng Jun Xu Zhan Huang Hanguang Zhao Youmin

3] RE 1] i "X #xR

d. Whether he has ever been No No No No No
convicted of any offence,
in Singapore or elsewhere,
involving fraud or dishonesty
which is punishable with
imprisonment, or has been
the subject of any criminal
proceedings (including any
pending criminal proceedings
of which he is aware) for such
pUrpose?

I ERACHEMIESEMSE &
HRARILE SR HGE
ERERGFA T AETAAR
HERAEMAEFRR (2
EEFANERRANER
EVEES X

3
o
3
o

e. Whether he has ever been No No No No No
convicted of any offence,
in Singapore or elsewhere,
involving a breach of any law
or regulatory requirement that
relates to the securities or
futures industry in Singapore
or elsewhere, or has been
the subject of any criminal
proceedings (including any
pending criminal proceedings
of which he is aware) for such
breach?

e HRDLEMMELE i &
7 EERER RS E
AREFRHETERREN
EEESEERENRE
% SRAREKAETHZ
HANEE (BEEMAN
FERRAHERR) ?

o
o
o
o
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Details
i1

Zhou Jun
RE

Feng Jun
A%

Name of Director
EEfta
Xu Zhan
i

Huang Hanguang Zhao Youmin

REx

#xR

f. Whether at any time during the
[ast 10 years, judgment has been
entered against him in any civil
proceedings in Singapore or
glsewhere involving a breach of
any law or regulatory requirement
that relates to the securities or
futures industry in Singapore or
elsewhere, or a finding of fraud,
misrepresentation or dishonesty
on his part, or e has been the
subject of any civil proceedings
(including any pending civil
proceedings of which he is
aware) involving an allegation
of fraud, misrepresentation or
dishonesty on his part?

. EAKVENEMERE K
REGEH ML i
HEZFAT - BARH
EREN MR A M
EREt G ELL Lol
FEIEERT  JEER
Al ERRASTHE
18 XEEREKATM
BRI - ERFELATH
ETAREHA (BRER
ANEFRAREFD) &)
B3N

0. Whether he has ever been
convicted in Singapore or
elsewhere of any offence in
connection with the formation
or management of any entity or
business trust?

0 ERT LML
HRAEMERAERET
MARNERRBMEMSE
TMHESR ?

No

jng|

No

jng|

No

jng|

No

jng|

No

jng|

No

]

No

jng|

No

]

No

jng|

No

o]
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Details
i1

Zhou Jun
RE

Feng Jun
B

Name of Director
Eta
Xu Zhan
bl

Huang Hanguang
HEX

Zhao Youmin
BRE

.

Whether he has ever been
disqualified from acting as a
director or an equivalent person
of any entity (including the
trustee of a business trust),

or from taking part directly or
indirectly in the management of
any entity or business trust?

. ERERHERELEA

R (RRAXERNER
AN HEERRERAAL
WEAR  ARIHERRE
R2AENERABEER
BRENER?

Whether he has ever been the
subject of any order, judgment
or ruling of any court, tribunal or
governmental body, permanently
or temporarily enjoining him
from engaging in any type of
business practice or activity?
HERASLAAWER
ERBITHENEAAS
HIARREORNEE » BAA
FEBR R EEMEE
BEERIED?

No

g}

No

jag}

No

g}

No

jag}

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

No

g}

No

jag}

No

g}

No

jag}

No

g}

No

jag}



Details
i1

Zhou Jun
RE

Feng Jun
A%

Name of Director

Xu Zhan
i

£33

Huang Hanguang Zhao Youmin

REx

#xR

j. Whether he has ever, to his
knowledge, been concerned with
the management or conduct, in
Singapore or elsewhere, of the
affairs of -

| BERH- ARTGENM
B ALY REENE
TNTER:

i, any corporation which has
heen investigated for a breach
of any law or regulatory
requirement governing
corporations in Singapore or
elsewhere; or

i, FEREEMFEAL
i RAIMEMER
AEERTEMEAEH
ERRE] 5

ii. any entity (not being a
corporation) which has been
investigated for a breach
of any law or regulatory
requirement governing such
entities in Singapore or
elsewhere; or

i. REREENMEIA

T EE GERA) &

EAEEREERER

BAENEMER « &

. any business trust which has
been investigated for a breach
of any law or regulatory
requirement governing
business trusts in Singapore
or elsewhere; or

il. B REEHMRIH

T ARG ER

FRAEEREMER

ENEMBRET: &

No

jag}

No

g}

No

A

No

jag}

No

gl

No

A

No

jag}

No

gl

No

A

No

jag}

No

gl

No

oA

No

jag}

No

g}

No

A
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Name of Director

EERA
Details Zhou Jun Feng Jun Xu Zhan Huang Hanguang Zhao Youmin

3] RE 1] i "X #xR

V. any entity or business trust ~ No No No No No
which has been investigated
for a breach of any law or
requlatory requirement that
relates to the securities or
futures industry in Singapore
or elsewnere,

v, HERER MRS A
WENESIRETE
RRRNAMERAEE
AEmBERENETE
BIBRGET
in connection with any matter
oceurring or arising during
that period when he was so
concerned with the entity or
business trust?
SEEESRERYAE
EEANHEAEES
EENEAZE?

D
D
D
D
D

k. Whether he has been the No No No No No
subject of any current or past
investigation or disciplinary
proceedings, or has been
reprimanded or issued any
warning, by the Monetary
Authority of Singapore or any
other regulatory authority,
exchange, professional body or
government agency, whether in
Singapore or elsewhere?

ko EREFMRIEMLS - B
ERERTIEERERR
REMEBEERE 25
fr - SXBEAHITRET
[ERRBTREHEER
PRFHEZE  HEREN
RBMAMES

D
D
D
D
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Details Zhou Jun Feng Jun
i1 RE RE

Name of Director
EEita

Xu Zhan Huang Hanguang
i HiER

Zhao Youmin
BRE

Information required
FREH

Disclosure applicable to the appointment of Director only.
EERRESIHNNE -

Any prior experience as a director of
an issuer listed on the Exchange?
BIERR A ETEITAES
MEMRELR

If yes, please provide details of prior
experience.
BR AREBAEREE

If no, please state if the director has
attended or will be attending training
on the roles and responsibilities

of a director of a listed issuer as
prescribed by the Exchange.

ED FHMESREELS
MERELNRGHARENE
BIMETAZEZAEREE
=5l

N/A This is a re-glection of a Director.
TER EREEEMESE -
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
EERE

The Directors present their statement together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) and the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of
the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

In the opinion of the Directors, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and
the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company
as set out on pages 130 to 272 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and the
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in
equity of the Company for the financial year then ended and at the date of this statement,
there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts
when they fall due.

1 Directors
The Directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

Zhou Jun - Non-Executive Chairman
Feng Jun N Executive Director
Xu Xiaobing - Executive Director
Xu Zhan - Executive Director
Li Zengfu - Executive Director

(Resigned on 5 August 2019)
Executive Director

(Appointed on 15 May 2019)
Executive Director

(Appointed on 5 August 2019)
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director

Huang Hanguang -
Zhao Youmin -
Yeo Guat Kwang -

Zhong Ming -
An Hongjun -

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

EEEEEN09F2ANB LT RFEENESRE
ERLESEEREERERAR ([RAF]) REKH
BA ((KREE]) BB REUBRE LKA AN
Btk RERZHE o

ERERAR BEHRFNEMENTEEGEHE
B ARAMBRARRESEGRIAEERA
IR AR & B AR D B R20195F12 31 B 8 B Bk
N ARBEZE LPREERRARSE ARNAE
BEBRE  RREDHRRSREBRNRAAFNE
=2EEN  ARERAEARRARAENEER
HEEERER -

1 E=E

RAREAH AARERESMT

BE - FBITER

B8 - HES

Bk - BOTEZ

FHE - HTES

FERE - BOEZ
(R201958 A5 H B#E)

BEX - HOES
(R2019F5 A5 BZE)

BER - H7EZ
(R2019FBASHER(E)

BAX - BUFRTES

& - BUFATEF

ZHAE - BUFRTEF



Arrangements to Enable Directors to Acquire Benefits by Means
of the Acquisition of Shares and Debentures

Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year
did there subsist any arrangement whose object is to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures
in the Company or any other body corporate, except for the options mentioned in
Section 3 of the Directors’ Statement.

Directors’ Interests in Ordinary Shares, Share Options and
Debentures

The Directors of the Company holding office at the end of the financial year had
no interests in the share capital and debentures of the Company and related
corporations as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the
Company under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act except as follows:

EXTEAMARMRAEEMERNR
H

N HFEERRBEEEMRRSBEFEE
A% BEARDERUEBBEALRAR
EREMEARBORDKREEENES @ K
EEWMEBMAML BRI -

EFEREBER  MEERREEPHES

RPBFREREBOARAEZRARARA
BEAENRAREEETYBREE AL ARE
(MR R EE) F104ETENESHRES
LM PR SRS - BT XX P& -

Direct interest

HEER
At beginning At end At 21 January
of year of year 2020
Name of Director and company ESMERHE #2020
in which interests are held BERENLTRE RED RERXR 1A218
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited I BEEERERAR
Ordinary shares LAk
Zhou Jun EE 300,000 300,000 300,000
Huang Hanguang RN 100,000 100,000 100,000
Company e 3N
Ordinary shares Lim
Huang Hanguang RN 2,500,376 2,500,376 2,500,376

Save as disclosed above, there were no changes in any of the above mentioned
interests between the end of the financial year and 21 January 2020.

BLEAFBEEEIN  PAESETREEARE
00F1 AN B HEEES -
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
EERE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company or Any Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2019, the interests of the directors and their associates in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Interests or short positions in SIHL Holdings, an associated corporation of the
Company:

ESRESTHRARBRELTS EMEE
FENRG  HRBEHCREARINES
R/ Bi%kE

R019F128310  ESREBHBAREKRT
LEREEB AR RABRRG EE B iR
ARRIEEHFRHERD ((RERPRER])
FINFREFENEMALNES - FEREL
METAESHTELFRZNITETA ([ B
TR ) NERREAREERDOEENT -

WNADRREEE L EERNEERAR

Approximately

percentage

Capacity/Nature of Number of of interest in

interest Shares the Company

HELFHEE

Name of Director BEERA B EaHE BB E BuESH
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited ~ LBEZERERLTE

Zhou Jun BAE Beneficial interest 300,000 0.01%

Huang Hanguang =EN Beneficial interest 100,000 0.003%

Company F4F
Huang Hanguang HEEN Beneficial interest 2,500,376 0.10%

Note:
(L)  denotes long position

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations, which were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code, as at 31 December
2019.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

B -
L)  EREE

B EXXRTHE A SN - R2019F 128318 - BH&
BERHEBE ARNKQ RS ETAAREEN
AR, - HEROKEEETEFELHER
ARARES RSSO EB(ETFENS
MAREREZETHNERRAREER S
PR S AR o



Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2019, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of certain Directors and chief executive of the Company,
the interests of shareholders below are extracted from the latest disclosure of

FERF

019123318 - ARAIREE
PIEBbHEFENEERELMAT -
BEMARRETES R
o IR RESRHSE A ERRERXNOSRHK

FRBEK
B bSO
SITHABMER

interests forms filed by the respective shareholders. BERRK o
Approximately
percentage of
Capacity/Nature Number of interest in
Name of Shareholders of interest Shares the Company
HELRER
BRES 517/ REKHE iR E #naak
S.1. Triumph Power Limited (“Triumph Power”) Beneficial interest 986,929,551 (L) 37.92%
FENBERDA (THE]) Bakm
S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“S.I. Infrastructure”)® Beneficial interest/ Interests in 1,152,348,026 (L) 44.28%
controlled corporation
TEERERERAR ([ LEER]) O Baks /B ER
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL Holdings")" Interests in controlled corporation 1,242,465,926 (L) 47.74%
FRBEERERAA ([ LEER]) O R rEER
Value Partners Limited® Interests in controlled corporation 280,603,170 (L) 10.78%
ERESERAAN X EEER
Value Partners Hong Kong Limited® Interests in controlled corporation 280,603,170 (L) 10.78%
ERESERARBRARN REEERER
Value Partners Group Limited® Interests in controlled corporation 280,603,170 (L) 10.78%
BEREEARLA REEEER
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited® Interests in controlled corporation 1,242,465,926 (L) 47.74%
LERERRBRAR REEERER
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited® Interests in controlled corporation 1,242,465,926 (L) 47.74%
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited® RELEES
Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited (“SIIC")® Interests in controlled corporation 1,242,465,926 (L) 47.74%
LEEE (RB) BBAR ([LED® R rEER
Value Partners Classic Fund® Beneficial interest 224,658,980 (L) 8.63%
EEEEESY EniEn
China Energy Conservation & Environmental Protection (Hong Kong) Beneficial interest 2237112917 (1) 8.60%
Investment Co., Limited
REGRRR () REFRDA ks
China Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Group Interests in controlled corporation 223,712,917 (L) 8.60%

(‘CECEP")®

PESERREEARAR ([FEHERE]) O

R
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(1) Triumph Power directly holds 986,929,551 Shares, representing approximately
37.92% of the total issued share capital of our Company as at 31 December 2019. S.1.
Infrastructure (the sole shareholder of Triumph Power), directly holds 165,418,475
Shares and is also deemed to be interested in 986,929,551 Shares directly held
by Triumph Power. SIHL Treasury, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SIHL Holdings,
is interested in 90,117,900 Shares through certain nominees arrangements. SIHL
Holdings is also the sole shareholder of S.I. Infrastructure. As such, SIHL Holdings is
deemed to be interested in a total of 1,242,465,926 Shares, representing approximately
47.74% of the total issued share capital of our Company as at 31 December 2019.

(2)  Value Partners Limited is a fund manager deemed to be interested in the Shares by
virtue of the shareholding of our Shares by 13 funds (including Value Partners Classic
Fund) under its management. Value Partners Group Limited is deemed to be interested
in the Shares via its 100% ownership in Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, which in
turn 100% owns Value Partners Limited. Value Partners Hong Kong Limited is deemed
to be interested in the Shares via its 100% ownership in Value Partners Limited. The
said information was based on the information provided by Value Partners Limited to
our Company in June 2017.

(3)  As at 31 December 2019, Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited is directly interested
in approximately 47.74% of the total issued share capital of SIHL Holdings and
is indirectly interested in approximately 7.36% of the total issued share capital of
SIHL Holdings through its wholly-owned subsidiary SIIC Capital (B.V.I.) Limited.
Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited is directly interested in
100% of the total issued share capital of Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited. In
addition, as at 31 December 2019, SIIC is interested in approximately 59.00% of
the total issued share capital of SIHL Holdings through its directly and indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiaries. Therefore, each of SIIC, Shanghai Industrial Investment
Treasury Company Limited and Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited is deemed to
be interested in a total of 1,242,465,926 Shares by virtue of their interests in SIHL
Holdings, representing approximately 47.74% of the total issued share capital of our
Company as at 31 December 2019.

(4)  The said information was based on the information provided by Value Partners Limited
to our Company in May 2017.

(5)  CECEP is deemed to be interested in the shares held by China Energy Conservation
& Environmental Protection (Hong Kong) Investment Co., Limited as CECEP owns the
entire issued share capital of China Energy Conservation & Environmental Protection
(Hong Kong) Investment Co., Limited.

* (L) denotes long position and (S) denotes short position
Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other

relevant interest or short position in the issued share capital of the Company as at
31 December 2019.
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Equity Compensation Plans of the Company

The Company has in place, the SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012
(“ESOS 20127) and SIIC Environment Share Award Scheme (“ESAS”), as approved
by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 27 April 2012. The ESOS 2012 and ESAS shall continue to be in force at the
discretion of the Remuneration Committee, subject to a maximum period of ten
years commencing 27 April 2012.

At the date of this statement, the Remuneration Committee which administers the
ESOS 2012 and ESAS comprises the following Directors:

(i)~ Zhong Ming — Chairman
(i)~ Zhou Jun

(i) Yeo Guat Kwang

(iv)  An Hongjun

The ESOS 2012 is a share incentive scheme. The ESOS 2012 is proposed on
the basis that it is important to retain and to give recognition to the Group’s
full time employees, Group Executive Directors and employees of the ultimate
holding company and the holding company of the Company and their subsidiaries
(“Parent Group”), and to give recognition to Group Non-Executive Directors and
Parent Group Non-Executive Directors who have contributed to the success and
development of the Company and/or the Group. The ESOS 2012 will give such
persons an opportunity to have a real and personal direct interest in the Company
and to align the interests of such persons with those of the shareholders of the
Company.

The ESAS is a performance incentive scheme which will form an integral part of the
Group’s incentive compensation program. The purpose of the ESAS is to provide
an opportunity for the Group’s full-time employees, Parent Group employees and
Directors of the Group and Parent Group, who have met performance targets to
be remunerated not just through cash bonuses but also an equity stake in the
Company. The ESAS is also extended to the Group Non-Executive Directors and
Parent Group Non-Executive Directors.

For purpose of ESOS 2012 and ESAS, Non-Executive Director refers to a Director
other than an Executive Director, including an Independent Director.

No ESOS 2012 options or ESAS awards were granted since the commencement of
the two schemes.
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7  Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company as at the date of this statement, consisting
all independent non-executive Directors, is chaired by Mr An Hongjun and includes
Mr Yeo Guat Kwang and Mr Zhong Ming. The Audit Committee has held four
meetings during the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and has performed
the following delegated functions:

(1) To review with the external auditors:

(@) the audit plan, including the nature and scope of the audit before the
audit commences;

(b) their audit report; and
(c)  their management letters and Management’s response;

(2) To discuss with the external auditors any issues or concerns arising from
their agreed-upon procedures, interim and final audits, and any other matters
which the external auditors may wish to discuss;

(3) To ensure co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

(4) To assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control (including
financial, operational, compliance, information technology controls and
risk management) systems established by Management to identify, assess,
manage, and disclose financial and non-financial risks;

(5)  To monitor the scope and results of the external audit, its cost effectiveness
and the independence and objectivity of the external auditors annually
and give recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment,
re-appointment or removal of the external auditors;

(6) To review and ensure that the assurance has been received from the Executive
Committee (or equivalent) and the Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) in
relation to the interim/full year unaudited financial statements;

(7)  To review the internal audit programme and ensure co-ordination between the
internal auditors, external auditors and Management;

(8) To review the quarterly, half-yearly and full year financial statements of
the Company and of the Group, including announcements relating thereto,
to shareholders and the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(“SGX-ST”), and thereafter to submit them to the Board for approval,
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(9) To review interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the
Listing Manual of the SGX-ST) and report its findings to the Board;

(10) To undertake such other reviews and projects as may be requested by the
Board or as the Committees may consider appropriate; and

(11) To undertake such other functions and duties as may be required by law or
by the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST, as amended from time to time.

The Audit Committee has full access to and has the co-operation of Management,
and has been given the resources required for it to discharge its function properly.
It also has full discretion to invite any Director and executive officer to attend its
meetings. The external and internal auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Directors the nomination of Deloitte
& Touche LLP for re-appointment as external auditors of the Company at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Auditors

The auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forth coming AGM.

For the FY2019, the fees paid to Deloitte & Touche LLP for the audit of the annual
financial statements of the Group are RMB6,352,000 (excluding the expenses on
the non-audit service provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP).

The non-auditing services fees charged by Deloitte & Touche LLP in relation to
agreed-upon service and review of selected financial information for FY2019 were
approximately RMB523,000.

Compliance of Non-competition Undertaking

SIC (for and on behalf of SIIC Capital (B.V.I.) Limited, Shanghai Investment
Holdings Limited, Shanghai Industrial Investment Treasury Company Limited,
Shanghai Industrial Financial (Holdings) Company Limited, Shanghai Industrial
Financial Holdings Limited SIIC Treasury (B.V.I.) Limited, SIIC CM Development
Funds Limited and SIIC CM Development Limited) and SIHL Holdings,
Triumph Power, S.I. Infrastructure and SIHL Treasury (together with SIIC, the
“Covenantors”) entered into the deeds of non-competition undertakings (the
“Deeds of Non-Competition”) in favor of the Company on 8 March 2018, pursuant
to which, the Covenantors provided certain non-competition undertakings to the
Company. During the year, the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the implementation of the Deeds of Non-Competition and have confirmed that the
Covenantors have been in full compliance with the Deeds of Non-Competition and
there was no breach by the Covenantors.
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10.

11.

12.

Employees and Remuneration 10. BERHFH
As at 31 December 2019, there were 6,206 employees (FY2018: 5,838) in the 2019512 4318 - A & B ¥ 56,2064 & B
Group. Total employee benefits expenses of the Group (including Directors’ (201881 5 : 5,83840) o 7N 5 B RA201981 6 /9 &
fee) for the FY2019 were approximately RMB655 million (FY2018: RMB563 BRMFAX (BREZHEE) GRNRARE
million). Staff remuneration packages are determined based on each employee’s 6.55(8 7T (201854 4F - ARHES63(BTT) - BEH
qualifications, experience, position and seniority. The Group also provides other HEEhRESEEMNEE A% BULT
staff benefits including medical and life insurance, training programmes, and RETE - AEENAEIREAMERN (B
grants discretionary incentive bonuses to eligible staff based on their performance BERASRE HIEE)  RBEBEEIER
and Group’s results of operations. BRASEGeXERNSERETIRNEER
BIEAL
Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities 11. HBE - HEXEEF AT LHTES
During the FY2019, the Company repurchased a total of 1,160,000 Shares on the B9 6 RAREHXMEREG &
SGX and details of which are as follows: 1,160,000/ {5 - EFIEWMT -
Number Price per Share Aggregate
of Shares BRER consideration
repurchased Highest Lowest paid
Month of repurchase WE R 7 HERHnEE 1) RE CESKERE
SGD SGD SGD
#T #T W
August 2019 20198 A 1,160,000 0.215 0.210 248,872.84
During the FY2019, the Company repurchased a total of 2,611,000 Shares on the P19 F - ARBERERSHEREE &
SEHK and details of which are as follows: 2,611,000t + EFEWT -
Number Pn:g{r‘s*gare Aggregate
of Shares " consideration
repurchased Highest Lowest paid
Month of repurchase BEA®R BERH&E 1) BE BSHRRERE
HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT
August 2019 20198 A 2,611,000 1.33 1.22 3,372,802.33
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had BEXFBESEN  ARTRETEHEAT
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed Shares during the Ro019Bt TR S « g BB | A A 5L
FY2019. LR o
The Shares repurchased were cancelled and accordingly the issued share capital EEBRAGEIHTE  AHAR B RTHRA
of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these Shares. The purchases BIRZEROMEESR - EBEEENAKD
were made for the benefit of the shareholders of the Company with a view to AREFSE AR S AR R ERB N EE S
enhancing the net asset value and earnings per Share of the Company. ERBFTEL -
Gearing ratio 12. BXRABLE

Gearing ratio equals net debt as a percentage of total equity as of the end of the
period. Net debt includes bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities/finance
lease less cash and cash equivalents. As at 31 December 2019, our Group has
gearing ratio of 1.01 (31 December 2018: 1.01). Details of the gearing ratio are set
out in Note 50 to the financial statements.
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13.

14.

Directors’ interest in competing business

During the FY2019 and up to the date of this report, none of the Directors was
considered to have direct or indirect interest in businesses which compete or were
likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.

Annual General Meeting and Final Dividend

Subject to the developments of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and the
measures implemented by the governments, the annual general meeting of
the Company (the “AGM”) will be held on or before 29 June 2020. Further
announcement(s) in respect date of the AGM and book closure date will be made
in due course.

The expected payment date of the final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019 is on or about 31 July 2020, subject to the poll voting results of the AGM.
Further announcement(s) regarding the closure of register of members of the
Company for ascertaining shareholder’s entitlement to the proposed final dividend
and the exchange rate for converting Singapore dollars into Hong Kong dollars
for the purpose of dividend payment in Hong Kong dollars will be made by the
Company in due course.

Every Director shall retire from office once every three (3) years and for this
purpose, at each annual general meeting, one-third of our Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
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less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors

ZHOU JUN
Non-Executive Chairman

XU XIAOBING
CEO and Executive Director

Singapore
31 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAGHMESE

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SIIC Environment Holdings
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group and the statement of financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows of the Group and the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the year
then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 130 to 272.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group
and the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the
Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International)
(“SFRS(I)s”) and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) so as to give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and of the consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group
and changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (*SSAs”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants
and Accounting Entities (*ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters
FEERER

Our Audit Procedures Performed and Responses Thereon
BMETHEREFRHILAEHDRE

Service concession arrangements and revenue recognition
RBHFEERERKARER

The Group's core business of water and waste water treatment and waste
incineration are dependent on the service concession arrangements entered into
with the local government authorities in the People’s Republic of China. The
Group applies SFRS(I) INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements (“SFRS(I) INT
12") in its recognition of revenue from water treatment service, construction and
waste incineration power generation from service concession arrangements.
EEEMZOERKRKERARENREEBREFREARLE
EMBARETUMRBETEE R - BERERERRE RBET
BETHETKEERT - BRRENRERENRARER CGK
RIS B1 75 S 22 RI)) BB 1R B e ar ez (TG B B 15
WMERER) MRE12T ) -

We have identified the determination of whether the service concessions
arrangements fall under the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12 for new service
concession contracts as a significant risk. This could mean that the Group may
inappropriately recognise the consideration received from the local government
authorities in exchange for the construction services as financial asset and/or
intangible asset for service concession arrangements within the scope of SFRS(1)
INT 12 or vice versa. The amounts are material and significant judgements
are required, particularly in relation to the identification and application of the
appropriate accounting treatment for the recording of revenue and associated
assets under SFRS(I) INT 12.

BMB#AEERE R HEE TR TR RS2 6 8 Gk
ERGBaREER) BEZNRHRENEEAR R - EAERE |
EEARENEEMBERNRE BN AN EUREREEREE
ACGIINEBERMEREED) REE12REE ARG FICE TN
SRMEER /SBVEE R2TA - AESBEALBELERH
B LERAMEBAIRERBE G RIBENCEBAR G K BB
FBREER) BEERBETHBEE -

In addition, the Group allocates the consideration for the services provided
under all the concession arrangements by reference to their relative fair values.
The determination of the fair values of the receivables under these agreements
includes complex calculations and significant estimations required such as
discounts rates, future cash flows and other factors used in the determination of
the amortised cost of financial asset and corresponding financial income.

Boh - BEESREAARITEETH THRERBHLEE  DIE2R
HIRSRAnBE ErZSTHE TERRBEN A BERBENTE
TERBELEARGR - MARETSREE OB ENAR RBER B
AFTAMFERE RRBEREREMAR -

The accounting policies for revenue recognition are set out in Note 2.10 to
the financial statements and the disclosure in relation to service concession
arrangements for the Group have been disclosed in Note 17 to the financial
statements.

WAERO G BRI BREM 210G 5
BRI BRI BRI T o

BRERBHFE

QOur audit approach included both evaluating the design and implementation of the
relevant internal controls and performing substantive procedures as follows:
BMNEREF RN AR RITEEAANFEH U ATO TN EE
R

e We evaluated the Group’s process in assessing the applicability of SFRS(I)
INT 12 and reviewed the associated agreements to assess whether these
agreements are properly identified to be service concession arrangement
within the scope of SFRS(1) INT 12.

o HMEE SREFMG CGRREREERERR) BEZ125NE
ARETENEBRAATEZS HERTZARRR G IIEER
FBMEER) BRI B E N RSB EE 2 -

e We verified the key terms of the significant agreements related to service
concession arrangement, by sending confirmations to the grantor.

o HEMEBRARTATERRAREBBREETCERHEERE
REZ R

e e evaluated the design and implementation of the relevant internal controls
over the capture and recording of these revenue transactions.
o HEMITEHERRZHZZUAR SN EBARLEHE R RERE

e We reviewed the nature of costs of constructions and inspected the
underlying documentation including estimated total contract costs approved
by management in support of the cost incurred.

o BMRHIEKAMNMETRESEEEENIEDEEKAME
RS OR AT AR B R -

e We reviewed (a) management’s computation of amortised cost of financial
receivables and intangible assets (b) allocation of consideration between
financial receivables and intangible assets and the related revenue recognition
and, (c) tested key management estimates including discount rates used by
comparing to the relevant market interest rates to identify any inappropriate
estimates.

o BMRIQEEEFENERERTEREREEZEKAR(D)E
PRERTELREVEERFBUAERYBRONATEEEE
st - BELBABETSTIE AR EE BT ABOMERE o

e \We have also assessed and validated the appropriateness of the related
accounting entries by management and the related disclosures made in the
financial statements.

o BMNMENERERELEEMAEASHKENES M BHRE
FT{ERFARE B ER o

We have validated and are satisfied with the computations and key management
judgements and estimates adopted for the service concession arrangements and
noted the service arrangements of the Group are reasonably determined to be within
the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12 and are properly accounted for in accordance with
SFRS(I) INT 12.
AFCERRENRRBETCEHMRANFAERTEEERE
ERAE AR SRERBLTHESEET AT CRiEERE %R
SRA) BBEREENTRE CGRINEER T BREER) BES
1RE RN °

Annual Report 2019F £

125



126

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAGHMESE

Key Audit Matters
FEERER

Our Audit Procedures Performed and Responses Thereon
BMETHEXREFRHEILAEHDRE

Impairment review of goodwill
AR ET

Under SFRS(I) 1- 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group is required to annually test
goodwill for impairment or more frequently when there is an indication that the
cash generating unit may be impaired. This assessment requires the exercise
of significant judgement about future market conditions, including future cash
flows to be generated from the continuing use of waste water treatment plant/
waste incineration power generation plant over the service concession period
and discount rates, particularly those affecting the business of Fudan Water
Engineering and Technology Co., Ltd. (“Fudan Water”). The goodwill in Fudan
Water constituted 1.38% of the Group’s total assets at 31 December 2019.

BAR GRIEBIRR B B RS 2R B3R EEME - BESEEGE
FEETRBERRSEEEM LR REREREAHFERE -
ZEMEEHARRTISRR - BERRESTCE BEEESRSKEE
B/ BYREEEMELANRRASRERTRE - LERZSYEL
BEEKBEIEEMARAR ([EEKE]) EBELERHE - »
N19F12ANE - EEKBNEEEK BEXEBEREN08% -

The key assumptions to the impairment test and the sensitivity of changes in
these assumptions to the risk of impairment are disclosed in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.
REARNEERERZEAERRREZBNGRERBERGE
TSR MTEE3 -

Our audit procedures focused on evaluating and challenging the key assumptions
used by management in conducting the impairment review. These procedures
included:
BERNEZEFES AT REREEERETRERTSTANEE
Bk - BERFRE

e challenging the appropriateness of the discount rate by assessing the cost
of capital for the company and comparable organisations in the industry,
and where relevant, using our valuation specialists to independently
develop expectations for the discount rate, and comparing the independent
expectations to those used by management;

o EBVEEALRRUTELBASNESKAR (19184M) ERMKE
ERBUSIEMREES UHBEURREEREMFRTREERE
HETHE - BRTREMES N

e assessing the cash flow forecasts used, with comparison to recent
performance, trend analysis and market expectations;

o MEFBRERERR WHRARERZLE  BEHMRTS
TEE

e evaluating management’s assessment of the sensitivity of the Group’s
impairment analysis to reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions;
and

o HEEHREYH BEEELIERBITENSEARZAEINH
FRENE K

e reviewing historical performance of the business units compared with the
original forecasts and assessing whether the Group has achieved them.

o HYBREHELE  RAEBELNBIERER  UAE EEER
LEERES-

Based on our procedures, we noted management’s key assumptions to be within a
reasonable range of our expectations.
ERBEMOER  ZMOEEEEN T ERIEHMEANGEEER -

We have also assessed and validated the adequacy and appropriateness of the
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
BB HE RERG S I BRAIERBEN TS RER -
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
all the information included in the annual report, including the Directors’ Statement set
out on pages 114 to 123, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the Act, SFRS(I)s and IFRSs, and for
devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide
a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use
or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as
necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain
accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
gvidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the
Company and by the subsidiary corporation incorporated in Singapore of which we are
the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this Independent Auditor’s Report is
Toh Yew Kuan Jeremy.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore

31 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

GERRR

Year ended 31 December 2019

HE019F12A31HALLFE
Group
k3L )
2019 2018
20195 20184F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BiEE AER®TT AEETFT
Revenue A 4 5,959,521 5,313,344
Cost of sales HEKAK (4,026,072) (3,728,745)
Gross profit EA 1,933,449 1,584,599
Other income HElgA 5 274,308 269,429
Other gains and losses Hilzs R EE 6 (896) 121,783
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER (72,585) (74,190)
Administrative expenses 1TERFI (464,255) (437,875)
Finance expenses BT E A 8 (687,267) (585,399)
Share of results of joint ventures EEAEEER 29 46,550 43,338
Share of results of associates e YN E S 30 (9,737) (1,004)
Profit before tax RAETFIA 1,019,567 920,681
Income tax expense gy iiaha 9 (265,174) (236,428)
Profit for the year ERFE 10 754,393 684,253
Profit for the year, attributable to: THEEEEERTH :
Owners of the Company Z/NEIEY =N 600,251 540,237
Non-controlling interests RS 28 154,142 144,016
Profit for the year ERFE 754,393 684,253
Earnings per share BEREH
Basic (RMB cents per share) ER (BRARED) 11 23.04 20.73
Diluted (RMB cents per share) 5 (BRARER) 1 23.04 20.73
See accompanying notes to financial statements. B EREREMINIE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEERREMZEKBAR
Year ended 31 December 2019
HE09F12ASIBLEFE
Group
*5E
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TT AEBETFT
Profit for the year ERFE 754,393 684,253
Other comprehensive income (loss): Hti2EBA (BR) :
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently BETeEH 7 BEBEnmER
fo profit or loss
Exchange difference arising from translation MEEANELESR 66,375 (67,263)

Fair value change on investments in equity instruments

EERAA BEFAREZERARBRAR

designated as at FVTOC! TARERNAREEES (2,883) (7,269)
63,492 (64,532)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to RGBT DB Z BB
profit or loss
Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign MEBINEREEREL Z5
operations (26,868) (17,797
(26,868) (17,797
Total other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, netof tax ~ FREMEEUA (E518) £58 - Fifg 36,624 (82,329)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEKRAESE 791,017 601,924
Total comprehensive income attributable to: UTEBERE2EEA&HE :
Owners of the Company VN/NSIEZZEDN 636,875 457908
Non-controlling interests (Note 28) FErER S (HT5E28) 154,142 144,016
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEKALEHE 791,017 601,924
See accompanying notes to financial statements. BB -
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BB &
31 December 2019
20195125318
Group Company
F5E b /NG|
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 20195 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BT AR®TE ARETrT ARBTR AR%ET:k
Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEED 12 2,374,770 2,133,225 172,687 37,910
Pledged bank deposits BEBIRITER 12 234,672 119,354 - -
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rt EYGRIA 13 2,336,371 2,286,958 5,146 4,667
Bills receivables EWEE 14 13,747 1,964 - -
Prepayments SEAREE 15 60,303 45,781 2,399 76
Inventories FE 16 159,115 121,219 - -
Receivables under service concession EEA“%%E@“‘%&HFET
arrangements — current portion FEWTRIE — REE S 17 476,970 361,619 - -
Amounts due from customers for i HQX)E/\%’JIF*h
contract work 18 66,772 56,553 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUPH B2 RIFIE 19 - 1,171,378 848,107
Amounts due from joint venture Bl A EETIE 19 137 137 137 137
Amounts due from associates A SYNCIE ] 19 10,902 43250 - -
Financial assets at fair value through profit — ¥Z AR BET AEBZR
or loss SREE 20 3,353 3,067 - -
Assets classified as held for sale DEABEHENEE 21 202,150 198,434 - -
Total current assets MEEELE 5,939,262 5,371,561 1,351,747 890,897
Non-current assets FREEE
Financial assets at fair value through other R AR BEFAEMEE
comprehensive income WANESREE 22 45,306 44,017 15,470 15,080
Prepayments BERR 15 501,275 67,464 - -
Receivables under service concession RIS RTEELHIET
arrangements — non-current portion TEWTRIE — IERENE D 17 17,193,272 15,484,851 - -
Property, plant and equipment ME - WERRE 23 318,413 315,635 511 927
Right-of-use assets FREEE 24 60,903 - 17,561 -
Intangible assets BRAE 25 6,741,574 6,702,690 - -
Land use rights T i (5 A 4 25 - 6,189 - -
Long term receivables REREBER K 26 350,058 362,528 - -
Deferred tax assets ERETIBEE 27 70,996 67,045 - -
Investment in subsidiaries RHBRRNKRE 28 - - 5,762,344 5,731,030
Interest in joint ventures F\A%“’E%E’WEE i 29 532,607 736,516 342,043 557,858
Interest in associates REE N AR ER 30 99,078 80,927 - -
Goodwill on consolidation AHEE 31 457,241 457 241 - -
Amounts due from associates FE UGBS &\ R FIE 19 56,648 22,081 - -
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 26,427,371 24,347,184 6,137,929 6,304,895
Total assets BEAE 32,366,633 29,718,745 1,489,676 7,195,792
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BB R R
31 December 2019
2019512 A31H

Group Company

F%E b /NG|

2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 20184F 20195 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

i3 ARBTRE ARETT ARBTR ARETR

Current liabilities pid =K
Trade and other payables 25 REMENRIA 32 3,615,054 3,253,304 48,406 40,296
Bills payable to banks R TIRITHER 33 42,557 59,070 - -
Income tax payable JEMFTISI R 121,713 126,198 - -
Amounts due to customers for contract work FERI B E &4 T2 18 11,075 5,098 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries JERTHT B A R ZIB 19 - - 70,589 69,926
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 34 5,283,615 4,285,898 991,791 691,221
Finance leases RMEME 36 - 123,194 - -
Liabilities directly associated with assets ~ EED I AR {EHENEE

classified as held for sale EREENEE 21 156,195 157,665 - -
Lease liabilities HERRE 35 9,995 - 6,515 -
Total current liabilities mBEELEH 9,246,204 8,010,427 1,117,301 801,443
Non-current liabilities FRBAR
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 34 9,066,342 8,235,639 = -
Finance leases RMEME 36 - 463,707 - -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 27 2,009,597 1,890,824 - -
Other non-current liabilities HuERBAE 37 138,812 204,478 - -
Lease liabilities HERRE 35 45,948 - 11,169 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELEE 11,260,699 10,794,648 11,169 -

Capital, reserves and non-controlling B&# - G fE R IEIRARES

interests

Share capital [N 38 5,947,420 5,951,793 5,947,420 5,951,793
Treasury shares EFR M 39 - _ _ _
Retained earnings REEF 2,356,306 1,942,675 (54,850) 133,458
Other reserves HibfEE 40 41,793 (49,672) 468,636 309,098
Equity atiributable to owners of the Company AR R)EB AJE(GHEZS 8,345,519 7,844,796 6,361,206 6,394,349
Non-controlling interests FEERR R 28 3,514,211 3,068,874 = -
Total equity TR 11,859,730 10,913,670 6,361,206 6,394,349
Total liabilities and equity ARMERAER 32,366,633 29,718,745 7,489,676 7,195,792
See accompanying notes to financial statements. BB E N -
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RR2B%

Year ended 31 December 2019
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RR2B%

Year ended 31 December 2019
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RR2E%

Year ended 31 December 2019
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RR2B%

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE09F12A31HIEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FORHE AR
Share Treasury Retained Other Total
capital shares earnings reserves equity
(2. EFRR FEE7 Hth 4 0 HEs
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AER%TRE AR%TRE AR%TRE AR®TRT AR®TR
Company b /N
2019 2019
Balance at 1 January 2019 H20195E18 1 588 5,951,793 - 133,458 309,098 6,394,349
Loss for the year FRER - - (56,529) - (56,529)]
Other comprehensive income Hi2EBA
Exchange differences arising from translation  ¥22 7 A4 HFE 1, 2= 58]
representing other comprehensive income FREMEEBA
for the year - - - 159,538 159,538
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWA LS - - (56,529) 159,538 103,009
Transactions with owners recognised directly Az B IR
in equity BEARS
Repurchase of shares BEOR (4,373) = = = (4,373)
Others it
Dividend paid (Note 41) BRRE (FEE41) - - (131,779) - (131,719)
Balance at 31 December 2019 ®20195FE12A 31 H ¥R 5,947,420 - (54,850) 468,636 6,361,206
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ERSBR
Year ended 31 December 2019
HE09F12ASIBLEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
NGIE PN
Share Treasury Retained QOther Total
capital shares earnings TeSeIves equity
AR EFRH REB&BF Hin s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR®TT AR®TT AR%®Tr
Company b /N
2018 20185
Balance at 1 January 2018 H2018F1 B 1A KR 5,951,889 (96) (62,101) 62,283 5,951,975
Profit for the year FRFHE - - 326,332 - 326,332
Other comprehensive income Hep2EMA
Exchange differences arising from translation #2287 A4 HFE 1, 2= 58]
representing other comprehensive income FREMPEBA
for the year - - - 246,815 246,815
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWA LSS - - 326,332 246,815 573,147
Transactions with owners recognised directly — PEZS P EEREALN
in equity BEARS
Cancellation of treasury shares HHEFRR (96) 9% - - -
Others Hith
Dividend paid (Note 41) BARE (HF41) - - (130,773) - (130,773)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R20185F12A31 A 62 5,951,793 - 133,458 309,098 6,394,349
See accompanying notes to financial statements. BB E LN -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n _\éiﬁzﬁ)ﬁiiﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2019

HE019F12A31HILFE
Group
50
2019 2018
20195 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(i3 ARBTT ARETFT
Operating activities: BEEH:
Profit before tax A 1,019,567 920,681
Adjustments: RIS BEELRE -
Loss allowance for trade receivables B RN ERNERER 13 231 4,665
Reversal of loss allowance for non-trade receivables FB RN ENEREERE 13 - (29)
Bad debts written off (trade) RERE (25) 10 9,938 -
Bad debts written off (non-trae) BN (FE5) 10 = 7
Amartisation of intangible assets B EEAE 2 298,490 285,057
Amortisation of land use rights TifE R 25 - 210
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRENE 23 32,834 32,426
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BELLESE 4,625 1312
Depreciation of right-of-use asset FRAREEENE 24 7,002 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBA A AU 6, 44 - (91,692)
Finance income BB 5 (21,397) (14,592)
Finance expenses BsER 8 687,267 585,399
Share of results of joint ventures [BIERENEZE (46,550) (43,338)
Share of results of associates A= NS S 9,737 1,004
Foreign exchange loss HNEEE 206 121
Gain from bargain purchase of investment in subsidiaries ZEBENBLARARENES 43 - (19,645)
Fair value (gain) loss on financial assets at fair value BAABETNERNEREELAERE
through profit or loss (M%) BB 10 (286) 1822
Operating cash flows hefore working capital changes EEZLBEHANESTHRET 1,997,664 1,663,484
(Increase) Decrease in: () md
Inventories RE (35,267) (25,113)
Amounts due from customers for contract wark, net BEURFANTES 8 (6,869) (27,259)
Trade receivables, other receivables and prepayments BHRUGIR - KRR RERER (166,167) (9,087)
Bills receivables [ENER (11,783) 5,79
Amounts dug from associate YN 896 (5,037)
Amounts due from joint venture Mlééi%m (2,419) 1221
Increase in: 10 -
Trade and other payables (inclusive of non-current liabilities) EHREMENTIE (BEERDER) 329,375 664,963
Bills payable EREE 13,135 282
Cash from operating activities before service REBEBSTEERHERNEEED
concession arrangement projects EEHRE 2,118,565 2,183,250
Change in receivables under service concession arrangements  FRISISFHE L L HIE FEWFIEEE)
(Note A) (FizEA) (1,824,496) (2,466,779)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019

HE019F12A31ALLFE
Group
50
2019 2018
2019% 2018%F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(i3 ARBTRT AREFTL
Cash generated from (used in) operating activities RRERTEESRISREESED
after service concession arrangement projects EX (R Rg 294,069 (283,529)
Intarest received B 15,497 9,679
Income tax paid EHHEH (157,632) (112,751)
Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities #EEZBDEE (R RePE 151,934 (386,601)
Investing activities: BEEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE BEREE (53,724) (79,164)
Purchase of intangible assets and land use rights BERVEERDMERE (315,627) (209.417)
Increase in prepayment for property, plant and W% BEREENEREERNER
equipment and intangible assets gy | (407,896) (9,764)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment %J% BENREREMGIVE 684 124
Proceeds from capital reduction from joint venture ELERERT 225,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets ﬂﬁ/ BEREMGTE - 2
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note B) WENBARRERLFE (F:8) 43 - (157,269)
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARRERILFE 44 = (1,798)
Net cash inflow on deregistration of an associate —EBEDAREERNESRATE = 1,250
Net cash outflow on investment in an associate RE-BHELARSRTFE (28,607)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through other WL BEFAEBZEKAN
comprehensive income SREE (3,000) -
Dividend received from joint ventures BUAELERE 35,109 41,950
Net cash used in investing activities REZHMAREBRE (548,061) (414,046)
Financing activities: HEEHE
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings RITREAMEREEHE 4,382,623 3,939,761
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BRFTLEMER (3,136,004) (2,018,345)
Proceeds from finance leaseback arrangements WERERHMETE = 362,000
Repayment under finance lease arrangement RERETHER - (206,545)
Interest paid BIFE (662,931) (534,351)
Dividend paid EfRE (131,779) (130,773)
Contribution from non-controlling interests upon additional HELAEABINE SR IERER 1 E
capital injection of subsidiaries 299,255 216,533
Repurchase of shares BERH (4,373) -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries WERB AR LR ER - (74,682)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests in subsidiaries ENHBRRAIFERERNRE (6,560) (19,834)
Return of capital to non-controlling interest upon deregistration  —FIMB AR HEE MR REERE
of a subsidiary R ES (1,500) (2,500)
Principal and interest elements of lease payments HENRNAR RN ERS (8,189) -
(Increase) Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEARTER (GEm) A (115,318) 11,19
Net cash from financing activities MEEDELNRRSHE 615,224 1,542,460
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
" _\éiﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
Year ended 31 December 2019

BE09F12A31HIEFE
Group
350
2019 2018
2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i3 N ARETFT
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEMEMSBE 219,007 741,813
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ENHERELEEY 2,133,225 1,402,104
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ~ EXEHHBRS LELZEYHTE 22,448 (10,692)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXEERFLERY 2,374,770 2,133,225
Note A: BIZEA -

In accordance with the application of SFRS(I) INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements and
SFRS(1) 1-7 Statement of Cash Flows, the movement in the receivables under service concession
arrangements has been classified under operating activities. The movement in the receivables under
service concession arrangements was mainly arising from the construction and/or purchase of new
or existing water treatment facilities for the financial years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Non-cash transactions
Note B:

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Group acquired Fangzi Water through the
subscription of new shares issued by Fangzi Water amounting to RMB79.08 million (Note 43).

See accompanying notes fo financial statements.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

BCOIMEBRBREBREER) REEVVFEEFTALEL
AR CHIIME BB BRE £ B1-TRELTELX  RE
BICE B TRERABEIC P BELLEEDET - R
BEFCETHBTREFEZH TS RENEE019F K
N18FN2ANBULTHEERER / SBEEFORBEKE

B

FHRERH

BiFEB -

RBENBF2ANELHBEE  AEEEARBI T
IKEATEVRIAD A A REET 9088 TTURFR ST F K (BiH5E43) -

R BHZENNE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is a public limited company,
incorporated and domiciled in the Republic of Singapore and is dual listed on
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “SGX-ST") and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (the “HKEX"). The Group’s immediate and ultimate holding
companies are S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“SII”) incorporated in British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Co., Ltd.
(“SIC") incorporated in Hong Kong respectively. The registered office and principal
place of business of the Company is located at One Temasek Avenue, #37-02
Millenia Tower, Singapore 039192. Related companies in these financial statements
refer to members of the ultimate holding company’s group of companies.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are set out in
Notes 28, 29 and 30 to the financial statements respectively.

The presentation currency of the financial statements is Renminbi (“RMB”) as
the Group’s operations are substantially based in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC™).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and statement of financial
position and statement of changes in equity of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March
2020.

The financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018 of the Group and the Company have been prepared in accordance with
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)”).

MR R Mo

31 December 2019
20195124318

—RER
EBEXREERBERAR ([RAAR]) AR
RAB AR - AET IR E MR
TR ELEXSAARRR ([FRAH]) kE
BHARIMERAR ([BARSF)) €&
ti e AEBERERGERERABTH A AR
REHRRES ((ABERARES]) MR
VR EEERERERAR ([LEEED R
REBIMK UM EBEE (RE) BRAA
(TLE]) - ARRNAMPEERTEL XM
2E(770ne Temasek Avenue, #37-02 Millenia Tower,
Singapore 039192 - ZEM B HREMN BB L AE
RERERAREBLRNKE QR o

ARRAMERXBAREZR  EXEMER
Al ABECERBERTNEZEB D HER
B TSR ARHIET28 ~ 291230

MBRENZIEEAARE TARR]D - T
AREENEERBAE D HEDEARLNE
([HE ) #17 »

HE019F12ANB L FEAEBNGA K
BELARANFERRERESESHRR
N0FIANHEESSRETE -

REERA D BB E019F128318 R20185F
12A318 [E5F E M B SRk Ty R IR AN B AR
B RS ER] ([GRIIKER M BREER)])

Annual Report 2019F £

143



144

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR R M

31 December 2019
20195124318

2.
2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost
basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below, and are drawn up in
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act and SFRS(1)s.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability which
market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of SFRS(I) 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of SFRS(I) 16
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in SFRS(I) 1-2 Inventories or value in use in
SFRS(1) 1-36 /mpairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1,
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new and revised standards in 2019

On 1 January 2019, the Group and Company adopted all the new and revised
SFRS(I) pronouncements that are relevant to its operations. The adoption of these
new/revised SFRS(I) pronouncements does not result in changes to the Group’s
and the Company’s accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts
reported for the current or prior years, except as disclosed below.

SFRS(I) 16 Leases

SFRS(I) 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease
accounting. It introduces significant changes to lessee accounting by removing
the distinction between operating and finance lease and requiring the recognition
of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at commencement for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets when such recognition
exemptions are adopted. In contrast to lessee accounting, the requirements for
lessor accounting have remained largely unchanged. The impact of the adoption of
SFRS(I) 16 on the Group’s consolidated financial statements is described below.

The date of initial application of SFRS(I) 16 for the Group is 1 January 2019.

The Group has applied SFRS(I) 16 using the cumulative catch-up approach which:

e requires the Group to recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying
SFRS(I) 16 as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at
the date of initial application; and

e does not permit restatement of comparatives, which continue to be presented
under SFRS(I) 1-17 and SFRS(I) INT 4.

2.
2.2

FESHBREE (1K)
2019 I imER T R 4B 5 AT 22 R

ROOFI AR AEERARAHRAEL L
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(BB REER) 16 AHE S
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BEACAEEERAEEE (REHHEER
BEEBEEEES)  HABEASFHEESA
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AARENREABERSTE - R G E
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AREBE 6 e R0 B IR B 7 R e 2 B
F16586) B EIR2019F 1 A1H -
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2.
2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new and revised standards in 2019 (continued)

SFRS(I) 16 Leases (continued)

Impact of the new definition of a lease

The Group has made use of the practical expedient available on transition to
SFRS(I) 16 not to reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly,
the definition of a lease in accordance with SFRS(I) 1-17 and SFRS(I) INT 4 will
continue to be applied to those leases entered or changed before 1 January 2019.

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of control.
SFRS(I) 16 determines whether a contract contains a lease on the basis of whether
the customer has the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. This is in contrast to the focus on ‘risks and
rewards’ in SFRS(I) 1-17 and SFRS(I) INT 4.

The Group applies the definition of a lease and related guidance set out in
SFRS(I) 16 to all lease contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019 (whether it is a lessor or a lessee in the lease contract). The new definition
in SFRS(I) 16 does not significantly change the scope of contracts that meet the
definition of a lease for the Group.

Impact on lessee accounting
Former operating leases

SFRS(I) 16 changes how the Group accounts for leases previously classified as
operating leases under SFRS(I) 1-17, which were off-balance-sheet.

Applying SFRS(1) 16, for all leases, the Group:

i) Recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the statements of
financial position, initially measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, with the right-of-use asset adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments in accordance with SFRS(I) 16:C8(b)(ii);

i)  Recognises depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease
liabilities in the consolidated statement of profit or loss; and

iii)  Separates the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented
within financing activities) and interest (presented within financing activities)
in the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Adoption of new and revised standards in 2019 (continued)

SFRS(I) 16 Leases (continued)

Impact on lessee accounting (continued)

Lease incentives (e.g. free rent period) are recognised as part of the measurement
of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities whereas under SFRS(I) 1-17 they
resulted in the recognition of a lease incentive liability, amortised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Under SFRS(1) 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with
SFRS 1-36 /mpairment of Assets.

For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value
assets (which includes tablets and personal computers, small items of office
furniture and telephones), the Group has opted to recognise a lease expense on a
straight-line basis as permitted by SFRS(I) 16. This expense is presented within
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group has used the following practical expedients when applying the
cumulative catch-up approach to leases previously classified as operating leases
applying SFRS(I) 1-17.

e For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-
value assets (such as personal computers and office furniture), the Group
has opted to recognise a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted
by SFRS(I) 16. This expense is presented within administrative expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

e The Group has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics.

e The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities to leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of the
date of initial application.

e The Group has excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the
right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

e The Group has used hindsight when determining the lease term when the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Adoption of new and revised standards in 2019 (continued)

SFRS(I) 16 Leases (continued)

Impact on lessor accounting

SFRS(I) 16 does not change substantially how a lessor accounts for leases.
Under SFRS(I) 16, a lessor continues to classify leases as either finance leases or
operating leases and account for those two types of leases differently.

However, SFRS(I) 16 has changed and expanded the disclosures required, in
particular regarding how a lessor manages the risks arising from its residual
interest in leased assets.

Financial impact on initial application of SFRS(I) 16

The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position on 1 January 2019 is
4.9%.

The following table shows the operating lease commitments disclosed applying
SFRS(I) 1-17 at 31 December 2018, discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application and the lease liabilities recognised in the
statement of financial position at the date of initial application.
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Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 R20185E12 AN B e E AL 69,818
Less: Short-term leases and leases of low value A RHHEREEENEE (3,547)
Less: Effect of discounting the above amounts Vi M ke [0 (16,963)
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1RRANEEAE 49,308

Right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the statement of financial position immediately before the date
of initial application. Consequently, right-of-use asset of RMB49,308,000 were
recognised on 1 January 2019.

During the year, land use rights which amounted to RMB6,189,000, have been

reclassified to “right-of-use assets™ under SFRS(I) 16 at the date of initial
application.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Group:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

e has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has
power over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and
dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group has,
or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the
time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (continued)
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s
equity therein.

2.3.1 Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as
specified/permitted by applicable SFRS(I)s) in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of. The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under SFRS(I) 9 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiaries, interest in
associates and interest in joint ventures are carried at cost less any impairment in
net recoverable value that has been recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree, and equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, measured at its
acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjusted
against the cost of acquisition where they qualify as measurement period
adjustments (see below). The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held
interests in the acquired entity are remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
(i.e. the date the Group attains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment would be appropriate
if that interest were disposed of.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under the SFRS(I) are recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance
with SFRS(I) 1-12 Income Taxes and SFRS(I) 1-19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment transactions
of the acquiree or the replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
awards transactions with share-based payment awards transactions of the
acquirer in accordance with the method in SFRS(I) 2 Share-based Payment
(see the accounting policy in respect of “Employee benefits” below) at the
acquisition date; and
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2.
2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance
with SFRS(l) 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration
transferred in the business combination, the amount of non-controlling interest
in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities. In instances where the latter amount exceeds the former,
the excess is recognised as “Gain from bargain purchase” in profit or loss on the
acquisition date.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable,
on the basis specified in another SFRS(1).

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about the facts and circumstances that existed as of
the acquisition date.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

2.
2.4

TERHBFHE ()

RIE2 0 ()

o BRGMEEREHRSLY) E55
B EN IR EERE RIS
BEABARELEOEE (Jue8a)
ToRERRT AR -

BEDREBAHTIEREENAAER
NERETNFERES (0B) BRAE
BRARN BT RS (0E) M2
AEENEBEHRWETJEREERAR
MARBEFENZHRTE - ERESEBY
AENBERT  BESEORKE AR ER
NERA [FEEERE] -

BREMAREZENFESETERBAR
HOEGIERERE A F R IR ER )
FERAN BEICHERESRIL OB ERKE
HABANBEFENAABENE -FHEEE
RIERR B EHERE - EthBRI0IFERE
#RANBES (WER) KEM GRnRER
PHRELER) TRANAEE -

SrEREARAR [FHEHE] (TTERE R
BRBES—F) RERENBEREREC
FENEERBEROBEINENELNBE -

HEBAHNNFETRERGHELNRS
HMRMAZTRK - WAKEERNRTRETE
ENRAZHRETERE - ASUELENTE
MENELBE (F2H LX) ARRENE
ERBE WRRESEHAZRERYESR
EZERBROFMER  MAENTZEER -
HEFEHRZERRINSE -



2.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Merger accounting for business combination involving entities under
common control

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control
are excluded from SFRS(I) 3 Business Combinations, and are accounted for in the
following manner:

e recording of assets and liabilities at previous carrying values; and

e recognition of the difference between purchase consideration and net assets
transferred as an adjustment to equity via merger reserve.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements items
of the combining entities or business in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss includes the results of each of the
combining entities or business from the earliest date presented or since the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came under the common control,
where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are presented
as if the entities or business had been combined at the beginning of previous
reporting period or when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established
at the date of acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that the CGU may be impaired.
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to
the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the CGU. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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2.
2.6

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributed amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate or a joint
venture is described below.

Interest in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
have rights to the net assets, relating to the arrangement. Joint control is a
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in
which case it is accounted for under SFRS(I) 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, investment in an associate or
a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.

Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest in associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of SFRS(I) 9 are applied to determine whether it is necessary
to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
SFRS(1) 1-36 /mpairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less cost to sell) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with SFRS(I) 1-36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the
investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or when the investment
is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with SFRS(I) 9.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at
the date the equity method was discontinued and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from the disposal of a part interest in the associate or
joint venture is included in the determination of the gain and loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities. Therefore, if
a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets and liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from the
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use equity method when an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value
upon such changes in ownership interests.
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2.
2.1

2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest in associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit
or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a Group entity transacts with its associate or joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Service concession arrangements
Consideration given by the grantor

A financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is recognised
to the extent that the Group has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services
rendered and/or the consideration paid and payable by the Group for the right
to manage and operate the infrastructure for public service. The Group has an
unconditional right to receive cash if the grantor contractually guarantees to
pay the Group (a) specified or determinable amounts or (b) the shortfall, if any,
between amounts received from users of the public service and specified or
determinable amounts, even if the payment is contingent on the Group ensuring
that the infrastructure meets specified quality of efficiency requirements. The
financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is accounted for
in accordance with the policy set out for “Financial instruments” below.

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised to the extent that the
Group receives a right to charge users of the public service. The intangible assets
(operating concession) are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
operation phase of the concession periods.

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a financial asset
and partly by an intangible asset, then each component of the consideration
is accounted for separately and is recognised initially at the fair value of the
consideration.

Construction of service concession related infrastructure

Revenue and costs relating to construction phase of a concession arrangement
is accounted for in accordance to SFRS(I) 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. The Group recognised the construction revenue with reference to the
fair value of the construction service delivered in the construction phase. The
fair value of such service is estimated on a cost-plus basis with reference to the
prevailing market rate of gross margin and borrowing rates. Consequently, the
Group recognised a profit margin on the construction work by reference to the
stage of completion and in accordance with the policy for “Construction contracts”
below.
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2.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Service concession arrangements (continued)
Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in accordance with the
policy for “Revenue recognition (operating and maintenance income)” below.

Contractual obligations to restore the infrastructure to a specified level
of serviceability

When the Group has contractual obligations that it must fulfil as a condition of
its licence for operating concessions, that is (a) to maintain the infrastructure to a
specified level of serviceability and/or (b) to restore the infrastructure to a specified
condition before they are handed over to the grantor at the end of the service
concession arrangement, these contractual obligations to maintain or restore the
infrastructure are recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out
for “Provisions” below.

Repair and maintenance and other expenses that are routine in nature are expensed
and recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract including construction or upgrade
services of the infrastructure under a service concession arrangement, can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, as measured
by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to
the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of
the stage of completion. Construction revenue is therefore recognised over time on
a cost—to—cost method, i.e. based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for
work performed to date relative to the estimated total contract costs.

Management considers that this input method is an appropriate measure of the
progress towards complete satisfaction of these performance obligations under
SFRS(1) 15.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable
will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected 10ss is recognised as an expense immediately.

2.10 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group
recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer.

Construction revenue

Income from construction contracts is recognised as set out in the accounting
policy for “Construction contracts” and “Service concession arrangements” above.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Revenue recognition (continued)

Operating and maintenance income/Service income

Operating and maintenance income relates to the income derived from managing
and operating of infrastructure under service concession arrangements. All
other income derived from the managing and operating of infrastructure under
non-service concession arrangements is classified as service income.

Operating and maintenance income are recognised at a point in time and service
income are recognised over time.

Financial income

Financial income from service concession arrangement is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Financial income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the applicable effective interest rate,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Other revenue

Other revenue is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the service period as
services are rendered.

Revenue from the installation of water meters is recognised to the extent of the
expenses recognised that are recoverable or when the service is completed.

2.11 Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Such
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and
borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying property, plant and equipment. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. When significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciation respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed,
its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and is computed
on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment
less estimated residual value over their estimated useful lives. Assets under
construction included in property, plant and equipment are not depreciated as
these assets are not available for use.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Plants and machinery - 510 25 years
Furniture, fittings and equipment - 410 8 years
Motor vehicles - 510 10 years
Leasehold buildings and improvement - 5 t0 35 years

Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The carrying values of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

2.12 Leases

(Before 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Leases (continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are charged directly to profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
general policy on borrowing costs (see below). Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives
is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

(From 1 January 2019)

The Group as lessor

The Group enters into lease agreement as a lessor with respect to its office
premises.

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other
leases are classified as operating lease.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-lined basis over the lease term.

When a contract lease includes lease and non-lease components, the Group applies
SFRS(I) 15 to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Leases (continued)

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the
contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except
for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less)
and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate
implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the group uses the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lessee.

The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate based on the quotes from
reputable banks over a similar term and with a similar security that the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in
accordance to the type of asset, tenor and country where the assets are situated.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

e fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured
using the index or rate at the commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise the options; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial
position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to
reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Leases (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment
to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in
circumstances resulting in a change in the assessment of exercise of
a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

e the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change
in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to
a change in floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is
used); or

e 3 lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for
as a separate lease, in which the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding
lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day, less
any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a
leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is
recognised and measured under SFRS(I) 1-37. To the extent that the costs relate to
a right-of-use asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless
those costs are incurred to produce inventory.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset
or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a
purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life
of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the
lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of
financial position.

The Group applies SFRS(I) 1-36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is
impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as described in Note
2.25.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB as the Group’s
operations are substantially based in the PRC. The functional currency of the
Company is Singapore Dollars (“S$”). Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions and balances

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency translated using the exchange rates
as at the dates of the initial transactions are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, or on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item that
forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under “translation reserve” in equity and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

Consolidated financial statements

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and
liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations (including comparatives) are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense items (including
comparatives) are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
a separate component of equity under the header of “translation reserve”.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Foreign currencies (continued)

Consolidated financial statements (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, loss of joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or loss of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the accumulated exchange differences in respect of that
operation attributable to the Group are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed to non-controlling interests are
derecognised, but they are not reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e. no loss of control) of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint venture that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities (including monetary items that, in substance, form
part of the net investment in foreign entities), and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity under
the header of “translation reserve”. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

2.14 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
period in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Specially, government grants whose condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as grants
received in advance in the first instance. Subsequently, the government grant is
recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position when assets are available for use and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss as government
subsidies in the period in which they become receivable.

2.16 Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are not taxable or tax deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted in countries where the Company and
subsidiaries operate by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on the temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, interest in associates and interest in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset realised based on the tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities, when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items credited or debited outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case the tax is
also recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively), or where they arise from the initial accounting for a
business combination. In the case of a business combination, the tax effect is taken
into account in calculating goodwill or determining the excess of the acquirer’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost.

2.17 Intangible assets (except for Goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately excluding operating concessions

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each financial year end, with the effects of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis (see the accounting policy
in respect of “Impairment of non-financial assets” below).
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Intangible assets (except for Goodwill) (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately excluding operating concessions
(continued)

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of amortisation:

Patent and licensing rights -
Computer software -

10 years
310 10 years

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised separately
from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
loss. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment loss (see the accounting policy in respect of “Impairment of
non-financial assets” below).

Operating concessions

Operating concessions represent (i) the rights to charge users of the public service
for the water supply contracts, which fall within the scope of SFRS(I) INT 12
Service Concession Arrangements; (i) the rights under the service concession
arrangements for the waste water treatment allows the Group to receive and treat
waste water above the minimum amount of guaranteed volume, at a predetermined
tariff rate during the concessionary period acquired in a business combination;
and (iii) rights to operate and manage waste water treatment plants acquired in a
business combination.

The operating concessions are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment loss. The operating concessions acquired in a
business combination are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost). Amortisation is provided on straight-line
basis over the remaining respective periods of the operating concessions granted
to the Group of 7 to 50 years.

Research expenditure

Expenditure on research activities (where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised) is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Intangible assets (except for Goodwill) (continued)

Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
profit or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

2.18 Land use rights

Land use rights are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, land
use rights are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation. They are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms of 20 to 50 years.

2.19 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and conditions are accounted
for using the weighted average cost basis.

Where necessary, allowance is provided for damaged, obsolete and slow moving
items to adjust the carrying values of inventories to the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for the inventories, less
all estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.21 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s statement
of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and de-recognised on a trade date basis where
the purchase or sale of financial assets is under a contract whose terms require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by the market concerned.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Despite the aforegoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/
designation at initial recognition of a financial asset:

the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are
met; and

the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the
amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification of financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate
is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected
credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is
measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the
other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of
a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt
instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For
financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting
periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Group recognises
interest income by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The calculation
does not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial asset
subsequently improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “other
income” line item.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)
Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an
instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments in equity instruments
as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is
held for trading or if it is a contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which SFRS(I) 3 applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;
or

e oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

e tisa derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract
or a designated and effective hedging instrument).

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value
plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, instead, they will be transferred to retained earnings.

The Group has designated all investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading as at FVTOCI on initial application of SFRS(I) 9 (see Note 22).

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, unless
the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR R M

31 December 2019
20195124318

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

e |nvestments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the
Group designates an equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a
contingent consideration arising from a business combination as at FVTOCI
on initial recognition.

e Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI
criteria are classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet
either the amortised cost criteria or the FVTQOCI criteria may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt
instruments as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value as at each reporting date,
with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they
are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “other gains and losses” line item (Note 6). Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 51.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate as at each
reporting date. Specifically,

e for financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the “other gains and losses” line item;

e for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange differences on the amortised cost of the debt
instrument are recognised in profit or loss in the “other gains and losses”
line item;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses (continued)

e for financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in
the “other gains and losses” line item; and

e for equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income in the investments revaluation
reserve.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL")
on investments in debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost or at
FVTOCI, contract assets, as well as on loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts. No impairment loss is recognised for investments in equity instruments.
The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables and amounts due
from customers for contract work. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If,
on the other hand, the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of
on evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an
actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other
similar organisations, as well as consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s core operations,
namely the environmental industry.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 90 days past due for corporate/individual
debtors and more than 3 years for government debtors, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument has
a low risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally understood definition.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date
of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition of a loan commitment, the Group considers changes
in the risk of a default occurring on the loan to which a loan commitment relates;
for financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the changes in the risk that
the specified debtor will default on the contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal
credit risk management purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables
that meet the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

e information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 1 year past due for corporate/individual debtors
and more than 5 years for government debtors unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

=%

) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower; or
b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event; or
c¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating

to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation; or

e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset, including trade receivables when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s

recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or oss.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information
as described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this
is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the
amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts
expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined based on
historical trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of
the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

Where lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases where

evidence of significant increases in credit risk at the individual instrument level

may not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade and other receivables
and amounts due from customers are each assessed as a separate group.
Loans to related parties are assessed for expected credit losses on an
individual basis);

e Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses (continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at
the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the
current reporting date.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve,
and does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of
financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition
of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in
equity instrument which the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
earnings.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a
group entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not
qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies,
financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group, and commitments issued by the
Group to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance
with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination, 2) held-for-trading, or 3) designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a group entity are initially measured at
their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL and do not arise from a transfer
of a financial asset, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with SFRS(I) 9;
and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount
of income recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition policies.

Foreign exchange gains and l0sses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are
measured at amortised cost as at each reporting date, the foreign exchange gains
and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments. These
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the “other gains and losses”
ling item in profit or loss (Note 6) for financial liabilities that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign
exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised
in profit or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Treasury shares

When shares are reacquired by the Company, the amount of consideration paid is
recognised directly in equity. Reacquired shares are classified as treasury shares
and presented as a deduction from total equity. Voting rights related to treasury
shares are nullified for the Company and no dividends are allocated to them
respectively.

Where the treasury shares are cancelled, a reduction by the total amount of the
purchase price paid by the Company for the treasury shares cancelled will be made
to the “share capital” or “retained earnings” of the Company where the treasury
shares, depending if the treasury shares are purchased out of “capital” or “profits”
respectively.

When treasury shares are subsequently sold or reissued pursuant to equity
compensation plans, the cost of treasury shares is reversed from the treasury
share account and the realised gain or loss on sale or reissue, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs, is recognised in the capital reserve.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as provisions, including those arising from the contractual
obligation specified in the service concession arrangement to maintain or restore
the infrastructure before it is handed over to the grantor, are measured at the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are
expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination

Contingent liabilities acquired in business combination are initially measured at
fair value at the acquisition date. At the end of the subsequent reporting periods,
contingent liabilities accounted for as financial liabilities are remeasured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

2.
2.22

2.23

FEEHRREE (W)

E#FRSA

EARAREFNBRRMNE  ENHESRER
RERPHER - ENBELNRODBREFR
DAL RESLBOIRIEAE - BAREM
FEBFRNABNREERIEELSER
B EES KRS -

EFRHREE  BRARPRETHER
BOXNOBEBRRERREFRNOHAR
A TR ) sk [MRE B A ) s e AR - BURR
EEROZEDRIEE A X [FE] -

BERBRMERBEREREARLIEXS
B8 ERRDKAREFRDETED -
MHEXFH TN ERBBLHR AR
BEFERBHRAR - NERRETRER -

1]

FRREBEINARERBASEMARRTE
£ CEESHE)  BRAETTRARTHERL
W AR R R BIEH A AT AERR o

RRBRENEE (BRRBEFEERHR
EBRBETAZRERIREERMERNE
WEEMELE) RRREHREHABHE
EER R TARERRK - HETRBEEEN
FIRHENRERE - HWERETARE
ENREE RSN ERE - AREENAZF
RERAIRE -

A AE N BB R 3 2 BB N ST A
BE=HE - AEEE FERGKBIENA
BT R SERt BN BUTELERRE
Eo

RESHUMHEFAR
E£BAMRBNRERENFENIRE B BH
RABEEE - RERRESHR - ARIIfFES
BEENRBABRAABEENHE AR
EEEHNEERER



2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of
the countries in which it has operations.

In particular, Singapore companies make contributions to the Central Provident
Fund in Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to
pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
service is performed.

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries outside Singapore make contributions to their
respective countries” pension schemes. Such contributions are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

Benefits to ex-employees

The benefits are payable to certain categories of ex-employees up till their
retirement age or death as provided for in the financial statements based on the
requirement under the PRC regulations. The obligation is calculated using the staff
entitlements at point of termination and is discounted to its present value.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Employees (including Directors) of the Group and employees (including Directors)
of the ultimate holding company who have contributed to the success and
development of the Company and/or the Group are entitled to receive remuneration
in the form of share options as consideration for services rendered. The cost of
these equity-settled transactions with option holders is measured by reference to
the fair value of the options at the date on which the options are granted which
takes into account market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

This cost is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding increase in the
share option reserve, over the vesting period. The cumulative expense recognised
at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of options that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (continued)

No expense is recognised for options that do not ultimately vest, except for options
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vested irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied. In the case where the option does not vest as the result of a failure to
meet a non-vesting condition that is within the control of the Group or the option
holder, it is accounted for as a cancellation. In such case, the amount of the
compensation cost that otherwise would be recognised over the remainder of the
vesting period is recognised immediately in profit or loss upon cancellation. The
share option reserve is transferred to retained earnings upon expiry of the share
options. When the options are exercised, the share option reserve is transferred
to share capital if new shares are issued, or to treasury shares if the options are
satisfied by the reissuance of treasury shares.

2.25 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment
assessment for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast
calculations which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s cash-generating
units to which the individual assets are allocated.

Any impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in profit or loss
through the “other gains and losses” line item.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment loss may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates
the asset’s or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised.

If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. The increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is
measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future
periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on
a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

2.26 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale
is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale
in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a
subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held
for sale when the criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
(continued)

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed
of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

(a) represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or

(b) s part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations or

(c) s a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the reporting date. The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Critical judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies

Judgement made by management in the application of SFRS(I)s that has a
significant effect on the financial statements and in arriving at estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustment in the next financial year is discussed below.

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements
with certain governmental authorities or their agencies (“grantor”) in the
PRC on a Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT"), Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT”),
Build-Operate-Own (“BO0”) or Transfer-Operate-Own (“TOQ”) basis in respect
of its businesses. The Group concluded that these BOT, TOT, BOO and TOO
arrangements are service concession arrangements under SFRS(I) INT 12, because
(i) the grantors control and regulate the services that the Group must provide
with the infrastructure, to whom the Group must provide the services and at a
pre-determined service charge; and (ii) the grantor controls significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangements. Generally,
in respect of BOT and TOT arrangements, upon expiry of service concession
arrangements, the infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government
authorities or their agencies at no or minimal consideration. Infrastructure in
respect of BOO and TOO arrangements is expected to be used for its entire or
substantially entire useful life.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Critical judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies (continued)
Service concession arrangements (continued)

As explained in Note 2.8 to the financial statements, the Group recognises the
consideration received or receivable in exchange for the construction services as
a financial asset and/or an intangible asset under public-to-private concession
arrangement. However, if the Group is paid for the construction services partly
by a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, it is necessary to account
separately for each component of the operator’s consideration. The consideration
received or receivable for both components shall be recognised initially at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable (see below).

Determination of functional currency of the entities in the Group

SFRS(I) 1-21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates requires the
Company and the entities in the Group to determine its functional currency to
prepare the financial statements. When determining its functional currency, the
Company and the entities in the Group consider the primary economic environment
in which it operates, i.e. the one in which it primarily generates and expends cash.
The Company and the entities in the Group may also consider the funding sources.
Management applied its judgement and determined that the functional currency of
the Company and subsidiary incorporated in Singapore is Singapore dollars.

Determination of material entities (subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates) and non-wholly owned subsidiaries with material
non-controlling interest

For purposes of meeting the requirements under SFRS(I) 12 Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities, the Group has assessed all subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates which the Group has an interest based on (i) quantitative factors
(i.e. their individual contribution to the Group’s net profit and/or statement of
financial position); and (ii) qualitative factors. Management applied its judgement
in determining the material subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates; and
non-wholly owned subsidiaries with material non-controlling interest. Management
had assessed the disclosure requirements of non-wholly owned subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interest and determined such disclosure to be made at
a sub-group level. Information as required under SFRS(I) 12 are disclosed under
Notes 28, 29 and 30.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract activity at the end of each reporting period, when the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion
is measured by reference to the proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date to the estimated total contract costs.

Significant assumptions are required in determining the stage of completion, the
extent of the contract costs incurred, the estimated total revenue and estimated
total contract cost, as well as the recoverability of the contract costs incurred. Total
contract revenue may include an estimation of the variation works recoverable
from the customers. In making these estimates, management has relied on past
experience and knowledge of project engineers.

The stage of completion of each construction contract is assessed on a cumulative
basis in each accounting year. Changes in estimate of contract revenue or contract
costs, or the effect of a change in the estimate of the outcome of a contract could
impact the amount of revenue and expense recognised in profit or loss in the
year in which the change is made and in subsequent years. Such impact could
potentially be significant.

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising from construction contracts
at the end of each reporting period are disclosed in Note 18 to the financial
statements.

The Group has recognised revenue amounting to RMB2,172,454,000 (2018:
RMB2,229,238,000) from construction contracts, of which RMB1,932,654,000
(2018: RMB2,128,027,000) relates to revenue recognised for the third party
constructed infrastructure in relation to service concession arrangements.
The overall gross profit margin for construction contracts is at 12.1% (2018:
12.3%), of which the gross profit margin recognised for third party constructed
infrastructure in relation to service concession arrangements is 12% (2018: 12%).

Service concession arrangements

Where the Group performs more than one service under the concession
arrangements, the consideration for the services provided under the concession
arrangements is allocated to the components by reference to their relative fair
values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Service concession arrangements (continued)

Estimation is exercised in determining the fair values of the receivables under
service concession arrangements as well as impairment of the receivables under
service concession arrangements and intangible assets subsequent to initial
recognition. Discount rates (reflecting the grantor’s incremental borrowing rates),
estimates of future cash flows and other factors are used in the determination of
the amortised cost of financial asset and corresponding finance income. The Group
has considered the relevant sources of the discount rate and due to limited publicly
available information on the borrowing rates across the various municipalities
and cities in PRC, the Group assessed that the use of the People’s Bank of China
basic lending rate for loans greater than five years as the discount rate reflects
the long-term borrowing cost in PRC which is a reasonable proxy of the grantor’s
incremental borrowing rate for the Group as a whole.

The assumptions used and estimates made can materially affect the fair value
estimates. The carrying amount of the Group’s financial receivables and intangible
assets arising from service concession arrangements at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in Notes 17 and 25 to the financial statements respectively.

During the financial year, the Group has also recognised operating and maintenance
revenue from service concession arrangements amounting to RMB2,403,147,000
(2018: RMB1,843,151,000).

Provision for major overhauls

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group has contractual
obligations to maintain the waste water and water treatment plants to a specified
level of serviceability and/or to restore the plants to a specified condition before
they are handed over to the grantors at the end of the service concession periods.
These contractual obligations to maintain or restore the waste water and water
treatment plants, except for any upgrade element, are recognised and measured
in accordance with SFRS(1) 1-37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, i.e., at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The future expenditure
on these maintenance and restoration costs is collectively referred to as “major
overhauls”. The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised
where appropriate.

As at 31 December 2019, the provision for major overhauls amounted to
RMB37,191,000 (2018: RMB36,305,000).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

During the financial year, the Group has loss allowance for receivables (net of
written-back during the year) amounting to RMB231,000 (2018: RMB4,665,000).

When measuring ECL, the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different
economic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other.

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would
expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit
gnhancements.

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of
default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the
calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of
future conditions.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets at the end of each reporting
period is disclosed in Notes 12, 13, 14, 17, 18, 19, 20, 22 and 26 to the financial
statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there is any indicator of impairment for non-financial
assets including investment in subsidiaries, interest in joint ventures and
associates, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets
and goodwill, at each reporting date. Goodwill is tested for impairment at least
annually and at other times when such indicators exist. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the asset or cash generating unit
for 5 years or for the remaining concession period, whichever applicable, and do
not include restructuring activities that the Group has yet to commit or significant
future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the cash generating
unit being tested. The Group uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable assumptions and projections of revenue and amount
of operating costs. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount
rate used for the discounted cash flow model, the expected future cash inflows
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. Further details of the key
assumptions applied in the impairment assessment of goodwill, are given in Note
31 to the financial statements. The carrying amounts of the non-financial assets
are disclosed in Notes 23, 24, 25, 28, 29, 30 and 31 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax

The Group reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax at the end of each
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences can be utilised, including taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or there is future taxable profit available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. This involves judgement regarding the future
performance and tax laws. The carrying amounts of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities are disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Income tax

The Group is subjected to income taxes in Singapore and PRC. Significant
estimates are required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income tax provision
in the period in which such determination is made. The carrying amount of
the Group’s income tax payable at 31 December 2019 is RMB127,713,000
(2018: RMB126,198,000).

Purchase price allocation

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities (including contingent liabilities)
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration
transferred in the business combination, the amount of non-controlling interest
in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) is recorded as goodwill.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

The determination of the identifiable assets and liabilities (including contingent
liabilities) fair value is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted
cash flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date is
disclosed in Note 43 to the financial statements.
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4.

REVENUE 4. BA
Group
FEE
2019 2018
2019 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFTT
Segment revenue (Note 49) SEBYLA (FHEE49)
Construction revenue: ERIWA
— construction — % - 9,161
— water and sludge treatment —IKETREE 1,944,483 2,011,640
— water supply — K 156,001 154,234
— waste incineration - EE%EE 71,970 54,203
2,172,454 2,229,238
Operating and maintenance income from service concession RIS EERHES HEERA -
arrangements:
— water and sludge treatment — KRS RERIE 1,673,066 1,152,968
— water supply — K 657,937 644,991
— waste incineration - EE%E 72,144 45,192
2,403,147 1,843,151
Financial income from service concession arrangements: R R HIBRA
— water and sludge treatment —KR&ERER 935,190 850,445
— waste incineration - EERE 9,729 8,703
944,919 859,148
Service income: ARSI -
— water and sludge treatment — K ETREIE 92,553 96,697
— water supply — K 12,375 68,173
164,928 164,870
Others Hit 274,073 216,937
5,959,521 5,313,344
Timing of revenue recognition Y A RERR S
At a point in time: REERREE -
~ Operating and maintenance income from service concession — RS EFCERHE S EEIRA
arrangements 2,403,147 1,843,151
Over time: —ERES -
— Construction revenue - LN 2,172,454 2,229,238
— Financial income from service concession arrangements — IRESF AT AR & L BE BT T U 944,919 859,148
— Service income — IREWA 164,928 164,870
— Others —Hft 274,073 216,937
3,556,374 3,470,193
5,959,521 5,313,344
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4. REVENUE (continued) 4. WA (&)
Management expects that 100% (2018: 99.7%) of the transaction price allocated EEREEAN019F12AN BN RERENEE
to the unsatisfied construction contracts as of 31 December 2019 will be A #IE9100% (20184F = 99.7%) R R EE AR
recognised as construction revenue during the next reporting period amounting to 1,060,904,0007 (20184F = A R #920,380,0007T)
RMB1,060,904,000 (2018: RMB920,380,000). BT —EREHRERAERBA o
5. OTHER INCOME 5. HfttkA
Group
*5E
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARBTF T
Interest income on bank balances RITEBF EUA 14,716 7,838
Other interest income HnF BUA 6,681 6,754
21,397 14,592
Government subsidies BT BN 175,662 175,477
Installation of water meters THKEE 25,518 33,394
Others Hit 51,731 45,966
274,308 269,429
6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 6. HttkERER
Group
*5E
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARBTF T
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets designated as at FVTPL ~ EE R AR BEF ABRNSHEE
HAanBERE (BE) 286 (1822)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries S B A BRI = 91,692
Others Hith (1,182) 31,913
(896) 121,783
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1.

PERSONNEL EXPENSES 1. AEMX
Group
*5E
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AEBETFT
Wages, salaries and bonuses IE% HaRkitd 479,483 409,696
Defined contribution plans TR E 126,307 112,705
Others HAt 49,343 40,445
655,133 562,846
This includes amounts shown as compensation of Directors and key management EHBEMTSMHESRTREREARS
personnel in Note 48. Hewm -
FINANCE EXPENSES 8. HMBRA
Group
.30
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Interest expense on interest-bearing loans and borrowings FEERRERNFERY 683,059 583,680
Financial expense on amortisation of retention monies RESHBENTBER 240 266
Financial expense on amortisation of benefits to ex-employees AEEEFENENIKER 1,282 1442
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBEFERXZ 2,416 -
Others Hi 270 11
687,267 585,399
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE FriSRFAX
Group
*5H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Current tax: AHBIE
— Current year - KEE 179,463 158,235
— Overprovision in respect of prior years - BAFEREEE (17,648) (2,726)
Deferred tax (Note 27): EIERIE (MizE27)
— Current year —KFE 97,660 87,536
— Under/(over) provision in respect of prior years - PEFERETR (BEEE) 5,699 (6.617)
265,174 236,428

The corporate income tax applicable to the Singapore companies of the Group is
17% (2018: 17%).

Under the Law of the People's Republic of China (“PRC") on Enterprise Income
Tax (“EIT”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. In accordance with the
“Income Tax Law of the PRC for Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign
Enterprises”, certain subsidiaries, engaging in public infrastructure projects, are
entitled to full exemption from EIT for the first three years and a 50% reduction in
EIT for the next three years from the first year of generating operating income.
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9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

9.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per

the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

Pz R (&)

REZRNMEHAX T R A BERTHRA
MEHEDT -

Group
*5E
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETFT
Profit before tax A 1,019,567 920,681
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to in the countries where the  HE R ANEEEL FIEF RS
Group operates® W EEH B R FiEe 238,283 232,415
Adjustments: e
Non-deductible expenses AR 22,757 35,147
Income not subject to tax BERBUA (11,734) (9,060)
Overprovision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE (11,949) (9,343)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures EEBEARRAECEEE (9,200) (10,584)
Deferred tax asset not recognised AEDELEHBEE 45,18 14,831
Utilisation of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets AT ABRECHEEE (7,882) (16,113)
Others Hit (519) (865)
265,174 236,428

@ The reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliations for each national

jurisdiction.

O HEARERERENDHIERAE
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. £RFHE
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting): FERMEEHR (GTA) T5&E
Group
P340
2019 2018
20195 20184F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bk ARWTT ARETF T
Loss allowance for trade receivables B SRR B E 13 231 4,665
Reversal of loss allowance for non-trade receivables I8 5 FEW N IE /) B 1B EE B o) 13 - (29)
Bad debts written off (trade) EHRME (B25) 5,938 -
Bad debts written off (non-trade) BRI GEE5) - 17
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERRETE 23 32,834 32,426
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 2 7,002 -
Amortisation of intangible assets BB RS 25 298,490 285,057
Amortisation of land use rights + 3 {55 PR A 4 25 - 270
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BENREEE 4,625 1,312
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets designated EBEERANEBEFABRNSE
as at FVTPL BEMAREE (&) B (286) 1,822
Gain from bargain purchase of investment in subsidiaries ZEREMBLARRENNE = (19,645)
Operating lease expense ey - 10,391
Expenses relating to lease of low value assets HFAREREEEENAY 2,172 -
Foreign exchange difference, net INEZZE T 1,182 (12,268)
Research costs SN 2,852 3,842
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRBREIMEFERE 407,420 312477
Audit fees: BB
— paid to auditors of the Company — BN AR RIZEED 2,062 1,928
— paid to member firms of the auditors of the Company —BNARRIZEAMKE AR 4,290 4.0M
— paid to other auditors (inclusive of internal audit fee) — B EMAZEED (RIERE
ZiER) 4,584 2,765
Total audit fees BT ERBE 10,936 8,704
Non-audit fees: FEHER
— paid to auditors of the Company — BAARA ARSI 213 202
~ paid to member firms of the auditors of the Company —BENARAIZEAKE AT 310 294
— paid to other auditors — B E A 107 71
Total non-audit fees FENBREE 630 567

*) Total non-audit fees include agreed-upon services and review of selected financial information. The amount

excludes transaction costs incurred in acquisition of subsidiaries.
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

1.

SREF
RATEE AEHERERRBEET (SR
BF)) TRE FHIREE

Group
*5E

2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETFT

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted EPS STEEANEEERANSNFE
(profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company) (RARIBEBAEGEERTHE) 600,251 540,237
2019 2018
20195 20184
No. of shares No. of shares
B8 AE K& E
’000 ‘000
F B i

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the HEHEALBESRETN
purpose of basic and diluted EPS LRRMETIE 2,605,597 2,606,589
12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 12. BeRGEFRY CEABTER
Group Company
F£E 3N

2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 20184F 20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT AR®TR ARET:R
Cash and bank balances Be hiRTHER 2,609,442 2,252,579 172,687 37,910
Pledged bank deposits (Note 47) BEARRITER (M E47) (234,672) (119,354) - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 2,374,710 2,133,225 172,687 37,910
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12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 12. H&RBE & SEH CERBTHER
(continued) (#&)
As at 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents of the Group included R2019F128310 » AEERE KRS EEY
short-term deposits of RMB85 million (2018: RMB150 million) with annual interest B R R ER2.9%Z3.4% (20184 < 4.0%) By
rate of 2.9% to 3.4% (2018: 4.0%), which pertained to guaranteed principal HTE A RB85008 T (2018F « A R1.50
placed with banks for earning short-term interest. Cash and cash equivalents have Br)  BREARITHERAS UREEH
maturity period of less than three months and carry interest at market rate, ranging FE - RekREFEEYNINH[IN=E
from 0.01% to 0.35% (2018: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum. B s EREANT0.01%%035% (20184F -
0.01%Z=0.35%)5t & °
The pledged bank deposits are pledged to banks to secure banking facilities BEBRATFRDERTHRIT  UERZER
granted by these banks and use of certain operating concessions. The pledged TREZBRIRERGAETLERETHE B
bank deposits have maturity period of less than one year (2018: less than one year) ERBROIEHEHA DR —F (2018F : IR
and carry interest at fixed interest rates ranging from 0.3% to 2.6% (2018: 0.3% to —F) RN T03%ZE2.6% (2018F : 0.3%Z=
2.6%) per annum and floating interest rates of 0.35% (2018: 0.35%) per annum. 2.6%)H) & T F 7 & 20.35% (20184F : 0.35%)H
FEFREGE o
RMB2,162 million (2018: RMB2,075 million) of the Group’s cash and cash AEBEAREN6(ET (20185 : ARE20.75
equivalents are held with PRC banks and are subject to certain restrictions based Br) MR RRZEEBMAPREMNRITHE
on rules and regulations issued by State Administration of Foreign Exchange in B WRER A BB R IME & 12 58 #6105 Al
PRC. RARBIETFRE o
13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13. BHRHEMEKFRE
Group Company
F5%E FaFH
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT AR®TR ARET:T
Trade receivables (inclusive of retention ~ E ZEWFIE (BERER)
monies) 1,630,224 1,454,940 - -
Less: Loss allowance R (13,863) (13,632) - -
1,616,361 1,441,308 = -
Other receivables H ft IR 723,391 849,031 5,146 4,667
Less: Loss allowance A B ER (3,381) (3,381) - -
720,010 845,650 5,146 4,667
Total trade and other receivables B o REMENFTIELE 2,336,371 2,286,958 5,146 4,667
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Trade receivables exclusive of retention monies are non-interest bearing with
credit periods generally ranging from 0 to 180 (2018: 0 to 180) days.

Trade receivables pledged by the Group is disclosed in Note 47 to the
financial statements.

Loss allowance for trade receivables has been measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL in accordance with SFRS(I) 9 for the financial year ended 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

The ECL on trade receivables are estimated by reference to past default
experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial
position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date.

A trade receivable is written off when there is information indicating that
the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. None of the trade receivables that have
been written off is subject to enforcement activities.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of loss allowance,
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

13.

RARAMELRRET ()

(M

)

(i)

ZHREUFE (TBERES) ARE
EEEH BN TOE180K (20185 : 02
180K) »

AEEHINE S ERRERIBRER
BsE4THIEE -

B E20195 124318 220185124318 b
PBEE  BHRYGUENBRERR
B GRIn BIIR B 5 22 R) B95RI%
SN FEREREEERNERTE -

BoHRAGANESRERFRES2ZE
BABENEOERREFAE NN H
MRDMER - REBA  BHALE
FiTBE B0 — AT RSB R RS B
HEHN MR ERRANFEEFER
REHBE -

MEFEMRREBARNBEENNS
WY EERNTERAS - Hi-
BEBAMEBNEER N AT EARE
MEREFE - AE 5 R WA KK
# o BAHEMIHNE S KFIRKER
RHIITITE ©

ATARBERREERAHNZIINE
HRENRE (MR BRER) OKREKD
I

Group

.30 ]|
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETF T
Within 30 days 0EA 509,619 451,627
Within 31 to 60 days IZE60HA 187,899 129,658
Within 61 to 90 days 61=90H A 110,662 117,634
Within 91 to 180 days NE1B0HA 192,680 152,305
Within 181 to 365 days 18123655 219,624 116,424
QOver 365 days HiB36sH 395,877 473,660
1,616,361 1,441,308
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20195125318
13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 13. BHREMEBYKFE (&)
(iv) Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired (v CEEELENENESERGIE

The Group has trade receivables amounting to RMB913,084,000 (2018:
RMB878,915,000) that are past due at the end of the reporting period but not
impaired. The Group has not recognised loss allowance for trade receivables
because management is of the opinion that the amounts will be fully
recoverable as there has not been a significant change in credit quality of the
debtors. The Group does not hold any collateral over these receivables and
the analysis of their aging (based on invoice date) at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

AREFFERBEARBHRELER
EHE 5B YR A R 913,084,000
7t (20184 = AR1878,915,0007T) ° Ak
B AR E S REFRNERER -
AREBEBRREBANEELRYL
BRAEBAEY WEBERAUTHYK
[ RREYERZFEBTRRAE
AEAR - RBERRZERAHZT
B S EAGRNRE DT

Group

*5H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER%TT AREFT
Within 30 days 0HA 98,961 76,328
Within 31 to 60 days INZE60HA 79,514 81,690
Within 61 to 90 days 61=90H A 62,125 65,399
Within 91 to 180 days NE180HA 137,375 139,704
Within 181 to 365 days 181E365H A 197,978 105,513
QOver 365 days HiB36sH 337,131 410,281
913,084 878,915

(v)  Trade receivables past due and impaired vy CEaBERENESEKGIE

ARERARARBERREAHAR
ENE 5 RYGA KSR E R EERR

The Group’s and the Company's trade receivables that are past due and
impaired at the end of the reporting period and the movement of the

allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows: EREHHT :
Group
35E
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETFT
Trade receivables B 5 WA 86,702 138,197
Less: Loss allowance B R (13,863) (13,632)
72,839 124,565
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(v)

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 13. EZRHEMBURIE ()
(continued) v (&)
Movements in the loss allowance of trade receivables B RYGEERERE
Group Company
F%E SN
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 20184F 20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTE AR%®ETrt ARBTR ARETR
At beginning of the year F4 13,632 17,967 - -
Allowance made during the year %R (FFFE10)
(Note 10) 231 4,665 = -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - (9,000) -
At end of the year FR 13,863 13,632 - -

(vi)

(vii)

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end
of the reporting period relate to debtors that are slow in making payments or
are in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments.

The Group has trade receivables amounting to RMB630,438,000 (2018:
RMB437,828,000) that are not past due and not impaired at the end of the
reporting period.

Other receivables

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their fair values.
These amounts are non-trade and unsecured.

Other receivables mainly comprise (a) non-interest-bearing amounts due
from third parties of RMB169 million (2018: RMB165 million) which are
repayable on demand:; (b) tax receivables of RMB201 million (2018: RMB231
million); (c) refundable deposits of RMB31 million (2018: RMB32 million);
(d) value-added-tax refund of RMB37 million (2018: RMB38 million); (e)
government grant receivable of RMB nil million (2018: RMB27 million) and
(f) deferred consideration arising from disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) of
RMB nil million (2018: RMB158 million).

Loss allowance for non-trade receivables is assessed in accordance with
SFRS(I) 9 for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018.

vi)

(vii)

RESHRAREBETAAENE SR
YRS R R BN RERYRR
BWBRISKOBEBA -

AEBBERREHARRBHITER
ENE 5 &8 A R 630438,0007T
(20184F = ARR£437,828,0007T) °

E IR

HEtp YR REEEE AL BER
B REFTRRFEHEEREEA -

HWERFETEBEERE=HE
BHIEARE169ETT (2018F : AR
165870) - BRER(EE : b)ERFE
ANRE2018 7T (201845 : A RE231(E
L (o)RIREIRS ARMES 1008 T (2018
F:ARBI2008ET) : (EEHREH
AR B37008 7T (20184F : A R 3,800
B e BNEBEKGFIEARES T
(20184« ARM270087T) : (L&
WBLQREENELTYHE (M) AR
BT (20184 « ARBASBETT)

B Z2019512 4318 R2018%F12A31A 1t
MBFE  FEHRBTRNEREMR
1B G 382 B B B 5 o 5 22 ) SR 0%%:
TR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019

20195125318
13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 13. BHREMEBYKFE (&)
(vi) (Continued) (vii) (%)
Movements in the loss allowance of non-trade receivables: FESRENRIBERERE
Group
*5E
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARETF T
At beginning of the year F4 3,381 3,418
Reversal of allowance during the year (Note 10) FREFEER (FF10) = (29)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - (8)
At end of the year G 3,381 3,381
14. BILLS RECEIVABLES 14. BERE
Bills receivables are non-interest bearing with credit periods generally ranging FEUREREE  FEEH KN TOE180K
from 90 to 180 (2018: 90 to 180) days. (2018%F : 90Z180K) ©
15. PREPAYMENTS 15. FAFTIR®R
Group Company
F5E /N
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184F 20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TT AR®TR ARETT
Prepayments to suppliers AR EE IR 23,254 19,999 - -
Others Hil 37,049 25,782 2,399 76
Total prepayment, current BRERREE (BNE) 60,303 45,781 2,399 76
Prepayment for assets relating to service BRI ELHAEEMN
concession arrangements® BIERHRE 458,203 41,903 - -
Prepayment for intangible assets BREEBNERR 40,871 25,074 - -
Prepayment for property, plant and ME - BERREENEX
equipment 2,201 487 - -
Total prepayment, non-current BN (JEANE) 501,275 67,464 - -
(a)  Relates mainly to prepayment made for certain infrastructure relating to BOT and (@) EBRERBE019F R1BF12A3A I
TOT service concession arrangements entered during the financial years ended 31 BT F B 7] MBOT R TOTAR IS H s A8 &
December 2019 and 2018. RHEETERRBELNANERE
e
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16.

17.

INVENTORIES 16. &&
Group
*5E
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AEBETFT
Inventories & 159,115 121,219
Inventories comprise consumable supplies held for internal use. FREERFNDRAORRS -
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS 7. BERHERZH

The Group through its subsidiaries engages in the businesses of waste water
treatment, water supply, waste incineration and sludge treatment in the PRC (the
“operator”) and has entered into a number of service concession arrangements
with certain governmental authorities or their agencies in the PRC on a BOT,
TOT, BOO or TOO basis in respect of its businesses. These service concession
arrangements generally involve the Group as an operator to (i) construct waste
water treatment, water supply, waste incineration and sludge treatment plants for
those arrangements on a BOT and BOO basis; (i) pay a specific amount for those
arrangements on a TOT and TOO basis; or (iii) operate and maintain the waste
water treatment, water supply, waste incineration and sludge treatment plants at a
specified level of serviceability on behalf of the relevant governmental authorities
for periods ranging from 20 to 50 years (the “service concession periods”), and
the Group will be paid for its services over the relevant periods of the service
concession arrangements at prices stipulated through pricing mechanism. The
plants will be transferred to the respective grantors at the end of the service
concession periods for BOT and TOT.

The Group is generally entitled to operate all the property, plant and equipment of
the waste water treatment, water supply, waste incineration and sludge treatment
plants, however, the relevant governmental authorities as grantors control and
regulate the scope of services the Group provides to the waste water treatment,
water supply, waste incineration and sludge treatment plants, and retain the
beneficial entitlement to any residual interest in the waste water treatment, water
supply, waste incineration and sludge treatment plants at the end of the service
concession periods. Each of these service concession arrangements is governed by
a contract and, where applicable, supplementary agreements entered into between
the Group and the relevant governmental authorities or their agencies in the PRC
that set out, inter alia, performance standards, mechanisms for adjusting prices
for the services rendered by the Group, specific obligations levied on the Group
to restore the waste water treatment, water supply, waste incineration and sludge
treatment plants to a specified level of serviceability at the end of the service
concession periods, and arrangements for arbitrating disputes.

AEERBEMBARRPEAREGKER -
ok BEEERSERE ([BE/])  ¥E
FHEGRPEE THRA#ERERERER
BOT - TOT » BOOSKTOOEERT i % I8 FRAS H AT 4%
BTl RERBEFTELETH—RIRAE
BlERE LR IA()RBOT RBOOEER L S T
BRSKEER - KK - BEEEHESE
IR (RTOTRT00EERZ ST H T (T4
T8 R(iRFAEBEBMEERIETNRSE
HKEFE RERSRKERRM - HKH - B
BEMRSREER - AN TZE50F ([
BisrmE®])  BASEERNRBETL
BB ABENRR AN REIRE BRI
ERESMN - BEBHNBOTRIOTRE &
EHABXTHEETA

AEE—RAEREESREER - HOKREK -
BRERLSREERNAENE  BFE L&
& AW - ERET ARERBUSEEEH R
RERSERARSKEER - fOKE - B
FERMTRRERERORBHRE - LIRS
AKERER - UK - BERERRLSEEE
B BRIS 2P 8 2 IR E I RIS B R B 25
R - SEZERBFHHFELELEIm— {0
AEEEFERERTEEIERERET Y
MENRERAHN (WER) B5 - E1EA
(EehafE) @MERE - REEMRRRENE
RAEERS BT AREARRBEFELY
RIESRKEIER - $OKRK - BIREZERMITR
EERMREREENRBIEKCENEERE
RIFEFENL -
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20195125318
17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 17. BREBBFEERH (E)
At 31 December 2019, the Group had 123 (2018: 119) service concession 20195128318 + 2 & [E H12318 (20184 :
arrangements on waste water treatment, 7 (2018: 8) service concession N9E) BKEBNRBHFEETH T8
arrangements on water treatment and distribution, 4 (2018: 3) service concession (20185 : 818) /5K I K& 2 Bl 69 R T 48
arrangements on waste incineration and 9 (2018: 9) service concession BRHE - 478 (2018F : 3H) EEEEMNRBS
arrangements on sludge treatment. A summary of the major terms of the principal FEe R DAROIE (20184 « 91H) j5REIE
service concession arrangements with a contracted design capacity of 100,000 BIRIEFETAEE T - AEEMRB ARV
tonnes/day or more entered into by the Group’s subsidiaries is set out below: A ERIEE 00,0000/ KA FREER
BRHEE TN ZRAB 2T
Type of service  Daily design ~ Service
Location in Name of concession capacity  concession
Name of subsidiary as operator Project name the PRC grantor arrangement (tonnes/day)  period
RENFEER SARMER
fEEEEHHMELRRE HE&ER R ERIE BFAEH 2k (H/H) HRERFEEN
Longjiang Environmental Protection Group Co., ~ Harbin Wenchang Harbin, Heilongjiang " &mokik/m  BOT (Financial 650,000 29 years from 2011
Ltd. ("Longjiang Group”) Upgrade BOT Province assets)
EIRREERNEBRAF ([RISE]) WRETXEARRT 2ETLRRE REEZTABR BT (£BEE) 650000 E2011FHRETF
A
Wuhan Hanxi Wastewater Treatment Co., Ltd. Wuhan Hanyi Wuhan, Hubei BEMAREE  BOT (Financial 600,000 30 years from 2005
(“Wuhan Hanxi") Wastewater Province assets)
Treaiment 1st Stage
and 2nd Stage
(Expansion)
REEATKREERAR ([REER]) REERKEEE MlaniE RETARBE  BOT(2REE) 600,000 B 20055 #&TI0F
E-#h g
R
Yiyang City Tap Water Co., Ltd. Yiyang City Water Yiyang, Hunan aEmEEM T0T and BOT 520,0009 28 years from 2016
(*Yiyang Tap Water") Supply Province WA R R (Intangible
assets)
wBEmERKERAR ([REMERK]) RHETETHKEE HEdsE wEmEEM TOTRBOT (EFE 5200000 E20164F #5285
WBEER E)
Mudanjiang Longjiang Environmental Protection  Mudanjiang Water Mudanjiang, HFHITHmRE 10T (Intangible 360,000 30 years from 2010
Water Supply Co., Lid. Supply TOT Heilongjiang EEERAT assets)
("Mudanjiang Tap Water") Province
RETETRREKERAR ((MHIE HAIMERKEI ZRIEHMT HYIngmRE 10T (BVEE) 360,000 H2010% 5305
ok]) R ERBRAF
Jiamusi Longjiang Environmental Protection Jiamusi Water Supply ~ Jiamusi, Heilongjiang ARG H#E A TOT (Intangible 360,000 30 years from 2012
Water Supply Co., Lid. (“Jiamusi Tap Water”) ToT Province AR R assels)
FRE (£H)
BRAR
EARIRTRREKBERAR ([EAFE EAREMARKRIOT 2RILEAE  ERIDHEAR 101 (BVEE) 360,000 H2012F R5F30F
k) R MERZEE
FRE (£E)
BRAR
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17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 17. BREHFEERE (8)
Type of service  Daily design ~ Service
Location in Name of concession capacity  concession
Name of subsidiary as operator Project name the PRC grantor arrangement (tonnes/day)  period
RENHEER SARTER
fERESHENMELR AR HE&H# RPENEE BF¥A\2H HER (H/8) BENFEEH
Longjiang Group Harbin Taipin Harbin, Heilongjiang MR HEKEE  BOT (Financial 325,000 25 years from 2005
Wastewater Province BREAAHF assels)
Treaiment BOT
EIEE BRETATKE BRILZWEE RRERFKEE B0T(SBEE) 325000 H2005F 5T
BOTEE BREELH
Longjiang Group Harbin Wenchang Harbin, Heilongjiang M@/ Mk#E  TOT (Financial 325,000 30 years from 2010
Wastewater Province assets)
Treaiment TOT
EIEE BRETXETKE BRIthAE RRETKER 0T(SREE) 325000 E2010F #5130
TOTIEE
Weifang City Tap Water Co., Ltd. Weifang City Tap Water ~ Weifang, Shandong ~ #$5m AREF 0T and BOT 320,000 25 years from 2007
(“Weifang Tap Water") Supply Province (Intangible
assets)
WHTEIKERAR (DEBERK])  BHmEmaK WRE RS ESTARBE  TOTRBOT (BFE& 30000 BE2007EREHE
R E)
Wuhan Huang-Pi Kaidi Water Services Co., Ltd. ~ Wuhan Huang-Pi Huang-Pi, Hubei HEMERER  BOT (Intangible 140,000 30 years from 2008
(“Wuhan Huang-P1") Kaidi Water Supply Province assets)
REERNEBEERAR ((REER]) REMEREMK  WLEER REMERERN B80T (BREE) 140,000 520085 #5130
A
Huizhou City Nanfang Water Co., Lid. Huizhou City Meihu~~ Huizhou, Guangdong ~ EMFRIRR BOT and TOT 200,000 25 years from 2005
(*Huizhou Nanfang’) Water Treaiment Province (Financial
Center 1st, 2nd assets)
Stage
ENmEAKBERAR ((EMES))  BNTEEKEEE EREEM BINTRRR BOTRTOT (& 200000 E20055 5255
B—-#-HEA &)
Shenzhen City Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. Longgang Yibao Shenzhen, FTKER BOT (Financial 200,0000 22 years from 2009
("Shenzhen Nanfang’) Shenzhen City Guangdong assels)
Wastewater Province
Treaiment
AMmEAKEERAR (RES]) AImEE-2Ek EXREH ATKER BOT (2BEE) 200,0009 520094 #&T22F

REER
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17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 17. BREFFEERE ()
Type of service  Daily design ~ Service
Location in Name of concession capacity  concession
Name of subsidiary as operator Project name the PRC grantor arrangement (tonnes/day)  period
RENHEER SHRER
fEEEEHHNELRRE FEER R ERE BFAER B (H/H) BRERFEEN
Shanghai Fengxian West Wastewater Treatment ~ Shanghai Fengyian Fengxian, Shanghai 3§ m7kiBR BOT (Financial 200,000 25 years from 2007
Co., Ld. West Wastewater assels)
Treatment 1st, 2nd
and 3rd Stage
LEmEERGSKEEERAT LEZEARYSKE LEZE LDEMKER BOT (£REE) 200000 B2007FH5F
EROT—H = H=
HEA
Weifang Shanghai Environment Wastewater Weifang City Wastewater  Weifang, Shandong ~ #57m ARER  BOT (Financial 200,000 30 years from 2016
Treaiment Co., Ltd. Treaiment Plant Province assets)
Project (Expansion)
W LEREKEEER AR WRESTEKEE IWRERS ESTARRR  BOT(2®EE) 200000 E2016% #5H30F
HBERIER
SIC Environment Holdings (Beihai) Co., Ltd. Beihai Wastewater Beinai, Guangxi EEmHmERS 10T (Financial 200,000 30 years from 2019
Treatment Project Zhuang MgmERE assets)
Hongkan Wastewater ~ Autonomous MRBRRR
Treatment Plant Region
FERGAR (L) BRAF WETKEEREL EEfKERE JLETHAEER 10T (2REE) 200000 B2019F T30
RKEER jinic} MemtE
QSRS
Shanghai Qingpu Second Wastewater Treatment  Qingpu Second (ingpu, Shanghai HEmEEE BOT and TOT 180,000 30 years from 2008
Co., Ld. Wastewater KR (Financial
Treaiment assels)
FEEREITKEERERAR BREZSKREE LEBH LEmER BOTRTOT (2 BE 180,000 20085 L5304
] BB E)
Yuyao ity Xiaocaoe Urban Wastewater Treaiment ~ Yuyao City (Xiaocaoe) ~ Yuyao, Zhejiang FITHARBA  BOT (Financial 225,000 22 years from 2014
Co., Ld. Wastewater Province assels)
Treatment BOT
AT BB T KREER AT Rk (NER) 5K MIERR RTARBE  BOT(RBEE) 25000 E2014F A2
JEIZB0TEE
Harbin Pingyi Longjiang Environmental Protection  Harbin Pingfang Harbin, Hellongjiang ~ ta B E @A BOT (Financia 150,000 30 ygars from 2011
Water Treatment Co., Lid. Wastewater Province EZE® assels)
Treatment BOT
RRETERIERAKERAA RRETTR KR REIERAE REETEENN BT (2REE) 150,000 B20115 5305
BOTIEE 5ZEE
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17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 17. BRERFFEERE (F)
Type of service  Daily design ~ Service
Location in Name of concession capacity  concession
Name of subsidiary as operator Project name the PRC grantor arrangement (tonnes/day)  period
FRENHEER SHRMTER
fERESHENMELR AR HE&H RPENEE BFAER HER (H/B) BESFEEH
Huangshi Kaidi Water Services Co., Lid. Huangshi Cihu Huangshi, Hubei ERMMHAMAA  BOT (Financal 125,000 27 years from 2008
Wastewater Province assets)
Treatment
BRIk ERAT EATHASKEE BLEER BEEMMHABRR BT (RREE) 125000  E20085 K85 275
AR
Chenzhou Nanfang Wastewater Treatment Co., Chenzhou City Chenzhou, Hunan WHTHRTERR  BOT (Financial 120,000 25 years from 2003
Ltd. Wastewater Province assets)
Treaiment
WNERSKEEERERAT WINTAKEEEE  BEEHM WHTETERR BT (RREE) 120000 B2003F #8525
Dalian SIIC Environment Quanshuine River Dalian Quanshui Dalian, Liaoning KEMHTRRZE  BOT (Financial 105,000 21 years from 2016
Wastewater Treatment Co., Lid. River Wastewater Province B assets)
Treatment 2nd Stage
AEFEREFKTSKEEERAA  RETFKTIKE EEEAE AEMHTRRE BT (2REE) 105000 B2016EREHANE
BH_HER ER
Huizhou SIIC Environment Nanfang Wastewater  Huizhou City Meihu~ Huizhou, Guangdong M F ARTRF  BOT (Financial 100,000 27 years from 2015
Treatment Co., Ltd. Water Treatment Province assets)
Center 3rd Stage
BN EERAKBEERAA BNTEAKEEE EXRESM BINTARBE  BOT(2REE) 100000 E20156F #5274
B=4
SIIC Environment (Yinchuan) Water Treatment — Yinchuan Fifth Yinchuan, Ningxia SRl BB BOT and TOT 100,000 30 years from 2014
Co., Ltd. Wastewater Hui Autonomous (Financial
Treaiment Region assets)
BRI (B)) SKRRERAR BNTERSKEE EEERERE  HIIMEESE BOTRTOT (2B & 100,000 E20146F #5305
AR &/ E)
SIIC Environment Holdings (Dezhou) Co., Lid. ~ Dezhou City Wastewater  Dezhou, Shandong @) FitZE& 10T (Financial 100,000 20 years from 2006
Treatment Province assels)
TERE (BM) AKEEERAT EINTEKESR WRBEN EimeRZEe 10T(SREE) 100,000 B 20065 #5120
BER
Nanyang Tianguan Water Treatment Co., Lid. Nanyang City Baihenan ~ Nanyang, Henan AEmEEAEE  BOT (Financia 100,000 30 years from 2014
Wastewater Provinge BHZEe assels)
Treaiment Plant
Project
BBAEKEEBRAT EETETEAKE WHEER ABETEENNS BOT (SREE) 100,000 E20146F #5305
BHIE BRZEE
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2019512 A31H
17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 17. BREFFEERE ()
Type of service  Daily design ~ Service
Location in Name of concession capacity  concession
Name of subsidiary as operator Project name the PRC grantor arrangement (tonnes/day)  period
RENHEER SHRER
fEEEEHNNELREE FEER R ERE BFAER HER (H/H) BRERFEEN
Harbin Pingyi Longjiang Environmental Protection ~ Harbin Xinyi Wastewater ~ Harbin, Heilongjiang "B E A BOT (Financial 100,000 30 years from 2011
Water Treatment Co., Lid. Treaiment BOT EZ8%9 asstls)
BRETEETBRAKERAT BRETEEKE RRIZREE RRETEENN BT (2REE) 100000 E201FHEF0F
BOTEE EZEg
Mudanjiang Longjiang Environmental Protection  Mudanjiang Wastewater  Mudanjiang, HATmE T T0T (Financial 100,000 30 years from 2007
Water Co., Lid. Treatment TOT Heilongjiang RESBER asstts)
Province NG
HHTRTRRKBERETLH HTHSKERIONE SRIEHAT  HFITHARE 10T (SREE) 100,000 E20074F #5305
H EEERAT
Mudanjiang Longjiang Environmental Protection  Mudanjiang Wastewater ~ Mudanjiang, HRTITKERE  BOT (Financial 100,000 30 years from 2015
Water Co., Lid. Treatment 2nd Stage Heilongjiang assets)
BOT Province
HHIRIRRKBBREELH RETImEKR_S ZERIEHAT  HfInkER BT (2EEE) 100000  E20155KEEFI0E
BOTIEE
Dongguan City DaLang Shui Kou Xing Bao Water ~ Dongguan City Dalang  Dongguan, RRmARE BOT (Financial 100,000 25 years from 2006
Treatment Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Da Lang") Songshanhu Guangdong ARBR assels)
Southern Wastewater ~ Province
Treaiment Plant
Project
RETAHKOREABERAR ([R5 REDARLLAE ERERE BEMAREAR BIT(2BEE) 100000 E20065F #5255
ABRL) SKEERER B
Jiamusi Longjiang Environmental Protection Jiamusi East Wastewater  Jiamusi, Heilongjiang S ARET RS BOT (Financial 100,000 15 years from 2018
Water Co., Ltd. Treaiment 1st and Province Ri&R asstls)
2nd Stage
EARSBELRRKBBRAR EARREAKER BEISEAT EAEWRERE BT (2REE) 100000 B2018F #5155
—H_HER 5

(@)  The existing plant of 320,000 tonnes/day design capacity is in operation. Phase 4
project is currently under construction and is expected to be completed in 2020, and
is included under service concession period in the above table.

(b)  The amount relates to contracted design capacity under service concession
arrangement. The total contracted design capacity of the project is 280,000 tonnes/
day. The remaining 80,000 tonnes/day relates to contracted design capacity under
operation and management arrangement.
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17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

Receivables under service concession arrangements

As described in the accounting policy for “Service concession arrangements”
set out in Note 2.8, consideration given by the grantor for a service concession
arrangement is accounted for as an intangible asset (operating concessions)
or a financial asset (receivables under service concession arrangements) or a
combination of both, as appropriate. The intangible asset component is detailed in
Note 25, and the financial asset component is as follows:

17.

BRBRFEE R (W)
BHERFEERHATRERER

P T2 8FT &L [ ARFS ST AR 25k ] G RHR
BT BT AR FEERIHEL S
BARAEVEE (BFrCeR) AepEE
(RBFHFRETHBTRYR) AMELS
(WER) - BV EEARK D M 5L -
MEMEEAREIWT -

Group

*5H
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Receivables under service concession arrangements RSB R HE TRIGR 17,670,242 15,846,470
Less: Current portion classified as current assets W A BBRBEENTED (476,970) (361,619)
Non-current portion FEnBEH 17,193,272 15,484,851

Expected collection schedule is analysed as follows: BERFRRARMTOT -

Within 1 year 15/ 476,970 361,619
Within 2 to 5 years 1E5ER 2,219,628 1,644,375
Over 5 years SELLE 14,973,644 13,840,476
17,670,242 15,846,470

During the current financial year, the Group recognised financial income of
RMB944,919,000 (2018: RMB859,148,000) (Note 4) and construction revenue
of RMB2,172,454,000 (2018: RMB2,220,077,000) as revenue from service
concession arrangements. The effective interest applied ranges from 4.90% to
8.00% (2018: 4.90% to 8.00%) per annum.

The relevant assets pledged by the Group are disclosed in Note 47 to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has RMB3,106,904,000 (2018:
RMB4,391,064,000) of contract assets pertaining to construction contracts in
progress within the receivables under service concession arrangements balance.

There were significant changes in the contract asset balances during the reporting
period due to fewer ongoing projects under construction during the year.

REAFREE  AEEERFBRAARE
944,919,0007C (20185 : A K #859,148,0007C)
(P 554) R 22 3k Mo A A R #652,172,454,0007C
(20184F : AR¥2,220,077,0007T) 1ERARTSFFAT
BERPRRA - BRERFHENF490%
%8.00% (20184F : 4.90%%8.00%) °

REB RO AR EER P B RR M 4R

Zo

RO19F12ANE - AEERBEIEE R
BTRMGIESETSRERBEGNNEGH
BERANRES106,9040007T (20185 : AR
4,391,064,0007T) ©

ANENEELREER D  KLEHNAHE
EHELEEALS -
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17. SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

Receivables under service concession arrangements (continued)

Management estimates the loss allowance on receivables under service concession
arrangements at an amount equal to 12-month ECL, taking into account the
historical default experience and the future prospects of the construction industry.
None of the receivables under service concession arrangements at the end of the
reporting period is past due.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for the
contract assets.

Provision for major overhauls

Pursuant to the service concession agreements, the Group has contractual
obligations to maintain the waste water treatment, water supply, waste incineration
and sludge treatment plants to a specified level of serviceability and/or to restore
the plants to a specified condition before they are handed over to the grantors
at the end of the service concession periods. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore the waste water treatment, water supply, waste incineration
and sludge treatment plants, except for any upgrade element, are recognised
and measured in accordance with SFRS(I) 1-37, i.e., at the best estimate of the
expenditure that would be required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The future expenditure on these maintenance and restoration
costs is collectively referred to as “major overhauls”. The estimation basis is
reviewed on an ongoing basis, and revised where appropriate.

Movements in provision for major overhauls are as follows:

17.

BB RFEE R (W)
BREFFEEZHRTRBRE (8)
EEERASANEANEREEBENRA
R RBE R E LB T RR AR AE
B ARBEROBEREERNR - BEH
R ERB AR E 2R TR KRR -

RARESR - SR NEEFRERERN
P UEE PR

EABERE

RERBEFELHE  AEBFROEES
FRKEIER - HUKR - BIERERNTREE
BRI ERBACE R/ SR IR AR 2
HMABRBE TERT ARBRE REEREM
Mo MR RIRIEISKEEIZR - KB - BREH
ERMMSRERER (EATRTERI) 08
WEEDLRE G ERMBRSER) £
13 ER R B - RN BERRAFLB
REBENRAXORERT - ZEHERRE
AR RRFAX SRR [ERRE ] - A EER
ERBETRYRMEHEEER -

BERREREZHNT

Group

F5H
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TT AREFT
At beginning of the year 1 36,305 28,280
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR = 9,518
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR = (1,844)
Provision made during the year FREE 886 351
At end of the year (Note 37) EX (M) 37,191 36,305
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18. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

18. B () ERENIER

Group

*5E
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AEBETFT
Construction contracts BEAH 55,697 51,455

Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREEROFENAT

Amounts due from customers for contract work EUWEEANTRER 66,772 56,553
Amounts due to customers for contract work EREEANTRT (11,075) (5,098)
55,697 51,455

Advances received from customers for contract work, representing contract
liabilities amounted to RMB471,223,000 are classified under other payables (2018:
RMB380,303,000).

At 31 December 2019, net amount due from (to) customers for contract work of
RMB55,697,000 (2018: RMB51,455,000) have been classified as current because
they are expected to be realised in the normal operating cycle of the construction
projects.

Amounts due from customers for contract work included provision for foreseeable
losses of RMB25,000 (2018: RMB25,000) as at year end.

Amounts relating to construction contracts are balances due from customers
under construction contracts that arise when the Group receives payments from
customers in line with a series of performance — related milestones. The Group will
previously have recognised a contract asset for any work performed. Any amount
previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the
point at which it is invoiced to the customer.

There were no significant changes in the contract asset and contract liability
balances during the reporting period.

Management estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from customers for
contract work at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, taking into account the historical
default experience and the future prospects of the construction industry. None
of the amounts due from customers for contract work at the end of the reporting
period is past due.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for the
contract assets.

EREFANIREN EANEREARK
471,223,0007T (20185 = A I #380,303,0007T)
NRREMENE -

RO19612A31R - B (BR) EFAHT
TRFUFEE AR 55,697,000 (20184F : AR
51,455,0007T) B 2B A7E EU%;A%%\IETE
HAREREEN—REEADRAE

RER BREFPANIENBEARAE
BREE AR 25,0007t (20184F = A K #25,000
T e

BRZEANNTARREARNETRERF
HRES  RNARELRPUEINREEL -
BE-ZFBRREN 2R - - AEE KW
FAEREMETNTRANEE - KAIHER
%Aﬁéﬁmﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁT
REHDBRE SRR

REEHRANEERANEERRLEER

2

EREERASNFENENEEERNFUARS
AEEEPANTRINERES LKA
ERNEERARIGZERAR - NREHARM
BREUEPANHIRENEY -

RABERR - BFEANEEFRERER
WEEH R EARRLELS -
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19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM 19. El (Bf) MWEARRIE EBRSEL
JOINT VENTURE/ AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES EREBEBREAFRE
The amounts are non-trade, unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on ZELBERAEEHULE  BEA 2ERE
demand except for amounts due from an associate amounting to RMB40,043,000 BREE HER-FHLLAANTEAR
(2018: RMB40,043,000) which bears interest at 6% to 12% (2018: 6% to 12%) #40,043,0007C (20184 = A R "40,043,0007T)
per annum of which RMB40,043,000 (2018: RMB22,081,000) is not expected to be B F R R6%E12% (20185 : 6%E12%) =t
repaid within the next 12 months from the end of reporting period. B oo Hh A R#40,043,0007T (20185 : AR
22,081,0007T) AT B M B ME AR RK
RIEAREE
Management estimates the loss allowance on amounts due from subsidiaries/joint ERERAEAEANBEEEBENZE
venture/associates at an amount equal to 12-month ECL, taking into account the At ERINE A RRIE  EREERERIE
historical default experience and the future prospects of the construction industry. U E A RIFIERBEERE - Wit RiBTE
None of the amounts due from subsidiaries/joint venture/associates at the end of HEERATREEER S - RS BRI ERE
the reporting period is past due. WHBRRFE ERAELETIE /B
ERFFIBBE o
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions RAREHA - BFEEREGEEMNGETE
made during the current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance. IBEINCERIE:S F)
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS  20. BAoRBEFAEENEMEE
Group
-0 ]|
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Quoted equity shares, at fair value TTERR  RD A BER 3,353 3,067
The investments above include investments in quoted equity securities that offer iﬁ?ﬁﬁ@?ﬁﬁimﬂi?ﬁm&ﬁ\;%$%
the Group the opportunity for return through dividend income and fair value gains. ﬁ%%é@ﬁi%qw\)}ﬁﬁ E@Hﬂlm%i{(%
They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. The fair values of these securities are ﬁ ’ az%z'émﬁmﬂ%ﬁg/ﬁ}zﬁé% ‘SR
based on closing quoted market prices on the last market day of the financial year. iﬁfi?;@iﬁﬁﬂ&ifgméx% A A
m{EFE -
2. SRAREHENEE

21.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 31 December 2018, management resolved to dispose of one of the Group’s
subsidiaries. Negotiations with several interested parties have subsequently taken
place. The assets and liabilities attributable to the subsidiary, which are expected
to be sold within twelve months, have been classified as a disposal group held
for sale in accordance with SFRS(I) 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, and are presented separately in the statement of financial
position.
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21. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued) 21.

22.

The proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the
relevant assets and liabilities and, accordingly, no impairment loss has been
recognised on the classification of these operations as held for sale.

As at 31 December 2019, the disposal was not completed as the Group was in the
process of finalising the payment plan. The disposal is expected to be completed

in 2020.

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the disposal group classified

as held for sale are as follows:

SBEREHENEE (W)
HEMGHRARSHBHEBEERAROE
EFE - Bt BERBEHENZTEED

BHERRERESE -
R2019F 123318 BRERAEBIEEEEN
BT AR - BEHEBR20205F 72K -

RO BEARFHENLEAGNEIREER
BEERMT

Group

310
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETF T
Trade and other receivables B o RE YR 15,490 10,951
Receivables under service concession arrangements R LA B T RYFE 186,340 187,296
Prepayments EES 31 102
Inventories #E 289 85
Total assets classified as held for sale NEABENENEERE 202,150 198,434

Trade and other payables, and total liabilities directly associated B ABELENEEEZEANE SR

with assets classified as held for sale HiERFEN L EELE (156,195) (157,665)
Net assets of disposal subsidiary LENBRAINEETE 45,955 40,769

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 22. BARBEHAEMZEKAMNSMEE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Group Company
F%E S
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184F 20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT ARBTR ARETR
Listed equity securities® TRAESY 13,542 15,643 - -
Unlisted equity securities® FEEMRAESRY 31,764 28,374 15,470 15,080
45,306 44017 15,470 15,080

(@)  The investment related to a 0.71% equity interest in Suchuang Gas Corp Ltd. As at
31 December 2019, the investment was stated at fair value which was determined by
reference to bid prices quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b)  These investments represent ordinary and preference share in private companies. The
fair value of these investments was determined by using the market approach. The
market approach method is a valuation method based on prices at which stocks of

similar companies are trading in a public market (Note 51).

()  FZEEERGAMERNERDFO0T1%E
o R019F12A31H - ZRERDET AR
ARGABERATMBEANBETOAA(ER

B

b)) ZEREARBARANEERELRYD < %
ERENDABEBBRAMSEET - 15
EDENRRTS EABRLRDN R RMR
BRIMAEE (F15Es1) -
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31 December 2019
20195125318
23. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 23. D% BEREE
Group
350
Furniture, Leasehold
Plantand fittings and Motor buildings and  Construction
machinery  equipment vehicles improvement  in-progress Total
i RE RERT
BERESR RikfR RE Rkt ERIE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT AREFT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETR
Cost %3
At 1 January 2018 P11 A1R 76,193 39,079 38972 100,774 31,017 286,035
Additions NE 18,234 9,163 5,863 1,337 37192 7,789
Disposals/Writen off HE /Hi (32 (532) (2,007) (1,160) (468) (4,269)
Acquisiton of subsidiaries (Note 43) WERHB AR (Fi:H43) 64812 119 309 11,101 29% 79426
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) LEMB AR (M) (181) (974) (459) - - (1614)
Reclassification/Transers BB/ B3 10441 4 179 13505 (30985) (6813)
Exchange differences ERER - 29 - 9% - 127
At 31 December 2018 MABERANA 169,467 46,931 42857 125,695 39,751 424 661
Additions NE 10,290 3,933 4415 9,560 21929 55,721
Disposals/Written off mE /M (5,923) (478) (2,349) (1,002) - (9,752)
Reclassification/Transfers BB/ 8% 5150 329 202 (1) (20432) (14,758)
Exchange differences ERER - 2 - 66 - 86
At 31 December 2019 1#201912A318 178,984 50,335 45,125 134,272 47,248 455,964
Accumulated depreciation RHRE
At 1 January 2018 PABEIATR 20,465 14,466 16,919 28,153 - 80,003
Depreciation charge for the year FRAETL 13,206 5,236 5,152 8742 - 32,426
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) HENBAR (Fiiu) (37) (662) (240) - - (939)
Disposals/Written off HE /i (22) (42 (1,933) (170) - (2,552)
Exchange differences ERER - 18 - 70 - 88
At 31 December 2018 20185127318 33,702 18,631 19,898 36,795 - 109,026
Depreciation charge for the year FRFEL 15,121 2453 6,069 9191 - 32834
Disposals/Written off e /s (2079) (241) (1802) (265) - (4,383)
Exchange differences ERER - 17 - 57 - 74
At 31 December 2019 12019512 31R 46,748 20,860 24,165 45,778 - 137,551
Carrying amount EEfE
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12B318 132,236 29,475 20,960 88,494 47,248 318,413
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 135,765 28300 22,959 88,860 39,751 315,635

The relevant assets pledged by the Group are disclosed in Note 47 to the financial

statements.
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23. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

23. W% WERRMW (&)

Company
FoF
Furniture, fittings Leasehold
and equipment improvement Total
Rl KE
Rife HEMREKE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT ARETFT
Cost 5% 3
At 1 January 2018 720181 A1H 725 2462 3,187
Additions NE 29 - 29
Exchange differences PE 3t RE 29 98 127
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 783 2,560 3,343
Additions NE 20 - 20
Exchange differences B 3 28 20 66 86
At 31 December 2019 20195128318 823 2,626 3,449
Accumulated depreciation 2R E
At 1 January 2018 20181 A1H 385 1,504 1,889
Depreciation charge for the year FRFELH 122 315 437
Exchange differences [ERED 20 70 90
At 31 December 2018 2018512 A31H 527 1,889 2,416
Depreciation charge for the year FRFTEZH 124 325 449
Exchange differences EHZESE 15 58 73
At 31 December 2019 #20195F12A31H 666 2,212 2,938
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2019 20195128310 157 354 511
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 256 671 927
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31 December 2019
20195124318

24. RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSET

The Group leases several leasehold land and office premises. The average lease

term is 3 to 40 years.

The Group’s obligations are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets for

ERiERE

AEFEHEETHEDWIRAZNE - T8

THHRIE40F -

AEENEBHLBEASERRENHESE

such leases. BV B KR o
Group Company
E 3] FoFH
Leasehold land and
office premises Office premises
HELHMR
WOBYME /NS F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AERETFT
Cost BE
At 1 January 2019 720191 A1H 57,694 7,730
Additions NE 12,408 12,408
At 31 December 2019 #2019F12831H 70,102 20,138
Accumulated depreciation Rt e
At 1 January 2019 201951 A1H 2197 -
Depreciation charge for the year FRFEZH 7,002 2,577
At 31 December 2019 #20195128318 9,199 2,571
Carrying amount IEEE
At 31 December 2019 #20195128318 60,903 17,561
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25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS/LAND USE RIGHTS

25. |ERE  LERE

Group
350
Patent & Total
Operating licensing Computer intangible Land use
concessions rights software assets rights
WHEEE FHRHTE BERH EPREAH LhERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AREFR ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Cost BE
At 1 January 2018 RA18F1A1H 7173234 6,645 7213 7,187,092 8,386
Additions NE 530,568 9% 4,305 534,968 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 43) WEMB AR (H7H43) 76,354 - - 76,354 -
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 44) HERBLR (HzEdd) (134,000) - (245) (134.245) -
Reclassification EZip 802 - (802) - -
At 31 December 2018 2018124318 7,646,958 6,740 10,471 7,664,169 8,386
Adoption of SFRS(1) 16 B G BIR B i s
#E8I|) E165% - - - - (8,386)
At1 January 2019 #2019F1 A1H 7,646,958 6,740 10,471 7,664,169 -
Additions B 337414 - 2,116 340,130 -
Reclassification EZipd (2,756) - - (2,756) -
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12A31A 7,981,616 6,740 13,187 8,001,543 -
Accumulated amortisation s
At1 January 2018 RA18F1A1H 711,043 5,468 3,921 720,432 1,927
Amortisation for the year FREE 283,539 598 920 285,057 210
Disposals of subsidiaries (Note 44) HEMBAR (i) (43,769) - (241) (44.010) -
At 31 December 2018 R018F12A318 950,813 6,066 4,600 961,479 2197
Adoption of SFRS(1) 16 Ban G insg BIRR Bt s sl
%8I) F165% - - - - (2,197)
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1H 950,613 6,066 4,600 961,479 -
Amartisation for the year ENEH 296,634 598 1258 298,490 -
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31A 1,247,447 6,664 5,858 1,259,969 -
Carrying amount WREE
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12A31A 6,734,169 76 1,329 6,741,574 -
At 31 December 2018 2018124318 6,696,145 674 5,871 6,702,690 6,189
The relevant assets pledged by the Group including those under bank borrowings AEEEROAEEE  AERTERRBE

and finance leaseback arrangements, are disclosed in Note 47 to the financial

statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has RMB2,211,069,000 (2018:
RMB2,053,997,000) of contract assets pertaining to construction contracts in

progress within the intangible assets balance.

MERHERTEE  RUBREMTATRE -

RODI9FNRANAE A EBEFEEH T
FHRERBEANNEGNEERARE

2,211,069,0007¢ (20185 = A & #2,053,997,000

T) e
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25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS/LAND USE RIGHTS (continued) 25. WLRE TERE (|
Land use rights TifE R
The Group has land use rights over state-owned land in the PRC where the AEEREMBELREEMETREE LM
subsidiaries’ operations reside. The land use rights are not transferable. During the THFERRE . THFERBIEZR - FA - =
year, land use rights which amounted to RMB6,189,000, have been reclassified to {5 A A R 166,189,000 B 7 #134 FE A B A
“right-of-use” assets under SFRS(I) 16 at the date of initial application. IR G BIBR B A5 3R 25 22 B1)) 165 B3
SEZE R BE -
Amortisation expense MM
The amortisation of intangible assets and land use rights relating to operating RIZEBREN ERRTRERENERE
concessions is mainly included in the “Cost of sales” and the amortisation of other ERIHEREEETISHAEERNER] B
intangible assets is included in “Cost of sales”, “Selling and distribution expenses” T HEtEPEESHE A HERE] [
and “Administrative expenses” line items in the consolidated statement of profit or ENHAY ] R I{TRAZJ AT -
l0ss.
Impairment testing i (B
Management assessed for indicators of impairment annually and is of the view that EEEGFTHRETR - URA019F12A
there is no further impairment on any intangible assets as at 31 December 2019 TAK2018F 128310 - EEWEMELE
and 31 December 2018. ERE
26. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES 26. REAEWIRER
Group
r£E
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARBTF T
Retention monies® REgE 37,649 36,665
Others® Ho 312,409 325,863
350,058 362,528

(a)  The non-current portion of retention sums are carried at amortised cost using a
weighted average effective interest rate of 4.90% (2018: 4.90%) per annum.

(b)  Asat 31 December 2019 and 2018, the balance included a compensation receivable of
RMB311,460,000 (2018: RMB321,460,000) for the termination of a BOT water supply
project.

Management estimates the loss allowance on long term receivables at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and
the future prospects of the construction industry. None of the long term receivables
at the end of the reporting period is past due.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the current reporting period in assessing the loss allowance.
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27. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by the

Group and movement thereon during the current and prior years:

EERT
UTRARERAEERBAFERRANIE
ERHEARE (BE) ARAEE

Arising Fair value

from service  Undistributed  adjustments

concession earnings of on business
arrangements  PRC entities  combinations Tax losses Others Total

RERBEF NEEEN  EHAHH
BERY X2ERY SAREAE REAER it L

RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TL  ARETR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2018 R2018%1R18 647,804 16,795 1,091,678 (47,280) (17,096) 1,691,901
Charged (Credited) to profi TEENR GtAER)

or loss 143,388 - (40,786) (35,013) 13,330 80,919
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEm B AR (F5E43)

(Note 43) 5,984 - 46,585 - - 52,569
Liabilities directly associated ENBEARELEN

with assets classified as EEREA@ENEE

held for sale (1,610) - - - - (1,610)
At 31 December 2018 R201812A31H 795,566 16,795 1,097 417 (82,293) (3,766) 1,823,779
Charged (Credited) to profi EEENR GtAER)

or loss 138,081 - (45,599) 17718 (6,841) 103,359
Liabilities directly associated BN EARELEN

with assets classified as EEERBNARE

held for sale 11,463 - - - - 11,463
At 31 December 2019 #2019§12A31H 945,110 16,795 1,051,878 (64,575) (10,607) 1,938,601

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of financial position, certain
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of
the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

ABBRRARNZSN BT E - ETEERR
BENBBEEE - ATRUMBRSE M
ERRIERIBEHRONT -

Group
F£E
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETFT
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 2,009,597 1,890,824
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE (70,996) (67,045)
1,938,601 1,823,779

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately RMB898,208,000 (2018: RMB822,898,000) available for offset
against future assessable profits.

RIEHR - AEEA A HHEHRREFHA
HANRBRETIABELAKRE898,208,0007T
(20184F : AR¥822,898,0007T) °
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 27. BERE ()
As at 31 December 2019, certain subsidiaries have unused tax losses of R19F12ANE - ETHB LA DB HR
approximately RMB121,698,000, RMB187,342,000, RMB204,573,000, 20205 ~ 20214F ~ 20224 ~ 20235 220244 F Hf
RMB188,219,000 and RMB196,376,000 (2018: RMB117,803,000, RMB92,530,000, (20184 = FA2019% » 2020%F ~ 20214F - 20224
RMB149,926,000, RMB256,246,000 and RMB206,393,000) expiring in 2020, RAVBFE) MABDAREBBEHARE
2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024 (2018: in 2019, 2020, 2021 2022 and 2023) 121,698,0007C + AR #187,342,0000C + AR
respectively. 204,573,0007C + A R #188,219,0007C &k A R ¥
196,376,0007T (20184 : A R ™117,803,0007T *
AR 92,530,000+ A K #149,926,0007T + A
R 256,246,000 &2 A R #206,393,0007T) °
A deferred tax asset amounting to approximately RMB64,575,000 (2018: AEBED R IEEBLHARK258300,0007T
RMB82,293,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately (20184 = AR 329,172,0007T) #ERIEL 18
RMB258,300,000 (2018: RMB329,172,000) has been recognised for the Group. BENANRE645750007T (20184 - AR
No deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of the 82,293,0007T) o F 7 AR 3R A JE K &9 AN B] 7B B
Group of RMB639,908,000 (2018: RMB493,726,000) due to the unpredictability of H HEFAEERTHEEBARE
future profit streams. 639,908,0007T (20185 : A K #493,726,0007T)
BRELHIEEE -
The use of these tax losses is subjected to the agreement of the tax authorities and ZEBEEBENFREALHERBRE - L&
compliance with certain provisions of the tax legislation of the respective countries AR S ERBERRTERNE THE
in which the companies operate. The use of PRC tax losses will expire within the FEREEEREFRARAERERN
next five years.
Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared BE(RESERERE) - iR BEER2008
in respect of profits earned by PRC entities from 1 January 2008 onwards. As FIABRREMAERERAOKSBHNE
at end of the reporting period, the Group has recognised deferred tax liability M - RWERR  AREFRTRERREY
of RMB16,795,000 (2018: RMB16,795,000) in respect of undistributed profits AOBEFER G B RAERELHIESRE
retained by PRC entities in the consolidated financial statements. AR #16,795,0007C (20184F = A X #16,795,000
L) °
28. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 28. REAFMKRE
Company
b /NG|
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AEBETFT
Unquoted equity shares, at cost JEEMRERRG - R 2,512,392 2,624,555
Deemed investmentst® BEKE 2,930,129 2,856,211
Effects of exchange rate changes [EXRFEHTE 319,823 250,264
5,762,344 5,731,030

(@)  During the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the
Directors of the Company had reassessed the terms of the amounts due from
subsidiaries and resolved that such amounts should in substance form part of the
net investments in subsidiaries, and thus the amounts are classified as deemed
investments.
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28. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 28. RMELRMERRE (])

Management assessed for indicators of impairment annually and is of the view that EREGFHHRETR  URABEIRR
there is no impairment loss required. BEE -
Particulars of the Group’s significant subsidiaries as at 31 December are as RI2AE  AEBEMNEAMBARZFED
follows: Ik
Place of Percentage of effective
incorporation Registered equity interest and
Name of subsidiaries and operation capital  Principal activities voting power held by the Group
BERBIR FRARBERBRER
MELARERE EZE ghEx EED BRELH
RMB’000 2019 2018
ARBTT 2019% 185
% %
Huizhou Nanfang PRC! 65,000  Waste water treatment 100.0 100.0
BN Gl Bk
Shenzhen City Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. PRC 150,000 Waste water treaiment 100.0 100.0
ATRAKBERAT HE KRR
SIIC Environment Holdings PRC! 464900 Investment holding, waste water treaiment and 75.5 755
(Weifang) Co., Ltd. ("SIIC Weifang") reclaimed water treatment
ERFKBRNBRLA FE RERR - KRR RBEKFA
([ EERZKHE])
Weifang Tap Water PRC 153,125 Treatment and supply of potable water 51.3 51.3
A BIROK A PRI o ik e AR AR K
Wuhan Hanxi PRC 330,000 Waste water treatment 80.0 80.0
REER HE KRR
Wuhan Huang-Pi PRC? 242,500 Treatment and supply of potable water 100.0 100.0
REENR B R R MRS AK
Fudan Water PRC! 300,000 Provision of management and consultancy Services 92.2 922
ERKH% HE REEERAARYE
Longjiang Group PRC 360,000 Waste water treaiment 58.0 58.0
BIEE A AKEE
Mudanjiang Tap Water PRC 260,000 Treatment and supply of potable water 58.0 58.0
HALERK HE RENE NS
Jiamusi Tap Water PRC 240,000 Treatment and supply of potable 58.0 58.0
water
EARETARK HE Fa I8 o ke R AR K
1 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of limited liability company. 1 ZELFRPEKIAEREERT
2 This company was established in the PRC in the form of Wholly Foreign-owned 9 AR HERT BINEBERY -
Enterprise.

Annual Report 20195 &% 221



222

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR R M

31 December 2019
20195124318

28. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 28.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has other subsidiaries that are not
significant to the Group.

No debt security has been issued by any of the subsidiaries for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The above subsidiaries are audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP, China for consolidation purposes.

All the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company or jointly by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

RIEELFBRE ()
RBEEHR AEBEREEHASENS LT E
REEMMERF o

BB 2 AR A 220195 R20185F12 4318
IR FEBEITERES -

TRMBARICHEA BNEEDE K
B (BREBER) B -

B LB R A M A AR S A DR EENE
RRAREERS -

Place of incorporation

Number of wholly-owned

Principal activity FTEEE and operation HEMEIRESE subsidiaries

2EMELEHE
2019 2018
20194 20184
Investment holding & E1ER Singapore I 1 1
Hong Kong B 10 9
BVI HBHBRES 9 9
PRC G 2 2
Seychelles ETR 1 1
Waste water treatment SEIKERIE PRC i 21 21
Water supply fox PRC Fh 2 3
Waste incineration EpEEE PRC ] 2 1
Others Hitb PRC H 3 3
51 50

Place of incorporation

Number of wholly-owned

Principal activity FTEXS and operation MBI R EE subsidiaries
F2BMBAFHE

2019 2018
20195 20184F
Investment holding BEER Hong Kong B8 2 1
PRC = 1 2
Waste water and sludge treatment  J57k N5 RE3E  PRC = 76 75
Water supply oK PRC = 6 7
Waste incineration BElEEE PRC H 3 2
Others Hith PRC F 8 9
96 96
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28. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The tables below show details of the non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
that have material non-controlling interests for the financial years ended 31

December 2019 and 2018:

28.

RMBARMRE (&)
TR E B B 2019 R2018F12A31 R 1L B
BEERAEAFERERNAREE2AM

BREZHE

Place of
incorporation

Proportion of
effective equity
interest and voting
rights held by non-

Profit allocated
to non-controlling

Accumulated non-

Name of subsidiary and operation controlling interests interests controlling interests
AR I R FRBRERMSER SETFIERR
MELFRE EEME BiERBRELH EanTE RIERRER
2019 2019 2019
20195 20195 20195
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AR®BTT AR®FR
Longjiang Group and its subsidiaries PRC 42.0% 74,405 1,557,400
EISERANBAR HE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries 79,737 1,956,811
with non-controlling interests
BEERER ARFEERBEAF
154,142 3,514,211
Proportion of
effective equity
Place of interest and voting
incorporation rights held by non- Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary and operation controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests
R & RS ER BT IEER
(ol=yNSIER B i AR SRRl R TE Ret IR RS
2018 2018 2018
018F 20184F 20184
% RMB'000 RMB’000
% ARETF T AERETFT
Longjiang Group and its subsidiaries PRC 42.0 54,954 1,365,638
EISBEREMBAR Bl
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with 89,062 1,703,236
non-controlling interests
ARFERER CERNFEZHED T
144,016 3,068,874
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28. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Management determined that the remaining subsidiaries with non-controlling
interests are individually immaterial.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s subsidiaries that has
material non-controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

28. RMBARMKRE (§)
EREET AL EERES B THEATE
BREREK -

ATEIIREE FRRESNARENBL
AIZHBERBE - ATHBEMNREEE
AVNGEE EIEok 4

Longjiang Group Longjiang Group

and its and its

subsidiaries subsidiaries

EISER EISER

HBAR HiIB LA

2019 2018

20195 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETF T

Current assets TENBE 2,014,736 1,655,075

Non-current assets EREEE 7,658,950 7,087,755

Current liabilities REAE (2,637,475) (2,145,736)

Non-current liabilities FRBEE (4,644,275) (4,706,925)

Equity attributable to owners of the subsidiary MBARER ARLER 2,365,956 1,863,427

Non-controlling interests JEIRfG SR 25,980 26,742

Revenue WA 1,982,746 1,633,140

Profit for the year FERFHE 221,766 169,389

Profit attributable to owners of the subsidiary HB A RI1HEA AR FIE 222,529 170,164

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests FEE AR S B 1R (763) (775)
Profit for the year, representing total comprehensive income FAFE  EREZERALSE

for the year 221,766 169,389
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities WETHEEZRERA OFH)

Pk 36,859 (173,504)

Net cash inflow from investing activities REBRHELEZRERANFE 31,039 167,169

Net cash inflow from financing activities MEETHELE VRS TAFEE 90,225 64,670

Net cash inflow BeRNFHE 158,123 58,335
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28. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Change in the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries

The following schedule shows the effects of change in the Group’s ownership
interests in the following subsidiaries without a change in control, on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

28.

REBATMRE (§)
FREARMBELTMAARERED
TRERAEER T E R BH A EER
EHEEGEIEHARAER AREEED

=7
wEC

2018

20184F

Nanfang Group

BAKE

RMB'000

AREFT

Amounts paid on changes in ownership interest in subsidiary IRRMEARMERERESNEHE (74,682)

Non-controlling interest acquired Wl IR 79,446

Difference recognised in equity RERERNETE 4,764

2018 20184

Nanfang Water BHKE

The Group’s wholly owned subsidiary, KC & Johnson International Limited,
acquired the remaining 8.8% equity interest in Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. (“Nanfang
Water”) for total consideration of RMB74,682,000, increasing its effective interest
from 91.2% to 100% as at 31 December 2018.

Deregistration of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2019, non-wholly owned subsidiary, Longjiang
Environment Projection Group (Harbin Wentaisheng) Co., Ltd. was deregistered.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, non-wholly owned subsidiary, Hunan
Lianhe Runtong Projection Co., Ltd. was deregistered.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, wholly owned subsidiary, Tianmen Kaidi
Water Services Co., Ltd. was deregistered.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, non-wholly owned subsidiary, Tianmen

Kaidi Xinnong Water Services Co., Ltd. was deregistered.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, non-wholly owned subsidiary, SIIC
Shenxian Nanyi Renewable Energy Co., Ltd. was deregistered.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, non-wholly owned subsidiary, Shanghai
Fengxian Wan Water Treatment (Fengxian Wan) Co., Ltd. was deregistered.

AEENZEMBLARESHRERA RS
mAKBAERRE ([M7KH%]) B T6.8%
Bt - BERARKT6820007 - BEER
R FR1.2%E MZE2018412 A31HAI100% °

B E LR
HENIFRANALLFEE  k2EMED
AlLongjiang Environment Projection Group (Harbin
Wentaisheng) Co., Ltd e 55 Mt

HE09FRANBLEFE  F2ENBAF
Hunan Lianhe Runtong Projection Co., Ld #8847
o

BENVFRANBILFE - E2EMBRF
AFISLEKBBRE TR AR AR -

BZEN9F12ANAILEE  F2EMBAFA
Tianmen Kaidi Xinnong Water Services Co., Ltd. % 1
SHEEA o

HZ2019F12ANBEFE  F2EMNBAF
SIIC Shenxian Nanyi Renewable Energy Co., Lid. #¢#
iR

HE018F12A3BLEFE 2 ENBAA

Shanghai Fengxian Wan Water Treatment (Fengxian
Wan) Co., Ltd 4% g8t f
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28. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 28. RBARMKRE (E)
Financial support MBXE
The Company has agreed to provide adequate funds to enable several of its ADEREREEHES EHEHAT2EM
wholly-owned subsidiaries to meet in full its financial obligations as and when BRARHERRSE IS BRE A HEst
they fall due for a period of twelve months from their issuance of their financial T EARRIBNERAE ZEWBLRA
statements. These subsidiaries are investment holding entities with minimal income REERER WK - ARFRBRMEE
and expenses. The Company deemed minimal risk in, and is not contractually BYHORBEN  URTEEHEFENLL
obliged to provide the financial support. 1%
29. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REBLENES
Group Company
F%E FaFH
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184F 20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE AR%®ETT ARBTR ARETR
Cost of unlisted investment in joint REBELFEIE LTREMMRA
ventures 432,840 657,840 305,000 530,000
Share of post-acquisition reserves, JERUE R R - MBRESRE
net of dividend received 59,330 49,155 - -
Foreign exchange difference GNEEEE 40,437 29,521 37,043 27,858
532,607 736,516 342,043 557,858
Particulars of the Group's joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are as REESRR  AEENSEREFBNT
follows:
Percentage of effective
equity interest and
Place of voting power
incorporation and held by the Group
Name of joint venture operations Principal activities FREMBERRER
EHRLERE HMEIRESME IEEH RRETSL
2019 2018
20195 20184
% %
Shanghai Pucheng Thermal Power Energy Co., Ltd.@ PRC Waste incineration power 50 50
(“Shanghai Pucheng’) H generation
PEERASRRERAR ([ LEmEm]) EE%HS
Wenling Hanyang Resources Power Co., Ltd.® PRC Waste incineration power 50 50
RILHTFERENERAF H generation

BlEEEE

(@) Audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, China for
consolidation purposes.
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29. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

2. RERLENHED (W)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material interest in joint BHEAREERGERE (A LEHHM) NEX
venture, namely Shanghai Pucheng, is set out below. The summarised financial EaMBERBESINNT - TXHBER
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial MERRB(IBREERN) RENGELE

statements prepared in accordance with FRS.

MFTBERRATNEE -

Shanghai Pucheng

LimE
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT
Current assets TENEE 209,702 651,607
Non-current assets ERBEE 523,151 523,741
Current liabilities RBAE (29,930) (39,182)
Non-current liabilities FRBERE (77,527) (81,393)
Non-controlling interests JEPE R (4,843) (4,453)
620,553 1,050,320

Shanghai Pucheng

LB

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TTT ARETTT

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: A L EERBESEAIENTRIE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEY 163,893 604,894
Revenue WA 264,710 259,806
Profit for the year FERHMHE 68,375 57,900
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEBALE 68,375 57,900
Dividends paid during the year FREMNEE 41,752 65,587

The above profit for the year includes the following: HFEAFEREATEIE

Depreciation and amortisation ER#H (18,060) (16,257)
Interest income FEHA 4,883 11,958
Income tax expenses i ik (6,791) (16,836)
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29. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 29. RERLRMHER (R)

THBBEMEREANG S M REAERL
REELENEENEREESRK -

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
amount of the interest in the joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Shanghai Pucheng

LB
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETF T
Equity attributable to owners of the joint venture BENEGBABLER 620,553 1,050,320
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest AEB ARG 50% 50%
310,277 525,160
Purchase price allocation adjustments EEENILAE 23,854 25,471
334,131 550,631
Foreign exchange difference SNEZEEE 37,043 27,858
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the joint venture AEERGERENERNERE 371,174 578,489

Aggregate information of joint venture that is not individually material ERIMEL FERNEEREERIES

Group
k3L )
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER%®TT AEETFT
The Group’s share of profit AEBERELFE 14,175 16,305
The Group’s share of total comprehensive income AEEEHEZERAEE 14,175 16,305
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interest AEEREECEMERMEKREE
in the joint venture 161,433 158,027
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30. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 30. REREBLRMER
Group
*5H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Cost of unlisted investment in associates REEARMIELTRERAE 133,953 105,346
Share of post-acquisition profits, net of dividend received e BB FE - MIRBREWRE (34,875) (24,419)
99,078 80,927

Based on contractual arrangements between the Group and other investors, the
Group does not hold power over the associates via voting rights from majority of
the board of directors, where the relevant activities of the entities are determined
by the board of directors based on majority votes. Therefore, management of the
Group concluded that the Group has no control over the associates, and thus,
all associates are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated
financial statements.

REFSBEAMREZRTINANLRE &
SEYREBESEAZERERMBALT
BERREAR)  MZSERNAEREIDT
HEZERBAZHZRET - Al AREE
BERATEEHZSHEARLELHE -
BB E DR ARSI AN G M HRE
NN

Annual Report 2019F £

229



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR R M

31 December 2019

2019512 A31H
30. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 30. REELFMESR (8)
Particulars of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting period are as RIEBR - REEBREARMNFEOT
follows:
Percentage of
effective equity interest
Place of and voting power held
incorporation by the Group
Name of associate and operations Principal activities FRERBERKER
BRELFRE HMBIREEME IEBEXH BREEAL
2019 2018
20195 2018F
% %
Linwu County Nanfang Water Co., Ltd. PRC Waste water treatment. 20.0 20.0
(“Linwu Nanfang”)e0! i EIKER
BRREEAKBERAE ([FRRES]) @0
Sichuan SIIC Environment Investment PRC Investment Holding. 30.0 30.0
Development Co., Ltd.® i KREER
M) EEREREERBB AR
Dongguan Ghangan Jinxia Sanzhou Water Purification PRC Waste water treatment. 35.5 35.9
Co., Ltd. (“Changan Sanzhou")® i BIKER

FERRBESNBIERAT ((RRZH))

Dongguan Ghangan Xinmin Water Purification Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Waste water treatment. 30.4 30.4
(“Changan Xinmin”)@! H KR

REMREMRKEFCERAT
(TRZHE]®

Kunming Puzhao Water Purification Co., Ltd. PRC Waste water treatment. 30.0 30.0
(*Kunming Puzhao”)@© H KRR

BALTRKEFHCERERAR
(TEHRER]) @0

Ningan City Donghaiyang Water Supply Co., Ltd. PRC Water Supply. 15.0 15.0
(*Ningan Donghaiyang”)® H HK

BT REFHKBEREELRT
([FRFE) 0

Shanghai Yangtze River Delta Water Environment HK Investment Holding. 40.0 -
Investment Fund Limited o RERER

ERR=ZAKREREESBERDA
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30. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(@)  Audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP, China for

consolidation purposes.

(b)  Linwu Nanfang’s 20.0% effective equity interest was held by Nanfang Water. The Group
exercises significant influence via direct controlling interest in its immediate holding

company, Nanfang Water.

(c)  Kunming Puzhao’s 30.0% effective equity interest was held by Nanfang Water. The
Group exercises significant influence via direct controlling interest in its immediate

holding company, Nanfang Water.

(d)  Although the Group holds less than 20% of the effective equity interest of Ningan
Donghaiyang, the Group exercises significant influence via direct controlling interest
in its immediate holding company, Longjiang Group, which holds 25.9% equity

interest in Ningan Donghaiyang.

There is no material interest in associate for the financial year ended 31 December

2019 and 31 December 2018.

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material

30.

REEATNEE (&)
0 HELBOSEDEXEHBERS
(BHEBAE) B -

(b) FREETT 00 ERIESE KGR
B AEEEBREERERARFT
TRTG ) B R PR B T 0 W R 05 BB A
BEXPE-

(c)  Kunming Puzhao®930.0%E X fi% # i =3 7
KEHE - AEBEBREEZELZRA
BRI 5 /K75 O B4 122 AR 4 2 1 £/ Kunming
PuzhaoE INE RS2 o

() BEAREMSEZREGFOERRE
TRA%  AKBEBEBRNEERERD
AREIEE (BBELTREF25I%HHE)
MERERESMYERREFENE
N7

BZE20195F12 7318 R2018E12 A3 B LM B F
B AEEMERNGEARERENES

BRI E L AERRB LR R ERES

Group
.30
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
The Group’s share of loss AEEELER (9,737) (1,004)
The Group’s share of total comprehensive loss ASERE2EEBRSE (9,737) (1,004)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests in these Bk & N AR R AR Y
associates 99,078 80,927
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cash generation units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. The carrying amount of the goodwill had been allocated as follows:

31. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION 3. AfEE
Group
k3L )
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AEETFT
Cost 2%
At beginning of the year and at end of the year FURER 493,599 493,599
Accumulated impairment losses ZitRESE
At beginning of the year and at end of the year FORER 36,358 36,358
Carrying amount IREE 457,241 457241
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the ERAHESHEENENR YR 2EHT A

ZEBAHXENREELEN - HENER

EDREMT :

Carrying amount of goodwill
before recognition of

Carrying amount of goodwill
after recognition of

Name of subsidiaries CGU impairment loss impairment loss
R EE R RRERESEREZD
R NGIE L HeELEM HEREE BEREE
2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 2018F 2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARE®ETT ARBTR ARETR
SIIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Municipal EPC
Co., Ltd.@
FERFER () ERAR THEPC 36,358 36,358 - -
Lap Yin International Limited® Waste incineration power generation
MR ER AR EEEE 6,692 6,692 6,692 6,692
Taizhou Kaidi Waste Water Treatment Waste water treatment
Co., Ltd.®
aMsldsKEEERARY KR 2,858 2,858 2,858 2,858
Fudan Water ® Waste water treatment
1=p S L SEIKERE 447,691 447,691 447,691 447 691
493,599 493,599 457,241 457 241
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31. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION (continued) 3. EHEE (F)

(a)  The recoverable amounts of the CGU, which is classified under construction segment, @ PEREIZIBOREELEEMHAY
has been determined based on value in use calculations using cash flow projections E&BENFREREANAFENKRE
from financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. EMReREENREFTREENEE
Management has considered and determined the factors applied in the financial BT -ERECEERETEMERT
budgeted gross margins and average growth rates. The budgeted gross margins HEREPHEEMRANSER X -
are based on past performances and its expectation of market developments for the EMNEEEDNERZDHNBERRR
segment. Based on the assessment performed, management has fully impaired the HEHMS2HET - BEFMETHF
goodwill. i EEECEBERERE -

(b)  Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated from b)) FREEDNBAGEFESHSKREE
the continuing use of waste water treatment plants/waste incineration power generation B BREEER (REETELHNT
plant over the service concession period ranging from 20 to 30 years, using a discount NFZI0F) MEERMRIIRE1L8.0%
rate of 8.0% (2018: 8.0%). Management believes that this forecast period is justifiable (2018%F : 8.0%) WOITREMAMETE °
due to the long term nature of the projects. Any reasonably possible change to the MREEMRENE  ERERAZS
key assumptions applied is not likely to cause the recoverable amount to be below the EASMBEE - FTABRRREEEM
carrying amounts of the CGU. EREAREHHIERTNELEE

RESELEMORAE -
32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 32. BHREMEMARE
Group Company
F5%E b /NG|
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRE ARETT AR®TR AR%T:x
Trade payables S ENFE 2,191,727 1,902,027 -
Others Hit 1,423,327 1,351,277 48,406 40,296
3,615,054 3,253,304 48,406 40,296
(i) ~ The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the ()  REEEREREZAHZIIOE HEMTIEN
invoice date at the end of the reporting period: e

Group

F5H
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TTR AREFIT
Within 30 days 0HA 598,022 867117
Within 31 to 60 days INE60HA 144,958 87,391
Within 61 to 90 days 61Z=90H 1A 54,166 88,816
Within 91 to 180 days NE=180HA 233,677 147,619
Within 181 to 365 days 1812365 HA 551,491 192,286
QOver 365 days HBiB365H 609,413 518,798
2,191,727 1,902,027
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32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(if)

(i)

The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days (2018: 30 to 90
days). No interest is charged on the overdue outstanding balances.

Included in other payables and accruals as at 31 December 2019 were (a)
customer advances of RMB549,582,000 (2018: RMB458,822,000); (b)
amount due to non-controlling shareholders of RMB128,444,000 (2018:
RMB145,797,000) of which RMB1,381,000 (2018: RMB16,762,000)
carries fixed interest rates ranging from 4.35% to 5.40%(2018: 4.35% to
5.50%) per annum; and (c) sundry payables of RMB274,567,000 (2018:
RMB285,487,000), mainly due to monies received on behalf of third parties
(including government).

33. BILLS PAYABLE TO BANKS

Bills payable to banks are interest-free and secured by certain bank deposits
pledged with the issuing banks.

32. WHARAMEMARET ()

(i)

(i)

BENTHEEHRNENE (2018F
30E0R) - HE D B AR KA

B o
B

2019512 A31H /Y E o J& (F 38 & &
BB BEQR P2 A REE9,582,000
7T (20184 © A K #5458,822,0007T) ¢ (b)
JEE 15 3E 7 AR % 3R 3R I8 A IR 6128,444,000
T (20184 = A R #145,797,00070) &
AR #1,381,0007T (20185 « ARE
16,762,0007C) & /1 T4.35% =5.40% (2018
F 1 435%F550%) K ETE FRIEGE
T (c)FE 1+ 5 B A R #5274,567,0007T (2018
F o ARIE85487,0007T) - TEARE
E=7 (BEBI) FTIKHIE -

3. ERRTRE

BRETREAREREETERTRERT
HOIRTTF SR AE IR

34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 3. BITREMES

Group Company

.34 ] . ¥/
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 201848 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB1000
AE®TT AREFTT AE®TTE AREFTT
Bank loans® RITERO 12,359,361 10,483,419 991,791 691,21
Other borrowings'” RAAEHA" 1,050,232 1,604,758 - -
Bond issued® BRI - 391,640 - -
Government loans BREX 40,364 41,720 - -
14,349,957 12,521,537 991,791 691,221

Analysed as: fﬂﬁ e

Current Ui 5,283,615 485,898 991,791 691,21
Non-current FERE 9,066,342 8,235,639 - -
14,349,957 12,521,537 991,791 691221

(@)  The Group’s bank loans include related party loans in the Group’s subsidiaries entered
into through intermediary banks of RMB1,557 million (2018: RMB1,388 million).

(b)  Other borrowings include amount due to SIHL Finance Limited (“SIHLFL") of

@ AEERTEROEAEENBAREETN
RATET L MOBEE 5 BERARB155712 T (2018
F o ARE1388ETT) °

() E fo f& F B & FE FSIHL Finance Limited
(TSIHLFL]) I8 A RE14.10 T (20184 : A

RMB1,410 million (2018: RMB1,605 million). SIHLFL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company’s intermediate holding company, Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited.

The bond was issued on 15 August 2016 by one of the Group’s subsidiaries and had
been redeemed during the current financial year. The bond carried a fixed interest rate
of 3.49% per annum.
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34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
Details of collateral

Certain bank and other borrowings are secured/guaranteed by the Group’s assets
which are disclosed in Note 47 to the financial statements.

3. MITREMER (&)
ERRER
ETRIIMAMETMAEEEEEER E
R FERERMBERAMTT -

Group Company

$5E b /NG|
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 2018F 20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTR ARET:T
Secured/guaranteed B\ ER 10,418,423 9,267,478 - -
Unsecured/unguaranteed EEA mER 3,931,534 3,254,059 991,791 691,221
14,349,957 12,521,537 991,791 691,221

Details on interest rates FIEHE
The table below summarises the interest rate categories of the Group’s and the TEEAREBARRER R AR BEZHF
Company’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period: REER

Group Company

F£E b 3N
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 2018F 20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT AR®TRT ARET:R
Interest-free borrowings BEER 2,335 2,358 - -
Fixed-rate borrowings TERER 3,023,242 2,569,839 - -
Variable-rate borrowings FRER 11,324,380 9,949,340 991,791 691,221
14,349,957 12,521,537 991,791 691,221

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings
are as follows:

FEERARAEROERFTGEMT :

Group Company
*5E /NG

2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 20194 018F
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT AR®TT ARETT
Fixed-rate borrowings (per annum) ? R (§F) 0.80% to 6.00%  0.80% to 6.00% - -
Variable-rate borrowings (per annum) HRAET (BF) 0.80%108.78%  080%t0565% 3.28%103.94%  2.73% t0 3.77%

For the variable-rate borrowings, majority of the contracted interest rates are based
on floating market rates at a discount of 10% to a markup of 20%, repriced at
intervals ranging from monthly to annually.

WEBERME - KB ROFETHERTZ
10%ZEBARNFBTHME  TREAZE
BENRREHNTE -
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34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
Details on contractual maturity dates

35.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

3. RITRAMER (K)

SRR R
TREARBERRAEERAREERNE
M -

J

Group Company
F%E FaFH
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 2018F 20194 2018F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSTT ARETT AR®TR AREFT
Carrying amount repayable: JEERAREE -
Within one year —&ER 5,283,615 4,285,898 991,791 691,221
Between one to two years —EMEA 1,700,352 1,298,038 - -
Between two to five years MEAFA 2,730,735 2,508,376 - -
Qver five years BERF 4,635,255 4,429,225 - -
14,349,957 12,521,537 991,791 691,221
LEASES LIABILITIES HEAE

Lease liabilities (Disclosure required by SFRS(1) 16)

MERE (FNREEH FHEER) 165
HEHRE)

Group Company

*5H . /N
31 December 2019 31 December 2019
20196128318 2019%12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR

Maturity analysis: ZIERHT
Year 1 —1F 12,737 7,381
Year 2 kS 12,737 7,381
Year 3 = 9,903 4,548
Year 4 Mg 3,916 -
Year 5 E 3,196 -
Year 6 onwards NELAE 29,237 -
71,726 19,310
Less: Unearned interest B RBRERF S (15,783) (1,626)
55,943 17,684
Analysed as: DWW

Current nE 9,995 6,515
Non-current JERE 45,948 11,169
55,943 17,684

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease
liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the Group’s treasury function.
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36. FINANCE LEASES

36.

The effective interest rate for the finance leases ranged from 4.90% to 8.78%
per annum for the year ended 31 December 2018. The contractual interest rate is
variable based on PRC’s prime lending interest rate and the net carrying amounts
approximate the fair value as the interest rate approximates the market rate.

MEAR

HENBFRANALFE  BEHENER
FRENTF490%ZE8.78% o & LF X R
SEBEEFNZTE  dRMERETHHER
% HRREERAABERE -

Group
35H
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
&®IE REHR
HERR TRBE
2018 2018
20184 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFT
Amounts payable under finance leases: BEMETHENHE
Within one year —FR 156,145 123,194
Between one to two years —EWMER 155,999 131,384
Between two to five years MERER 284,136 253,423
Over five years BERF 84,601 78,900
Total minimum lease payment mERENZREH 680,881 586,901
Less: Future finance charges B R IRETTSE (93,980)
Present value of lease obligations HEETEMIRE 586,901
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months Rt ZEAREEEENTIE
(shown under current liabilities) (RraadETrER) (123,194)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R+ @ BRI ENFIR 463,707

The relevant assets pledged under the finance leases comprise certain receivables
under service concession agreements, investment in subsidiary and intangible
assets, disclosed under Note 47 to the financial statements.

BERETHRNEREERMBREME
ATFT R B RIS S RHE 2 i TS T IR
B RHERRNERERETERE -
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37. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

37. RftFRBAR

Group

.30
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETF T
Deferred consideration (Note 43) B E (P 7E43) = 50,749
Accruals for benefits due to ex-employees N FRERFIMESIER 50,082 42,312
Provision for major overhauls (Note 17) BABBEERE (FF17) 37,191 36,305
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders® JEE S FE 42 A B 5R SR IE 29,396 48,295
Others Hiy 22,143 26,817
138,812 204,478

(@) Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders carry fixed interest rates
ranging from 4.35% to 5.40% (2018: 4.35% to 5.50%) per annum.

38. SHARE CAPITAL

() FEMIRERBIRFEMEE FMENF
4.35%Z5.40% (20184F - 4F 7| E4.35%%
5.50%) 2 & ©

38. W&

Group and Company

*KERELF
Number of

ordinary shares Amount
EERSE k4]
RMB'000
ARETTT

Issued and paid up share capital ERTREERESE
At 1 January 2018 720181 B1H 2,606,645,126 5,951,889
Cancellation of treasury shares I EER (56,400) (96)
At 31 December 2018 2018512 A31H 2,606,588,726 5,951,793
Share buy-back and cancelled A B 31 I 5 5 (3,771,000) (4,373)
At 31 December 2019 2019512 A31H 2,602,817,726 5,947 420

The holders of ordinary shares (except treasury shares) are entitled to receive
dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one
vote per share without restriction. The ordinary shares have no par value.
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39. TREASURY SHARES 39. EEEB

Treasury shares relate to ordinary shares of the Company that are held by the EFRMERREMBENADEL AR -
Company.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the treasury shares was cancelled by BZRABFN2ANALEE  BEFERHOBAR
the Company. AlEkeH
40. OTHER RESERVES 40. Hfvefs
Group Company
F5%E FoF
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184F 20195 20184F
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H318
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETRT ARBTR ARETR

General reserve —REE 351,003 296,162 - -
Investment revaluation reserve REEHRHE (10,152) (7,269) - -
Translation reserve B L (1 (83,253) (122,760 468,636 309,098
Effects of changes in ownership interests — AM B A FIFr A iR 5
in subsidiaries where there is no BEGIETENTE
change in control (15,490) (15,490 - -
Merger reserve Gt 1 (200,315) (200,315) - -
41,793 (49,672) 468,636 309,098
(a) General reserve (a) —REEE
In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of PRC, companies in BEPBEAREERER  PEDAGEE
PRC are required to set aside a general reserve fund by way of appropriation BFEEERPBREETKRRP 2R
from their statutory net profit reported in PRC statutory financial statements VETE AT REE0%IE R — R E o &
at a rate of 10% for each year. Subject to approval from PRC authorities, the REERELLE  ZES AN 25
fund may be used to offset accumulated losses or increase the registered EREIEMHBEAREMER - BEE
capital of the subsidiary. The appropriation is required until the statutory HEREEREZEEMBRAAGZRER
reserve reaches 50% of the subsidiary’s registered capital. This statutory H50%8 5 B1EE - A ERETATA
reserve is not available for dividend distribution to the shareholders. ERBREDIRIRE °
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40. OTHER RESERVES (continued)
(b) Investment revaluation reserve

The investments revaluation reserve represents the cumulative gains and
losses arising on the revaluation of investments in equity instruments
designated as at FVTOCI, net of cumulative gain/loss transferred to retained
garnings upon disposal.

Investments in equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI are not subject
to impairment, and their cumulative fair value gain/loss included in the
investments revaluation reserve is not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. There has been no transfer of the cumulative gain or loss arising from
these equity investments within equity during the current or prior period.

(c) Translation reserve

The translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional
currencies are different from that of the Group’s and Company’s presentation
currency.

(d) Effects of changes in ownership interest in subsidiaries where
there is no change in control
This represents the effects of changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
when there is no change in control.

(e) Merger reserve
Merger reserve represents the difference between consideration and equity
acquired in a business combination involving entities under common control
using pooling-of-interest method.

41. DIVIDENDS
During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, a final one-tier tax exempt
dividend of S$0.01 per ordinary share, totalling S$26.0 million (RMB131.8

million) was declared and paid in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2018.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, an interim one-tier tax exempt
dividend of S$0.01 per ordinary share, totalling S$26.0 million (RMB130.8
million) was declared and paid in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2018.
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42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012 and
SIIC Environment Share Award Scheme on 27 April 2012. The ESOS 2012 shall
continue in force at the discretion of the remuneration committee, subject to a
maximum period of ten years commencing 27 April 2012.

(a) SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012 (the “ES0S 2012”)/
SIIC Environment Share Award Scheme (the “ESAS”)

The ESOS 2012 is a share incentive scheme. The ESOS 2012 is proposed
on the basis that it is important to retain and to give recognition to the
Group full time employees, Group Executive Directors and employees of
the ultimate holding company and the holding company of the Company
and their subsidiaries (“Parent Group”), and to give recognition to Group
Non-Executive Directors and Parent Group Non-Executive Directors who
have contributed to the success and development of the Company and/or the
Group. The ESOS 2012 will give such persons an opportunity to have a real
and personal direct interest in the Company and to align the interests of such
persons with those of the shareholders of the Company.

The ESAS is a performance incentive scheme which will form an integral part
of the Group’s incentive compensation program. The purpose of the ESAS is
to provide an opportunity for the Group full time employees, Parent Group
Employees and Directors of the Group and Parent Group, who have met
performance targets to be remunerated not just through cash bonuses but
also an equity stake in the Company. The ESAS is also extended to the Group
Non-Executive Directors and Parent Group Non-Executive Directors.

For purpose of ESOS 2012 and ESAS, Non-Executive Director refers to a
Director other than an Executive Director, including an Independent Director.

The aggregate number of shares comprised in options granted to controlling
shareholders or their associate(s) under the ESOS 2012 shall not exceed
25% of the total number of shares (comprised in options and ESAS Awards)
which may be granted under the ESOS 2012 and ESAS. The aggregate
number of shares comprised in options granted to each controlling
shareholder or their associate(s) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares (comprised in options and ESAS Awards) which may be granted under
the ESOS 2012 and ESAS.

42.

DBRAEANHRS
ADER01E4ATAFRMNNELERERE
BAET B R FERERD REET S - 2012F £
EREBRETIROFMZESHBATE
BN EBREBRAB012F4A2TE B T
¢ o

(a) 2012 L RIRBMAMEEE (T20125F £
ERRMEREHY ) LRBREKRGE
Mst i ([ LEIRBER {7 S8 M=t 80 1)

12 LERBERESEZ—BKND
BT E - 20125 EBIRF B ER B
DERRBREBASEERES &
EMTEZUARE DA REEZRAEMN
ERARREMBAR ((HAREE])
MEEDTHNEE YRBAARA
R/ BARERNRY RERIEHERD
EREHTEERERRAERENTE
E o 012F EERBHBRIER SRR
FATERERADEERELREA
MEENZ  YEZFALHONRER
ARBREME B -

LERERO REFER-EAXRID
AR BERASERBRETENA
KD o LERBBN REE B0
RRERRHABNAKEZBES
BAREEEEUNRAEBRFRA
SEEERHKE  ERETERER
SRARBHEM TESTARANR
1 - EERER I KA S TR ESE
RTEZRBAREEFRTESELE -

PO12F LERGBBRES SR LER
BB REEME - FRTESEY
TEFIIMES (BRBUFNTE
2)e

RF012F LERGEBREN ER T2
BRRHREBREANBRERS MK
DRATFEBREN2F LERGER
oigst 8k D BIRE R REY T8I 6E
REWkD (BREBRER LERE
ftn SR Ehst 81 428D MBEHI25% - BRIE
BRI REHBEARRNBERERS
B BB SHRBRIFN2E LERE
BiER 2 N L BRSO BRE &N
REHNRN (BREBRERLER
Biltn SRR BI52R)) BEEN10% °
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42. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) SIIC Environment Share Option Scheme 2012 (the “ES0S 2012”)/
SIIC Environment Share Award Scheme (the “ESAS”) (continued)

The total number of new Shares which may be issued pursuant to the
awards granted under the ESAS (“ESAS Awards”) granted on any date, when
aggregated to the number of new Shares issued and/or issuable in respect
of all ESAS Awards and any other share-based incentive schemes of the
Company, shall not exceed fifteen per cent (15%) of the issued share capital
of the Company (excluding treasury shares) from time to time.

The validity period of options that are granted under the ESOS 2012 (“ESOS
2012 Options”) is five years from the date of offer of such options. Under
the ESOS 2012, the subscription prices of ESOS 2012 Options granted by
the Company will be at the Market Price of a Share at the time of grant, as
determined by reference to the daily official list or any other publication
published by the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited for the five
consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date of offer of such
option. ESOS 2012 Options will not be granted at a discount to the Market
Price.

During the financial years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no ESOS
2012 Options or ESAS Awards were granted.

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS
There is no acquisition of subsidiary/business in FY2019.

2018
(a) Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Dalian Ziguang Water
Treatment Co., Ltd. (“Dalian Ziguang”)

In February 2018, the Group, through its 75.5% owned subsidiary, SIIC
Weifang, acquired 100% equity interest in Dalian Ziguang for a purchase
consideration of RMB137,764,000. Dalian Ziguang is engaged principally in
the operation of one wastewater treatment plant in the PRC.
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43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS (continued)
2018 (continued)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Dalian Ziguang Water
Treatment Co., Lid. (“Dalian Ziguang”) (continued)

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss

Transaction costs related to the acquisition amounting to RMB100,000 had
been recognised in the “Administrative expenses” line item in the Group’s
profit or loss for the previous financial year ended 31 December 2017.

From the date of acquisition, Dalian Ziguang contributed revenue of
RMB91,862,000 and net profit of RMB13,879,000 to the Group. If the
combination had taken place at the beginning of the financial year, the
Group’s revenue and profit after tax would have been RMB5,351,559,000 and
RMB715,354,000 respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and profit of
the Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2018, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

The receivables under service concession arrangements acquired with
a fair value of RMB144,010,000 had gross contractual amounts of
RMB203,974,000.

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Dalian Ziguang Lingshui
Waste Water Treatment Co., Ltd. (“Ziguang Lingshui”)

In February 2018, the Group, through its 75.5% owned subsidiary, SIIC
Weifang and its 100% owned subsidiary, Hong Kong Jinhaide Holdings
Limited, acquired 100% equity interest in Ziguang Lingshui for a purchase
consideration of RMB123,375,000. Ziguang Lingshui is engaged principally
in the operation of one wastewater treatment plant in the PRC.

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss

Transaction costs related to the acquisition amounting to RMB100,000 had
been recognised in the “Administrative expenses” line item in the Group’s
profit or loss for the previous financial year ended 31 December 2017.

From the date of acquisition, Ziguang Lingshui contributed revenue of
RMB39,653,000 and net profit of RMB13,980,000 to the Group. If the
combination had taken place at the beginning of the financial year, the
Group’s revenue and profit after tax would have been RMB5,350,816,000 and
RMB712,578,000 respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and profit of
the Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2018, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

43.

KERMEBLR RE (R)
2018%F (#%)

(a)

(b)

BBAXEERKEEBRLARA((XER
3 1) 100%8% 4 (&)
WREEENES Y E
BRAWENR SR A ARE1000007TE
WA EBEHZ2017F128318 1t £ —8F
BEEMNBEHRN [TRAS ] BE R

e

BUEEE KREZEAAEEERZ
WA AR 91,862,000 REEFEHE A
A R HE13,879,0007T © fisf & OF B AR B
FONELE AEEHRARBENER
7 Bl & A K #5,351,569,0007T B A R
715,354,0007C - EERHERZRZA
ABFRAMP018FIATE TR ER
SEERERNBALTE - HAAR
BRMEEMRA -

BUMEE QA4 BEAARE144,010,0007T,2
BRBFFCLTEETRRREZEA
&8 A AR203,9740007T

BRAXEEXEKRTFRKEERERLA
(T%FEK 1) 100%0%

R1852R - AEB B BEEAFTSS%
EEMMBAR LERESIRESES
100%EEHMBARE S BEEKRE
PR D IR B K B KA 100% % 1 - Uk BB
HEEEAARE1233750007T - K0k
KA EBERERETRKEIRER -

WESEHESZYE

BRKENR 5 M A ARE100,000TE
RAEEE Z2017F128318 1 £ — 8
WFEMBRERN [1TRHAS ] BE R

Ao

BUEBEE  KBENALEEEEZ
U A B A R 39 653,0007 e B 18 % 48 A
A R #13,980,0000T © fid & B A A BF IR
FNEL AEENBRARREREE
2 Bl A A R #5,350,816,0007T & A R
712,578,0007T © f5E ERHEHFA A -
RHR B MR018E1 18 TR U E A
SEEERERNBEARIE  TTAR
YARREENEN -
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43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS (continued)
2018 (continued)
(b) Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Dalian Ziguang Lingshui

(c)

Waste Water Treatment Co., Ltd. (“Ziguang Lingshui”)
(continued)

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss (continued)

The receivables under service concession arrangements acquired with
a fair value of RMB165,957,000 had gross contractual amounts of
RMB235,429,000.

Acquisition of 26.2% equity interest in Weifang City Fangzi
District SIIC Environment Water Co., Ltd. (“Fangzi Water”)

In February 2018, the Group, through its 51.3% owned subsidiary, Weifang
Tap Water, acquired 51.0% equity interest in Fangzi Water for a consideration
of RMB79,080,000 through subscription of new shares issued by Fangzi
Water. Fangzi Water is engaged principally in the operation of one water
supply project in the PRC.

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss

Transaction costs related to the acquisition amounting to RMB302,000 had
been recognised in the “Administrative expenses” line item in the Group’s
profit or loss for the previous financial year ended 31 December 2017.

From the date of acquisition, Fangzi Water contributed revenue of
RMB30,000,000 and net loss of RMB1,794,000 to the Group. If the
combination had taken place at the beginning of the financial year, the
Group’s revenue and profit after tax would have been RMB5,316,628,000 and
RMB683,557,000 respectively. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and profit of
the Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2018, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.
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KRB LR RE (])
2018%F (#%)

(b)

(c)

BREAEERLEKTRKREFRLRA
(THRAEK 1) 100%B% 4 (#)

WEEEHBE Y E (B)

BB R BERARE65,957,0007T 2
RBRHFEELHATREFEZAS
#1&88mARH235,429,0007T

BB FELRERHKARLE
(THFH#EK 1) 26. 2%l

PR0185F2A » AN & B3 3B H #E H51.3%
eI B 2 R Y B RKIEES 7
KES1.0%BHE - WEHERBAARE
79,080,0007C B FHRKM T BEB AHE
hEEE —EfKRE -

WiEEBE ARG P E

BRRBORZRAARK2000TE
RASEEZ01TE12ANEIEF E—
PHENBETH [{THFHX ) IBE T

e

BRERE JTTHRKAXEEERZ
HeA /& A B 830,000,000 K &5 18 %
RAANRET940007T < fiF & HF 7 A 3 R
EMHELE - AREHWARBE N B
7 5l A A K #5,316,628,000T & A R %
683,557,0007C - fEE A RHEHRFIAHZA -
AURAMP018FIA1E TR ER
SEERERNBARTE - HAAR
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43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS (continued) 43. BEBMELR %% (&)

2018 (continued) 20184 (#&)

(¢) Acquisition of 26.2% equity interest in Weifang City Fangzi (c) WBHHHFELRBRREKERLF
District SIIC Environment Water Co., Ltd. (“Fangzi Water”) (TEhFHK 1) 26.2%R% 8 ()
(continued)

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss (continued) WREEEHESE FE (§)
Dalian Ziguang Fangzi
Ziguang Lingshui Watert@ Total
KEEE RHREK BF ke &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRET AE®TRE AR%TRT AER%TR
Consideration transferred: RESEIL
Cash paid BfNEe 69,100 91,350 - 160,450
Cash prepaid in previous financial year RBAEERFE AN
Be 39,380 10,560 . 49,940
Deferred consideration BB 29,284 21,465 - 50,749
137,764 123,375 - 261,139
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities  FAUKEE B HRRE R B B ki
assumed (as determined by independent B R AT AE B ER
valuation reports) recognised at the date A4 B1E (W8 E
of acquisition are as follows: WEEE) 0T
Intangible assets/Land use rights B EE /TERE 29,527 42,716 4,111 76,354
Property, plant and equipments ME  BEKRRE - - 79,426 79,426
[nventories FE - - 1,391 1,391
Receivables under service concession BT ERHEAT
arrangements JE Y5 8 144,010 165,957 - 309,967
Trade and other receivables & 5 K E A e W I8 71,398 49,670 13,720 134,788
Prepayments ERHE 573 968 - 1,541
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRE2EEY 932 1,157 1,092 3,181
Trade and other payables 5 R EMENTE (46,837) (49,874) (23,760)  (120,471)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER (12,651) (35,115) = (47,766)
Tax payable eI (10,554) (9,006) - (19,560)
Deferred tax liabilities EIEHIEEE (24,752) (27,817) - (52,569)
Other non-current liabilities Hi3EmeaE (6,579) (2,939) - (9,518)
Non-controlling interests RS = - (75,980) (75,980)
145,067 135,717 - 280,784

(@)  Subsequent to the date of acquisition, the Group has subscribed to new shares
in Fangzi Water for a consideration of RMB79,080,000 during the financial year

ended 31 December 2018.

@)  RERERER  FEECREZE20185F12A31
B BT B 2 DA %1 (B A R #79,080,0007T 3288
TFHOREFAL -
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43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS (continued) 43. BEMBLRE¥£% (&)
2018 (continued) 20184 (#&)
(¢) Acquisition of 26.2% equity interest in Weifang City Fangzi (c) WRUGTHFELERREH#KERLRA
District SIIC Environment Water Co., Ltd. (“Fangzi Water”) (TH5FHEK 1) 26.2%B% 18 (1)

(continued)

Impact of acquisition on profit or loss (continued)

WEEEHBE Y E (B)

Dalian Ziguang Fangzi
Ziguang Lingshui Water® Total
KEER REK YiFgke &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTT AR®TT
Gain from bargain purchase arising WEEENZERE
from acquisition: Iz
Consideration transferred DERYE 137,764 123,375 - 261,139
Less: Net assets required W BB EEFR (145,067) (135,717) - (280,784)
(7,303) (12,342) - (19,645)
Net cash outflow (inflow) arising WEELMNRER
from acquisition: (RA) %58
Cash consideration paid BERESHE 69,100 91,350 - 160,450
Less: Bank balances and cash A BEWERITESK
acquired e (932) (1,157) (1,092) (3,181)
68,168 90,193 (1,092) 157,269
44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 4. HERELT
In July 2018, the Group disposed its entire 100% equity interest in Tianmen HOOIBET A A S 2 T RS T 1
Kaidi Water Services Co., Ltd. (“Tianmen Kaidi") and 70% equity interest in WAL ERREMEL kAR EIAT (X
Tianmen Kaidi Xinnong Water Services Co., Ltd. (“Tianmen Kaidi Xinnong”) for PS8t |) H100% R HE 2 2 P 9368 7 2 ok 7S

considerations of RMB152,333,000 and RMB5,939,000 respectively to its grantor

BRAE (TRPIFER R ) 0070%8HE - HE

of the concession service agreement. Tianmen Kaidi and Tianmen Kaidi Xinnong 5815 A R 152333 00078 B A K 5,939,000
are principally engaged in supply of tap water in the PRC.
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44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Further details of the consideration, and assets and liabilities disposed of in
respect of the disposed subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2018 are

4. HEMBLE (&)
BRBZABFR2ANALFEREEHNELD
AL EHE EERAENE—FFHEH

set out below: RTX :
Tianmen  Tianmen Kaidi
Kaidi Xinnong Total
xM
X P9l @ HlBiR - Hy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT AR®TT
Analysis of assets and liabilities over RERNENRERARIN
which control was lost
Property, plant and equipment WE - BE K& 675 - 675
Intangible assets BYEE 84,225 6,010 90,235
Inventories & 2,467 - 2,467
Amounts due from customers for contract works B EFPELHTIER 404 - 404
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M EGA 21,321 = 21,321
Prepayments BNFE 8 - 8
Cash and cash equivalents AeRRLEED 1,695 63 1,758
Trade and other payables 5 R EMENTR (31,488) (3,680) (35,168)
Tax payables R RIA (2,867) S (2,867)
Amount due to customer for contract works [ERNEPEHITER (4,724) - (4,724)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMAE R (3,708) = (3,708)
Other non-current liabilities HiEraaE (9,034) (107) (9,141)
Non-controlling interests FERER = (686) (686)
64,980 1,600 66,580
Gain on disposal FRHENKRE
Deferred consideration RIS E 152,333 5,939 158,272
Less: Net assets disposed of B T ERNEEFE (64,980) (1,600) (66,580)
87,353 4,339 91,692
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEENRERHPHE
Cash consideration received BlHBREHE - - -
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of W THENRIESREIRE (1,695) (63) (1,758)
(1,695) (63) (1,758)

The subsidiaries disposed of did not have significant contribution to the results
and cash flows of the Group during the period prior to the disposals.

Pt BB QAN ZE HE 2 AR L &
HARENXENIASRTRERER °
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31 December 2019
20195124318

45. OPERATING LEASES 45,
The Group as lessee
Disclosure required by SFRS (1) 1-17

At 31 December 2018, leases are negotiated for an average term of 5 years and
rentals are fixed for a period for 1 to 5 years. Most leases contain renewable
options. The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

EEHE
FREFSREA

(LB EREEL) F11TRARZH
B

R018F12A318 - HELHEmEFHAHR
FoMABASE-ERFRAPRNETIE -
SEMEMSERREE AEERESHE
TARBECEHE s ARFEBERBIEL &
EZRHAMT

Group

F5E
2018
20184F
RMB'000
AEBETFT
Within one year —FR 10,255
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEERT (RREEEMTE) 27,130
After five years HF% 32,433
69,818

The Group as lessor FREEEHBA

Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate to property leases on its AEEEREMAZKEHERARSAR—Z

office premises with lease terms between 1 to 5 years. The lessee does not have an
option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

Maturity analysis of operation lease payments:

REZHRAENEZNEHRERRE - ABAR
HEERSBEEREZNE

KEBENFANBBAR O :

Group

*5H
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Within one year —FR 2,624 4474
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEFRT (PREEMTE) 7,595 12,262
After five years HFR 9,188 11,333
19,407 28,069
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46. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 46. BEKE
Group
.30 ]|
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFTT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided BEUTHEERNETHERE
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of AN REANBREBHEART
— Additions in construction-in-progress — ENERE R RE BN
relating to service concession arrangement EEIR 1,051,221 172,467
— Acquisition of subsidiaries — REEHTB A A 46,210 46,210
— Capital injection into an associate —MEEARTE 48,000 48,000
— Additional investment in FYTOCI financial instrument - REAAEBEFAEMEERADN
SRIAMEIMTE 13,287 13,700

47. PLEDGE ON ASSETS

47. REEWR

The aggregate carrying value of assets pledged by the Group to secure banking
facilities granted by these banks, leased assets by leasing company and use of

certain operating concession assets are as follows:

AEEREGRORTHRITEERE  HE
ARMBEEBERERETHAEZEEMA
ANEENREEGBRNT :

Group

310
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETF T
Pledged bank deposits BIEHRTER 234,672 119,354
Property, plant and equipment L ER =Y & 12,532 14,068
Investment in a subsidiary RIBARKIRE 150,000 355,620
Intangible assets BREE 1,366,001 1,257,418
Land use rights TifE A 1,020 1,137
Trade receivables 2 5N 145,543 126,145
Receivables under service concession arrangements MR ET A B R HEIE T R NGRIE 11,524,950 7,656,012
13,434,718 9,529,754
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following significant related party transactions which
were carried out in the normal course of business as agreed between the parties

during the financial year:

48. MBAEXS

BRI AM BRE AT IR EN AR B
o REBRAMREREATEINTEE
MR —REBBRTETNERBH XS -

Group
*&H
Related party Nature of transactions 2019 2018
ol b RAKE 20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTF T
Wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company’s
intermediate holding company Interest expenses
ARNRHRNERARN2ENB AR FERZ 155,497 124,139
Compensation of Directors and key management personnel ESRIEEERBARTHMH
Group
F%E
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETFT
Wages, salaries and bonus I% - #FHakita 36,072 36,278
Defined benefit contributions FERFIER 3,052 5,149
Others Hitb 580 930
39,704 42,357
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20195125318
48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Compensation of Directors and key management personnel (continued)

Notes:

U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vil)

(vii)

(ix)

Mr. Yang Changmin resigned as a director of the Company on 16 November 2018.
Mr. Tay Ah Kong Bernard retired as an independent director of the Company on 8
March 2018.

Mr. Tan Gim Soo retired as an independent director of the Company on 8 March 2018.

Mr. Huang Hanguang was appointed as an executive director on 15 May 2019.

Mr. Zhao Youmin was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 5 August

2019.

Mr. Zhong Ming was appointed as an independent director of the Company on 1 March
2018.

Mr. An Hongjun was appointed as an independent director of the Company on 1 March
2018.

The executive directors” remuneration shown above were paid for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors” remuneration shown above were paid for
their services as directors of the Company.

Bonuses were determined with reference to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

No remuneration were paid by the Group to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group do not include any executive
directors of the Company for the financial years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018. Details of the remuneration are as follows:

48. MBAXH (1K)

ESRTEEERARFH (W)
gt -

i) BEELERNVBENABEETIARAE
$o

(i) BEXEER0ISEIRSARAAAT B E
$ o

(i) BRIBELENVISFIABEREARAEUE
£

(iv) BEXREERNVIIFSAERZERATE
£

) EREAERNFBASAREERARTN
St

V)  EHEARNBEIAIERELARATBY
-

(Vi) RAFRERNBFEIANBEZEARAAE
VEZ

(Vi) EXFIRRTEENEM DR ESMRRES
BARRRAEBEBEBNRB M

(ix)  EXFUREIIFMTESOFM RS ET
AR ERRBRANRB XA -

() TEADEZEAEEEERE  AARRRY
LBE TSR MEE

()  AEEWEFAARAES N HFMEREEM
AR A G B ) 520 - SAERBET A RS

-

B 0195 ROBF12ANA LR BEFEE - K
SEIRBRRHMA LI ABREARAIEMH
TES - HMFEMT

Group

r 3. |
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT
Salaries and other allowances e REAMER, 6,616 6,600
Bonuses B4 2,340 2,340
Retirement benefits scheme contributions EREFIFTEMER 109 1,715
9,065 10,655
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 48. BMBARS (8]&)
Compensation of Directors and key management personnel (continued) EFRIEEERBARTFMN (&)
The remunerations were within the following bands: EMEEQT
Group
F5H
2019 2018
20195 20184F
No. of employees No. of employees
BEEAH EE A
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 72 22,000,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,318,500 to RMB1,758,000) (IBEH AR 3185007 E
AR1,758,0007T) 4 _
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,0017& 70 22,500,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,758,001 to RMB2,197,500) (HHERAREA 758001 E
AE#2,197,5007T) = 5
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 7 23,500,000 7T
(equivalent to RMB2,637,000 to RMB3,076,500) (IBE AR IK2,637,0007E
AR3,076,5007T) 1 -
5 5

No remuneration were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

AEETERNRARSHFATOEN BN
FEME AT T AR A AZ G5 ) 22 -
HIERBEERRE -
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49. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business segments based
on their products and services, and has four reportable segments as follows:

(i) Construction:

Principal activities include design, assembly, construction, installation and
commissioning of water supply or waste water treatment systems/plants for
industrials and municipals. This excludes construction margin recognised
in relation to construction of the Group’s service concession arrangements
related assets by external parties.

(i)  Water and Sludge Treatment:

Principal activities include construction, management and operation of water
and sludge related infrastructure under service concession arrangements and
management and operation of water and sludge related infrastructure under
non-service concession arrangements and financial income under service
concession arrangements.

(iii) Water Supply:

Principal activities include construction, management and operation of water
supply related infrastructure under service concession arrangements.

(iv) Waste incineration:

Principal activities include construction, management and operation of waste
incineration related infrastructure under service concession arrangements.

Other operations include design and consultancy on the projects and installation of
water meters. None of these segments meets any of the quantitative thresholds for
determining reportable segments in 2019 or 2018.

Management monitors the operating results of its business segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Group’s
financing and income taxes are managed on a Group basis and are not allocated
to operating segments. Unallocated assets/liabilities mainly comprise of corporate
assets and liabilities, tax assets and liabilities and interest income and expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on agreed-term basis in a manner
similar to transactions with third parties.
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49.

SEEH
REEMT  ARERBEEERRRBENE
Bowh HET2/S AT -

() =Z&:

TREBERTERTBEKIITKE
BES/ THAORT X ER %
KRAH - AEREBmABI R ER
MEREERBEEFELHERNE
EFTRERRER M -

(i) KEFREE :

TREBERERBEFEERIET
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49. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 49. AHBEH (F)
Business segments EBoH
Water and Total for
sludge Water Waste  Reportable Others
Al amount in RMB100 Construction ~ treatment supply incineration  Segments  Segment Unallocated Consolidated
9] MEH
e eBEAARBE T LA B FREE #x ERBE SHEE RSB FOR &i
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
2195 019 2019 019 2019 019 2019 019
Revenue WA - 4G22 K63 153843 SEBME 214073 - 595052
Reportable segment profit (loss) from operations 2] 257 BEEF|E (58) - 1,204,645 132,074 30,984 1,457,703 10,654 (66,953) 1,461,404
Finance income EILION - - - - - - 2,307 21,397
Finance expensss BER - - - - - - (687,267)  (687,267)
Other non-operating income EOEEU-TION - 130,400 43,803 4,800 179,003 (1,12) 9,344 187,220
Share of results of associates i UGS - (9,759) - - (9,759) 2 - (9,731)
Share of results of joint ventures ey i | - - - 46,550 4,550 - - 46,550
Income taxexpense HERER - (1%673%) (4915 (1833)  (4TT2) (14756 (2697  (265,174)
Profit afer tax REFE 754,393
Seqment depreciation and amortsation PEREREH 181 197297 122,783 8643 330,534 409 7383 338,326
Seqment non-cash income ABFREPA - - - - - 286 - 286
Segment nor-cash expenses ABFREFN = 5,993 176 - 6,169 - - 6,169
Seqment assets NHAE 79,798 25,509,900 3,655,282 1,213,115 30,458,005 461,491 564,553 31,484,139
Interest in joint ventures AENEER - - - 532,607 532,607 - - 532,607
Intgrst in associates BELNTER - 59,686 - - 59,686 10,785 28,607 99,078
Financial assets at fair velue through profit &2 BB ABEH
0rloss SHEE - - - - - 3,353 - 3,353
Financial assefs atfair valug through other R A BIEGTA
comprefinsive income E2ERANEREE = 10,400 = = 10,400 3,500 31,406 45,306
Asset classified as held for sale PHEBENENEE - 202,150 - - 202,150 - - 202,150
Total asses EEmE 32,366,633
Seqment liabilities HHEE 89,670 13,273,685 1,696,113 409,362 15,468,830 1,328,748 3,700,325 20,506,903
Seqment capial expenditure PEERER 164 83,557 298,842 160 382,723 607 28 363,358
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49. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

49. SBEH (&)

Business segments (continued) EBSE (|
Water and Total for
sludge Water Waste  Reportable Others
Al amount in RMB000 Construction {reatment supply ~ incineration Seqments Seqment ~ Unallocated ~ Consolidated
kR B
FELEMARET i BR OREE ik  EFEE  APEE  Eusd AR At
018 218 018 018 018 18 018 18
N18% N18% N18E N18E 0185 N18E 0185 N18E
Revnue A OB 450 WM 0G0 ST 216 S s
Reportable seqment proft (loss) rom operations 71 2 A TEEFE () 2638 472,380 180,428 089 1172865 49,364 (1383) 1152813
Finance income SRMA - - - - - 14592 14592
Finance expenses BIER - - - - - - (68309 (385,399)
Other non-operating income Efn3ETERA - w4 39,358 768 294,468 (1127) 3000 29,341
Share of resuls of associaies EEBELNIZA - (1329) - - (1329) 3 - (1.004)
Share of results ofjoint ventures ME RELEER - - - 13338 13338 - - 133%
Income tax expense FBHAT (861) (166,09) (53,200) (2616) (222,782) (10,758) (2.088) (236,426)
Profit afer ax il 684,253
Seqment depreciation and amortisation PRNEREH 1799 1,721 113,00 8,588 306,134 34 12 317,793
Segment non-cash income ABFEREMA - 19,674 91,692 - 111,366 - - 111,366
Seqment non-cash expenses AREREFR - 620 4310 - 4930 1574 - 6,504
Seqment assels PPEE 100491 23918352 3.346,931 608937 2797411 530248 150825 26,655,784
Interest in joint ventures RébsER - - - 736516 736,516 - - 736516
Infrest n associates BENTER - 70,164 - - 70164 10763 - 80927
Financial assels at fair value through pofit. 124 EEEF ABRD
0 loss SREE - - - - - 3,067 - 3,067
Financial assefs atfairvelue through other -~ AL EEFAZ 2 AN
comprehensive income MIEBEE - 10400 - - 10400 500 3117 4017
Asset classied as held for sale PRARELENEE - 198,434 - - 198,434 - - 108,434
Total assels BEeE 29718745
Segment liabilities HH&E 189247 12791244 149301 AT734 14701302 103,334 3050439 18.605,075
Seqment capital expenditure APEARY 52 237 5% 366,762 840 605,260 787 i 606,757
(i)  Revenue under Water and Sludge Treatment and Water Supply for the () HE09F12A31BLETEEE - KER5RE

financial year ended 31 December 2019 include construction revenue arising
from the construction of the Group’s service concession arrangements related
assets of RMB2,172.5 million (2018: RMB2,220.1 million).
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49. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Business segments (continued)
(i) The segment non-cash items consist of the follows:

49. ABRE (&)
RESW (|
(i) DEFREERBEUTER:

Group
r.3-1c ]|
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TTT AREFT
Segment non-cash income ABIEREWA
Write-back of loss allowance BEEEES = 23
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BAnBEFABRNSREE
through profit or loss INTRELER 6 286 -
Gain from bargain purchase of investment in subsidiaries ~ EEBEENTB A THRE MG - 19,645
Gain from disposal of subsidiaries HEMB D U = 91,692
286 111,366
Segment non-cash expenses AEBIEREFAZ
Loss allowance EiEER 231 4,665
Bad debts written off SR 5,938 17
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through BRAREBEFABENERHEE
profit or loss AhEEEE = 1,822
6,169 6,504
(iii) The nature of unallocated segment assets is as follows: (i) RAOESBEEHUERT -
Group
r5E
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TTT ARETF T
Amounts due from joint venture EWAEDETIE 137 137
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERE 56,430 2,286
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMENGA 83,850 30,023
Prepayments SEIRE 2,406 8,086
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEY 421,730 110,293
Total unallocated assets ANBEELR 564,553 150,825
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49. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Business segments (continued)
(iv) The nature of unallocated segment liabilities is as follows:

49. SBEH (§)
REAB (W)

(v) APENHEENEEMNT :

Group
.3 |
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFTT
Bank and other borrowings AT REAMER 3,998,878 2,496,780
Trade and other payables ZHREMENTE 110,447 553,659
Total unallocated liabilities APt BERE 3,709,325 3,050,439

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC. The Group’s revenue from
external customers and information about its non-current assets by geographical

mERH

ARENFBEIRUNTE - AREKE NP
BPHMBAREZBEMERRIADNIFRD

location of the assets are detailed below: BEMNERFANT :
Revenue Non-current assets
BA ERBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFTT AR®TT AREFTT
PRC H 5,959,521 5,313,344 26,393,829 24 331,177
Singapore Hong - - 33,542 16,007
5,959,521 5,313,344 26,427,371 24,347 184

Information about major customers

Revenue from PRC government amounted to RMB4,954,527,000 (2018:
RMB4,361,314,000) arising from water and sludge treatment, water supply and
waste incineration segment.
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MANAGEMENT
(a) Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that
it maintains healthy capital ratios in relation to the nature of its industry in
order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes the
borrowings disclosed in Notes 34, 35 and 36, net cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, treasury shares, retained profits and other reserves.

The Group reviews the capital structure using gearing ratio regularly. The
Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of
changes in economic conditions. As part of this review, the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital are being considered.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, return capital to shareholders or new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. No major changes
were made to the objectives, policies or processes during the financial years

ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 50. £MIA - eMEKEREFER

(a) BFEH

AEEEAEENTIEARAERESR
FREMBATELHEEHENERL
o UXFEERBREARERRERR
REE-

AEENEAREREERIE (B
P34 ~ 5L 36IREMER) - RERR
EEEYMFERTRAER ARG ER
(BREBTRA - BEFkD  REMNHE
REMFERE) o

AEEERBEARBHEEHERER
RE - AEBEEREEARE  LHE
EELEDELRE - RERBED
AEEZREAKRAR BRBENHRH
MER - AEERBAINKRE - @K
RREEAZBTHBIARBTHES
IEOREES FOERBEAR
18 o BZ20195 2201812 A31 A LRI I
§E - BfR  BRIBFLESAEDH -

Group

*5E
2019 2018
20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETFT
Total borrowings ) Ep k=0 14,405,900 13,108,438
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W BRERELEBY (2,374,710 (2,133,225)
Net debt BE%F58 12,030,130 10,975,213
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ANRIER AEEER 8,345,519 7,844,796
Non-controlling interests JEIERS 3,514,211 3,068,874
Total equity e 11,859,730 10,913,670
Net debt/Equity attributable to owners of the Company AREEE NEILERFE Ex 1.44 1.40
Net debt/Total equity BHFE /Bl 1.01 1.01

(1)  Total borrowings comprise bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities/

finance leases.

() EREBERERORAGEFUARE
BRE/BABE -
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 50.

MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Categories of financial instruments

(c)

The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the

reporting period:

&MTR eRMERREXEE (W)

() SRMIREH
TREINBEHROSHIA -

Group Company
F%E r SN
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184F 20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT AR®TRT ARETR
Financial assets SHMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ IRE B A ENERMEE 19,940,647 16,424,904 1,349,348 890,821
Financial assets at fair value through &2 p BEET AR M2 ERA
other comprehensive income HEREE 45,306 44,017 15,470 15,080
Financial assets at fair value through 2 AR BET ABRH
profit or loss SREE 3,353 3,067 - -
19,989,306 16,471,988 1,364,818 905,901
Financial liabilities emaR
Financial liabilities at amortised cost #REESE A ENCRERE (17,531,348) (16,104,559) (1,110,786) (801,443
Lease liabilities HEAR (55,943) - (17,684) -
(17,587,291) (16,104,559) (1,128,470) (801,443

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from
its operations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks
include (i) foreign currency risk; (i) interest rate risk; (iii) liquidity risk;
and (iv) credit risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and
procedures for the management of these risks, which are executed by the
Chief Financial Officer and Management.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and Company’s
exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies
and processes for the management of these risks.

There has been no major change to the Group’s exposure to these financial
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
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currency of the Group’s entities, with all other variables held constant.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items, and adjusts their translation at the year
end for 5% (2018: 5%) increase in foreign currency rates. A (negative)
positive number below indicates (a decrease) an increase in profit
before tax where the above foreign currency strengthens 5% (2018:
5%) against the functional currency of Group’s entities.

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 50. &RTHE - ¢REMREXETHE ()
MANAGEMENT (continued)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (c) eMmEREEEERBE (H)
(i) Foreign currency risk (i) ShesmbE
The Group has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or AEEAREREHESRENR
purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the functional SEEERER  ZFHENKE
currency of Group entities, primarily RMB. The Group has no sales DASEEEBEEERIN—
denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB whilst none of the BEE (FZAARE)FE-X
costs are denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB. Similarly, RSB EDAGR ARE I SN ET
the Group's trade receivable and trade payable balances at the end of BRHEEE MABERHEN
the reporting period have limited foreign currency exposures and bulk BRARBIIINESE - RH
of the sales and purchases are denominated in the respective functional RERERR  AEENESE
currencies of the Group entities which are mainly RMB. Currently, the WHRIBRE S BN TBEBAE
Group has not entered into any hedge due to the limited transactional BERMNERR KBS HEER
foreign currency exposure. FREAFREEEEEEMHEER
HE(EERARYE)  -BHE - /A
RRZNERBRER - AEEW
TS
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s monetary PTEIRERERRUAEEE
assets and monetary liabilities which are significant at the reporting BEEMEEEUIIMEE (5
date that are denominated in currencies other than the respective B FAENAEERADAEXN
functional currency of the Group entities (“foreign currency”) are as EREEREEAEREE
follows:
Group Company
350 N
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE aff BE fff
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20185 2019 20185 219 2185 219§ 185
RMB’000 RMB'000 ~ RMB’000 RMB'000 ~ RMB’000 RMB000 ~ RMB’000 RMB'000
ABRRTR ARETT ARRTR ARETT AERRTRE ARETT ARRTR ARETR
SGD (against RMB) L (RARE) 1,086,813 877,073 157,134 758,121 662,196 460549 169,264 5,849
SGD (against HKD) M (BT 1,421,143 817,23 328,323 312,160 200,872 92,682 58,567 438,951
HKD (against USD) BT ($E7) 58160 538404 11 1 - - - -
HKD (against AMB) BT (RARE) 738219 T80 461,260 412209 - - - -
Sensitivity analysis BRE T
The following table details the Group’s and Company’s sensitivity to TRHJAESERKRAREAE
a 5% (2018: 5%) increase and decrease in the respective functional EERX BN EEEMER D

5% (2018%F : 5%) 2 BURE - T
BEMBHERTE - HRED
TERBERERHGUINEE
ZEWIER - ®EX 5% (2018
F5%) EMARELE - LT
Pﬁ’E' (B) EERT LAIEHEA

B EREHINEEHER% (2018
i $5%) B2 B AT BB A Ol
4) g e
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(i)

(i)

&MTR eRMERREXEE (W)

(c) eMEREEAFRKR (§)

Foreign currency risk (continued) (i) SMEEMR (8)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) HREAN (8)
Gompany
. /NG|
2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 20184F 20195 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Increase in (loss) profit before tax #R&1 (EF#F) FIEEBM AEBTET AR®ETT AERWTE ARETR
SGD (against RMB) e (LARE) 16,484 5,948 24,647 22,135
SGD (against HKD) o (HAT) 54,941 25,254 (19,384) (17,313)
HKD (against USD) BT (HET) 21,407 26,924 - -
HKD (against RMB) B (AARK) 13,848 16,291 - -
Interest rate risk (i)  FIERR
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the FlERRERTIIEHRNT S EE

Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s and the Company’s
exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily from their loans and
borrowings. The Group’s policy is to manage interest cost using a mix
of fixed and variable-rate debts.

Interest on financial instruments subject to variable interest rates is
contractually repriced regularly. Interest on financial instruments at
fixed rates is fixed until the maturity of the instruments. The other
financial instruments of the Group and the Company are not subjected
to interest rate risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for its variable-rate borrowings at the end
of the reporting period. For variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming that the amount of liability outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.

At the end of the reporting period, a change of 50 basis points (2018:
50 basis points) basis points higher/lower in interest rate with all other
variables held constant, would result in the Group’s profit net of tax to
be RMB42,887,000 (2018: RMB40,461,000) lower/higher.
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 50.
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (c)

&MTR eRMERREXEE (W)

eREREEZARRYE (H)

(iii) Liquidity risk (iii) WENE LB

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds.
The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and
liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of stand-by credit facilities and financial support from the holding
company. The Group's and the Company’s liquidity position are
monitored closely by the management.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total current liabilities
exceeded its total current assets by RMB3,306,942,000 (2018:
RMB2,638,866,000). The Group is dependent on its related parties for
financial support and the use of stand-by credit facilities to meet its
future commitments.

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based
on contractual undiscounted payments. The table include both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end
of the reporting period.

nHETRBRRAEEARART
RESERMENBTHBEE
WER FAEBRADRALE
EEREMEERBRBIMAR
REEELNRDESER - K
SERALFEBEREBERARE
REERERERARMNMEE
BREESHBELRRYE
B TE - EBEDHNEER
SERARRKREE SN °

R019F12A318 - REEERE
EERERHARDEELBRA
[R3,306,942,0007C (2018%F : AR
#2,638,866,0007T) © AR5 [ {78 H
BB REM BB REAER
EEREABTEARRAG

BRBAOIHRAINERT
B

TEREMAEERARAN S
BERBEHRBEEGORTR
NFFEMIHER  TRBE
FERKEEER - MEFEFI
EWFERE  RARSBUR
ok H A F AL

Total Carrying
1 year 110 Over undiscounted amount at
or less 5 years 5 years cash flows year end
ESiig] RERE
1EBUT 1E5§ BBSFE BeRdE REE
Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
x50 AR®FTE AE®TR AEBTRE AR®TR AR%TR
2019 20195
Financial liabilities SRERE
Non-interest bearing Eiiy 2,943,102 199,700 24,833 3,167,635 3,152,949
Fixed interest rate instruments @ EEMETA 2,085,228 960,597 149,755 3,195,580 3,109,962
Variable interest rate instruments © ¥ E)F|E T A0 3,719,099 4,846,621 5,239,753 13,805,473 11,324,380
Total A5t 8,747,429 6,006,918 5,414,341 20,168,688 17,587,291
2018 20185
Financial liabilities eRaR
Non-interest bearing &S 2,694,717 228,961 24,833 2,948,511 2,933,421
Fixed interest rate instruments @ EEREITAN 1,521,935 1,152,958 134,169 2,809,062 2,634,898
Variable interest rate instruments © ¥ BN T A 3,457 611 4,258 535 5,263,960 12,980,106 10,536,240
Total At 7,674,263 5,640,454 5,422 962 18,737,679 16,104,559
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 50.
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD. L SBXREERERAH

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

(continued)

&MTR eRMERREXEE (W)

(c)

SHBRREZERRBRE (&)

(i) WHERBRK (])
BRABAENIHRENNERT
BN (8)

Total Carrying
1 year 1to Over undiscounted amount at
or less 5 years 5 years cash flows year end
E ik RERE
1EHUT 1E5F BBE Henes REE
Company RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
/NG| AEBTRE AER®TR AER%TR AR%TR AR®TR
2019 20195
Financial liabilities SMAR
Non-interest bearing Eiiy 118,995 - - 118,995 118,995
Fixed interest rate instrument @ EEFE A 7,381 11,929 - 19,310 17,684
Variable interest rate instrument @ JZFHF|E T AL 1,031,322 = = 1,031,322 991,791
Total Azt 1,157,698 11,929 - 1,169,627 1,128,470
2018 20185
Financial liabilities eMARE
Non-interest bearing 78 110,222 - - 110,222 110,222
Variable interest rate instrument © S E)F|ER T A0 702,558 - - 702,558 691,221
Total = 812,780 - - 812,780 810,443

(@) The effective interest rates ranged from 0.80% to 6.00% (2018: 0.80% to

6.00%) per annum.

(b)  The effective interest rates ranged from 0.80% to 8.78% (2018: 0.80% to

5.65%) per annum.

(c)  The effective interest rate ranged from 3.28% to 3.94% (2018: 2.73% to

3.77%) per annum.

F B E F R A T080%26.00%
(20184F : 0.80%Z6.00%)

BB E R T080%E8.78%
(20184 : 0.80%Z5.65%) °

BB F A E A T3.28%23.94%
(20184F : 2.73%Z3.77%)



50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 50.
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) ()

&MTR eRMERREXEE (W)

SRAREEARRBE (F)
(iv) Credit risk (iv) (EEERBE

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group and the Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively
with high credit rating counterparties.

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while
minimising losses incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The
Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy counterparties.

Exposure to credit risk

As at reporting period end, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum
exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the statements of financial
position. The Group’s principal financial assets are trade and other
receivables, receivables under service concession arrangements,
cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits. The amounts
presented in the statement of financial position are net of loss
allowance.

The credit risk concentration profile of the Group’s and Company’s trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period is 100% concentrated in
PRC (2018: 100%).

Receivables under service concession arrangements relate to
consideration recoverable from certain governing bodies and agencies
of the government of the PRC in respect of construction of water
treatment plant/waste incineration plant and are generally considered
as having low risk of default.

The Group’s and the Company’s credit risk on cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

The Group develops and maintains its credit risk gradings to categorise
exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The Group uses
its trading records to rate its major customers and other debtors. The
Group does not hold any collateral to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets.

FERRERSFIERTES
HANEEMERAEBATH
BERNAR - AEERART]
BRERFEFASNETHE
BEUREEERR -

AEENH A RERSRAERA
EROAK FEEHEREN
MELNEE AREERER
TREBRGNHTHZS -

EHNEERR

RBESHR ARERARAN
RREERRAVBRREIIR
MERCRAEREENERE
E-AEEZIZSREERE
S REMERTE - RFFFL
ERHETRYEFR  Be kB
EEEMREERMRITER - 1t
ERRERBERREZ T BEMR
BRERNFEZT -

RBESRR AEEREARAE
SREUFENEERRETRE
A A100%E B 7E Bl (20185 -
100%) ©

MRIEH R E R R T ERRR
RRBRRKEEREREETH
JRERERFETEERER
BENHE —RIAREDHER
BIE -

HRUFITIREERFZR
T AEFAERARARARER
ReEBMRDEARRITERD
FERBAR -

REBHELEREREERR
EH URBEERNARSER
KRR O ET R REBA
MAESTENAREIERFR
HEBALTHR - AEEL
EREINERmARERAES
MEEFENEERR -
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 50. €MI&  2REREREFEE (&)

MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c¢) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (c) emEREEEERBE (8)
(iv) Credit risk (continued) (iv) f{EEEPME ()

Exposure to credit risk (continued)
The Group’s current credit risk framework comprises the following

mHNEERR (8)
REENRTEERREREHE

categories: T3I%ER
Basis for recognising expected credit
Category Description losses (ECL)
#5 b RRAMEEGRNEE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any Trade receivables and amounts due from
past-due amounts. customers for contract work: lifetime
ECL - not credit-impaired
R RFEFHNENRRBE R ERRHTIE - EUFEREKEFPENIREN : BE
HEHEERE - TREEEERE
Other financial assets and other items:
12-month ECL
EthemERRAMIER - 2EARS
REBR
Doubtful Amount is more than 90 days past due for corporate/individual debtors and Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired
more than 3 years past due for government debtors or there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
2 DA/ EAEBANZERSERNE RAREEANTERS  FERRHEEER - FRELEGE
BREAERRAREERRLREZEM - WE
In default Amount is more than 1 year past due for corporate/individual debtors and Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired
more than 5 years past due for government debtors or there is evidence
indicating the asset is credit-impaired.
24 2R/ ENEBARGER A IE RERES AR a0 FENEREEEE - REEERE
BREABERA T EREERE «
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and ~ Amount is written off
the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery.
ks REETEBARARENMBERZAASETRARR HMEERLE
AIRE B ERE -
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 50. £MTH - ¢HEARREEEE (&)
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(¢) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (c) &MRREEARRBE (]
(iv) Credit risk (continued) (iv) f{EEEME (])

Exposure to credit risk (continued) mENEERR (8)

The assessment of the credit quality and exposure to credit risk of the FEBEHREMERFENE

Group's trade and other receivables have been disclosed in Note 13. SEZLMOGTERMFI3HE o

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial assets TREMASESREERE D

and other items, as well as maximum exposure to credit risk by credit EHEMEEEERUREEERR

risk rating grades: TR EENESEERRBA -
Internal 12-month or Gross carrying Loss  Net carrying

Group Note credit rating lifetime ECL amount allowance amount

1@ R EEN
310 Wi ABERTR OSSR FEESE  EREE RS

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERTR ARRTT ARBTR

019 0198

Trade receivables Lo ENFE 13 Performing Lifetime ECL 1,630,224 (13,863) 1,616,361
RiF FEIRBEEER

Other receivables HfuEhsE 13 Performing/Doubtiul  12-month/Lifetime ECL 123,301 (3,381) 720,010
R/ R4 12878 / GEHES

FEBE

Receivables under service RBETEERHAT

concession arrangements ifdlie 17 Performing 12-month ECL 17,670,242 - 17,670,242
Rif REREHEEER

Amounts due from customers— TENE P AL

for contract work T8 18 Performing Lifetime ECL \ 66,772 - 66,772
Rif GESREEERE

Long term receivables REERE 2% Performing 12-month ECL 350,058 - 350,058
RIF DEAZHEEEE

Amounts due from associates [N 19 Performing 12-month ECL 67,550 - 67,550
Rif REAEHEEER

Amounts du from joint venture WA BN E50E 19 Performing 12-month ECL 137 - 137
Rif DEARREEEE

(17,244)

218 0188

Trade receivables B ENE 13 Performing Lifetime ECL 1454940 (13632) 1441308
Rif GESREEERE

Other receivables Rl 13 Performing/Doubtiul  12-month/Lifetime ECL 849,031 (3.381) 845,650
R/ R4 28R / FESES

FEBE

Receivables under service RBETEEZHAT

concession arrangements MY E 17 Performing 12-month ECL 15,846,470 - 15,846,470
Rif REREHEEER

Amounts due from customers EURFAH

for contract work TR 18 Performing Liteimg ECL 56,593 - 56,553
Rif GESREEERE

Long term receivables REERE %6 Performing 12-month ECL 362528 - 362,528
R DEARREEEE

Amounts due from associates  FEUTEEE A RIZIE 19 Performing 12-month ECL 66,331 - 65,331
RIF DEAEREEEE

Amounts due from joint venture WA BN E5UE 19 Performing 12-month ECL 137 - 137
Rif RERAEHEEER

(17.013)
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL 50. £RTH - ¢HEARREXEE (&)
MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) () SMBRTEEEREE (&)
(iv) Credit risk (continued) (v) EERE (@)
Exposure to credit risk (continued) THOEERR (8)
nternal 12-month or Gross carrying Loss  Net carrying
Company Note credit rating lifetime ECL amount  allowance amount
12ERBFHEN
K08 MiE  ABEERR ROREER EEESE BREMR Em=E

RB'000 RNB’000 RNB’000
AE®RTRT AEWTRE ARMTR

2019 N19E

Other receivables Hi iz 13 Performing 12-month ECL 5,146 - 5,146
Rif REARSEEER

Amount due from subsidiaries  FEURF B2 FIFUIE 19 Performing 12-month ECL 1,171,378 - 1,111,318
Rif REARHEEER

Amount due from joint venture.  EWA BN E5E 19 Performing 12-month ECL 137 - 137
Rif NEARHEEER

2018 N18E

Other receivables AR ENEE 13 Performing 12-month ECL 4,667 - 4,667
Rif REARHEERE

Amount due from subsidiaries  FEUHBA R 19 Performing 12-month ECL 848,107 - 848107
RiF DEAEREEEE

Amount due from joint venture. WA BN E5E 19 Performing 12-month ECL 137 - 137
RiF REABHEESR

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial NER SRR AT BB EERE

statements, grossed up for any allowances for losses, represents the BHSREEEMERAZEEN

Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into account SEEERR VESRMES

of the value of any collateral obtained. B EIE B R EE -
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

5. &#MIA - -eRMERREFEE (§)

(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (1) WEFDREEAROHE
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TRANAREREEDIELERERD
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities BHHE BEALREREEZD - B
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or BEHMEENABERRSNARRE
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statements of EREREBGERERERASINA
cash flow as cash flows from financing activities. BRETHEEMNRETNAE -
Bank and Amount
other Lease tue to non-
borrowings* liahilities controlling Interest
(Note 34) (Note 35)  shareholders payable Total
BITREM
&R HEAR  BAERRE
(PiE3d) (PH&£35) BERE RS At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AR®TR AR®TR ARRTT  AE¥TR
At 1 January 2018 R1BEIATHE 11,043,185 - 5,500 79,151 11,127,836
Financing cashflows BERSM 2,076,871 - (19,834) (534,351) 1,522,686
Non-cash changes FE2EH
Dividend dclared BERRE - - 19,834 - 19,834
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 43) WEER B2 E (Fi3H43) 47,766 - - - 47766
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) LENBAE (Ha) (3,708) - - - (3,708)
Finance costs recognised ERAHEER - - - 585,399 585,399
Exchange difference ERES (55,676) - - (41,949) (97.625)
At 31 December 2018 BR2018512 318 13,108,438 - 5,500 88,250 13,202,188
Adoption of SFRS(1) 16 s BB BRE
A 2165 - 49,308 - - 49,308
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 /18 13,108,438 49308 5,500 88,250 13,251,496
Financing cashflows BEBSH 1,246,619 (6,189) (6,560) (662,931) 568,939
Non-cash changes Eiaiky i
Dividend declared BERRE - - 6,560 - 6,560
New leases nig - 12,408 - - 12,408
Finance costs recognised BERYKER - 2416 - 683,059 685,475
Exchange difference ERER (5,100) - - (37.490) (42,590)
At 31 December 2019 R2019512 4318 14,349,957 55,943 5,500 70,888 14,482,288

*

Bank and other borrowings include the balance of finance leases.

RITRAMEFBERARESS -
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31 December 2019

20195125318
51. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 51. BERABHAREE
Except as detailed in the following tables below, the directors of the Company BRTRAGFAEIN  RABESRAMBEM
consider that the carrying amounts of all other financial assets and financial REEERBRREREENAIENEREER
liabilities that are recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial CREENERAELREAREERE  REA
statements to approximate their fair value, due to their short-term nature, that HBRHNYE  ARAREHRIEORED
they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates on AT N EEREEMNIBFIERTA A
or near the end of the reporting period, or the discount rate used to amortise the REEEBTANTHXARTHEMNEM
instruments approximates the prevailing market interest rates. 5o
(i) Fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value on a () EMBFEAARENEREEHERNE
recurring basis NREE
Fair value Valuation technique  Significant
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy and key inputs unobservable input Range
HERTR EXTUHR
eREE NREE RAREER EETHABE BARE ]
2019 2018
0195 N18%
Group RIMB’000 RMB'000
g3 1] NS ARETT
Financial assets at FUTOCI
BORBENARM2ERAL
oMEE
Listed equity security 13,542 15643 Level (uoted price inan Not applicable Not
active market applicable
LmkrES g REEMSRE TER TER
Unlisted equity security 31,764 28374 Lewel3 Market approach Discount for fack of 2%
marketability
EETRAES E=R migE Rz msRBtE
Financial assets at FUTPL
BOAREMARENEMEE
Listed equity security 3,353 3067 Leveld (uoted price inan Not applicable Not
active market applicable
LikAER E-& REBTERE TER TER
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51. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 51.

(i)

(i)

Fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (continued)

RERARMLAME (&)

(i)

EHAEARREDEESHERE
KRMAE (&)

Fair value Valuation technique  Significant
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy and key inputs unobservable input Range
HiEHER EXTUHR
SREE KRARE NARERR EETRANS BB ]
2019 2018
219 0188
Company RMB’000 RMB'000
47 ABBFRE  ARETR
Financial assets at FUTOCI
BOAREHAEH2ERAL
SREE
Unlisted equity security 15,470 15,080 Level 3 Market approach Discount for lack of 2%
marketability
ELTRAES £=h [k Rz mERRILTE

For unlisted equity securities, a significant increase/decrease in discount for
lack of marketability would result in a significantly lower/higher fair value.

=3

RIELTREBRME - RZTHRE
WEEFTEAREN, RO BERRAE

B2 KETR /L7 -
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities (i) FRAXREEEHERDULOAGEHE
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis and EHEEELEFELABEENSEELE
whose carrying amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair ZEeMEERSMARNHAAEE
value
2019 2018
20195 20184
CGarrying amount Fair Value  Carrying amount Fair value
IREE [REE RHE INTRELEL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETR ARETIL AREFT
Financial assets eMEE
Receivables under service PRISETRE RGBT
concession arrangements @ JEURIEE 14,563,338 15,772,996 11,455,406 12,794,322
Financial liabilities emaE
Bank and other borrowings: BRITREMER
— Fixed rate borrowings @ - EREZ (3,023,242) (2,985,591) (2,569,839) (2,510,908)
— Other non-current liabilities @ - HiIEREEEY (51,507) (43,063) (94,486) (86,446)

(@)  The fair values of receivables under service concession arrangements, bank
and other borrowings and other non-current liabilities as disclosed in the table
above are classified under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and the fair values
are estimated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest
rate or borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period.

) LERABENRBEFLELHRT
FEURIE - RITREMEFRAREM
FRDEENAREBESEARAE
EERE=R RABERBSHER
BAFTRBHARRASRERTHE
HEFMEEE -
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20195124318

92.

93.

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN SFRS(1)S AND IFRSs

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, there were no
material differences between the consolidated financial statements of the Group
prepared under SFRS(I)s and IFRSs.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors proposed that a final dividend of S$0.01 per share be paid to
shareholders. This dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these financial
statements. The total estimated dividend to be paid is S$26.0 million (RMB131.1
million).

The outbreak of COVID-19 in Mainland China and the subsequent quarantine
measures imposed by the Mainland Chinese government in early 2020 have had an
impact on the operations of the Group and the situation remains fluid as at the date
these financial statements are authorised for issue. The Directors of the Company
considered that the financial effects of the COVID-19 is expected not to materially
affect the consolidated results of the Group for the full year of 2020 based on the
information available as at the date these financial statements are authorised for
issue. The Group will monitor the ongoing situation and continuously assess the
impact of the outbreak on the Group’s operations in the immediate future.
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92.

93.

(W ERMEEEER) B (BRME
HEEA) HHIE

BZ20195 124318 R2018E 12 AN AILEE -
R G g BRM B REER) Rk (BIRM %
REER) GRNAEESAMBEREMES
REE -

BEMEER
EFRFIMBRRKN RARS BRI T -
LR BERBRREFAS ERGERILE - B
REEHBRRTLEEDSRBIIER o #IRH
HIE TR B BEE B2,6008 %7 T (ARB13N(E
T) e

2020 ¥ 4E A B 79 30 13 3 A9 COVID-19 K R B A
WHRERERNREIERD HASENEE
ERTE BRRENEZSHBRRAAE
RINTPRE - ARFEERR  ERRETE
ZEVBHRE BN FER - COVID-198 8
BYERATEHAEENNF2ENGAE
BEREATVE - AEEREERBELERS
N UTEFREAHAREINRENTE -



STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

:t Y
BRI
As at 31 March 2020
202063 A31H
Number of shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings) 2,602,817,726
BH#E (FEEERERBRKELRER) 2,602,817,726
Number of Treasury Shares and Percentage - Nil
EERABARESN D&
Number of Subsidiary Holdings and Percentage - Nil
MEBARGRBERESLL R
Class of shares Ordinary shares
B4R RGN
Voting rights One vote per share
R —k—FH
DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS HRAE
NO. OF NO. OF
SHAREHOLDERS % SHARES %
SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS HEHAE BER&HAE Ein# A
1-99 1-99 40 2.62 700 0.00
100 - 1,000 100-1,000 203 13.31 107,630 0.00
1,001 — 10,000 1,001-10,000 638 41.84 3,552,488 0.14
10,001 — 1,000,000 10,001-1,000,000 594 38.95 45,086,662 173
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 1,000,001 f2 LA = 50 3.28 2,554,070,246 98.13
TOTAL et 1,431 100.00 2,602,817,726 100.00
TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS ;1 N T
NO. NAME NO. OF SHARES %
ik R e EiHn&E %
1 S.I. TRIUMPH POWER LIMITED 709,589,551 27.26
LFENBERAR
2 THE HONGKONG AND SHANGHAI BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED 662,668,724 25.46
BB LBELRITERAH
3 CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD. 269,484,100 10.35
CGS-CIMB SECURITIES (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
4 CHINA ENERGY CONSERVATION & ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (HONG KONG) 223,712,917 8.60
INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
HREIETRERIR (BB) REBRAA]
5 S.I. INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED 165,418,475 6.36

TEERERARAA
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

BRARE

As at 31 March 2020

202043 A31H

NO. NAME NO. OF SHARES %

ik &8 e Bin&H %

6 0CBC WING HANG SHARES BROKERAGE CO. LIMITED 107,208,900 412
EEKTIAHFBRAT

7 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 81,453,272 3.13
CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD

8 UBS SECURITIES HONG KONG LIMITED 52,797,409 2.03
UBS SECURITIES HONG KONG LIMITED

9 BOCI SECURITIES LIMITED 50,166,700 1.93
FIRBIPREH AR AR

10 CITIBANK N.A. 30,636,000 1.18
TEFRIRT

11 DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 29,846,973 1.15
DBS NOMINEES (PRIVATE) LIMITED

12 RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE.) LIMITED 23,236,820 0.89
RAFFLES NOMINEES (PTE.) LIMITED

13 STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (HONG KONG) LIMITED 16,912,300 0.65
BITRT (B8) BRAA

14 GUOTAI JUNAN SECURITIES (HONG KONG) LIMITED 16,191,700 0.62
BREELES (B8) BRAA

15 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 13,333,631 0.51
HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD

16 BANK OF COMMUNICATIONS TRUSTEE LIMITED 9,255,300 0.36
BRITELBRAA

17 GOLDMAN SACHS (ASIA) SECURITIES LIMITED 7,867,103 0.30
=& () BHRERAA

18 DBSN SERVICES PTE. LTD. 7,217,107 0.28
DBSN SERVICES PTE. LTD.

19 SBI CHINA CAPITAL FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD 6,844,000 0.26
HEFESRRBERRA

20 DEUTSCHE BANK AG 4,376,357 0.17
EELRT
TOTAL
gt 2,488,217,339 95.61
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERE
(As recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders) (MEESBRREMAER)
Direct Deemed
HiE iR
Number of Number of
Shares % Shares %
Bir & E B in 8 B
S.I. Triumph Power Limited (“Triumph”) © FENBAERAR (THEHO 986,929,551 37.92 - -
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (‘SIHL") ) 8B % AR A7 ([ LERREE ) 0 - - 1,262,457,926 48.50
S.1. Infrastructure Holdings Limited ("SII") @ FEEERRERAR ((LEEE))O 165,418,475 6.36 986,929,551 37.92
China Energy Conservation & Environmental hEELIRIR (B6) REAREAT
Protection (Hong Kong) Investment Co., ([ehEigE (F#) )0
Limited ("CECEPHK") @ 223,712,917 8.60 - -
China Energy Conservation and Environmental PR EIRRERBR AR
Protection Group (‘CECEP”) @ ((hEESRERE]) © - - 223,712,917 8.60
Value Partners Classic Fund EEEEES 224,658,980 8.63

Value Partners Limited (“VPL") ©
Value Partners Hong Kong Limited (“VPLHK") ©

Value Partners Group Limited (“VPGL") ©
Cheah Capital Management Limited (‘“GCML”") ©
Cheah Company Limited (“CCL") ©
BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Ltd

as trustee of The C H Cheah Family Trust ©
BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited ©
Cheah Cheng Hye ©
To Hau Yin ©

BEESERNA ((ER))O

ERECERASARLT
([EEEE])

EESEARAR ((ERKME)) O

Cheah Capital Management Limited ([CCML]) ©

Cheah Company Limited ([CCL]) ©

BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation Ltd
(ERHBBRIEETANTEA) O

BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited ©

HiEgo

HI9E®

280,603,170 10.78

280,603,170 10.78
280,603,170 10.78
280,603,170 10.78
280,603,170 10.78

- 280,603,170 10.78
- 280,603,170 10.78
- 280,603,170 10.78
- 280,603,170 10.78
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STATISTICS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
FRGETRUE

As at

31 March 2020

F202063 H31H

Notes:

1)

Each of Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited, which is controlled
by the Shanghai Municipal People’s Government (through its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
namely Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, SIIC Capital (B.V.I.) Limited, SIIC Trading
Company Limited, Shanghai Industrial Financial (Holdings) Company Limited and SIIC CM
Development Limited), and Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, holds more than 20%
of the issued and paid-up share capital of Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited (“SIHL"),
which owns all the issued and paid-up share capital of S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited,
which in turn owns all the issued and paid-up share capital of S.I. Triumph Power Limited
(“Triumph”). In addition, SIHL owns all the issued and paid-up share capital of SIHL
Treasury Limited. As such, Shanghai Industrial Investment (Holdings) Company Limited,
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited, SIHL and S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited (“SII”)
are deemed to be interested in the shares held by Triumph and SIHL Treasury Limited
(excluding SHI). SIHL Treasury Limited holds 110,109,900 Shares.

CECEP is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by CECEPHK as CECEP owns the entire
issued share capital of CECEPHK.

VPL is a fund manager deemed to be interested in the Shares by reason of Shares held
directly by the funds under its management. Cheah Capital Management Limited is deemed to
be interested in the Shares via its 21.82% ownership in Value Partners Group Limited. Value
Partners Group Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares via its 100% ownership
in Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, which in turn 100% owns VPL. Value Partners Hong
Kong Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares via its 100% ownership in VPL.
Cheah Company Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares via its 100% ownership in
Cheah Capital Management Limited. BNP Paribas Jersey Nominee Company Limited holds
the shares in Cheah Company Limited as nominee for BNP Paribas Jersey Trust Corporation
Limited. Cheah Cheng Hye is deemed to be interested in the Shares in his capacity as the
founder of a discretionary trust (“The G H Cheah Family Trust”) with BNP Paribas Jersey
Trust Corporation Limited as the Trustee. To Hau Yin is deemed to be interested in the Shares
in her capacity as the beneficiary of The C H Cheah Family Trust.

SHAREHOLDINGS HELD BY THE PUBLIC

Based on the information available to the Company as at 31 March 2020, 34.17% of the
issued ordinary shares of the Company are held by the public. Accordingly, the Company
had complied with Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST and Rule 8.08 of The

Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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i3k

LEE% (58) ARAR (BLETARBFER
H2EMBLAR (MLBREZERBRRA SIC
Capital (B.V.L) Limited + EEEEZEFERAF - LF
EXCREREBAAR LBEEZHREERER
D) 7)) REBRERRERARSEHELE
EXERERDAR ([EERE]) 220%A LB T
BRERBA - FEERES L EEAERRERARZ
EHEBEITRBRRA - M L EERERERAFHE
BLENBBRAR ((HB]) 22BEBTRER
BRA o poh - LEERES LEMBERERARZ
SHBEATRGRBRA - Hlt - LEEE (5E) &
RAR - EEREZERERAR - LEERELER
BERERAR ((LEER]) BRERANBRLEE
BMBERARAR (TRELEER) BEZRHF
HEER - FEVEEEARDFRHE10,109,9008

Rfn o

ARTESERREGTEHE (BE) M2HCET
BA - B RARRBIER T (FE) 58
MBI D A e o
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SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOQLDINGS LTD.

REQUEST FORM

SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.
(Incorporated In the Republic of Singapore)
(Company Registration No. 200210042R)

15 April 2020

Dear Shareholder,

In line with the sustainability efforts of SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd. (“Company”), and as approved by shareholders at the
Extraordinary General Meeting on 29 January 2018, we will be discontinuing our practice of mailing the Company’s Annual

Report and Interim Report to shareholders. Instead, the Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 will be
available for download from the Company’s corporate website and SGX website from the date of this letter.

The Annual Report or Interim Report may be accessed at our Company’s website, http://www.siicenv.com/ under “Investors”.
o To access the full Annual Report or Interim Report, go to “Financial Reports” and click on the relevant hyperlink.

Or you may access through SGX website https://www2.sgx.com under “Annual Reports & Financial Statements”

e To access the full Annual Report or Interim Report, go to https:/www?2.sgx.com/securities/annual-reports-financial-
statements,

e  Choose “SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd.” from the drop-down list,

e And click on the relevant hyperlink.

You will need an internet browser and PDF reader to view this document.

If you wish to receive printed copies of the Annual Report and Interim Report for this year, please complete the Request Form
below and return it to the Company no later than Friday, 15 May 2020.

By completing, signing and returning the Request Form to us, you agree and acknowledge that we and/or our service provider
may collect, use and disclose your personal data, as contained in your submitted Request Form or which is otherwise collected
from you (or your authorised representative(s)), for the purpose of processing and effecting your request.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of
SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOLDINGS LTD.

Shirley Tan Sey Liy

Man Yun Wah
Company Secretaries

Request Form
To: SIIC Environment Holdings Ltd.

Please send me a printed copy of the Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 and Interim Report.

Name of Shareholder

Mailing Address

Signature(s)

Date

Note: This request is valid for the 2019 Annual Report and Interim Report only.
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SIIC ENVIRONMENT HOQLDINGS LTD.
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